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RCBC

Wig belgwe 1 yo,

STATEMEMNT OF MANASEMENTS EESPOMIILILY
FUOR FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS

The roanagemient uf Fuzal Commercial Banking and Sahsidiades ‘the Grreupl, is rezponsable far e
Prepitalion and fir presenmeon of the Goaccia) arsements. fucluding the schedules amached theveu, Do
the peaey ended eember 31, 2017 ind 2006, 10 accecdance with the prescobed Enancial eprrng
Iremearcel indicared eheersin, aud Tor suchy itarnal cogreal as Matipemnent determines is necessacy re
evazle the preparation of fmanciai statemente tial are Free foem matrnal irusstatenient, whether duse os
fraud et error.

L prejraring the fiesancial stazecnents, fracagement i responsible for assessing the Groop's abiliee to
rOnHnue a5 2 goang conceen, disclosng, as wpmijcable, mutters related o roang coccern and using L
Beng <an<ein ki of accawning unless mansgement sithe: wntends 1 bquidaie the Group ac wr cease
Sperabions, of has no realistic alebatve te do oo,

The Board af Tirectors 15 responsible frr aversceiny e Sroun's financal cepoung process.

The Beard af Divectos rrvews and approves the financial sratements, inrlnring the schedvles auacled
treiedn, ard subansis the same oo the stocklelders

Punongbayan & Avaull, the jodependent audivms apponcel hy the srechlhoidecs, ave aolised the
Einancial sttements of the Group in accordance ith Philippine Standacds vz Auditing, s o the
rrport 10 the stocklielders, Lave eapeessed thew apunion on Qe faimess of presectatian pon crempleban
of such audht. '

P20 Floaw. Yuchengoo Mo, BIBC Pz, $819 Svals Avenun, Makaoh Cily 0727
Direcl Lne: WW3Z] fE 43000
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An instinet for growth

FOR SEC FILING

Financial Staternencs and
Independent Auditors” Report

Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation
and Subsidiaries

December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015
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Puncaghogon 5 kraulls
ZHA Flizar, Tavesr 1

Tha Ertarprae Conge-
B Apaka Lwanug

Report of Independent Audltors GO Makali iy

Philrgpiras

Trpd 2933 22uE

The Board of Dimctars snd the Stackhakiers
Rizal Commarcial Benking Comparation
Yuchangoo Tower, REBC Flaza

GH19 Aymia Avenue car. Sar. Gij Puyst Avanus
Makcati Ciny

Report on the Audlt of the Financial Statsmenis
Opinlan

- Ve heve aunied the dnengal atatemants afRizal Commemigl Banking Corparation and

subsiolarimn (hogether haralnafter refamed ko as e Group) and of Rizal Camrmencial Bankimn
Uarporatian (the Perent Company), which COmprise the statemesnig of fmancal position s ar
December 31, 2017 and 2078, ang the stglaments of AOAIE ar Joss, staterons of

iion of tha Group and of the Pamsnt Cornpany as at Dscombar 31, 2017 gad
2018, and thesr financial perfance end thair cazh fiows for each of the hreg yaarg in the
perod ended Decamber 212017 in sccordancs with Phiippine Financial Feporing Standards

Basha for Opinlon

Wi conducied cur audits in accordenca Wit Philippine Stendams on Audinng (PSA]. Our
o3 pnalblliles under thege stangdeds s fthar dagtribed | the Auniiars” Responsbiitias for
Me Auclit of ine Cansadidaled Finamncal Slawemeniz section of our report. Wia ars moepandent

] b TERMNA AFERIGE
LARGE TARPAYERY SER, 14 h
LARGE TAAPE “RE AS5ISTANCE N1 v

Date | APR 13 03 ~[SCTS
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Kay Audh Mattars

Key pudit mattars an those mEiars that, m our professiana| judgment, were of most
yhificence in ur mudit of tha Anancial gletemants of tver curtent period. Thase matters ware
adtressad in the cantext of gur audit of the financlal siatermants as a whids. aad n ferming our
cypinin therean, and wa da not Pravickd & separAls apinon on these meters,

(4] Impaimiene of Loans ang Racsivahlins

£esonplion of the Malter

As of Decambar 1, 2017, tha Group's loans and recaivabiss amountad 1o

F354. 243 milian, net of alfowanca for impalomant of P7 503 milisn, while the Parent
LOmpany's loang and msoeivables amounted to P265, 781 milicn, nal of allowsnce for
impalmant of P4,842 millian, which detalks ara gisciosed In Mots 11 1o the fimeaclal
statemnsnly. Loans and recsivebles ame the most sigrificant resourcas of the Grup and the
Pafent Company which mprasented 5%, and 50% of tha \aial iesources, P CEt vy
8ath the Group's and the Farent Company's mensgement exarcise sigrificant |udgroant
and Usk Subjectve eshmates in determming when lnans and momywabies gre [Fnpeired and
how much impairment loss are rulred 1o be rcognizad in the Anancial statsmenis.
Thezs judgment and estimates am sat gut N he Broup's and the Parent Company's
accauntng policies In Nofe 2 I Iha financisl stalemants, which describes the following
MpEIMmant assassments. :

*  Loans and racsivables are assessed for impalmnant on an Individupd basis § thers
B Shiective svidenca of imparmant that exlsts (or @ |oss =vant] 38 ot ha end of tha
rapcrting panad. Management considers tha following In determining that a oes
Svanl ocoumad, among others, a slgnificant Fnancizl difficully of the lssuer or
oblgor 8 besach of contrect, such a9 a dafault or dalinquancy Ininterast ar
principal paymenis; and, it becaming probabile Inet ihe borroswer will snmer
bBANKMuptcy or other financial recrganizations. Loss svents are assessan by
managemenl and e aeelgred to indlvidually impalred ioan &nd receivabe
BLLOMING it thg FHlywing credll gredes: substandacd, doubtiyi andiloss, depanding
on Lhe level of cradit gk

*  Colletlive assmszmants are made on a portfolio Basia where [oans and recanvablas
B graupsd on the basls of similar credit fsk charmctanistcs (i.a., an ihe basis of
Menagamant'y grading process that consigers acest hype. Industry; gecgraphicat
iocatiin, collateral typs, past dus stans and cthar rakevant factors); The
mathodoisgy ulilized by manegement In collsctive IMpairment @55 g8l UERS
signihsant eagumplione such as default mbe and oes given delauvll,; which ae
appiiad 1o aach portiollo belunging to & panticular group and coadit grade.

Bacausa of 1ha significance of e amounts Irvalved and subjaclivity of marlmgumanl‘;
judgment and estimates uead, we identifiad tha Inadequacy of the allowance for impainment
o lgans and receivat ' ' migstatarment in the financial

b HBUREAL OF  TERNA| REvES
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How tha Meflor was Adgmessad i (he Audit

In addition, wa performed substantive audit precedures, which included, among ofhars:

*  checking and evaluating the methodekgy ueed by manggemant wiyglher il was in
ccordanca with the (mdnddual and collective Impairmeant assessmants prescribed
by Phillppine Accounting Standard (P&X) 39, Financia! tnsirernts: ReCOgRan
ang Maasunamait

= Onzsalected kan accounts, checking whether Ihe loans igeniified for Indivigual
HTIpAiMmEnt assessnent were apropristely class/fed acoomng to credit grades
and mcaltulafing Iha nat presant vakies of mepecied fichure cash Hflcws wsing the
effactiva inberest ralas applicable 1o wach kan, which were cornparad bo the
outatanding balancws of the ans: mng,

v mvalaing management's judgment applied in dalamining the signficant
assUMptions ahd puis usad In compating e Impaimant loss for Carlichive
idassment such as gafault ratas and loss givan detaults by reviawing pewmnant
history far selected kans per ecanomic RCLYiy ar induslry classification and crect
grada.

Falr Valoa Measuremert of Ungugted Security Clessiffed at Fair Vaive Through Proft
or LOEK '

Lascriplion of tha Mattar

Tha Group and tha Parent Company hat significant ;ivestment i an unquHed equily
Fecuiity clagsified at Fair value through profit or kies (FYPL) amounting o P5A3 million as of
Decamber 31, 2017, cn which managarmar recognized P42 millon fair vaile ss in profit
OF ko in 2017, The valuanon of such financial instrument involves g complex valuabon
technlgue {i.e.. price-to-bogk valua mathod) and elgrificant estrmalion which ase highly
dependant on underlying assumpaons and iNPUTs SUCh Ak price-to-bock rmtos of
uenperable aiwd mnliles and applicetion of a carain harcul ke, Thasae iNputs are
congiderad Level 3 unobsarvatile inputs In the falr vale fusrarchy under PFRS 13, Fair
Valire Meezumment, as discussad in Motes 3 &nd 7 to the financlal slatarnents.
Accordingly, the valuslon of such securty was considarard Elgnificant 10 our audit.

Haw [ha Mater was Addmessad n the Awd!

Drur wouk inciuded wealuating the appropristensss of menagement's valuadian mebhedahogy
in Becomancs with PFRS 13, Wa used Qur own inbhma| valustion wipart Ip agyess and
chalangs the veluation sssumplions use; pa-dantilicalion of comparatée ksted
antilies and the miated fmancis g

U3 4 Gt nodicttsueroier Rdie and quoted
prices of thoge Ksted antiies. In teabng i rasand g btege 8 Rebaicu tam wnd, we
reviewend Svallbies non-fencial Informdt k- L el &Fﬂﬁiamlnl

of tha appl of the hawcut

markatabiity of th subject securly, s .
rale Uaed in prior peqiod in light af he PEPOFILe-cHEmplatces.
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Cesenpbion of the Maftar

At of Decembar 34, 2017 tha Parent Compeny carries o ils Arancig| slatements
Investmant securibes hald under its hold-to-colliae (HTC) business madel, which are
Maccyred &l amortized emountng to P448,141 millon. n 2017, 1t dispoad af a porton of
#3 LS dollar-denominated HTC secuqilies with ace valus of LSE449 milion

(P22.466 milllon) and carrylng ameunt of P22.279 million. Tha disposal wes made in
antepaton 1o Ihe possibfe impact gn the Parant Company's qualitying capilal in connection
with the adoption of PFRS & {2014), Finamcial in&trments, in 2018 which would raquire
recognalon of additioned allowanss for Impaimment an gextain financipl assak= under the
Arpecied cradit ings madal; 8md as & resul, woald diminish the Parent Company's existing
bevel of qualifying capital, The dispogal sims for the Parent Cofnpany to enswe its
continuing régulatary complience with the raquiréd minlmum Comaon Equity Twer 1 ratio by
the BEP,

Managsmert assensed that such disposal remaing o ba CTf&|s et with thie Farent
Cornpany's HTC businest modal for the portiol with the obeclve of callecting Lontractyal
Caai lows.  The Assocemgnt to datemina whather ihe diaposal of the HTC saguriles (o
cansistent with the Pamnt Company's MTC business mods] js significant W .aur audit
bocauss Ihe gERessmamts myclve signriicant jidgrment and would impact the measummant
of tha investment securliss in the alfected portialios, The dieclowumes in ralation to thess
matiers are incleded In Nole 10 whrie the discetumne of the Parant Company's asgessrmant
of lhe businass model apglied in Mmanaging financial instrumants are presanted in Mot 2 fo
Lhe Anancial statarmants.

How the Malior was Addmsssd in (he Audit

Wa tonfirmaed the sppropriataness of the Parent Company's dispogal of the US geflar
danominated HTC securitias by reviswing the docurmentation of the appval of tha Parant
Company's Exgcutive Committes an June 28, 2017 g2 raguirad by e ESP, which was
ralifed by iha Parent Comparry's Board of Directors. Ve assessad wheiher Ihe disposals
are made consisten| with e pamaittsd sals evants documeaniad in the Parent Gompany's
business model in managing firancial assets manual angd wiih tha elevent raguiremenly of
both the Gnancal mporting standerd ard e BSP, We ales assaa3ed the appropraterss
and reascaablenass of the underlying data used and (he mtonale decumenied by tha
Parant Coampany in the delermination of the amount of HTC s&curibtios disposad of retglive
tia the curmant and forscasted level of qualifying captal sufficient to ansyure contin usnig
complianca with the ragulalory requirements of the BSF.

Recoverabifity of Defarrad Fax Assels
Dagcrplion of e Matier

Thé Group's and the Parent Company's defemed Law axsets amounted o P4, 856 milon
and PO42Z milllon, reapacivaly, as of Decermber 31, 2017, The recognitdn OF deMared b
288818 is reviewsd al the and of each mparting period and adjusted 1G he extent of the

changes in probebikty that sufficent teable pofits will Be availabis to ollew Bl or pent of

such deRarmed tax aeeels to be utiized. Datamining the . TR
baxable profia involves significant managsment |uggrment high gal AW DT UTEI{'J .

ax | requires prapsatian of financil farecast ang profitabil mmwﬁmiﬁﬂﬂ! Q-5
In differmnl auttome scenarios: hamce, mey significantly affeck tha agirrsnes:

_ Wikl
managament Accordingly, we [dantified the mecoverabillty o Wﬂmﬁ ta ﬁhali ﬂsmm SCEL
o

sigmificent ares of focus in gor audit

hear— 1~ vaErm

REZCEIL D




—_—

P&A
(iraﬂThmnmn

AR instinct for growth - 8-

Fow (78 Matter Wak Addreszad in the Ay

Chur work inchsded, ACNG athers, cbiaining manajement’s Medme projeciona based on
4 [nletnel Capitad Adequacy AsLaprent Frocess dogumant, Farallve ta thes, we
mvinwed the sppicpriataness ol fnanagamanl's xsumpllens underlylng the PCC el
of tha defermed tax angetbs by LONTpEAng the foeeasty to ouyf Sxpacistians developed basad
4n Nistorcal parfomance. We alsp consiterad tha kact that the moup and e Parent
Company have baan whlizing the banefits of damed tax 85%al8 sinca prioy peruds.

The relewant information relating to deferad tax aggets am disclosad in Motes 2.3 and 26
L fhe fingneial statamants

Azaezpimani of Goodwiir moairmant
Lascrpdion of the Mater

Az of Decamber 31, 2017, the halance of goodwil amounted I P2ER milllion, which rg ncudeg
88 pant of the Oither Resourcas acoount in the Group's stedmmman of fnanoiat posfson, Undey

Indicate that the camying valye of gootwil may be impaired. This annyg NTipgirment lest was
Bgnificant to aur gudit bacause MANAJament's ssgessmant (wocess is Somplex and highly
ludgmerial, and is based on signifcant assumptions, spacifically an the identificabon of cash
genarating units (CGUs) whane the gl is allocated and Ine futurs cash flows of that,
partcular CGUs, which are attectsd by expected huiure markel or econamic congitions.

Ralative: lo thia, the Group ehgagad o third party valuation speclalist to asslst tham. i ALEecEing
Any impedment on the recognized gotdwill. Managernant's significant A35umpbigns Inclnde;

* RCBC Savings Bank, inc. (RSB}, the ientified CGU o0 which tha B wiil is & kw-ated_
Wil continue as & going cangem,

= RSB will hieve sufficient Fnancial resourcas. o Ninance its working cApltal requirmments
to achiave its projecied forecast ang 1o BURpOM the bukiness needs, and,

* RGDB's parformance fomecasts for e next five ymarg,

Ther Group's sccounting policy on impairment ¢f and dlsclosurss sbout Focdwill are intleded in
Nctes 2 ang 15, respectively, to the financigl slatomenis

How tha Matter wes Aodressad i fhe Angit

Qur sl procecdunes inclyded, WNLNG OMNers, evaluabing the assumpions and maihodsiogues
wsed by manapament and its valuslon spaclalist, parbcuiady those redsing Lo tha hrecasied
enue growth and profit margins of RSE by Lonskdaring hlsloncal bends, In addition, our
audit on tha financial siglaments of RSB g3 of and for the yaar anded Dmm:{ﬁ“ 2017 dig
nok ldentify evenl or conditions that may casi 5""""{3.?“'. voubion REE.A ALY M Bontiwe as a
golng Wﬂfgll'ﬁ. 2 L;.tﬂi-;i': h_ﬁ_;‘,.l,";fﬁﬂ_-,_-lg_.. . ::-h;.-
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information includaed in the Graup's and tha Pamsnt Company's Securliee and Exchange
Commission (SEG) Forn 20015 { Defmitive Infarmatian Slatement), SEC Formm 17-A gnd Annugl
Fnport far the year anded Dacamber 31, 2017, bat does not include the financia statements
anid our audilors’ report tharean. The SEC Fotm 20-1€, BEC Form 1724 and Annual Repord for
tha year anded Decanbar 31, 2017 arg fxpacied o ba made aailable (o ws after the date of
thiz audibars’ mpord

Our coinion on the financial staternents doas not cover the other Informetion and we Wl rvod
BMPrEds Ay fonT of assurance conglusian thareon,

In Conmection with our audits of the financial stamments, our ESpongibiity 4 o read the atnar
informallon identified above whan i becomes svailebhe and, in daing 80, considar whathar the
athed informetion is materally inconslzint with the francial staksments or cur knowledge
abtginad in the audits, or olharwise appears to be matanially mestatad.

Estponelikies of Management and Thoss Charged with Sovernanca for the Financlal
Stalsments

Manegeman 1& responkibla for the prepamiton snd fir presantation of the financial stalements
i @ccordance with PFRS, srd For guch Inlsmal control &5 managanenl detammynes s
NBCOEEry o anable the preparalion of financlal statemeants that are fres from mgatenal
migstatament, whalhar due 1o faud or erroad.

In praparing the financiel statemen s, Managament iv raspansible for atsguEing the Graup's
and tfa Parmnt Company's abilty 1o continus as a Qring concarn, disclosany, ag appllcatie
matiars relahad 1o going concermn and using the poing concam bate: of BLCOUnOng unlegs
managarnent either intends o Iguidata 1ha Group amnd tha Padent Lompany ar it caake
operaliong, of hes ng raallstic ahemative but 1o do so.

Thesa chergad with govermance are respansible for Lymrseaing the Group's and tha Pament
Gampany's financial raporing process.

Audhors’ Responibillthes for tha Audit of the Financlal Stabaments

Chr gbygclivas are Ip oldain reaconsbi assumancs aboul whather tye francial sHatements as a
whede arw free from malerial missiatemant, whether dus t3 fraud or aftsr and bo-[saus an
auditors’ repon that Includes our oplnion. Reasonable sssurance is a high larwdl 4f Bsgurance,
bul I3 nal a2 guamntes that pn Gudit canducied in BCCordancs with PS4 wiil phways detec! &
matarial misstalemant whan it exsts. Misstbstmmants can anss rom Fasd or smer and e
congiderad matial i, indnidually orin the agarsgats, they could masaongbly ba sxpacied to
Influance the ecantmic decislons of ueers laken on Lhe basis of hage Anancial stabemanls.

As part of an suditin accordance with FSA, we exercise professional jJudgment and mamtan
prefeggional skapticism thrsughout the sudll YWe alsc: [

*  Kentify and gscegs the Asks of matedal m
whathar dus b frsud or &mor, dasign and
riskg, and obtan audit evidencs that ia suff
Qur tpdnion. The gk of not detecting a ma
highar than for e resulling From amae 2
inkenllenal orssions, misrepracantationg, or|the

nval[ida'-udlnwE
RAOELVIAED

AeEn T ORI AND



' .

—_— . e

o

P&A
Grant Thornton

An instinct for growth” -7-

* Qbtain an undemstanding of Intemal Coniral redgvant ta the audt in oroed 1o dasign audrt
procedures thet are appropnale in Ihe circumstances, but net for the purpase of

SXNALSINg an ohinicn on Ihe efectivenass of the Group's 8nd the Parent Campany’s
inlemal cartno. )

*  Eviluste the apprepraleness of accounting policies used and the ressonablensss of
actuuniing astimaies and related disciosures meda by manggermnt.

Conclude on Ihe appropraleness of managament's vae of the going concem bagls of
accounting and, heaed on the sudit svidence abtalned, whelhas & ralerial uncerainty
#xisls relatad ta evenis or conditions Ihat may cast sifgnifrcant doubt on the Sroup's
and the Parant Company's abillty to continue s a g5ing cancam. IF we conclude that a
matersl urcartanty axists, we e required to draw atention In aur euditors’ repart 1o
tha mlated declosures in e financial statemants or, if sush disclosuras are
iradequate, to modify our opinion, QUr ConcluEIONS B8 based on e audt Byidancs
obtainad up ko the dale of our Auditors' repart. Hoawever, fulure events o comditions
May cause lha Group and the Parent Company to ceass o continge % 3 gaing
concam.

v Evaluste the ovarall presentatian, structure and candent of e fnancisd statemants,
meluding the disciosuses, and whether the financial statarments repmsant the
underiying iransactions and evants in o manner tat achiaves 'gr prasantation.

v Dbtain sulficient approptiale audit avidence rapanding the fmancial infomatun of tha
eniilins or busingss activibes within the Group 10 express an aginion on he
consalidated financial statements. Wa sre responsibis far the dirsction, SUREYISion
and performance ¢f the group adit. 'We rsmain scdaty responsibte for gur sudit
OpMIiCn.

We communicate with those chamed with govamanca reganding. amang cther mattars, the
Pannad scope and tming of the sudit and significant audlt Andings, Including any sign kel
deficlancias in (ntemal conbml hat we identty during cuUr awdlt.

We aisa povide those charged with govemance with a slatarmsnt 1hal we haye camplied with
redevanl athical mquirements ragarding independeance, and to comrmunicate with them all
ralatnships and olvar maters that may easonably be theught fo baar an qur independencs,
and whearg applicable, ralated safequards.

From the mattars communcaled with those changed with Qavamance, wa damenming those
miatiars thet wee of mosl significanca In the audit of the fnancial sletemants of the cument
FEncd & ahe tharefons the kay audit matters, Ve describe theas matiert in our audilors'
Pt unkues law or equlaion preciutes pulic dissiosure oot the mattar ar when, Bxtramely
rare circurnatances, we delsmmine that @ mater shoukd nat e communicated in oy repart
because tha sdverse consequancas of doing 50 woukd reasonably be expectsd 10 oubyeigh tha
pubkc Intarast banefits of such communicaton.

Rapart om Othar Lagsl and Reguliiary Regoirements
Qwr audita wera conducted for the purpose of forml

shatonants Laken o a whole. As discussed i 3] e
Company pressnled the supplementary infunfalichrsquinie by Dol Bkl ke mal Revanue
amiafkary 4Cheduba filed

under Revenue Reguiations (RR) 15-2010 a
ui;eilna
ST

sapanstsly from the basle financied stalemanty.
supplementary information to be presantad In
suppharmantiary infomation is the eaponsibil

ifprmation in nel a requined part of ha basic finencia Lt ardince with
FFRS: It 15 neithar 3 requited disclosure undet ths fa Pupulifion Qdain Er. a5
amended, af the SEC. ACEAED 7K. N0
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RIZAL COMMERCIAL BANKING CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARTES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2017, 2016 AND 2015
fdincunss (0 Mithione of Philippine Fesas, Except Shive aod Par Shav: Ba or Aa fucfrcape=d)

CORFORATE MATTERS
LY  Incorpeoation and Opersiions

Rizal Commercial Banking Cotporation (the Parent Company, the Beak ot RCBC),
unrveszal bank eogaged in all aspects of baoking, was poginally wcorparated on

September 23, 196, The Baok tenewed ity cofporate oxistence on Decennber 10, 20609,

It provides products and services related to tradinonal Joans and deposits, trads Gnanee,
dimestic and fotcign fund transfers o remittance, cash twanagement, T%ensur-;, and tost pod
custodianship secvices. Under relevepr authonty granted by the Bangka Seotral np Pilipina:
{BSF), the Pank is also licensed to deal in differsnt types of deomatrves praduces such as, bur
not Iimnited, to foreign cumrency forwasds, intezest mace swips And Cro3s cutcency swaps. The
Parcot Comapany and its subsidiaries {together bereinafier refetred to as the Giroup) aze
engaged un abl aspeces of raditonal bankiog, investment bunking, etail financing feredic cards,
auta loans, moetgage  housing and mictofisance loans), cemittance, leasing an:l stock
brokenng.

As 2 batlong institwticn, the Group's upeaatons ate regulated and supetvised by the BSP. As
such, the Group is required to comply with banking rules and regulation: such as those
relating b maintenance of reserve tequitements on deposit Liabilites anf deposit substiutes
and those relating 0 the adoption and wse of safe and souul banking pracrices, among
athers, a5 promulgated by the BSF. The Group's activities ate subject to the provisions of
Republic Act (RRA) Ma. 8751, the Crenerni Bamking Lawr of 200, and otlies telated bankiny laws.

The Parent Company’s common shuaey are listed in the Fhilippine Stock Eachange (PSE).

The Group’s and the Parent Company's baoking netvrrk within and nﬁt&ld: the Philippice;
as af Decamber 31 folloms: '

Group Paient Corapagy

—ar 0 Me 2017 ! i
Avtrmancd tell=r
machines fATh =} 1562 1,488 1,103 1,047
Emnch=: 473 4415 S0 28]
Extensng offces L a5 25 A5

RCEBC is 42.45% owned subsidiary of Pan Malayan Matapeineut and Invesbmenr TR

{PMMIL), a company invusporated and domiciled in the Fhilippines. PMMIL 15 the holding

company of the dagship insombons of the co Lrroup of Companies (WG, with

registered business address located at 48% HloBk bk, ko], R a| G319 Ayala
' kA HTIE T AT R RCE

Avenue cor Sen, Gil Puyal Avenoe, Maka E T.F.JI;-'-' j&.";_ At S&'ll'-fH%E 51 0

Led at
Makani Ciry.

The Farent Cnmfrm?'s registerod address,
Yuochengeo Tower, RCBC Plaza, 5819 Ar

RECEIVED
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L2 Subsidiaries and Associares

The Farent Company holds wenessbys intecests 1w el tnlbowing subsidiaries and asauciates.

Eflzctive Fr::q:-u;magc

o Lime f Explanatory of Llanemhip
— Subgpdimies/heeociaten Ewzineas THaicy 2017 WL
Sutmadiaries: :
BB Savings Bank, Inc (R5G) LCunsumee and '
2ol hanking 1 100, [Hp oo
RCBC linrex Bookers Compuration Fenrign cachargr |

(HOBL Forex) dealuy ; AEHLON 001
BB Tezmones Buwpe ;

(BCPAC Teleaoeuys Ruomirtaper 00 [M) WL
ROBC Miarlh Aanvnics. Ine,

I:R': B Bezarh ."'-rl'rl.‘l:ll.:l:l Rerirr o [_;] 100k a4
FLBC Tneeenadonal Fuaoue [omired '

R IFL) B eivediquan e i 1K I
ECHS Invernmezni Lol Eermattance Hrl | IRy Linim
ECBL l_.apiril e fraraLizan

[RLBC Capataly Javeslment house o g, g
Ci B Recazags, Lo TRA1) Securicies ke e |

wnloJ=gln '3 [t i T4 S L g
FRCZRAC Bankard Secvices l_.ru.pn:ul;nun .

{BBAiT) Credir cued ot ez L LTI T 1 Ik
ACTC-TFL Holding Company, [nc.

(RCBE TPLY Property lsalding 19,41 a0y iy
Biecchanm bavings aped Layan Theili barkang zrd

Azznciarion, T, Rawl Hiumhtnk_] muebnance /.03 AE
RO Lastirns 2nd Finunee :

Corpmauuen (ROBL LBC) Finarciml Imasing i 97,74 a7 i
B0 B Curpomilion Prupesh: lzasiop ul] i A Ty
vgrevral Farpose Cunsra e (3705 Fal =sduce buping

arid a2 lang I} ;

Byt Malue Peopeety and Oevelopmen:

Curl:!umuun {Bc:t "|'u_'1.|.e] ! 110, HE LCHA I

Capel Bealey Carmarahan #ael) 11500 Jralby

Croesceitl Pack Poopecny aad

D:w]::-[:m:m CaIrid 150

{Croscent Fack) Leon T4
Crrzlvitw ["l:r.l[.l:'. L D:,--.-¢|;_||-|1|r_||t

Corpendrion [esnaeag 00,11 L
Eight Hill: Propscoy and Dievekapment

Cauprntron (Eiglt Hills) 100r.1H) [ (4 v
Coold Plage Troogeecties. Jevelaprvsm

Crpurtzan (Culd Place) 10040 4.1
Cokdparh Propecies Developrienr

Corpamten [Guldpatl) ICHE.IWD [ CHLLH!
Crreatwinyms Propectics Developanenr

orpazaseon [omibvings, 10410 Lz i
le:'n,".'.-*n:ll Pmpfn’l ar«sd I:I-:wln:lprr.-:rl.l

':l'.l'IpUI:“Ei'.?'F'I I.-L-'rﬂ"'ﬂ:l':' 1041’ LaGan
Hitvicw Propecny aad Tgvelnpment

Cmpq:ur:.:in:'. [I"-]i..'ﬂ'iew] 1M1 Lede
Blrpesg Fre=ner e Hakdings, Inc (MIPFRIL [ W) 100 [CH 1
Tz eway Propemies Tevelonmene

Cocpocalivn A Loeea | LIMLAIG [z
Top [Mlace Fropertics Develuprioe

Lok LY

Lueporztion (Tup Flaic)
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Elleciier |'er|:tﬂuE||_-

Linme of of Owwtrship
- Subsuliacies/ Aoouciaes Buaogse ) A |1 [
i aparcTares.
VAL Corpaaie Seraces, b, Y08 sSuppoc sesulies
Fun ' 4.0} Aelanzy
Luiata Indusie| Fack Ca. N E Fed mmpars huyig,
devebapang, seliog
and jeqneal 35401 3500
Flundy Caes PRy, Ine. (] [CT Sile b oo weli e 1r.58 12 A

EJ-I.I.‘.'E'FI‘IZ boe ROEC Tt‘]tml_ll::ll.':lr [It.n.,]-‘_:l., ROURLC Moh Ainericp ALEAY, R 1K (H r_:.n.gl.l;.:.ng-_]
and RUBC nvesiment Lad. (Honghong), alf uther subsicurizs amd awsnoates ave lmenrporared
and canduciing their businesses in the Phibppines. &0 B Telenusrey and B4R WNareh
America were operaooral ooly unol March 1, 2016 aed March 3 L 20t 4 respecavely.

Faplanatory MNuges:

[} The Parear Campzny has B3 97% (hrect oanerslu)y interest and G5 indireet
ownership interest ool RO TR

b A whally-vorned subsaliany of KO3 1L,

i) Whollp-rawned subsidiues of RCBC Capia.

(g A whellf-awned sulsidinoy of RECBC LA,

i Bxeept for MUZN, the SPCe ave wholly-owned substdiaries of RSH: dw SPCs, eRCepr fur
MNITHT and Cajel, wil Le bguidated b pursaant to B5P econmmendation aned upHn eceipt
ol negessary regulanocy cloarance (see Mowe 15,10,

(F The Parent Company has 42,1 1% ditece ownership et nod 2 1B anicece
vwnershup inreerst through KE15

1.3 Approval of Financia! Feateqrends

The consalidated (eancial staterments of BCEAT 2o sulsodiarie s wd 14 separate Vit
statements of RUDBC as of and for the yeat eoded Decemabee 31, 2017 (includiog 1l
commparatives as of Deceinler 21, 2016 and for the vears ended December 32, 2014 amd 2013
wert apptoved and authoesed foc jssue by the Baard of Tirecroes (T3 ok che Parear
Cum‘pﬁﬂ]‘ e Felrewary 26, 2014,



—_————

L5

22 Aduptien of Wew and Amended PARS

il ol tive o AT thad are Bfeoaut fo fie G rngs |
T'I'_!L' Group adaqied for the e nme all che sonendments wed i al LM HLE LR TRE LS [
PERS, which are mandatoely elfective fol 2l perods beahifinog on w adier
lanuaoy 1, 3007 s follove:

FAL T [Armendnenis) o smamwement of Casle Flows —
Drizclirrire Inibaowe :
FAS 12 (Ameniiments) . Tncome Tazes - Revopnluon of Defereed 'Lax

Avnsecs e Llotealized Losses
Annual Tuaperciwnts o

PERS (ZIH G - 2 G e le)

PRRE 13 : Lh=closube of Titeress j;n!{_'l thazs Fnbibipy —
S-I:{:-Pi.‘ Clacifieariom -;_1- [hscoosate ol
summanzed Fiuenigl Infeonation fit
lecterest: Claasified a5 Field fire Sale

Duscuzacd welow are the celevant mlfurmson abow these amcadrornt s and
jﬂ'IFII'L:I'ul'I::I:::II;:rI[ﬁ H

[ FASY (Amcndiuents), Fivomens of Cosh P — Dociwre fmgesrs,  The aotencoments

aes drsignien Lo improwe the quality af mbortsaticn provided to weees ol fnancal
graterpents ahowt chaoges in an esety™ debt and related cash fowes amd non-zash
rhanges. They requite an eonry wy provide disclosares char el e 1 evalpate
chanpes o Labiliucs ansing feom Bnancing actviues aud o apply its juc gment when
dlereemining, the exact fotemnd vontent of the discloaues necded 10 satsfy this
teyuilernent, Merorover, chey suggrest o nuenber of wwecific dizzlosaces th*a:.:m.:,l Lo
nECzzsary i order 1 saisfy (s above cequicement. wchuding: (30 changes in
biabilities ansing e finanging activities cauzed by chaoges o fnancing cash ows,
brrbeifon exechaige gates or Faic values, or obtaitoog ur lewing control of subsidiasies o
wther businesses, and, (b) a ceconcibatnorn 1l aperung and clesdng badances ol
bialiboes artsing fronn Doawoog wetivities (o the sasamen: of foancal posios
imclading those changes identufied onroedaniely alwe |

Managemmant has appued toese amendments in the coteer :,-n.l.:r anil ks not
disclosed cormparauve Fgutes a5 allowed by the transitonal provisioes,
1

|
That Creoup’s Winbulithes ansing [een: fioanoig actvibes in-_'iudic bills payalsde, Lo
payal&]c and suhonbzaoed slebn The cevcmcalaraon bursern 1h|: I;_IF_II;_'[:JHB ancl
closing balances. of these Labalioes amsing foom financiog activibies ane desclosed m
Meree 32
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I:IJ.:I 45 12 ':..J!.ﬂ'ICI:LIJJ'I'If:i'll."J:'::. Juvvzme Tomay — ]{nqu.-;.-'m.-q r.:ln"_['j'.:-_,'fr,-':-,;f il oo -] ineis dgy [ T

Larres. The Focus of dw amendmeats 1 o clanify Liow to agoou foe deferred s
assety reliiel to debt nslcwenents oueaswred a1 {anc value, |r.:Lr'.r||'|n rly whese clanpes
i the wmarkerdocecest tae decrease the GUr value of 2 dehr instourment beloes s coer,
The stneuduisnts provide puidance o the tolurwing areas wiets thiversafy in practce
previously exsied. 1) existence of o Beductible e ey diffeseie; (b} cmcoveeioy
ap asset foo moore than ik cartputy smount; (o) probahle futdee taxalal; profit ageiog
which deducnhle wmparay diflerences are assesyed For utiblza Unaea; s, )

(€ combuied versus reparate wsservment of defersml tan aseet coonition For each
deductble tempotacy difference. Tl applicanon of wsr ameodimenr: s ne
mpact oa the Group’s Enanoa sarements 55 the Group alfeady assewses the
sufficiency of faluee 1uxalle poofic in @ ey thar i consteren watn Haese
amendrieis.

Annual Brgreevemnents co PFRS 30114 - 20 Oyele) an TFBS 12, Do of Tatere sy
on IR r Dot — _'l'n:ﬂ_l.'!lr '!:l!u'n_.l!l;: wdaant e E0ege s vere a,l' 1-'r.-.-.'.r.'.?.'.-..'.l'."_:q'.gr' { tmuin did e dien G
Srtereits Closfind coe Held foe Vaie. Thie wnendmear clatities i 1l elisclosure
teyuirenents of PERE 12 applies toointerest 1o other critie: |cassified as hebd Tor sale
with practical concession i w presertanon of =anariced| financial iadooma o,
Toe amendencul states that an encry ceed v preseat summpanzed Naancal
tnlermagcn fol atere sts in sabsidianes, assocmies. or joint yennore: o ars
rlassitied ax held froosale. The Group has interests wo corrai S1PCs with zarrying
amount oF He gt investments presensed sl chsafied as assets beld-forsale apl
ciapozal gromp Jsee Mote 15, The Group bas oot bees [resem iy saTunanzed
financial informaiian of these SPCs which s comgisrer L with|the amendrnents.

i

Liffective Nuhsequeni fp 2017 bat ner Adopird Koy |

Therz are new PEES, amnenidments snd annual Unpauscincnts L L aned ands
cifective for anuual peckads solasoyuent o 2017, whnch ase adssped by tae FISC
tlunagerment antl adopzt che fellowule celevant pronoancements in accordanes with
thieir tiansitivnal provisivns; and, unless otherwase <l vope of the e aee expocted ne
hawe signtficand imfract an the Groopt Goiocial stareme o

(]

Pz AD [ toendmests), Levertmsnt Prapesty  Trowifers of Fronerigenr: Nropemty
[effectve Eroma Janwary |, Z118). The amendments state (hac ag conry sTall
lransfer a propermy e, of (Eim, invesneesr ke ety whes, anad anly when, there
15 evidenee OF & change i wse. A change ol use poowes JF propesey et o
crases ko meet, the definitien of ievestoneat propoerty A chinge in
pranagerrent stenions fut the wse of s propeco: by itself does nul consltute
evidence of a4 chaoge in use The amendmenc: alse provided a non-exhaasoe
list of exampres constitnng change in oee.
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U] PRS0, Fiawearrd [y travements {eflective Ik January 1206 Thie oecw
staridacd o flnancial nsecamencs will cvencoally teoluce TIAS 39, [ Tirancesy
funtriements, Fecagreition aod Alrasrrcoene, and PIRS 0 (2004 PO13 acad 2013 e isions
— herein petereed do g PIRS 99, To addition o che prmeipal classilivation
rategorlzs fut Tramcial aseer: wnd financaal Lo Lilades, which woere oaghe Buderpie]
Loy thl:_'Gmup wre January 1, 214, TFRS Y (21D i Judes the ffu]iu-wi.nE. v
PrOVLEIONS.

fenancial assets inteod wengs i face value mwasiueinent fo L*.Ijglhlﬂ Uelit

;
* limited amcadments to the classlization and ﬂw.ﬂl{ummi?nt EequULEGIrents for
securities: aod, !

i
* anerprcted credit lass (ECL) model in dererroniog woagananent £ all
fisancial assets that ate zun meagared at Fawr value theoogh prodls at lrss
(FWTLy, wluch penerally depeads o whether there has aeen o sigrmificant
Imercane in eredic 5% sinee wilial recopmioon of 4 finangial azset

Based v an assessment and cumarehensive atudy ol ehe CSrosup's lingncial aeuete
andd Goancial lalalities a5 ar December 3t, 2007 wrhic b hasbeen Tundted te the
la s gl clocumstances ey at ar dake, monagemen) grtetrruned the

ﬂ.gl.‘l.i flazanl impﬂ rtof PR (2014} v the fimancial statesde:s a. éollpars:

*+ Deebe securities ledd for both collecting comtraciual cash| Eows selely fur
payment ot principal and intecest 30T and sellusg aze Fesipnaced by thre
Letiup W be classified at a3 Gane vabue thoougl atle: |;|.:I||i]r_:lrr_'|||:"|_u.|'.-'|_‘ INCUEme
(FVYOLCT) Tanancial asacr ar FYOC] are measuced a1 fag valae, with Fair value
changes and realized gatnor Joss on sale directly recognized in nther
comnprebensive income. Upon devecogeniiie of debt secunities wndet
FWORCT, the ruroulative pains o losses previcnely recopnized o other
compeehensve incnme shall be reclaesified dooro cyuoy to profit oc loss The
Sroup has ity assessed that the applicaoes of che standacd would skt
in reclazsibicabion ot ceeram linancial assess at FYTHL o el azEeda il
EVOC]; heace, will affer dhe habince of the reporoed refaed L s Al
alher comprelensire noome an ransin date.

* Inappliog the ECL methedulory of PERS 9 (2014, the Growp indally
assesied douse the loan loss provston etlicodulery as allowed by rhe
stanclat] and s prescobed by the BoI. On the othee hadul, FOT. oo
puvernment soad: and corporate honcds cutrenily classifed a: naacial st
at amwrtized cost shall by eneasured wsing the 12-month BCL a5 chese
fssudal serls are assessed o have Jow credit osk. considenag dizis
bew e livi st rrilogs. Maneerment bas asseseed that Ilh-: appbontron of the
FCT, orcadel will resaly in ao ineoease jn the |:|:':'||,|i:|:cr_:| .'-||]r_11.1|.fs,n|:|_- for irnpaij:mi:nt
erf certan Hivanemal ese moessenes 25 ar tha heginning od 1he sext o paring
pr::i«:rd acd i UtpaLeenr Losse: 10 that pettcd a5 oo prated witer e oo
that wivald have been recegrized wader the impairment previsien: of PAS 30
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BHRS Ut Ammeadanents), Comebairind Fenara Safmeati, 101 FaA= T8 LAmendmens),
hargwsdmernds S L nim cater g Soiw! eminres — Node ar Cpatrsiutrgn @ Ay fefaver an
Lupertar and dr Arswizie or fant | eniner (effectve daen dcf:::rqmil indetinitelyl Tl
amendenents to PFRY 1 requite full recogarion 10 the merast's Branc sl
StabeIents 1 gans of lugwes acsing an the sale e roenmbbune of g that
coslitale a busmess a5 defined in PERS 3, Baarmers I'_'__::-_-..-.-.'.;-.rn,-.ri,l'ﬁ,llfl bu-twees it an
mrEstor el L arsoctile or jomar venbare Accardingly, the parual Lecopsitian of
guins or loss e (Le |t the rerent oF the unelored I eSO CF Lt reses 111 daniigge
oF jodzn wenbere) coly apples o those sale or rontgbuoe :.uF dexets el do nar
cosriwre a busimess. Corresponding ameodaents have Tden mace r TAS 9 1o
reflect these ehanges, In adililion, PAS 25 has heen anended fo clarify that when
detetmnining whethet asets thar aee suld or conmibeted colisivate 2 by, an
ey shall eemnsider whether rthe sale of contdbuation of 1h PR 35sers 1 pagt of
sntalliple arcangeoent: that shoeld be accowired for as 2 sl brarsacron,

FEFRs 135, Bevermue frame Crmenags with Coatwrrerr Thas s taendacld vl tepilare PAS T8,
Rrocawe, 2d TAS 1. Sowotose tonm ndracts, the related lrrelpactations an tevene
recogalicw: Internanonal Fiuancial Repocting Toicopeetandas Coroiniteee

(IERIC) 13, Cuptomer Lapady Proprammes, IFRIC 13, cLmrieal fr e Coourtreson ut
Fte Erdarte, INVRIL 18, Truwsffre of SAcnets fFoae Caripmers and randiag Mteeprerauooe:
Lommiteee 31, Heesme — Borer Toaim o e fampiving #ldwirmiay Semoge, e bec e

Jacugacy 1, 2008, Tles neor standacd esralslishes 2 cumpmhrirmwe framewerta (or

determining wher to receguze tevenue and huw moch cevienue @ recuguze. he
Core predple in this standard i o an entity to reeqniee fevenue o depuel the
tansler of promised poods or services Lo the castomet in i amaunt that pellect
the considecation f which the ety eX|rer ks e e caoded rn eachange For thoge
goods or services. Fased oa an sssessmant of che iroup's Tovenus siceass as at
Diecembaet 33, 2017, wrhich has becn kmited to the B ] crcun s exislimge
at that dare, manugement determuoed dat its sigoidican, sogeues l perenues
[/eriain to gts lending actviies wlich genecare e pest wienrhe, Fervice charges, and
fees. Except for cermin service charees and Fees, sthszantial amonar ul rhse Bank's
tevenues ate generated froan financialf instraments which an: cutside the seope of
PELS 13. i
Annual Imprevrements o PRERS 2014 - 2016 Cyelr Armomd the impLavemens,
['AS 28 {Amendenents), Irestarents s Aviodiisy wad leing Loufares — Mearseriap e
Assngiate or fuint Ventare ar Vi Ve [eTRective From |aous r L, 2008 e celevant w
the Crmonp. The amendment: darifie thar the apbon for wajtute czpal
organization, mutual Eueds and ather simdae cotibies @ ¢locy the far value gl
prof o loss classification o measiting uyestmenes in assofctares avad jorn
ventures shall be made ot nidal recognition, separarely foneleh wssociate o joint
venrare.

LEHIC 23, r-urm_;u l:"_.h'mm_'_r Tranraciiar v Adseaee © ot i wirom ;:l_'!'lf-e:-::ﬁvr brom

January 1, 2018y, The Lr;l:e:rprﬂtat:r.:-n provides more deaded pwdance o T 1e

arcoun for cansacons that wdude the tencipe ar payment of adwanee
ropzideraticn i a foreigo cuerengy. Tlee Jutetprelation states that che date of the
trapsacoo:n, far che puep<ose G des miniog the sxchange rate. 15 the date ub inioal
recopoiticn of the non-menztacy asset (osimg from advance png.-mf-nl.} r_'-r.|_1:||_:-i],il_':,-'
jarsing from advance teceiprl. 11 there ace moltiple payments or receipts in
advance, a dare of icansaction i esablished Moz cacle ppovot or eceipt.
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() P 2 CAre ndmennst, Dmeiforens sl gcsees — Laaa-vermer fonierestr dn ALuseraden amd

Joint Vemineer [efferuvs from lanwery 1, 20197, The amendnzents caty 1kat the
srope exclusion i PLRE (2014 applass only o arnier< D InTebests ar e
Faar using the equity medanl, Thae, the wraendmenrs hurthes clanly that lung term
IALETERIE I0 UL L3 AT O i1l VEOIULE — i wrhich the cquety method s oot
applied — nuwt b accownpnd for under TFRS 0 120014%], whpely shal alse aclude
bzng tecm bnerests thae, in salitanece, fore part of the cor ty's et Inves icaent in ac
ARSI UL pEnt venlure Managetnent s coerently asses sing the impact of these
e Lrrendments oot fnancial statements |

(vist] PFRS O [Amencdanentsh, Fmvaces fortrasens - Frefeemeear Bratarer aeth Pegarice

o
'.J M‘.lI

ammaemnation (oflegive from lamuary 1, 2018, The amendments: charify that
prepaviment fentures with nepaive campensaraon sitached [bo Tnancal nserwnents
oy 300l qualify under the SPF] mest As el the financial geace: contaling
prepayment fratures wih megative compensation may still e ClassiGed ar
Amarazed cusl peoat faie valoe through othec o liensiye weine. Management
i currently assenang the ionpace ol diesr amendmens o ik Dmapcial seazemeos:
TFRS 16, Lewres (cMfective from |acuary 1,200, The new] standand wil et nally
teplace FAS 17, Lawer. i

Tnt bewsess, it toquiines to account Tt leases “on-balance shebr by FECORALZIN 3
“right af use™ asser and a leawe liabiiey. The Lease Tahality 5 fnigally mearored s

Che prescar vabue af futnre lease pavinenis. For this purpusd, leaw naymenss
inchude fixed, nos-canrellzble oarments fa lesse elemoents, gmonce due gnder
tesledal value puaranrees, rertain grpes of contingenn ppments and amowans e
duting upbonal pedid; b e extent that excensjun b ceasonably certaio. 1w
sulrsquent penods, He “fighl-ofuse” asset s acvowned for smiacdy o
purchasedd usset subject 1o depeccntin o1 amertization. The lease labiliny is
accounted dere sitralarly ta 2 Ananaal liabiling nsing the etfectoce maerest methied
Floweser, the new skancand provides imporcsar telis i or rREmptiang for

aherre oo Jeasms and deases o o value a<ssmee 1 thee thuroaleins ace used, fhe
AcConGhng 15 slvular Lo rape g Jm=q e aocouniye wader PAS 17 whete leane
pRyments ace recopmized as expense on a stranght e bass ol the lease wehm or
another shreioatic Lass (oF more represearattve ul the pattenn of the lesses’s
[aenetit]. :

For bessurs, lease accuunting s sioelar o PAY 1775 In partcldar, the diswicuon
berween Anance and opelaoug leses is wainml. The definidens of cacls iype o0
lease, and the suppong dicaiors ol 8 Gnance lease, are subsmanmally the s
with those appied m IFAS LT The basic accounting mechangrs are als surulaz, but
with sueme diterent ur moce explicit puidance io few areas. Fliese wclude vanable
paymenis, suby Ieasey, lease modibications, rrearment of ounalfdiece 1 oot s amil
lessor disclosores. :

t‘-‘[ﬂ.rl.agtn‘.li:l.'l.[ 15 cerrecsly wesernamap, Chie brfract off Ty oew stancdacd in ag fnanceal
sharciEl.
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|;1-:_':- LF1JC 25, [;'ﬂ:'rn'dw;.l Ao ncamer Tox Trealfomanlf) l:t'::l'lﬂ-::li.'.-'ﬂ I':l:-l::l_'l:'lrl.lu:r:,-' I El.ﬂ.':.'].
The metpretatien provides clanfication on the dererminanon of raxable profit, vax
b::-e*;: unused 1as loszes, uondkd taa coedies, and e taees wleo tbere 1y unZeklinty
ot Loeddne Wk treannents. The cote peinciple of che interpretotion requires the
reoup te consider the probability of the tax freatmene I:le:mi wccepred by the by
authoeity. When it 1= probable that the tax treatment will by accepred, the
detezntnanom uf the raxable probt, tax baser, uoused rax ledses, unused tax crediss,
and taa rares shall be on o the basis of the accepted tax treatmen:. Oiheowise, the
Graap has wuge the masr hkely amnoans o the expected vzlue, depending vo the
surrounding ciccumstances, in -:_'|E:'I'-E'r:|'r'|.i:|!|I.|:'IE thee tax accountsidentitied immediately
above. Managgmgnt i curtendy assesang the impact < this Intesprelallon 1o s
financial statsnicuia. i

jxn Aonual Improsrements (o PFRE 2015 - 2007 Cpcle. Aoy the Lmprovemens
elTective fzouary |, 2054, the following are relemvan o the Crloup but were nubally
asseseec] by management e have ne mateoal popact an theiGeoues ancial
stateraents as these amendments reecely clarify exisbng requirmments:

a T*Aa512 {.{.ncndmcnts]: F ey Tover — Tooe I"_:&'#J':'-:j'ﬁ-r.n'-:e'.r ,::I__,_?'If-.:'rl:ur!'rir.-:'r. The
arecdinents clanfy that allincome gax consequence of :byvidead paymen::
shorald Do gecegoized i proft or luss :

+ [AS 23 (Amendoents), Serraney Co iy — Sy jor I::r{I.';Irf.'!.':r::rIfﬁUN The
anenditents clanfy that when a specific herrowang cemane aukstanding atter
the related qualifying usser i ready for its muendes] puipase, sucl: becrowing
will then foeny part of an entins proeral bercowangs u:u;:r{! m ralculaoing the
captalization eate For capitalization utpess ;

v PERE 3 Aanendioams), Beises Comiteeien, wod PERS 11 {Apendmentsg,
Jarnt Arrangermenns « Kemeanurenmens af Preciatesdy fedd Luderesqr o a faiaf Cfueradesis
The amandment: lapfy that previously held wirerest in & joint vpecatom shall
be cemeasuzed when the Growep ohrans contrel of the h!nﬁinc.ﬂ:—‘.. tan the other
haml. previously held angreses i qoint operadian sball fiof be remes sLekedd
whiete the Group obtatos jont conteel of the biesness :

23  Hasis of Consofidation and Avcounting for lnvesiments in Subsidiaries and

Asgoerates in the Saparaic Finapeiad Siarcnrenis

The Group's consalidated financial siatements comprse the accecnts ol the Pacent Loempany
and ite eulsidiatics 05 enuenetated in Maw 1.2, after the elurination of matetial meercompany
ttansactons, Al IeIcompany resonece and liahilies, equity, LUCTNE, SR ik um.! cazh
flirws celating b transactions wath subsdianes are L'l]l'l'l]l'lﬁl.'ﬂ.'l.‘l m Tull. l'.'nn:ahzt_'l.'. [FrssELEs an:i
liysnms F10M AL CoORIpaany transns ims thiat are recigratzed In a¥s=E0s OG :llsc.: |_'|.|F11Ir'_.-"lrl'_'|:| 1y full
[nrercompany losses that indicate br=ioment azs reciopnized in the conselidatel financial
£iatermeEls.

I .
The fipanaial statements of the subadianies are prepared in the same Epecung [reoiod as the
Parent Company, wsing Cansstent 8 cunfing preslaci s,
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Tha Patent Company accennls Gl s stments inosubseliaraes assornbey interesks
aanly conttoled opetavuns and non-ceaorolline e e s boellows

jert

Trupspmesnts 1y 3 wirncdiarer

Slstdiiries ate enbibie: [mduu:l.i.n.g struchured entities) cver whicli the Crroup has
contzel. The S roup cuntecly an entity when o has e powes oeet the ooty it is
exposed, o1 bas cghts to, vaciable retuens Erom s incolvermacet waelo the ety aoad, U
has the 3_|:|-:i]_i_|::|r tey atbert dhose etarns I:'I'll:vz_lugh Mo [awns ekl ey, Yulastchakes ase
eopzpailitlared from the date the Crroup shtains contoo, '

The Parcor C{:-jupan:r"ﬁ mrestment: in subsdiade: ace anettully recoprdieed ar cosr and
subsequently acovunted For dm i separare bnancial scotemenes oging the ety method
Loudes the equiey maechod, all subsequent chaoges Lo dw ownetshdp mzeest in che equty
of the subsilizries aee recognieed w the Faceot Coonpany’s ca erpjng amainnt al the
investments. Changes cesultng froto the probn of less gorerated by the subeidiacics ace
crecdiled or chatged agawna the Share in Met Facndng: of Sulsadidaoes and Associaes
aocount in the statement ol polie ve Juss, These changes inchals aulseguez
depiecianon, ammaslixalicn, impanment aod fir walue adjusfoents il assers and
Baliities. Drivicends teceved aee accounred for a5 reducran o fhe cacryang vzliue of
the mvestoncnt.

Clanges resuldng from ather cumpeheaseve income ol the subgididies wr nans that
have been Usrecdy tecogmized ia the subsidiaties” squiry ave recngnized 2o other
comprehensive income oo equity of the Parent Company as appllcable. Fowerer, ochen
the Pareot Company's shace in losses of subsidiades sauals ot caceeds itz interest in the
subsidiary, incluchire wny crhel vasecursd recereables, the Parcot|Company does not
cecognize Dorther losses, unless L has ingurred oblzations or mage payments wo L bhal £
nE the sobsidiary, IE Uhe subsidiary sulzsequently oo s prolics, the Invesior resame:
recopnizing its shate of those profils ooly after s shire of the profus ssceds 1he
accurpidared share of losces that has 107 een recograizesd prt\ril.:-llt--l:.-.

Uptealived pams on transaction between the Paven Coanpany apd wes soleadianes ate
eliminacd to the extene of the Pateat Conipany's intecese wy the fubedianies.

Unsealized Josses ate also eliminated unless the transaction provyles cvidence af an
impairment uf the 2ssets thar were Linsfeered. Accountn policies of subsidiaries bave
been chapged where pecessary to easure conslslancy with the ]'.IULI:IEiEﬂ achipied by the

I
Iatent Cammpany, !
!
The Parent Campany reassesses whether or ot a erxnrols an ey Al Facrs and
circumslanees indicate 1hat fheee are changes o ane or moce of |l three elements af
cantrols, Accordingly, entities are decynsolidated from the Liurr.|that rontoul craaes.

Avguired subsidiacies aze subject ne either of the Gellowoy relevgni jlicies:

1 Parlerre meiboed — sevobves the wvabwaon at farr value of all aieniifalde aeeels acl
liabilities, mclodine contiogeot lakililes of o subsiduiry, ar the acguazion date,
segardless uf whether or oot they were revondod w the financdal statements of 2
subsidisty poor to acyaiunon. O jnanal secognition, the assars and lin Inalicac: ”F a
subsidiaty ate incloded in the consohdated statement al Anandial posten [h':”_
sevalued 1novns, which ae also vsed a5 the bases For sulseyuent cncazurement In
woeaedance with the Group’s accounthng polices. |
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Crondwill represenis the execs of acquisiion cost wvee the foic value of the Crranee
share of the wenbfable net assers ol 1he acquited subsidimoy arlehe date ul’:qquigi{w_-n.
o the othes hacl, negadve godwdll represen s tae excess of phe Ciraup's shaee b

the fair value of idenbfiahls net assets oof g)e subsadiary al the dave ol acquusition vrer

acqstrion cost and iy recosiuzed dicecdy in pealiy oc e,

ita) Poaling of fatsieat metiod = js applicable for busiee.s combuuonk tnvialving cntibes
und.tr cofien control. Chedinitial recopriden, the 0:zeer aod Eabditie: of = subsidiare
are Includedd in the consolidiled seaterment of aancial paesilion at chew bock valoe.,
Audjusimencs, if any, are recorded to ar hieve onifoste .-n:u:-:_:-um:il:lg [=2lcies, '1The
vambining eatities” resolte amd Snanoml positions e presened in the consodislaied
financial szeements as of ther hadd always been coinlined

Mia g-:_mum]] or neganve gooduall s recoguzed 4 s d;l!q-r:;ncr: henwece e cost of
the investment and rhe Euhsldmr}-'s denbfiable et 5500 i recopmized un
camsolidation @ a HEpA AL FESEIVE At vnd=r equuLy. .

Tovertmente o o1 rramatar

|
Avsuciates are those entiies over whach che Croup =5 sbile o cxr.-r# sgnificane wkluence
lan which are neseher suhzicharies nos wercsis in joint ventuee. ile consoldated
floancial seatements, lovestments in agzocianes a amally recogized ac cost and
subsequenty aceounted for wsing the cquiy meihod. Lnder the :i:-_]uit:.r mitthod, che
Group recoymizes i profit or Juss its shars in the net earnings ut fosses of the
assotiares. The cust of the mvestment 1 inceeased o deceeased v the Group's equity
I acr eamings o1 losses of te ssaeaies snes the 2are of aopuisition Divdends
treevedd wor accounted bor av eeducrinn o the cavoping valae of the imveshment.

I

Acquired nvestments i wssociates are wubjecn i pusclas, v.-n-:rlu:-|J b ACCULN D
descnbed 1o More 2 3okl However, any goodwill e orpresence the excess of
wentbable net aswets 14 1the acguiree at the dace of 2equisiten or far vatue adjus men
atrzibrurabile 1o the Growp's share ao the assoenite s included in the anwanr bl zed
5 WESTIENTS in agsaomtes  All cubsequent chanpes rar Lhe uwn:*sh:p of mnrceesr n the
equity ol the a:suciade e recogrized in the Groupy's carrvmpe amaont of the
wvesunent. Lhanges resulting frowm che Deofin wr Lose proveated by the aszacace e
eewdieed agraingt Share 1o Net Banlegs of Suleidunns ang Awgociaies accoont i the
Group’s staremnent of peefie ar loss. Thess changes melude subsecuent deprecianam,
amarazatien, impaireenr, and tasg value adiustments of aszets and latalines.

Changss resuling from other compeche nsive tcptor of the associate o ivoms that have
been dazectly recoprized in the associate’s equry wre couegnized o ethet comprehensove
ingme oz equty of the Gooop as applicalle. Hlowevel, when the Creoup's shaoe in
Iosses of an associate sguals or exceeds s Inteoei 10 The associare, iclaling ang ather
uneerured receivables, the Groop does gor reeogize fierhe beses, coless i has
weasred oblizations of made payments gn behatl of the ascoane 1 the asacate
subsequently reports profits, the vester resumes recopnizing, 143 soace ol those probits
orly after s share of the profits exceeds the accomuolaved share of Josse s that has ool

heen recopmized previoasty.

Unrealrzed gains on trantactions bepaeen the CGroop aod s aseoclabes are clumunared o
the cxtent of the Gruup's interest 1o the zevocdates. Unrealized Togses acy alse
elimuinated woless the transaction provides evidence of ao impaienyenr of the assers thar
were reansfereel. Acraunting pulicies of associates have been cha'rjp__:d whreoe feceesary
freonsure conastenay with tlae polivies auloppied by the Coeowp.
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The Guoup ceassesa ohiedber ot not an antity qualibes 9 an a:soctane 10 the
weiuecence of changes v facts and ciccumetances sutbnading ns by wor egert
sl e nafluence

fof  Imievest i Joincly Coseadied [pwration

Formterecrs 10 ety rontecdel ppetatang, the Oooup recoroiis i s Mo il
STarfments the aszete chae # conteols, the liabluics and the expenes than i mcues ael it
share o the income from che sale of wieds oo senvces by the joint venmre. The
atnorants of thess related arcouncs aie presened a. pact of the remiar s et and Labuey
accounts anl wnccine al EXpENsE accounts ob the Group.

Mo adpusmnen or other conseld ation [rocedures are requized liar the asaees, liabilage:s.,
trvume and expenses of e j9ind venoure thar ace secgniged Uy g sesarae i neia)
staternents ob the vepturces. I

(il Tramsatienr meok Moa-caueolfime Lrserersy

Men-contruling intecests (C] represent the portzon of the net gssets and prodit o
loss nor attgbucable s the Group, The Giroup appiles @ policy of ineating transas Lons
with NCT a5 cransachcn with paroes exnernal g the Crroup. Dhzposals 1o

INLI result in gns and losges foo the Group s are recorded e proalt Sk hoss,
Purchases ol eyuty shaes from MO kay result in gocdwill being e dilTe oo

b Mareen any constdemtion paid and 1le celevant sliare avyuired ur rhe carrving value of
the ne¢ assets if 2 subsidiary.

In the comscludated financial staterents, the NCT compenent s shown as pact ©2f the
ronsoldated slatement of clacge: inequuey.
I
o the Parent Compaay's Bl stacements, toopad cnent juss 15 [m.l'.':ljl}d whien there is
chiectre evidence thar the vestments 1 sabsiduges amd assoares wilk not be necowe el
[nes Bate 2 1), !

24 Sepmemt Reponting |

A business segment is a proup of arsets 2 dpemabon: engaped in F‘I‘-"":jdmﬁ peoaduge: or
serviess (hat ace subject to dsks and cetuens that are differcnt tromm those af wiler business
seggments. A peographivsl segment is a segment cagaged 0 oooviding laruslucts G services,
within a pardcular seunomic eovitonment i iy sulject w msks and cefutes that ae Gfferent
Feru chuose of SUTIENES LR radng i orhet eeonomic @ nreronment.

The Grraup’s apetamoes ae structured accerdiog o the muupe o the sdrvices paueadial
(peimaty sepment) and different peoprapducal mackers secved -::icccmd;u}. scprient]. Finaneial
nfrmmaton on business aegmenrs s prssenled in Mot S |
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2% Fiparmcial Assers

Ficancial assets are recopuial when the Group becunws a pacly o the fonteactoal e roos of tae
financial instnumnent. Fot pur)mese. rd clnastfying Enaocial s cls, an insppoment 5 constererl
as an gouity instoumnent b i s ion-derivalive and meets e delniticn G equity for the D
i accurdance with the cemem undes PAS 32, Favonad Laireenty. Peerkicion, Al sher
ngo-detivative Ananoal instowmens ate weaiol oy Jelt instruments. |

faf  Clnuifivatme, Meseremen: and Ravkondfeaidon of Mromdad e

Linder PERS Y, the classibicaton wod roieasutammant of dnancaal asscte bs ditveo by the
I.'rl-Li.I."_,"'s busine:s maedel {4t :|'|'|:a:|:|u_gi.|:|.g Lhe Timing ja. assets aod the cosrtrac-oal -ual-| [ b
charactenistics of 1he Bnenvial assevs. The classaficatiow amd measecemen sk linanizi
isaets ape describad below.

ft) Efmormial wLrneer o # lavarfisad o

Finanrial aceres are maegsored ar armoerized coan 10 by wf 1l-e filewany conditians
are I

* o assel s lield within the Goonga™s Basiieess rropdel sl vese cljeetivee i e holdd
tipncial assets il tneder o collecr crancracoual casly eeas, aod,

4 the contraclual keoms of the instouroent gjvlz CliE, S[}Euiﬂt‘:d ates_ 1o cash
Horers that are SPUT oo the pancipal amount outstanding

Financial ascets meetng these cntens are measazed iitially at Eic raloe plos
transactpen suzls. They ane subacquenty meazured ar amesnized sosr wsing rhe
effective atercar inethed, lesx any opaitmnent w valae,

It Group’s nancial assets A amorized cousl ace peesended o the s rnereor of
Timanetial paositicon as Coshoaod Coher Casl: Irems, Ooe trom 851, Due frem Other
Banks, l.oans Arizing from Beverse Reparchase Agromnenr, Jeves eaeng secunoes
at amartizsd cost amler Trading and Tuves menn Secantes, E:-l.'Jﬁﬂ'S- amd Keceprables
and cectain Cliker Besukees gccownts, ;

For putpases of cash fows reporting and presenta oo, cash and cash equivalents
coroptise of sccounts with vriginal mararities of theee mentas ocless, includaoy
cash and other cash stems and npo estticted balances of Choe froem BS1E, Tioe T
Cther Bauks, Lozas Arising fram Reverse Repurchazc Agrecmenr, aad [nterbank
loans receivalres (past of larans and Recevables)  Thess peoecally michide cash oo
hand, demand deposit. and shogr-reom, highly dgquid invesimenis reachly crevvesuble
te knerwn amounts of cash amd wloch are sabyect o incignifiganr rak ot changes in
waluwe, i

The Group may inzevocalsy elect ar ol recagnitivr: 1o -:J:thLiF}' a tinancial agsed
thar meets the agcrueed cost czitera abave s al FYIR P chat designaticn
elupinates or sipnificandly reduces an accounuuoy isiach ]1+.d the Tuanctal asser
been mes surecl at aosoenzed cost. In 2017 and 2016, the Crrgpup hus s made such

desipgnztina. !
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Drebt instownzen s that Jdo oot ineet the amnecdeed cose coeod. ae ilat mest the
critetsa L the Group bas chesen w designace as af EVPL at fnitial TCL Ly i, e
roicuted st FVFL. Dguaity investments are classified 5 (inancial azsers af FYVPL,
unless the Group desimates an eguity investment that 15 wos held foe Icashing as at
IWVOCT at vl recopniten. The Croup's Bnanoal asser: at|FY PL mclude
EoSctmgnr securitics, corpold’e Loy, sty secorities, which are held for crading
putposes o designated a5 a0 FY PL i

& fmandcial asser iy cripsadersd 55 held e teaelingr iF

# it has been sequized poncipally Eor che purpose wf clliog i in the aear oo,

* oo uuual recogaon, il s pact of 3 portfobo of iWdencified Goancial instrucnents
that the Crboup roanapes togecher and has cvadence of o rerent agtoal pattern of
shozt-rerm profor-wkng. or,

&0t isoa deprvaove that os oot \'.:II'.'EIIF'_I'IE.H"!_‘I and eHearkuvee 32 3 h;::_‘lgjng st oot
Linancial guarantee,

Financial assets at FYIL are measuied ar fait waloe, Relwied icansaction coste aze
tecogrized direcdy as cxpense Ly profir or loss. Lioreaized gains and losees ansiap
Fecun changres fmarck Lo-tnacket] in the fae value of the financial asser: ar FY PRI
category and realized gaing ot losser arasia foon deposals of these insuwments ace
neluged in Trading aud Securines Gains under Cther Operatng [neomne aceaan i
the statement of poofit o1 bess.

|pterest zarned an these investmenes 15 repocted in prodit o o under It rest
[reoente atsaot whide dividennd il ne i I:E|:|-:rrl|:'lj in |1|:\-::-f|1 1lC lea: < wneder
Miscelaneous included 1o Cher Orperanng Inceme accounn when e oht cof
payment bas been estahlished.

At initial cecogoiuon, the Group can roahe ao eeevoabie clestism ‘o an
wnstaement-by-senement basiz) 2 designate eqiaty investmepts a5 3¢ LY 0L
nowever, soch designation i not permitied f the zquity amvestment i hehi Dy the
Group for trading The Group bas desgated cenam ¢t111ir‘;~'1r‘--‘~trlltlmntr~' o3 ar
FoRoC] o iaiiral 1|:p|1x'.a[ha|1 f FFRS 5.

1
Fiparal assets ar FYOICT are imibally measvred it faic v [l vansaceon cos .
Euh:sﬁ:l_]m‘:nﬂ_!,', they are mea cured ar fair value, wirth o deducyos lue auy di;%p-r.r'ial
eisstd. Ciains and losses ansing from changes so lail value, rwloding the feregn
exchange companent, are teupmized n ather comprebensivd weome. et alang
effects arising from income raxes, and aze reporked as pacl aReeaiiarnion Reserees
accounk 1o “-"'-'I'”i-r:r'- Welieay el asaet Le I_‘lispr_:-stflj e, the cumulafiee paun acioes
previously recagnized mothe Revaluation Wesery e averswnd 1 |oor raclazeitwed te
profic or lose, bt s eeclassalied direcdy ez Surplus soceuot

Any dividends eazned on holding these equily instruments are re ruperioed L peahr
i iiass a: part of Miscollaneus under Other Opemting ineitae decauns, wlen the
Grroup's thght we eceive dividends is established 1n accordands with FAS 18 unbess
the dividends clearly represent recavery o6 2 mank ol the cost ol the invesbmes
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The Group can only reclassfy financial assers iF ehe objective of tts Lusioe ss mode] for
managing those financial zssets changes. Accordimgly, L Gmul;l. 15 roquacl 1
rectazsify fimancial assets (17 fecun amartized cost to L'V, if thejobpecnve uf the
businese model changes eo that dhe amosieed cost coteria are o longer meL: aad,

ju} Erom FVT'L ¢ amortized cost, iF the aljective of che Lrusines s midel changes so thar
the amortze] cosl cotenia start o be mer and che charactedisne af the instrument’s
caniactual cash Niws meet che amornaed e ctitena.

A caange o the objective of the Geoup's business model will be bffeced oaly ar the
heyomaninge ¢f the next ceporong peood tiallormnnp the change e the basiness medel

tempuairment oy ey AArisi

The Gevng agsesses at the end of each vepratung pecicd wehetler treze i clecpye
evidence that a fnancial azeet or proup of Bieancial assets 13 1 paircd. A Ninzocial azset
ot a grovp of Bnancal assets 15 wapaced and impairment lesses ars imcsered o, and ooly
i, there is objective evidence of npaterment as o oesalte ot ooe or mose oreans that
pecurred afrer che initial recogai@on of e asaet (@ lus: cveut) al that Ioss evear

(il eveala) Lo o boeact cen o estimated Cutuee cash fows of she Bowncsl 2vses o
gIoup of foancal @ssels chan can e crlalsly esiirrited.

Oibjectrve mvadence that a financial asset or geowp st soaen s pagted inglele:
chserrable data that comes oo the atteaoon of ohe ot ahoud e lelowing Joss

ewpnty:
i sigmaficane Boancie] difficuloy of die ssuer or oblbpor:

{el a breach of cuntrace, such ay & defanr ar delinepuency w rterest or poacipal
'Fl.'l.:lrrn.-r'.nts',

fiti} the Craoup grantng the bomower, for ecenonue o legal tegsons wlinog o che
iaracrowet s Borudal «dTicalne, o cronceasiors thar rhe lendee wondad sor anle rwise
cresbiler; '
i
i
fei) 1t becaming probabl: tat dhe beergwer 3l cater bankeupocy or other Inaecal
TELH AT T AL |
fel the dizappeacance ol am scuve macker Ear flat financial ascet because of Goanoal
difficulties; o1, :
|
fr) uhseorally data induwaung that thees 1 a measurable deciessa i the catisnatal
future cash Moo frown g ef nancial assets sance the nital cecogition wl
those gescets, although the sdlecrease cannat yee be idenafied witl e indvachal
financial assets o the proup, inclading: adwerse changes o th1’: parment slalg of
l=proosemrs 101 1 Eraugs, <t mational er local eeenpmie |.'|:-|.'||.‘|.i.L!.{:-|'|.*:'. chaz correlals with

defadis o the assels in the group. |
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The Group recegnices wmpairment loss based on ile categery of fnancial aszer. ap
Eralleyws:

[0 Fémcametad =lsiers Carmed qf <mmarispet € art

For Enancal ageetr classified a0d ineasuced at ausciscg cost, the Troup fins
aszeszes whether ubjective cvidence ul impairnent existas imlividually lor el
assels that nre ndividually sgnificant acd indvcluady or Eu]ll.‘_LIl:'-‘t:]:r'.f':.ll' financial
asscrs that aee not mdividually sgnefican. 11 1l Greup determenes that oo
abjective evidence of unpairment exists for an incdividuaily assessed financial ssser,
whether significant or oot, it nelwles the ssset in a sboup of Bnancial ascis with
simlae credu cirk charactenzucs s collectreely asseanes 1hom for bnpazme .,
Assets that are individwally assessed for innpasoent and Foc wlich an rgaimment
_lf.l:'-a Is ar conunues te be recapmzed are not incuded in g collective assessmen af
LM paLLwl,

If these i 1hjecteee evidence that an imipairment for indradually weesesd naneisl
aiieln has been incorred, the amsouni rf the boss s meazueed - the ifle rence
berween the asael’s vatrying amonnt and the [preseot walus of estimazed huouee cash
Aeews (e xrluding torare comdin Loeses than lave not been wewrred) digeouted ab e
fimancial assec’s srynnal e ffective interest rae. The carrying At af the asset
reduced thesugh the ore id an allowance account and e wdmce of the Loss i
cecugmrel in profit or loss [ financtal assel s a \'ilrl.quh:crnti_':::a'[ raie, the
discount cate for measuniog a0 mpaarinent luss is the currenp effective inferesr s
deretrnined under the contract As a practical expedint, 1he Jr;r:_rup Maf measure
:i.ml:raifmtm: oo the Bazig af ae instrement’s faic walue uzing an irhscevable macker

pLc.
1

The talewlating wf the presene waloe of the estimated foteee £l tlevwes 1l a
codiateralized Brancial asses reflects <he cash Hows thar may st lopm Egreclosone
less coets tor obtmaning and szlling the collateral, whetlier or our loreclie e e
retehable.

For the putpose of callective evaluaion of wapainneae B wans ol ecencalxles,
financral assets ave prouped un the bais of siuiar coedn osh %.]m:u Mazlall z

{Le., on the bass of the Group's grading process thar comsudefs asacr 5y pe, indusery,
ertdphial leararmoaes, cullace ral rype, [ f-die sraens and nrhvi: celevant Lactgrs?.
Thoze charactenstcs are rewevant to the estunabon of future gash tovws tor groups
of such ausets by bemny indivauve ol the debiees” ababiny tor pard all amouns dae

;l.n:q:-:_rrding e the concrarnaal seoms of the assecs hrin[_{ evaloared.

Futuze cash floas inoa groul: of fnanelal assees thar ave eollecpely evaluated for
impairment are estimmated oo the basts ol te coneashal cashyfuws ol the asses i
the proup and historical loss experience T aszery with oodm pek chalace e
simalarc b thuse in the groog. Hisrrorical Loss cxpenence 12 adjjasved on 1he basis of
ruzzent phueovable dues to teflect the effects of cucrent co ndilFurlr: thsat dlied eanst
affect the peciod v wlicls e liscancal loss expeneace 1= based anu o pemave the
effects of conditpns in the hasincical (aecad Hhar deonest exist cucently
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E:ELl.m.atEF- of changes in fupare cosly Bows Far pro ups ot agsens Sheodd crflec g e
dirccaonally cunsistent with Llanges in related olse pralle Jeta from preciod Lo
pecicd [For esample, clumpres (e uneo giuyment tates, |roperty QEISC:, pavmenT
srpkE, f_.-r -|'.:-l|||;r.|-HF.|:r.'|::i indicaries af rhanges i Lhe prohs by el Togze jia the ZreLp
ansl thede magniiude). The methodology and assumprons ased for estimating
fuiure cash fows are oorgeaned repolatly by the Crocup ke reduce aoy i T repc s
berascen Liss estimates aod aciual loss expetiene.

When pogsibile, the Group seeks oo resicucture loans eaner chan o take prrssession
af the collateral This may ovolve extending the payroon: arfngement and
agreemiens ik new [nan condiduns. Soee the tetiees have bogn resepatiated, the
loan i v lenger considered past due, Mavagemen contcously 1eviews
eestouctored loans to ensuee that all criteria evidencmg the good -IZ_ILL3|II}' oo the Joan
arcamel and thar fuluve payrments e bkely to nccor. The loans contioue by he
subject to o alividon] or collecsve thapuirment assessimen, calrulared taing the
lan’s vomnal effective interest cate The ditketeive heraeen che tecorded sale of
the oogmaal luan and the present value +f e oescructured cash flows, discounted
e wopinal effective innsres pate. o recrpozed 2 parn ol I:::éu.i.rm:nr lazes

account in profic e boday ;

When a luaes or receivable s determined to be wnrasllectihle, jlt s wotten-at agal
the related allowance tor mmpaiunens. Such lpan ar recereabls 5 @ en-EF afer all
the prezcobed procedures have heen completed aad the ::nui

bren determined. Subsequeat reeove s of amoants previourly weitren-alT are

chagped agains: rh amcouan, ol impacoment losses inpeofn oe logs,

1l 1# r|'|¢: ]I’_‘lE!-i :.‘m.ﬂ

If, in a subsequent peeiod, e aiwuan of the bopaioment losy decreanes andl he
di:n:n:as.c e b relatecl obpecively te an event eocuroag afzey the moparmen) wag
recopnized (such as an sprovement in the debron's coedit enting), the previously
recogmized wnpaiement lass is reversed by adasting the allowance aceoum. The
amwrunt oF the zeversal 15 recgpmized in the stakement of 7o E:t or leas

- . - - ] - I
Frmaucess A1 anser Cereed wf Faer d'wivr Theoirl: Ciker Comgrten dor sy

For secunues classifed 25 EVOCT e Group assesses at e end of cach repurting,
penod whezher there 13 objeconie esndence thar a toancial a: '-.i'l nt g e
baancial azsets i npawead.

En the case of equity invesknents, a sipniticant ot prolunged deckoe in the Fir value
af the secuncy beleay it cost is considered in determiniog whether the a=wets are
truapraltel. TEany such pvwdenee ex1ats foe copouy mvestiaece:, 1he Coenalatsne Jos. -
mearured a5 the ditterence betaeen the acipasiion cest aodd (he cottend L valie,
less any impaimmene §oss on that Onancal asset proviously recpentzed in prodir or
loss — Ls rectassified from Revalvation Reserves and recognisgd i prod oz less.

Imnpaioment losses recoprized in prodit or loss oo eguty instrrmtuls Are nrk
reversed through probit o loss. .

L the case af delt instzume s, wnaenmeat Is s sessed ba .acd:-::-n tlu= sarme < rkeria
23 [oamiezi] assota canued at aoncrtzed cost. [Fature inierest uwcen: s based oo the
pedeeceed carrviog anveum and s accrued based on s cine al neeees used Lo
discount fuiute cash Fows [or the purpeese of measucng mpacment los: - Such
averudl 18 recorded as part f moerest ineeime in profit or luss HGws a subseguant
pedod, the Eair value of zuch delt mstcuments inergases aucl the metease can be
olrecavely telated o an evenr pocundag afier the bepairmenttloss was recognizal in
prafit ve Joss, che imppaitmenr boss is teversed threngl: profic oc loss
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i rrepnetion af Fraodeiad - aeh

A bngacil st fon where appheable, o past of a Ainancial asser ot |t of 3 group ot
binancial assers) 1 derecognized when the conttactual cghts o receive nash Aoecs from
the (inancial iscsaluenls gxpice, or when the Goancaal assers and all subicaoial tisks and
rewards of rarnersingy have beea transfeeecd to amather pacty. 1€ the Group nenher
teanstere noc reratas sehatantalle all che neke and revwvacds o amrnerzbio and cormae.
tor cesattol the: transfecred aseer, the Greu) beengrnizes its rftajn:d: etes! ma che duser
and an asecwtated Malality for amovats it may heve t pay. 1F the Group cetains
ﬂlhﬁtﬂﬂ‘.:iau_'!.' all che sisks wod cewards of J;W.rni:.mh_i'p of 2 translecoed Iinansial asset, the
Lrtoup combnues to recognize the Hnanezal assel aod alae cecogmzes a cellareralized
bDII:*:.‘-‘A".Ing Foo thew Jacerla recerend.

24 Derivative Fimancial fnseruments and Hedyre Acconniing

The Group is 4 party to vanous toren curreacy Forwabd cantracts, vrovs rutrency samps,
futuces, interest cats woaps, debt varmants, opttons and credic default swai. These contrarts
are eatered 0T 33 4 ServIce D toslisioecs and as 2 meaos af n-.r]m-.in;__:| o mannginﬁ thyc
th.:lup"ﬁ f-:’:l:ctgl:i eachange and inleoest cale ¢aposures ay well s For t[a:jin'i_gl PUTosE
Armgunts Qontacted arr oot 35 owilageen @peunnatz gind ace po jucluded anooche
sratetrient al feangial position, :

Deerivatives are categonzed 3 Buancal Assets ar b Y IFL wluch are inglly eecogiuzed at B
valuz oo the date on wluch a deriratve contract 15 entered into and are'subsequeatly
measured at their Far value. Foir value: are obtained from actre markees for dsted o traded
secuities < deternuned using valoaomon rechnoiques if quoted prices ary oot avaiable,
wneludiog duscownied easl Aow models ane wpmon pricug eeedese as L[N The
Cl‘larjEi_' in iz v=wlue of d=gvestve Binpnenal diosirgmanis s T!":l:"'r_ll._l:l'llu‘fll"t'l am aralir or loms, cxecpt
wrheo theu effecrs qunl;iﬂr asn h-:-l_‘lging ingtewment. Deblviles s are cocded as ascers swien fau
value i positeee and as Labaites when fair valog s neganve.
i
The hese evadence af the fair value of 7 dervative at inital revagnuian |5 1l irnsacdon price
fi-e., the f2ir walue af the coosderaton green o received) unless the fRip e of 1ba
instrument is evidenced by gompaeitan with other observzble curcent market transactang ar.
the zame nstrurmeat {.e., oatheut mohgangm ar repackaging) oc based on a valuation
rechingue whose vamables inchaie voly Jaa Uraem fbservable madkets, YWhan such cvulence
iz, the CiFoup recoBnizes 8 gaan oo Jos. o) noial oecognioon.

27 MTeniing: Finan cral fastnomends

Fuuncial ossets and babilities are offzer and the cezulting oot amnoun, considered a2 2 sgle
Imanicial asset or finaccial baliling. w 1eponed in the statement el thaace] posidon when

there is a lepally entorceable dght to wfiser dhe recognized amounts el there 15 an ineouon
ta setile «rn A oet basis, o cealize the asser and sectle the liabilig sisnulaneonsty. The oght of

set-aff must be avallable 2t the end of the reporboe penod, that s, o 25 2l CONtngent cn
futupe evene, To most also be snlorceable in the poeonal couese of business, oo the event of
defanlt, and in the event of inselvency or bankeuprcy; and, mwst be ln:giﬂ]',.' enfrrceally fue
beth entitp and all coenterparties to the Onarcial esteuments:.
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2.8 Bank Premises, Fuemiture, Fixtures and Equiprerems

1
Lacd a5 staged at cosc jess, trosfraizment o if any. Az o finite m-,_mf'ui hfe For lasd van be
tketetrrined, the related carmyne atornnts are nar deperciated. Al |.~r1-.q-L bank prrcirige:

furmture, fixiares and equupment are carted al cost less accurmudaced o
amoeritation and aoy mpaimmenr i valoe.

teuialion,

The ciet el an azeet corprises 62 purchase price aoed direcdy attribnarsble cos of larinping
the asset o '-!'--'-l'.:-l:l\'..Ll.'@rI canadergen Fuk s Latemded e J:'.:.|:-|.-|||Jir||.n:-_<. [t '.=||J|_'|lul.:-n!i, M aaC .
Improveneats and renewals ave capitalived, wlale cxjsenditures for ceprain and mainteraon e
aee charged to mxpense v Jocueed.

Dregevstivn 1 compured using the straight-lie inethad e che esiimated uzefid Lves of tae
deparetalile aseets as follows: .

Buldings AW wraas
Fecrusure, lstazes and equipment Y13 s
1

Leaselidd cights and improvements ace amaortized over tae teom af e lease o0 e coumared
useful lives af the improveressns, whichever iz shoecer.

A B55CEE CAfeYin wrmiant i woitten down drdnediziely so its recoverable sineunt i the
AESEUE CAITYING dtiounl b rreater than i esttoated rocoverable amonde fsee Boae 2 1,

The residual valoes, estirnared waglul lives and method of depracation and amerizaton of
Lank premises, furoioore, Nxmares aud equipmen? fexcept laned} ase tevigoned apd adwsted o
appenptabe, ol e end of vach reporang period.

Ao itern of baok premises, Beeniture, fxlures md equipment, includiag 1he elaned
accumdated depreciation, amoctizaticn and any mpatrment losses, is dececagnized wpon
dispodal er when e fubure geonomic beoefits are expected o aee e Erafn e conbnued wse of
the agset. Any gain ue loss ansing vn derecopmoon of che azset fraleniingd as tac diffrrence
Leravgen the nod disposal procesds and the carsyug s of the ju_-l.—!j 1 ancluded in profic
vt biess dna thic peac dle e s e recopnized,

2Z®  fovesiment Properires |

[mwestment propectit s pectain 6 Jand, bodduigs oo coodomane i segored Tee the
Crenup, 1o sertlennent of lkaems drom de todueg hotroaé s thtouprh Bneeglosoee o dacion in
payment wiuch are neither held by the Group for sale i the aes 12 aonthe coe osed i dhe
rendecing of services of [ur adoundsimalve purposes . This also aocluded pooperes held for

renraL.

lvestonent prapordes are stared at cosf, less accumuolaed depreciauonass any napainoent
losges (e Mo 219 The ozt ol an nevganment pigpeiry cotapliee s (ol hases pwe ad
dicectly atrrilnnalile cosis inearten ] soch 2 Iepat fres, teansfer raxes and|ethce rransactien

cosly |

Transters brom orther accounes [such a8 bank premuees, furnituce, Bixdures and squipmen:) aTe
tade to restnent properies when and only waen, there i@ 2 change ioowee ewdenced by
coding oFf srwne-ceupatiin aF comatnencersent uf an oot lease we analkce pang or
|Jl::l|-|J.|:r|.g thc Jrtaajrcrly I'rac -::::E:-l.lu.| .a;:;uq:l::i.ali-:_lnl welyile dopnsfecs from invaesbmen prapercs are
rude wrhen, aod enly when, thece s a coaoge in vse, evidencoed by comnmuencemeni of
CAMEC-OCCUZARON O commencement of development with & wiear to seil.
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fuaviture, fixtuces a1 eyuipment.

Lugesl pezating exfrenses celated oo invesiment propecioss, soch as Tepaics aid mauintepance
and ceal eslale tees 3w norially Chazged agrinst current vperations 12 che peced inowhich
these cost zre jncurced.

[P ITeetss iroprrkise, uichuding tae relaced accumuiated deprrzciation aps A1y gL rmen
JFJ.‘-F-EH. are derscogrnized upon dizpuial or when Permumneni by wartheraven Crgm oae amd s
fubite economic beoedi s exoected fenn ins disposal. Aoy sam or boss o the petoemear e
dis jposal af inrestaseut peopecties is ecopnizel in Miscellaneos Income wnder Cliher
(Spctating Income account i the yeat of beutenent oo disposal,

2.3 Assers Held-for Sabe and Disgreosal Sroup

Assets held Ter-gale and disposal group, which ae prescnned as par ul'|'23'|||1-r Rruurces
accunt, mclude ceal and other propetcs acouired throu cepnssession. Fosecksure e
purcaase that the Group intends to sell withio oo vear fromm the dare 3 rlassification a2
held-fuz-saie and for which the Grovp is commiteed 0 munsliagely .;1]'5,];—,;_1;{- ttvel ar artive
mnrk::tiﬂg plan. The Liroap classifies an asset (o7 disposal proun) a3 el -Nae..ale i e
carmang anwiunt will by recoverec poncipally trreugh 4 sale tran.acueni rather than thoough
cantioung Wi, I the event that the sale o e aszet s extemded eyood woe vuar, tha
extension of the pesid fequired to complete the cale dues net preclude o asea Qo Leta
claszified as held fur sale if the delay 35 cauzed hy vy o circamstanees beyowd the )
Crrorup’s conerol and there i sufliode evidence ehat the Crouon hercns comeited oot olan
10 sell the aseet. ) | '

Arezte classified as held-for sale are messured at the lower of ther carching anowns,
rrmediately peice v the classification g held-for-sale and theee Qanr wdlar less costs o sell

Assery clagsified ws beld [or-sale are not subjecr too deprzeizoem or anariaation Asset that
erazes 1o be claszified as beld-foc-sale 16 measared al vhe lower of [0 1% carong amsue
before the tager way clussified a5 held-For-sale, adjusted for any depeannion, amortzabsn o
cevaluationss that woald have been recopnized kad the asset not been classaficd as
buedd-Fae-sale, and, (L1t becove ralle cononanr ag the Jate of the subseqdent decrsio s o
sell. Any adjustinenn no e vioyiog siceunt of an asset chat ceases b be oo fed 1n
lveld-Frar-sale resaliing o eitler a a0 loss, 15 recogaized in poofit o :|'.'r*.-'~.‘-. Thae Ceroge
regirriogs an mpainnent less lee any idbal o sabsequens wwoite-dengenl ot ghe assers
held-for-sale to fair vaoue Jess cost to sell, ro the =xcent than i bos oor been Jriewasly
recopmzed in prefit o less, Onothe other hand, any gain Erooany subbegoent cocorse o G
value bess to costs tooaell of an asset up oo the exeent of the cutnoloive opaiomneni s i

has Feen previcosly recognized 15 recopoized in profit or Loss. ;
I

The gans or losses anzing froen the sale or emeasuzemnent o a.eta beld-for-sale

. . . 1 . - .
tecopnized in Miscellaneous lncore (Expeasesh ander Uhe O Chpe g Dicaine:
(Expen:es) accoucnt in the statement of profi o loss, :

211 frovangrhie Assets \

[ntangi,h]: assrts sachude HI’_:-I_:-I,I"-\.'.JL ransT Use nsea, Ir:l:_||||¥' rlﬁhrI inad |.:|.|'|::||:ll..ll.":' solowane
fGeenses which ate aceouted for under cost model and are repocted unLlcr Ohther Resources
Accoound ao roe seaesmeat b fimaocial presitiees, The coan f T asaset s Iiin*. Arraatnr 1 ek
and cash equivalente paid ur the tair raloe of the other consilerations giren to acguuce an

azsee ot the eme GE ArquesLern.
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Lrocnband] represen s the exceas o! e cort of seguiataon over fu Guc value ol (ke idecrufialsle
ek assers acguieed at the dare o acquisioun (see Mole 2.5
. .

Branch licenses represent the tirhis pived by tie BSP 1o the Gpeup to establish 3 cerau
nambes ok branches inovacious aveas 1 che courry.
.

Csdwill and branci licenses are classticd i wtangible axaes with mdsficiie veebol Lie and,
thus, o anlyjoct 1o amorazawen Tt wowld requite xn annoal test tor smpaicnent

igee Mure 219 Goodwill and braoch eenaes ape sebeeyuently Faccied ar eost lesy
srgumulated unpaerent losse:. Covdadl s allecgted o ewrhogrnecabfoe woks Gar che
puIpusc of ienpaioment tesung. Fach af these genctating aots tpLe ented by each [rbecex o
[EpOtLiy segTment. r . )

Tradieys right, inzlud=d as pan of Muscellaneows under Chiber Mo sourset ateoune, RN
the el griven tor BA1 2 subsidiaty engaged in stock ht{:kurug{', LY PLELVE LI Ltk s bo the
iy Facilies and to rransace bosiness ar the PSF. Tm.flir.l..; el i aI_ﬂ.mn—.:l ay haviag an
tndednite useful Lite. Lo i carried ar <he amoune alloes el foom the omginal eost ol the
cichange memaershi seat {atter a coceeapendmng allouaton was made o te valae of the
FAEB shates) less allowance foe wigitrnent, if any. The 'rr:.dmg tiehit is tested annuoally Feragy
irnpanment o value Saee Mo 2,197

Acquired compured sollvas leenses are capitmlized en e basas of thefcasts zacueeed o

avauize and bong tor use the spevitic sultwace. These coses ate amanizsed an & srragar ine

Banis over thie expected vseful Lves o ol sifiware af tloee o ten peas.
I

Costs assocared with develaping or mamealning compuates sultaa e rln:l D&M ale Cecognzed
ay expense a5 incumed. Uosts diat are dlirechy associated with the peodpomsn ol Ulentfiabbc
and urdyue saftware products controled by the Croup, anl thag wall peobably OIS LN
ceunomic beoebic exceeding costs beyond one yoar ate recogiized as dacangible azsets.
Dhrect casts include employes cust: avureed o soltwars developmens and an appropmae
rurann Gf eelevan; owechezed costs

Computer sottware development costs recogoized a3 asscts are ezl using the
stearghi-lioe merhisd gver thear wefol lives (oot excezding tea yeacs).

"When an intangble aseet iz dispos=d of, the ain or loes o diepaosal 1. l.Ilrtll.:'rlru,i_ntq| a5 the
difference beoween dhe proceeds aod e urr]-iug ezl al 1) psees r.lnd tr recopnized in
pratLr ior Joss

242 iMAer Resources

ther resoucces [eecludiog ibeme classified az intanglls assets) pectain top cthar azsets
copnaresllect by toe Caroup as g recolr of past events, These are recopmzed o e Goancial

staterments when it ic probabie that the futuee sconome Deoelivg sl fleek e b Catoep il el
asset has g cost or valus that can e mensiesd celably. :

Z2XT Frnarcral Drabdiities

Faeanewal balabibe: wluch include depesit babilities, blls payable, bonds sayable, subordinated
debe, accrued intersst and ather expenses, pol pther laluliees foueepns [i;l.:l.-i‘L"'I.iIll_"IJ [ayables,
post-emiploymwent defined benebit oblipation and derereed wcome] ave geeoguzed when the
Cronp ecomes 8 pacty to the contractual remms 2 the inscrument. '-'|=
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Finupesal Liabilioes ave peoepnized ininislle a0 their Bic value el sUIsEqueet by measured ar
amuetized cosr iy the effechive mieeest method, Eoe those woel nieg e bovesnd cire vear
lers retdeiten) pavments ..-’all ttecest related chacpes incucred <n aancinl Dabelisies ace
recogmzed 45 an expense io the staiement of profit vt less under 1he Caplon Enteresr
Exprnsc.

Crepasm babibies ace stated acamnuowers incarhich they ate ox be prid  Jetesest is acerusd
periodically amd recagnized 1 0 wparare ligbling aceount befaee meeogn|emg 1 pac ol it
Lizataidiviess. i

EBills payable, brands payvable and subetdiouted debt age recomaeed initiglly #t fae value, which
15 the Leswe procesds Sace value of consideestion tecenvedlly, net of Glrectilzaue vorrs, 1 Tese are
Eubﬂequ:enﬂ:,r megsueed a7 smuriecd cost any difference bevawen the procesds et of
LIGACHCN Costs A1hd Ehe n;:dl:.m'l:.ti-;m ral ae 15 |,-|:-::-:|=L_|rr|_1':,::q--:_| 0 F.n_.ﬁ[ Ol ourss cwer e |_:u:-rj¢_'nj of
the Dorewligs wig the elFeclive intevest ol i

1
Loeervanve. (inancial liabilines represeon rle comulabee changes n the rike Cur enloe losaes
zrsing froon the Litrp™s eurcesney fopward teanzaciens and interest gate WS,

Fiosacial liuhiliies are dececopuized from tie siatemeat of fnarcial [_‘lLI:EJ:Liu:] vuly when the
eblabons e sxlingngshed e1ther cuovgh duschacge, cancellaion o7 exaoranen. hese an
eudsting financial balvliey is teploced by anutber from the same leeder sh salseansially
ilfferent terms, e it che verons ob an exiging lialailiey ace sohzactiady nyedited, sael s
exchange of medificatiue is ireatrd a5 9 deczcoynition of e orgual uhilig and a
recogoon of che oewe bababity, ard ibe iffrbence en the mespecbive carsying amooonts
tecogmzed ae gain of loss un profit oe lose. ?

&4 Provisrons and Coadngencics

Frorisinns ace n:r_{:ugnizcd e pregent ehlgaciome: will peclally lead roan outlow of
ecunumuc resoucces and shey can be estionated rebiably even it gl rLr'r:luIL_r| s arpouet of Eae
outflow may soll 2e uncermaun, A preacnt pbligavion ariser foo the poesence of @ leval or
construcuvy oblipatien that bas resulted from pasit events (.2, lezal l_‘ltﬁPull'. o1l LTI
contcactks}. !

Prodisizns ape measured at the ssimated expenditore equazed o serte the prevent oblivaonon,
bazed oo the most eeliable ewdence avnlable ar che end of che teporoog peood| wcluding zhe
tishe wiel uneeriaannes wssocaeed adrd e ppeesest b uon, Wlaeoe hieke wee oo numbee f
sitmiiur ekl ueeas, the Ukelihod chat ae sorfhose wild be tegered m htlll+1|u::||'. m deterntned Ly
cansidenng the class of ebligatons as 2 whale. %hen ume valoe of money 1= matenal,
lessag-tgwron pevisscs ate dizcownzed ro thelr peesent values asiop, 4 pretay vate thac refleciz
traasket assessments and che oska specific tor the obligaton. The Jn:;rt,are:.Tlr- {rurvisaen Juar o
[HaRRIhE of ame 15 r:cu}_gjj_z:lﬂ D% IOALE RS L 4 | he 1. Pewlsiians are devicwasd at the cwd o each
reportng peciod aou adjusted wa e flecr the carrenn bese eximaie. |
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In thuse casen, where the, possible cutflew of seonumic tesaurre ag 2 resole of presew
whligutiaes is consideeed mmprobable or temse, vz Uis o o e provided lor sacnat e
tecdiured resdabaly, no bialpliey s recoguzed o the beanesal siaenwnts, Sinularly. posable
tibowrs ef reunomic benefits b the Greup dian do not pel oeel e recogimoen <ieta of a
asret ate canstdercd contingent assets hemos, are it vecgrndzed il lvancial statensenes
Cro the other hand, any reumbursemeny thar the Ceonpy ca be wcwally certain so cnlleat Feran a
e party with respect w ihe obligaton is tecopauzed a» a sefacalc a0l el vecceding the
arogung of ihe relaed provizcn. |[

1
The Farent Company offers moenegzed resrards tooactive candbolders o eecaboa s ceedi
card business” vesweands psrogrtaree Provisions for rewardy are r\t'i:-;'q:l_l'l:lzﬁl:l Ab CECEAN Cate af
varhedde ms” creslit card avalmeats, detsrmined by FAARA T lhased ol red ramnalale amouniz,

21¥ BEgquily

|
Prefeeeed and coounon stoek tepieseat the nodnal value of shaces ol Tu—uk Lhat lzve Leen
i.5 FLLEI'I. H

Copital paul io cxreas pf (s inclbuder any preraluan: eeceved oo the isadance of cnplml srack.
Any tranaaction Liests aneacated st e sauance of shares of stock ace Jeducted from
capital paid in excess of par, tel ol ay elated mewe o beaelits,

Hybod pempetual secacities petlect the nel [aooceeds leom the tssuance of ooa-comalative
siep-upr sallable peepetual secunges,

. . _ i
Eevaluaton pesepres consisl o |
i

r}__,l Met vrceafized Fait valus AL oL Jog e ansng Erom remneasioseaneicls of lazceal asaers ar

EvOdl

1
(& [esenoes on remcesuteaiens af Fus[-:mplu:,‘mi:-nl; e fiped Beoulu pplan -a:u::npu.ting et
accumulated actoatal yans or luz ses acsing frosm e perience adissgdhaene and other
changes in acruanal assumpoons, and actual o e G pelan seers [ercluding acceunt
ochaded 1n nar inTeres).

i) Accumulated ecanslaivn adjsnents celated v the curoulative gaos from the tracaski Lo
. . 1 -
af the fGoansal statements of foregm subsndiaies whase Jons ool r’UT“'-“*'-'J' 1= different

Ltoiv that of *he Pacenn Coampany, and, |

i) Share in ther eomprehensve income pr ks of subsidianies anil :x!-ntlﬁl:-.'h.

Feserwe fur ioust business caprevenimy the accumulaterd smeant 2ot asde B the Uarom)s under
existing repalancos reguicing the TPacear Company and a sobaadiary to GAET b sarfdus 107 of
its met it fits sccruing fruun thew uost busioess aowl the sucplus shall amene e EU’?J’:: ok the
regulatary capital. The reseove shall oot Le pad cut in divitleada, ot [geses areriong i the
cirorse of the tst businecs may be ehavged apainet this aiadunt

Chleer pesroves cofel ma the amount acteibutable 1o the Pareat Coanpany aresing e the

whages in the ownecslop ol the SCo the Gioup and dhe cesul il the sedempuen af the

prefersed stocks of REEs subsidiacies This also indudes Uig groess of cost ubvgsiment

aver the net idenzifiable azsets of an acquired subsidiaey nnder the povin:y Wl interest st had.
1

Surplus eopresents al current snd priar pered results ol pperauons as Bisclorsed b e

staterment of prafin o loss, redoced Ly the aracunt of dividen:d: declared.
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L | Tprbeadnats Ll |'|-:|r|:i-::|r| eof Hlae et pzcers aond |_.1:l_l|.ll wr loss nck anributable to the {j-'r-::-u.rl
annd ke ]JIEHEL'.I:EI.I sERA HH“:.' in e cosubcdated shlement rf r:r::-r_llr b loms anal
varnprehensive income and withun eyuity o the consolidated satemeo of nancial posaen
snd E]‘lil.l'l.gi‘.‘: 111 I::LII_I||_:¢'.

&1¢ Revenue amd Expense Recogarifon

Hevehoe by tevegnized o the extent thar fhe revene cian De eiially measaced; it s probalble
thaat the eenncamic Beenefies will Gow to the Cironpy, and, this caers incnered o to be incweeed
cazt e eneasurel r-e'li-:'hl:,-'.

The fllirwing specific recopnition cnbeea muost alae be Jrel belore a cevenae o expense 1o
recapmned:

4

(i}

il

atarers Lhcavne aod L2 aobescted

‘These are recogrized mche statement ol profic g Joss Toe all Moaecil e e
measured at amorized cose and interest-bearing flnancni assezs wsig e clfecive
interestmeihod. The eflective intecest mechod is a method of calcalating the amortzed
cost of o financial aseet or g bnancial dabilivy and of sblocatop, T|'I.-:;:i1'.|.f£l'¢'.*.-'t IMCO0e or
nzerest expenss over the relvvant peeind Lbe effective matzrest ate 13 the rate tha
ux.:u':‘.]:r' |J.i:<c-:_|l_1nls Hhe exireaed Tulace caxl |:l:1}'|::|'|-£1|l.== LT rl:l_"l_'i|:-Lr= Lluc :-ugh 1k Ex|.‘-|;1".l£1J
Lde ol the Brsircal sosieument gr, w e apspeapsiaie, 8 =loscoer pegued oo the oer cartyig
armount of the [nanaal asset or financial Daluliny, Wliea |.::|.|1_'|,|.|'.|I:I|§1g e elTend e
interest rate, the gronp estumates casly flows comsilenng al contoagciual woomes el e
tinoncial instrument (for example, prepayment optiens) but does |:ml consider fotoze

credic lossee, !

The calculation includes all fees and potnts paid or recerved l:lf‘l"-'-'-'i‘.!'!.'-l'l PreThiCs fo the
cuoleasy hat ate o inoegra: pact el the e ffecove interesd ote. tranfacbon costs armd all
prhce [remns or Juscrunts, '

One a fnanetal assel we e proop of auyular financis assets has hedn wotten drean zs

result of an impaimaent less, imetes) negone 12 recogaized wsing the rate of ineerest
e oo disceunt the fotuze cash fQows Toc by pacpuse of measouag the Impaicmert

[xa3s.
Tragiru g corad .,!umr.' rexities (eohiars |'L.|.'-‘.I'ﬂ'.i_,|

These zrg cecagnized whea the ownecship o the secutioes s tra nifzrred to the luper
and is gumyauned as che difference heraesn the sellng proce and the carmang amcuwnt ol
the securines disposed of. These alsra inchode adiag pains oz 2 pgpule oF the
tevark-to-rmacket valaation of hwesoment secarities classafival 2= UL

Kermaier Feer ol Comrnaiisian

These are cecognized as folloses:

¢ Fimemee slatyer — are recognleed on sredit card revoiving accaunts, other than thuwe
accannts clssified as mstaliment, s o ax oo as s guisaabog sccount
balamess ate noe YU day: and over past due. Finance ¢hages ¢ﬁ in=tallment
aceeuanes, and fest prat aod rengwal membershlp dees aee eeiirrmzed o5 mceme
when Liled o capdlolders  Dwarcliness by casdholders which are callezied oo
installmen are recocded at che cost ol 1he e putchased
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(4} TRcomnts carned mef of infercdanpe wii — are Iecoplzed 15 taernne pon press saliog
by sember estabhshrnents of clarges adsing fram RORC Bakacd and fon BORC
Bankard {asacoiaied vzl Magrer ard, JOR. VT3A aod Clhina LhuonTay Ta bals) eredin
r:a-:-:i vvadleacrs pagsing tiroupl the Foeint od Sale PPLIE) 1ermingls ol e Parent
Loompany. These discounts are computed based on aweeed eates e are dedie e
Ihan the amvruats remiteed = nember establishments Initerihangs costs portain b
the aiher ceedit caed vompanies’ shate in RCBC Hurkard's ml:i'rth.ant discowra
whenever theit wseed ceedit cards transact Lo the Pacent Do nfrany’s S etenenal

.

Wi} Farle frpmapat o ace lnlled oo delagug ne coedit caud reaernble balowes which ace
at mest 1T dhays past cue These lale pavment foew ace e LTI TR T, PR SR
collestioa.

{rad Loan {}Hﬁ'lftﬂ'fd::.'-'r_,lll:'ﬂ — Are recdtnlge] Jpua EUmI_]][':nl'll'l rl all 51;: dicanrnn ac lvities
and whete there axe i foztler ehlgations to pethotrn under che sendwation
AREECINE . !

{# drevace sihargrr and peeader — ate recogmzed only i cerliertiod: ar vt where
there is & repeonzble degeee o cenainoy a5 to s collectln e,

it Uwadmurieing fre amd vossamniions — are recorded when seraces tor undrrrdeing,
arcangng of brokering las leen cendered ,

Crurmy or Araer Yaid i

Coatns e dsse s snld aziee From the disposals ol bank premises, fumatoure, fatores and
SLUpIRENt, Investment propeeies, repl astatg properues b ale, L
held-for-sale, aud acs reeogmzed when the nisks and eewanls ui'uia:n: cehip of the assers
are Lens(erred to the buyer, when the Greup does aot retin enher continaing
managezia: involrement to the deprer ugually assoriated with uw.-;:mml-;, o e [egtve
control pwer the assers sald, and when the collectibiling of the cmine: salcs price is
reasonably assured. Gasns oooassers seld are included as past of Musccllagecus income
uader Cithee Opecanng hicogme account in the statemens of fuufit ar sy

Capsts inel grpenges ape pecognzed 1o profit o Joss apon celizaiso ol ghe asseds and for
services vt ar he dare those ace incaree. Al fingnce costs are repormed oo et cr loss on

accrual basis, except capialized Bornswing costs which ace included as pact of the cosn ot the
relat=d quabifang asses, (F any (zee Mote 2.21).

247 Legses

The Geeup acconnes for wx leases as bolloors:

fa)  Growp ar Lecree

leases which do oot rranster to the Crrocp sabstancally all the nsks and benefits of
carnership of the asset ace classified a2 operating leaces  Tinesatng Jease paymenns
(aet of any incentive received from ehe dessord ace ecopmzed as cxpense o predis o
loss ooy asteateht-line basis aver the lease termy. Associated costs ) acl o: tepaLrs amd

malntrnance and iREurance, are capensed a5 inouarcl. '
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Crdgnt wer Lavror
Lecases arlucle tanacer vo the lessce all zisks and benelies incadonta | 10 crarnership of th

=T T parb the
leased nem abe clissified a5 finance leases and ate presented ar 1::-1}|n'.r_:-unt equal e the
Lrecup's ner wrvesunent in che lease. Fingace moonn: i recopmzed Lased on the PHticm
Le flectiog » canstant pepodic tate of retwen n Hye O IOMEE ke e ootz b diog
I cespect al the finacce lease, zent i weluded an taast of [nterest Income an Joans and

terrivable. !

Leases wluch do ont transfar to the leasee subatantially all 1 oy k!*.-; a0d benefirs af
venezsalp of the asset ace classiled as opeesunyg eases. Lesse i1'|1-:_nm-_' Frorm opse s
leases is recopnized o peolit o loss on 3 seraiphrdioe basis over the Lease teem These
e recogmized a5 past of Miscellaneous meone under Other Operating Income acconi
in the sezeesnenr of protc or Le:s,

The Cronup determines whethor an acrangemen 12, oL conitains, a lease based o e substance
vf the arrangemen:. Tomakes an assessment of whethee the Culfillinent e e areagpement 13
dependent vo the use of 2 rpeditic aseet vr 2ssels and che armangencent donveys a nght o e
the asser. A reassesncucol 1 mjule after meeption of tu wase, anly of r_'-éu_- ol the Eolowing

ap|Hies:

ful

i

i)

i

LI5

e

rhire is 2 change in contractonl teons, onher than a eepearal o egtenaen of e
aIrAngement, :
!
. . | .
1 renetwal pptoers s exercised or extension grateed, woleg: s thal term of the cenewal o
catenslon was indbady incladed 1o che lease reron, |

there is 2 change W the detercunanun of whether mifileaens is dependen: an
spectfied assct; ar,

there is a sobsdantial chaops w1l asser

Forciga Cumrencp Transaceions did Transfationg

1 ramperptpmy el Baadamens

Lxcept Sor the foreign subadianes and accaunts of the Grenip's futeiga corgeney
leprst b wnt (FCCHLG L the aecountiogr reeneds nf the Group ae mantaoed in FPlobiopine
pesos  Foreign currency transacbens durdng the penod ace transiated into the
functional curcenzy ar exchange cates wluch approaimate chose prevailling at transacoon
dares. Hesouices and lLabilities denominated i foreign cuceencics are traslated o
Fhilippne pesos at the prevailing Fhilippine Dealing: Sysoem closing caes (PDICR) at
the ecul af the seporang peraons. '

Fareygn exchange goins and losses resulang from the settlement of Futeipn rimeny
ttarsactions and fuem the translauon at yeac-znd exchamge mics G moneiany agsen: and
L bl riss sdeanonninated io fareipn currencies e ceregiised o (aoadll o loss, cacgp
when recognized in othet cetoprehensive inconwe and defersed injequury as quzlifring
cash tow |1{4:|E_:5 and qllglif':r'inH net investment hedgen, Teansbiwors dilleeenees on
NETEERS T itenas, such ax e secunties classdied as at FY AL are n‘:|;|,-frmi a: it

of fail value sram oc lusz, |
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For tnancial eeporting jrarpeses, the acounots oF the FUTIN are translared mea ther
equivalents in Philijsrine pesos based on (e PDSCR ntevailiop acjthe vl of each
Lepeeling perivd (fun rusoncces and babilniest and at ohe averape KUISCR, o the peogd
55:-1 tncome and expenses). Any totewn excraenze cklizrence i re:[-lr_a,.-.nj:cd IR LA
IS

Changes in the tait vaiue of monetary Goancial assets |i|:|.:||:|r:1|.n:|te:F W Ecrbeipn pmenay
clasaibied ar financial aszer: a0 FYTLoand financal sesets at 19005 are 2nalyzed
Letwreen transkaticn diflerences resulueys from cha DEs 121 Uwe amertized tusl :f the
secunlly axnd uther changes w the Larmone amown of e secizriby | Trsslibin
illercraws eelated to changes in amocbzed cost are recoprized miplobit o ks and
ather changes 1o ehe carnying amonnt ate recogmzed as E;:amg annd Lissses 30 oches
commprelhesee moome
|

Tramsalron i_lll"f"-rﬁr.'m:‘w" Nixtrmpenrir '?.""!_ R LT e .
i
The resddts wf opecanons aod finencal puossu o all the Goup®s t"fumg-n subagicharies
(aene ot wluch has e corteey dependency of a hypesndanonaoiecanoony) that have o
funcnonal cucrency differear Feoen ehe preseniation curcency are translatel e the
presentaton currecey as Eollowes: |
frp Assets and Dabiliges ac e eod Gf cach reponing periud as ||rT:~ranJ in the

statement oF fnancial puosiinn are icanslated at thz elosing eare a1 the Gate of thar

slaleineml of Bnancial posioen,

fu lnceme and expenses are trunclaieb ar average exchange bates Jdacing the period
[idess this avemgs 15 0ot 3 ceasonanle approaication of the qumulatve edfece of
the races presatloy: o the teansactions' dates, in which case ulesme and cxpenses
are tranzlaved ar the daves ol ibe i@ Rsacdons)s and, :

i All resaling exchange diffeeences. ae recopmized as 2 comnpanent ol sguiry.

In ecvsgbidarion, exelunge differences ansing from the wzoslanen of the o sovesonen
u forewrn enaoes are tecoagured ool cinpacehe nsive iocome which foon part il
Bevaluahon Reserves account in enuiry. When o fureien opecation is sold, rhe
aceruriulated feanslafiae and exchanme diffrences are recognized i profit or less as pan

U! 'I'IE ’_FII.'I. T IQI.‘E.‘- N !-i.'l.ll:.

The wanslanen of the Brancial stacereaes oo Plub pgare i alupde oot he coenstooed
a5 8 representatien thar the amonuts staeed 0 cureencies ocher than e PRulppuoe e
wemaled Lre wonvected in Tplappsine pesor amown s at the [@maton mtss o atany other
rares o+ exchange. i

217 Impairmend of Non-Anaocial Asseis

Iovrestments i sobsidianies angd associaces, back aremuses, furniture, fxlures amdl Sypment,
investment aropertes, acd ather resources (inclheliog intanglble assets? aond other
non-bioancial assets are subject o ampaitment testing, [angihle assety with an indelintte
ugelul Lic oz those aor pet avadable tor use and goodenll arc tested [ Impaiement at et

anrually. )
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For Pubtpasé: oaf as LSRN, Unilasnimenl, Assoln are ﬁ[r_;“;_p:-d ar This lerarest lewele it waoarh Hhe=
ate supuritt]}' ideotiliabie cash flows |'-;_1:_-:'|1 s neranoe weits (OO0 As g resolt, sonoe an ek
are tezted bor impaicmen: aicher individually st (e GG evel,

EICFPt far intangibie assers watl an wdefoite Gaefol life die | goodwill, hreech Deceses and
tfild.l.f.lE, fepls) ar chose nor vt avallable dor use, imalividpoal P UL ape Lested for
IRpaltment whicoe vier events of Cldyes in cocoms taces indicate chas Haeir CEIOYITE dtnuun
inay ot be recosrerable. !

. . i
Civoderill 15 ceviewsd for impaitment, anmaally or more leeguenily if events ut changes in
circumetances indicate that the catrping value may be impmaited Imparcoocr = rietezrmined St
prodwll by assessiog the recoveralde ainount of the GO0 fert oo e .0 Lisp e which Fhe
gradwall ielaws. ‘Fhere the recoverable amount of the €00 [ur greup of CLalis) w iess than
tl1:.v:un}'mg amaant of e COLT (e geoap of 26U o wlich poodwill bas buen allgcated,
an Lenpasttaent lass is recoprized womedizezly in profic at loss. mpaicrment ke cela ung o
gﬁqd:ﬁﬂ cadidyem lie reversed {or subscquent ingreases inits rcc&vcu[:i:ﬁfmuunt in lurure
penods., '

|

Impairment lurs 35 cecogpiced in prafit oc loss for dee connt by which the 2:sers ot

CGU's carcving 2mount excevds i recoveralle amoum wiocl is o Iu'g'lip:-:r pE ks Faor waiue Less
costy o sl and sy value inwse I dvicoiusiing value in wse, manageo et e oamies e
expected luture cagh Horacs Eron each CGU and determines 2he sumable wrcee cate womler o
caleulare the present value of those cazh Mows, The daa wsed for Dapaicioen estng
procedures ave disecrly boked wrdhe Group's laces: approved L ger adjusted 15 necessary
eiclude the effects of assct enlmncernens. Discount facrors are devetounesd individually for
each COHT and reect crnagement's assessment of respestve sk pro filds, such a5 market and

asser-i[eci B cisk factocs
All assers, exeepr Furwitangible assees warl ade fine ueefod it and guddwall, are
aubsequenily reassessed for ndicanon: shad 2n onpakcrmaend loss previousty recogcized oy ne
banges exisn Ao npaooent Juss 12 reversed 1f the assecs ut CES reoverable s maount
excesds irs rarying amannt

Emplaypee Benefiiy
1

Entitics andzr the Creoup provide reapeoive post-sinpleposm bens Gt conpluyees Uicugh

a defines benefit F:-|:I:‘.| and delined contbunan [Jaer, s wwerl] ws alaee bqlnlzﬁrf._ whech are=

recagzed e mmeastred as Pl

,;'i:] ‘,l .D&Hfmpﬁrmrn." .r.]::I".l:.ufa.l" H-r-v.:..‘; ¢ e

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment plaa that defines oo amount of
pus[-rmplq'_l],':1'|ﬂ:|[ henetin thar arne Fmeloves will tecyive ono e liremenn . osually

depenedent on oo or more factors such 4: age, vears of seovice angd aalarg, The legal
ul:-l_'iEa.uL:-n far apy hanality freom this lioed af F-r_::-:l-t'mpl-:_:-:.rml.'n! |'||:Ir| rrmaing wita the
Cirarop, cven it plan assens tor funding the defined benetit plan liahe beea e red.

Toun zssels rmay mclude aels specdlieally desgrnared te o logy-teem beaeir tuad, as arell
a5 qualifying insurance peloes Toe Group's pese-empleyment defined benefit plan
cownry all rr.!_‘rl.:Lar Full tirrwe e:mplr:-:.rl'.us. The ]'le:nr:i-: n |1-|..:|n 15 liax |.|||'.:|]|.:|'I-::-:‘],
upa-cyeittibucoey 20d adnuniseeeed by wuszees.
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The labuiry recogruzed i the saceracn ), of Bnancw) praattin fon defined bene i
prst-emplopieent plan iz the srescnt value af the defined Twenefit ollgmeen ar che end af
the repornting pened less the e vadae OF plao assets The detined Bereir ulligation s
calculated annually by wdependent scauaes sl rove arcjeceed wnjt coedet metiod e
present valwe of e defined b chligation is e tecnined by didounting the estnmtcd
lutvics cash ouwillpon (or expeted benefr paytments usmig 3 Jiscount ke derived leogm
the waterest rates of wero.cowpon povernment bonds a published by the Phibppone
D-a::l.llrl;_{ & Ewchuange Corp. (FOFX), that are denodrunated in the careency o aducly the
heneiits wall L paid and than have ternws oo I PR 3 pRbosimating f the: terms of g
relaced post-empleymen bl i

Fioneasurements, comprising of adlwarial gains aol losses ansng fhom vep pence
acljustments and viher changes u achiaemial Azsuipriiang, efiect of the chanpes o dae assey
vetling, if any, and wctual retuon on plan assets (exclucliog amount ebded o et sorcres i,
aze refleced inenechately i dhe starement of hosncial position wih o charpe o1 ctedil
recopgized inuther compechenizve income in the preicod in whach they s,
Remmeanuremnents ate not reclassifie | w pIUET at bass o the :‘I_;L}m:q deral [_:-r_'nr_:ud_&_

Mer interest i calewlated Ty applying the disegunt eate at the beginmng of the peuesd,
taking account of any change: w the not defined beneti lial:iliy o as st 1 cluring the pedod
a5 2 resull o centdioubons and bonelt pavmens. Ner ingrest is repodted ax pacl of
Chthee Inberest Jncome ur Expense account un e sratement ol peofin or Joss.

. . : 2 :
Panl service costs aee anodpmized immediaredy o prelil e loss im rae [= 1l o o plan
'.'|l'.|:|i:|'|.1J|:u|:r|I Ir r_.l_lj".a.ill]]tl'l [ '

Pri-erapiapenis (FeiTogd Coadrmbedton [Pl

A defined conrobution lin 15 g post-emiploytsect plan aoger wiluch U Corpup pavs fxed
contnbuncms b an independent entry such as the Sociat Seearity System, The Gavup
has no legal or constructve abligations to pay further comobutens abter paytncn of the
bxed conttilmtion The contributions tecngnized in respect ol dieliiees] comuribuadon plaws
nté expensed as chey fall due. Lonldiwes orassets may he woognized i onderpa vt oo
frepayment has coccurced.

Terrraturicn Resesfes

Ternuanin F+nefils soe papable wheo apleyiment e geominated By the G beiam
the noomal cetirement E]:ltl::, at whicnever an c.rnplq:q,ﬂ:q a{c:]:.t;; ur;.||_'|1||u|1_,- r.:_;g!|_|||-:_:|3_n|_"!,' 1T
cachange fror these henehig The Sooup socopimzes teominagon beoefe ar e carlier
wf [ orhen w can e louger sathd tow the offer of such beaclis, mul, i3 when f1
recopnize: costs fora restucrag tial o5 wihio the scope of PAS 37, P,
Conapems Liabiitties smd Cogtingaa «Taetr, and involves the payment s£ tecnuna o
beaefits 1o the case of an offer made to encourage volentary redundancy, the
tenmanation berelits ate maeasueed based o 1L mumber of emplovecs expecied
aceept the afber. Bemelits Bafling due more thao 12 moathe 2fe 1!1|- ausl al rlue
reporting peoiod are discownied oo theer pessent valor. '

Aomws Mans

|
The Group cecogniznes a Habibty and an expense for boooges, Based o oo (xed) leomul.
Thee ety recogntees o provision wheze it is contractually obliged w pay the benefie,
ot whete thete is a past practice Whar bas ceearsd 8 cowsicuclve oblipadon.



.

i Compeniid b

Cm.-:qm:nsnlle:d ah:'-r.!_:m::- are reeogrized foe the aumnaet of paud leave davs docludice
lalicday enttleirnt: rernaining &6 the el of the ceparting poricd. Uhey are meade]) m
the Accrued Enterest, Taxes and by Expenses accown in the staiement of nancial
posbion st the undicgunted ascont thas e rXOOR PRt fu pay as 4 corull of the
tnuse enttemen. !
i
&2 Hoemowing Costs I
_ [
Liotmaedng costs ate recogiukek az exptie-e in the pemad in wrhicl they ace meuepsd, EUCED! D
the extent thar they abe cupiralized. Huocrawing cuses that ae direstly arciliabile o e
aCquisifion, conzeucnon of produrtion of yualifraog @asct e an assat thar takes o
subsraoriad penod of lime w pet teachy Eor s tate nded wse ar sale) ape -_'::||:-i|:rlim:-:i ai et ol
the ozt of such azset The capitabzancn of borruaing cosis commencds when cependitures
Ior the aszet and bocrowiag cunts pie being incurred and aetivines that Py NOCEFE ALY [0
[tepate the asser for its intended vse or sale are prupres:. Cajita Ij:-.aﬂlan eesons when

substaniialty all such activine. ate completed. '

-

Invesument income cabned po the tetaperacy iavastinent of specdic Sarowings pouding e
expEnditure nn qualifying deses i= deducted from the boccoswing costs ezl o
rapitalization. |

222 Income Fuaxer

Tax grpanse recagtiem) m profic or sy I-.:L:-I'I.'Ipl.‘.i!ii:!i the surn of cument toe wral deberred tas st
recogruzed i ather comprehena s wooeme or dercctly e eepary, of any.

Coofosail tan &5sELs of Laleifiges comoriae flcose clajims Ereue, al erlolapry u'r_-|';~_- b, taw wnthasntes
reliiyg L the carcent o fitive reporoiog peeicel, that are unpaid ol the c%.-:i ef e repreng
period. “They are calovlated accendings to the tax rates aod g laws apjilicalele 1o the periols
b which they relate, based on e tmgable profit foc the prar All changes 1o cument ex 25801
ot babelitics are recognized a0 compenear of tak eapense in the satetreint of prefn or lass,

1
Pleterred Lax is provided st the habdiny maethed, on temoorery differences st the end wl
b reporting period between the tax bases of a:set and Babilitie: anoal LByl caroying arnonLs
bor Enancial reporung purposes. Uider the labiling nethod | wilks oertaai e, e ferred
tax Liabulines ate pecognized for all raxabte wemporacr differences and deferred “ax asses are
ecopnized lr all deductble tempertaty diffecenres and the carsy-laowracd o wnused ax
losses and unosed toe credics v he @xtenr that i e probalile that taxahble prodi sl be
availalile apainst which the defesred dax assets can be walized. Delerred b asser: ae
teassessind ac the end of each reporung perical. Previously uneccoginecd defrred s assen
are recoznized bo tae exveat Har i has became probable char lunaer xalil [rrasiie will e
avadable tw allow suen delemmml g assecs Lo be recrave oo,

Dieterred tax assers and habiines are anexsared at the tax rates that are apweiel bs appby i
the penad when the 1sgel 15 tealized or the babiiey 15 setded provided suah 12z cates bave
been snacted or substantively cnaeted an e end of the reperhoe pend.

|

The: cazrying acuant of deferred s assens 15 reviewedl ot the end of ewch repordng penad and
reduced oo the exteat T it is peobable dhac sofficienr taxalle proafic sl e aailable e alow al!

or part of the deferred tx agsets o be ntilzed
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Uhe measutemene of delerred v Lababiics and a:sed. eetles bn thie tay coTFEGUEnCEs Huat woubl
feallonar Froste the mannee 1 which the Geoup expects, 2¢ the end ol the CERUILIE P g, o
CECDWRT 4L SELEe the cariyine amwant of the assets ad I lilites i

Cloer changes i deferced tan useets or Lubilities ane teeuganzed &2 & Lomponent af ax sxpens:
I prafic e lass, excepn v the extent that i relaes w items. recopmzed anoter vomprehensive
Woteet or ciractly ey, o tlus cose, the s alse recomuenl in other wnnprehensive

. . - . = ) ’
<ot oo directy im enuiry. ees ectiely

Dhetetredd tax assets sl deferzed vax labilities secs rgnized by thi coiities under e Groop ase
L:-ff!rt.t .n" they huve 7 legally enfrorceable viph  set off cuient 1ax assets A 15 | CUCDERE T
babilities and the deferred raxes relate & the saine entity aod e same fganian authoiey.
223 Reduged Party Relasionships and Transactions I

1
Related parry reansactions aen thusfars of 1esoitens, services o ublizations berween dis Giroup
and 15 eelated pathies, regardless of whether & price i charged.

Parte; are consadercd o be cebated of oo pacty har the 3ol o cantred rhe wiher parky or
cxerckie shgrdlicant nfluence ver rhe otler paen, o omakonp Gnance: and: aprrating deelsions.
‘Theae paides snchude; (a) idrvadis b awning, directy of indieectly throuph one or o
uresnediures, contrel or ase enntralled by, or uoder commnon contog witl the Ciroup:

(b asseadures; (o) indnidoals crvning, dicecey e oudieecily, an s cest o the eutng power ol
Gtoup that grees therm significan infueace aver the Group and cliese members of the Facaaly uf
any wech indivadual; and, {d) rhe Munded retcesnest planof gach of che ectioes ondee the 5 roup.

In consicenng earch possible celated pary subinonship, atrencon s dins i) w e subsaace ol

the rlaboaship and oot retely oo the Legal o, '
22 Larnings and Diluiive Earaing Per Shace :

Basic eatnmgs per share (EFS) b5 derermiaed Ly dividimp, the adjnzred e profit for the vear
artburabibe. 1 common shareholders by lae weighted 1verage number of common swocks
oulsanchog duting the period, afiet poang reeraaceive effect o any :ct::-ri clivicend 2 declaved
in che curecnt pebicd. i

Duoted EPS 1= also computed by covabing ne predit by the weghred avpmipe number of
starnmon stocks subscobed aod waued doring the penod,  [lewever, acr profi aesbupalle mo
vetiumon stocks and che weighted averzge number of common stocis outstanding ane
:].d]l.li-ti:d tor peflect the ottecos ol |1-:’th':|1rl'.'||l:,- dliluaggee copuerdats ple beered woeockn Cimnvecilzle
pnrt'l:rtrl:l stocks are desmed to bave been converied oo cotrernao stecks at the wssuance of

prefeued stocks.

in eases nf eedempiiom ab rreference shates, the netincoms vzed in the computaten of basis
and dilutedd EFE s decresyed by the excess of the fair value of conaderation paid oo baldess
of the instrvments wver the caroang amovict of such repurchased the s rrumenrs.,

228 Trose amd Figurrary Acirvifies

The Group commanly acts As tnaecee aod o other bduciary capacaues il nesaltin the
hotdiag or placing ot a:eets an bebalt of indenduals, teaces, renpedner beoeli [lazes acui ik

nsttubons. The resources, babilities and wcome o loss avzing thereon s cechaled Trom
these tnancual siatenwents, as these aoe gertet reeoutces wor weewne ol the Cieoup.
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256 Frear Afer the End of'the Reporiing Ferfod

Any pust prar-cid event that provides addinonal inforraaton abuour 1be, Srowp's linancl
psiton at the end of the repostog period {adpustimg cveats is rellected i e Boaneial
stabemynts. Post year el events thae aze oo adjusbog cvees, af any, ate disclosed wrhen
matenal to the Mnarcial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUBGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The prepatation of the Gronp's findooal statemenss 1o secardance witk PITE egwiees
MAGIREMTHNT 10 rma ke iodgments and aucimate: that atFect e ameunts réipe_.m_-d in the tnanial
stuleenents and relared nose: Todgrents and osbunaies: are con LI:nuu.iJ}' cvaluared aud are haged
o lestoncal expenence. and other facnoe:, inciuding wipectimons of future erents that are
believed o be reasonable onder the circemetances. Asiual cesolts tead v ulmmasely valy from
thees esomares. '

A1 Crucal Munuyement fudgements i Applving Accoun tittgy Pirlreres

i the proces:, of H|aplying die ﬁrm.-p':: MO g, L, RN ERES R !J'm:: made che
followizn judgmanns, apart from thie arvrilving estmation, wluch have the moess synwlicant
eftect cn the amounts becoguived in the fnaseal statements:

() Divnlvation of Baseners fdoder A fafednoct s Alarigging Vimamaa! | rctmmzar |

Tl Crronp manages s (noicaal sssets based on bosenesy, meodelsithat mzntain
adequate level of financial assers W maech jts expected ek A gus, lasely ys core
ileposit funding atisieg Mrom custemes’ wibdrawal: and conmaaig loaa disburseocats
re beibraeers, wrhule mooraining a steateglc postttolo ol Deancial apsets loc teachioy:
ACKvIes coisistent wAth its cisk appetue.

Upon adopoin of TERS 9, dhe Groupr develuped business modely wincl reflect hew o
manages its poctfolio of feical nsouments. The Group®s busigess merdeis ooml not
he: assessed al entty level or 3s 3 whobe B shall be applied at the level of 8 porefolio of
tinancial instrwments, (ke proup of Bioanca nsooenens dhat ace managed toge e T
the Gironp) and not on an insaummeat-by- e romene basis (e, oot hayed un inlenton
e gpecific charactensncs of wdividual Doancial insteunzear.

In deesteining the classificatian of 2 finaseil ws curneat nnder PERS %, the Crtoup
cvaluates iy wldech business model 3 Anancial imsewroent ar a2 gactfalio of teanaal
msttutonents belongs o raboog o consideranen the olyjeatives of each buiness model
established by the Gorop (g, beld or-trading. generabuig acceual weooine, direcy
coatchdag e a specific labiityd as these relate o ahe Grow)s ivestrnent. trading and
landing srrarepies.
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Teattng the Lo Flow Chatructeriy i ef Piviatmedar? -Jasety civied Condemeriay Emalboman of the Bupme.:

Medr!

[n deterteuning the classificabon of Tnancial asses wnder FREE 7. e CIIrLP ARsesss
whether the contractual terms af the financial assets give e s eecifed dates mo cash
Herars that are solely paymente of paowipal aod interess on the princpal iziosianding,
with interest tepteseating Gme value of money and credit risk associaned wth the
privcipal amuunt cutstueling  The assessmwent as fo whethes the cash Bows neet the
test i snade inihe currency 1 which the financial awel ¢ deassminared  Anv ather
contrachial terto that changes the hiing or amount of casty Hows, [nless it 13 2 vagable
Wilecest cate that eepresest: ime value of money aril ceedic osk) d:m::- nen et e
arevirblized coek cotena. b casey where the celatonslip Delween die passage of ime and
the: interest rate of che finacocial jnstzament may be unperfest, knqwﬂ 5 i fied Hme
value plhmoney, the Groups asscases e modified tme value oF moner fearare to
eiemune whecher che finaacial inginonent still meers toe S1FT clitenon 'Lhe objesuve
axf i ansessmment is to dete e i delferant the wadiscouted conteac bl cash
thorars could be deamn dhe ondizcounted casl Hews that sould aose iF the e valae of
ey emment was not modihed (the benchmark cash fleaars) 1he resualting
difference 1e sygeuficant, the 5P criterion 15 not reet. In view of|thiz, the Guoup
conzidees the elfect af the modibied tiwae value of maney elemnent in cacls te ot
peood and cwnbaiively gver the Life of the Boanca] wasinnment

In zddition, PT&S % emphazizes shan iF enare than an nfrequent sdle s nude pul ofa
penifolio of foavddal asets carded at amorbized cos, an enniy shomld as e whetler
and Lew such sales ace comsislent with the obpeeove of collecoay comiraciual cash
flraws. in naking his judgment, the Sroup consaders cecrun |'.ih:'i|..|rrlsl:ar|.-|:{s
dizcumented in s busimess model manual 1o assess Lhat an incrzage ia the frequency o
value oF sales of nancial instruments in a particular prriod is not|oecessazily
inconsistent with a held-to-collecr business model i the Group can explais the eeagoms
frr thuse: sales ancl whry Lhose sales do nat reflecea change in rhe if]mup':.; ribjueetive for
thee Truscrie sy meade]

Bhatuatzg o tabarmrens of Fioaace! A reetr @t B1-0CT :
Lhe detecnmmation whes a fiancal aiset a0 FWOET b uther-than-temporarly impaied
requites Lhe Cbowpr to roake judzment. Tn making this udgmaent weth espec o the
Gmup':-‘ -:':ut*.-'.l:a.l::niij'lg Eicadnicdul dmavis b FAEN] as of Decenhber .]. vy

(e Dote (0020, e Govup s evalvated, amooyg other factors, the dasaben and exent
ira wrhizh the G valoe rf an investment 15 bess thano it oo, and the linance| kealth of
and near-term usiness ovdook for the invechee, incloding, facéers zuch @ industoy and
sector peefermance, changes in techoology, and operatonal and financiog cash fow.
For invesiments wsurd by covnterpacty wodee binkrupcy, ile Goowep deinnnmes
prsmanent impairment based oo the price of the most ceceat transaction and oo laeest
indicatens chtained foom repuafable ronaniecpaches Cahach regadasly quotes praces tral
distressed seowhbes) sinee cortent wd poiees ave o lenges :wmlnl:rlc
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Desttmesiam Bedtwren Fvesforeat Fropetnes gnd {}n--.wr-mblpfer:l' Fraparire

The Group derttoines whether a PTAp by gquali fles 8 un wedesmocnt [rropety. T

ma kmgt i judymmene, e Crroup considecs whether 1he prOpcLy gu'rm:mn_-s cash Howes
bargely inde pecalent of e other assers et by the Chtonap. Ut.u':::r-ucv:upu:d PrOpesues
generate cash teews chol are anributable naor valy b propecty but alla o other agsets waed
i the praluction, suppaly process, el in the Catnsup’s banking speraion,

ard another paroon Hatis heid for use for adininestrative purposes [ these portions can
be sold separately (o1 leased out sepatately under fimance lease) rhedi these perdons ¢an he
aceuited for senarately 10 ehe pertions cannor be sold separaely the opery i
accounred For ss investtoent property aoly o an sz feant parooo is held for use o
uperatons or for adenendstrative purposes. Judmnenr is applicd v fletemnunng wehedher
ancillaty secvices ave s sigraficant thal a property deoes ot quality i:u.; imre e

PLdpecty. ,

Some Properbes crMmptise 4 porbon that s held WG eam ezntal of F:i: capcal apprecianin

A5 of the end of the reporting pend, the Crrup bas ceciam buililing whuch connpzise 1
pasraien thar i heid Foc tental and other portion s weel for opetaupos wlach were

vlazsified by the Croup as Invesoaent Property or as part of Bank T’Lmuim:;.-, Furruree.
Fixures and Equapment accarhnp to its e use.

Lisrfimekon Beinsen {pencting send Fiagace Leare

The Group has eoreoed inve vadows lease agreements anler a: 3 Iessor ot a leysee
Ivdgrment was exercised by management e s linguish each lezsciapreement as citler an
aperating ot linance lease by locking at the transfel ur retention i <gufioane dsk and
eroards of cwnceship of the propetties covered by the apiesinents. Forlure re rake the
dight mdgmear will cenlt in either overstatemeant or undersoaiciment of nues o
balvlites As of Decerter 31, 2007 and 2006, mast of the Crbrant's Mease arfacpertenis
qualily a5 perating leases rxcept for the vanous lease agreements +f RCBC LFC wlhich
arc accinned for under insance lease.

Colmusefrogtrenr ol & lefermtsotrom of Faur L7y o Arprerredd Nempertier

The Group classines s acquired propetics s Bank Preamses, [Fuenituce, Fisowres aod
El.| wprment if wsed 1 OpEED tiesms, as Ausets T Leld-for-Sale and Disprosnl er:r_'.up classtfienl
under Cthes Resources 1 the Growp expeces that the properies will be recoveeed
through sale eather than use, as [nvestment Prapeenes of beld for tental oz for cerrently
widetenrnined Buture use and 15 regarded a2 held Loz capital EPPI.'-EIi::i;].I.'II;.Il:ll or as linancila
assels in accordange wih FFRS % At inadal recopmnibon, v Crrol p dretermines the fair
vl G acquered properties through innsecal w exiernal appraisal dependizg oo rhe
{zroup's threshold poeboy. The appraiged value 15 deteomined dased 00 the currem
ecunemuc and martket condibons, a8 well as rhe physical conditon of the praperry. The
Croup’s methodology 1o deterrineg the b valae of acqured [}fr_:-Pl:-l_’I‘_i_-i:'E. are Furtler
disrussed i1 MNote T.4. .

|
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@) Alasesrarens of Nigeriicams nfleenes on FICPS th miiic el Ceruafe avand Fuitza? vty § Lo £

than 20 l:_.:'u-v:lﬂ'.r."h:.'.'-"

.Thﬁ managenmici vensiders char the Group and 1he Farear {".wﬂpiam has symificant
tnfluence o FICFT even thaugh ot holds less than 209 of the f_:-rd'n:;::,- shares in the
latrer. 1o making tls judement, Inanagement considered the Sonp's and the Mareqt
Company’s rights ta comeit and andertakes 1o votr, and 1o regulate tae condoet of
ol and the relationship beraesin thern with cespect o theis exerise 1l thear soong
dghts {see Mot 12.7). 'J
.

8l Hecopeitiun of Propinges ans Cantigpemes |

ludgment i excrascd by management o dizlinguish beosreen |rrusiuns and
comiungrences. Polices oo revugnidon of proviscne, and contipenies s dscassed o
Bate 204 win) relevant disclosures ane presented in Moe 29, In ealing wirly the Group's
vanous legal jaoreedings, the Croup's exstimate of the probalde ;L:-ir:ts that iy arse dram
Laitg and conangencies bas wen developed 1 consultation and gooedimatien with the
Lsroup's eteenal ard aucrside counsel: aeting 10 defenze for dic 'f.i:j:'up':: ang che Parcar
Company’s legal rases and are bazed upan the analysis of prabablel results, Alrheogli ahe
Carcwfy does nat heliewe that it on poing procecdiog as duclazed in Mote 24 wall have
thateriul acdverse effecr oo the Grooup’s Brancial posioee, o is peeasilzle thar Juture zesults
of Gperalions could be matesially abfecrecl by changes 51 Qe cesmates o in the
effectiveness af the SErATC e comducted rela ang o thieesas ]! I.'\I:JCI."I."I.‘“r'Ig!J

12 Key $ources of Esttmation Lncertainey

The [liewing ace the key s umptivn: concerning the fumee, and siher key soooces of
esnmannn wncerlaiaty al lhe end of each repordng pemod, thae have a rigoiftcan #1:k of coasing
a matenal adjusemnent o the srryn amonnts of assets 3nd Jakbilnes within the mest repiarting

pe tioed:

fol  Eittealios of lemposrmens Larrer o Doamy and Heareoliee wod Joveriment Severcties ar Aswdrtiged

sy

i
The Group revieas 1ts laans and tecarvalilas post folio 1o asee e imim:.irm-.-_ nTat lease ona
cermu-annual basis  in detetnurag whether an impaicment loss showhd b seoognized in
peodic ve Ioss, 1he Group makes edagments as to whether thete 12 aby olseocahle daty
intlicadng that there 12 2 measorobbe decreaze w the e tna el fatnge casty Nears fem the
portfolio befose the deerease cun lie ideopfim with an individunl iten o thar pesbole.
This evidence may mnclude obserrable data indicabing thac there bax e an agheenes
chaape i the payoent Siatus of booheerets or izyoeers inoa group, of nagonal ov local
economic fonditons that correlare wash defanlts g asscrz o the gloap.

Moregver, the Crroup helds delt secuntes meazured ar amortized|eose as of

Blecembes 31, 207 and 2016, Tle delemrunabien arlwen @ boresGogat s

other-than- trmpotanly irgaired reouices sigdfuant odpmenr. In eakog das jadgnes,
the Crroup has evaluated, ameaeg other facroes, the daration and ejtent to which the far
value of an wrestment is less thuo its cosd, aodd the foancal health) of and near-team
busincss gutook for the investes, including factors sach as 1adwstty and sector
perlomance, chaugres o tecluzoligne aod aperational and Laoeng casle Lieas,
Management uses estimates based an bustoncal loss exproence fuy assers with coodt sk
clhiatacierisucs and ety evidence ol aropsdrment saoudar to oz e fae portEolie
when scheduling its tzbare cash tlows, The mechodotogy and assumpnons used bors
crumacng forle rhe amgumne anel riming of funire rash o sce reveweed _I':ELL]H rlf b
recisce any differences berossen loss estimates and actusl Joss fxptlru:n-:n:.
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The carcyuig valus of 1w Grroup's and the Paicin Cornpaly™s loa nsfnd receivables and
the snsalysi= of the allowance fur impaiiment on such Giancial asse are sherwn n

More 11 wrhule the infemoanan aboar che delit secwirme, mezsored a!t AL oot s
disclored 2y Miste 101 i

Lxatermeemairon of Tinir [“aiwr Meayurement Ve Finama?d alaele af LS imd 11000

The Cirowp carnes certain Geancial assete at B2 valoe wiucls requirds the ceensive use of
donnting estinates and judgrment. 1o cases when actve market qQuuaies are ohet avaable,
fair value iz detenmiacd by reference v the corear market value ol poother Rnacscal
istrurtent which is substantally the same o i+ cale wlated based I::-nnl.‘u: wxpectod cash
[aey of the undezlying net baze ul the inscruent jsee Mo 1.

The amount of changes 1w faic value wrcull differ i e Cerpup had wolueed of (ferent
valuanon merhuds and assarnprions  Any thanpe in fauk value of the Bouncal 3sses aid
fnancn] labilities would a e profn of loss snd other comp nrhcn:1|:-.--: It

The fair valus of dedraove buancal instrneacs that aoe oo quostefl it an acoec aacket 15
dererrmined thzough vahunten ooy BHIGE the el prescct vale cuoopubon
[Foe Mote T2 ur

The carrying values of the Group’s aod the Parent Compacy's teading and mavestmeor
secuntes and the ameounes of faic ealue changes recuguzed on tharse Mancial assers aee
diselosed i Meke 100, '

|

1
Eriveraizon gf Ulselad Lives of Bonk Presitoes, Varadire, Fictres wnd f-:.:..-ml;ﬂm_-r.-.'. i newssern?

Fropetiier, Compatee Saftware, Bramch Livesies and Troding Rizhis

The Group estonates the useful bves of hank premises, Baeruture, Geames 3o G Uprteent,
imvestngnl pruperties and compurer softaare based am s proed over whoele the assets
are expented o be wvailable for use. The sstionated usefol Iives of these asaets, ate
teviewed pencdically and see updated iF expectations. differ Fesm provioos estimates, due
v physical wear and rear, mchnical er conunercnl obsolescence aad legal ar vther limits
on the use ol the assets.

The G o'y branch licenses and tadiog dglts wers repacded 1, bawung an indefinits
wsehl lives conadening there s oo tore secable e o the edod sver which such asses
are expeted 1o renerate nec cash mllows for the Group. “The amscsament ol havinp
tndelnite usetul tives 15 oeviewnd pedodically and es wpdansd whethgr events and
girpusnsianoes such as the penod of canthl caer these azcers and legal at sireibar limmits oo

the vee of thsie asser: conrinae te ANpQOTE sucly gs st e I

The cactying amounts of rank premises, furcubure, lixrures and equipment, investonene
propettes and computer software are analyzed wn Medes 13, 14 and 115, respectvely, while
the mirving smounts of poodwall and branch licenscs age aaalyerd in Mose 15, Pased on
CRECITENE's asaeraeent a6 G December 31, 2017 and 20106, theie arc o cliniges in the
wse ful lives of these aszers. Acrowb resal i, howeeer, may wiry doe tT) chaoees in estimares
baghin ataond by cliaoges in laciu s mendoened ghowe

Fetersrination af Kealivaiie -lomaner of Deferred Tonw 22rsers

The Gmul:- rerews Jbs deferred tar assot: a1 the and af eash ze|aellogr el znal redaces
the carrylig stnaun o the extent that it s mo lenger puobable thar g manbie
prohtonll be avadable to allew all ar par o the deferred ax asset 1o be vobiaed. The
earrpiig values of recognized and unrecognized dederied o s 4s of December 51,
2017 and 206 ape disclezed u Mo 261,
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| 4, RISE MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND QRJECTIVES
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Esttraiion of Istpurremens § oyres & Sou-finuciod - aen

Bxcepe fur intangble asseds. wih indefioine uzeful Uwes, PFRE requwges that an HypAlE e
review be performed when corlain Inpairmenr indicatuons are presepl. Toe Group's
pralicy on caimatig L neparment of non-fnancial geeets -d.i:v'{l.liﬁt'd i e tail i

Mate 219 Thoweh manapement heijeves that the aszumpuans uaed in e estimanen of
bair valiss of nan-tinaesial aseers ape apripnate and reasonable, syenificanr changes in
these arswnGons ray mmatetiaily aftear the assessment oF recoveralble valiues 314 any
eessaling kenpairmen Joss ool have 2 matensl sdve s eflact oo .‘Iué: sl of perations.

{eermamating of Furr 1 aie A Leverimeat Properiies |

The Grmup's investment prioperte: arg compusgd of parcels of B, budengs and
sondotdnium wues which arg held T sapilal appreciation ar hekl for-lease, and are
tremstabedd usang cost medel. The e limaced G e ol invesnnentlpro e rhies disclosed
 Mate 7.4 s detesroned oa e hagis of (e appratsuls conducted |.'::'!,' prodessioal
appraise: applying te relerant valuanon inetlodolzies as dizcussed theeen.

For investment properbes will apaisl conducred pricd w the oo of the currmpt
reporting petiud, manageorent desertnines wherher there ans sgrubicant ks umstances
dunng the intenvening peciod that may reguite adjsiinents of hanges in the dsclosare of
fair value o those properties, !
I

A sigficant chaige in key inpuets and sources of infarmation wed gt the determina lion
of the fair value disclosel for thow assets Iy vezult o wljustmen i e CANYINE AMOunT
of the assers tepocted 1 tae financal staterents |f thei S value will inlicate evidence of
Imypaitment. '

Vaivation of Poit smpiapmans etined Bepefita

The deterrunation of the Group's oblymsion and eosr of posr-ernployrent Jefined

Benehicy s dependent vo the selecuon of certain assumphons used by achiabes io

calealatiog swch amoune,. Those asstmp tions inchide, amon: uthcrls, diserunt rates, an

salary ingrease rate. A significznr change in aoy of these actussial ge RLLIPE s TR

groerally affeer the cecogroze| expense, wther comptehensive incoane or luss, ad the

rarenng acosunt of the prs-smployment benefit aliligaton o e CUSRE LR LNy P,
I

The amenaes ol post-employment beoefit ublimton aod relied incone o £ApEnze, wn
at analysis of the wuvemens i w estimared present value of posee mepluine ot benefie
chligabc., 2y weli as dhe significant assumpuons used in estimagng such obligato, ate
presented in Mo 24.2

J . - - - - - . ]
The Group = exposed to dsks in relation to its apesating, nvesting, aad lioanciog activiges,
and the business environment in which i\ speeates. The Gaowp's nhectiyes in tisk

l Magagmeenl are 60 cnsure thal i identibie:, measures, monitors, and eungrels the varicus ks

ihal anse from its bisinese actvities, 304 Ihat - adheres steis Uy to the p{:]_.imr.f:_ praocedures,

arel romtrol swstems aehich are establizbed b addeess chaoc ik,
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A fotormattes sysiem s o fund amenea: part if e Citonp™s process of minagine sk, The
Followng fuur cormitiees of the [Fapege Company's BOD ate relevawr 0 ¢his  ontesr,
[

*  The Bxecutrve Comunittee, wlich mesrs wer by, hax the pevoser o act and prass wpen such
matkers as the Board ey entmst s it for ackian 0 hereees Poard cueetings. [t may alio
corsider and approve loans and oliaer ceedi relaces matoets i sUrhe ls, pucchase of
stacha, bonds, secunbes and other commescial Papees Lac the Tank's pocfolio The
Executive Commitees also bas 1 he POWAER T review an asael o loan b eosare Dimely
re:olution and recoprution of losses v imnpatred gzsers, .

* I'he Hish Crversiple Camrucree TROIC, wldeh meews uonthly, cannes our the BUM '
oveesight respeaisibility for Granp's capical adeqquacy wor nsk FEXLruiBeMEnN sLELraY dru
actione covering credit, market awd operational risks under Plac | ol the Jiasel
lrmmework; s well 2z the managemeat of other snarerial neks detecguoed onder Pl TY
and the Inceinal Capital Adrjuacy Azsessiment Procos MOCAAM (aef Moe 5.0 Fask
Lirvurs ace revicwsd and appreneed b the RIDC, |

*  The Audit Coeneniteee, wihich meets renznthly, reviews the reaelis of bz Liereroa] dadit
sraminamens and recammends eeimedial actions er the BOWY ax AQEORIN e,

*  The Reluted Fagty Transactions [FI'T) Comociee, which et rnr_:-|!'ll:]:|l:,r ard a
necessALY, reviews proposed ROV wittun i mateciality clicsbhoid I:-.'_||-.‘|l:|.1.'|.u|u'n-:: wlie e
OF [l Hu tramsacoon Je an demns wo o Beorable vs the Darent Carnpany dhan wieny
avaliahle te any unconaected thicd parcy uoder the same oo snlar cjrcams taness O
favarable review, the TP Conmitter endaises transaenons o the %C}D biat ajrameal,

*  The Ano-Money Lavndering (AML) Board Commutree, whicla mcess macnathly, oversees
the implernentanon of the Hank's Money Lavodering and Terrodst .Iljn:mq;m_g Preventicn
Pecyrrace (MIPP) and ensuerer compliancs (leceol. 'The Guanmittes adsa ensores hat
inftactians are immediatery comectod, laues ace addressed and AMI, reaining of officess
and staff are conducted. '

Fout senior management coidrottees also provide a wpndar forom e I,:ﬂi,f_' up sk I,

i
*  The Credit and Colleciiven Committee (CCRACOLY, chaived by the Chist Lxecauve Officer
(CBEO) and composed of the heads o ceedu bigk rakg ng budmeas cnits aod che Lead of
credit management group, meets weakby to seview aod approve coedj) CADUYULEE within ins
authotiy. 1alsy reviewrs plans aod [rogress on the cesalazon of podblen loan secoants

*  The Assct/Laabibity Cornroitter (ALCCD, chaired Ly e Treasarer of the Maren Cumpany
atrl wilh Lhe parucipagon ef the CEOF anid key business and suppots oo heads mchuding
the Precident of the major suh:idiary, R3E, meets weekly to apptat.d acket teends, and
econGirle and politcul developrments 1t provides dieccoos 12 the MARALLent of
tresest eate pisk, Lepiduy sizk, farega cvrrency dsk, and nadig aod mvestieny pactfuiic
decinions, It sl prices or eales lor vacous asset and lability and oading poadods, in
light «+f funding costs and compebtve and ather market condimgms. [T oeceives
codtitniaton that matkel risk Lunets {as described in the succeeding papes) are oo
breached; or if breached, it precrvides gibclance on ke handling of th-:l relewann sh
sxposine in herreen RO meemgs.
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*  The Eelated Pariy Transactions Marnagement Connmutiee (R U ManCam), compozed of
the Cettup Heads of the business uoirs as sptcified inthe charter o thejr terpactiee
desipnates. Tr meets rwenthly to ceview 2l apprerre pwnposed B below che toaategaling
threelieald For the puroose of delernuine whether or not the tea NRICLUC 16 031 BOOms gy
fess Favorable to the Bank than 1ecms avadabie to any unconoeced thicd party wider Lhe
sdftpe OF Sl C CIToums tances unless the tesnsacbon reyuires buard appoeval Cin
{avorable review, the RFT Mant um enduzses the transaction for BUHED Lonficma b,

* The sad-Muney | aundering Ma naganeant Comoutoes {ﬁf‘ril...'l.'_'.rjmiil was «teated through

an order of the Sendor Management Commiteee e Tone 24, 2002 e vhe evalualion of
Wie suspiciows tranzaction repocts (BTR) reporred by difterea nnj|!_n bedorrs sobbaesion to
the Aud-Moner Lavndytiog Couacil (AMEC). The AMIA am gsdLs the BHin
bnplemenuag fhe Group's MLPT m onder to ensoce coarnplianee with BT cules and
regrlanons relating to tbe prevendon of money la unclening aed berra e fnancing.

The AMLCom s compused of the Chisf Compliance Cfficer as tbe Charpetson and
Preadmg Cifficer and the Heads of Operabons trtunp, Retul Baoking iraup,
Coatrollership Grroup, Legal Alfics reew), Cperanonal Risk Banagesrnt reup, Legal
Affary Division as inembers, ang AML Diwisien as the Bappoctegr. e AML Divisisen,
tiriugh the Cluel Compliznce CHBcer, reports to die Audie and Coraplance Corumines
aud to che AMT, Board Crammirtes jts tevoocathly acovites incuduag thie AMLC o
meemaps. |
The Pareat Company established a Comonge Rick Mamapement Serves [CRISMS) Gooup,
beaded by the Chisf Rick Offcer, to encwee that consisten: implementauin of the objeatives
uf sk identifecation, mess urernent and for asses gment, nutigat o, and LSINIOTINg aLe
putsued via practices commeniurmie wich the geowp wide ik rrofile, Tn 2016, CRISMS aax
dividded inta two suly ywrovps, the Business Fask Group BRG) aod the. Chpecabonal Risk
Managernent Geoup SORMG), for a mirte [orused and dedicated masiagrrment of £ ks,
CRISMS 2 independent i all risk-taking business sERments dand rrpoets directly to che
BLD's ROC. [ panicipates in the CRECOL and ATCO meehings.

I
L addition to esmablisled rigk managerent systems and conirpls, flee ﬂ;mnp halds caparal
coitnensurate with thie levels of ik ir endetakes (see Mete 5], i accondance with regulalury
<apital srandards and inkternal beochmacks set by the Parent Cumpang.-‘rj RO,

4.1 Groop's Straigep frr Using Financial Instromenis I

It is the Crroup's iitent ko generate ecous mainly from the r:l'Hl._!ILi_unulJ fimancial
inteemediation pod service-provvision activities, augmmenicl by cetacns from positions based oa
vigws un the Auancisl markers. The man source oF risk, there tore, teimauns re be thar ansing
trimos credit sk exposares. Nevertheless, wuthen BSP reprdatesor cosnarpadnts, anal subpect to
Birirs and parametess cemablubind by the BOLY and /ot the ROC, the {foup 15 eeposed (o
baudity risk and interest race sisk wnberent in the Group's speratens, Tnd uthee rurke ! ks,

wihich include foreipn exchange cisk.
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[n the courze of perionming fancisd itecmedia oo fune wiorn, Ll {irriup nCCenns deprsitg
Mo Cusamers at fixed asl Moatng eates, and far vaugus peeiads, and seeks to earn inerest
matpns by tnvestng these fuuls in bhugh qualicy assets. The convensionad sloablzy b enhapee
ned Interest matgin s the investment of short-tenn funds in lunEee-tsom assets, sl as
fixesd-incotoe secutings, Whale (o e 50, the Group maintaies ficquidivy at pruclent lewels o
meet all claims that fall due, the Geoup fully rerupnies the CONSEQUEIL intenst Tate risk

EXPORLIE,

The Graop's investeut portfisl s tamnposed mannly of mackesahle, sove reagn and
encparate delit instrusment:

The Marent Company wus gmnted Ly the BSP addjtonal dreivaoves apthotibes sffecuye
Javwany A1, Peoduct: approved under the Limited Crealer .-‘Lulllr:-ril::,r: (Thjre 2 are Foceign
surleacy forwaeds, non-delveralle fucwards, intecest rate anel cross Currency gwaps arlle
credit Tinked siares (CLM) and bend aptions wers approsteal nndet the Liouoed #5er
Authoeity (Type 33 [n Febroacy 2012, bl fapeards, nog-dele cabld swaps and fureizn
cxehange opouns have been include| under the same Luvured Lser Authonty (Type 21 in
June 2013, the Farent Compuny was pranted Typ= 2 Leenre non deliverable swa ps, [ureipn
SUTEEnCy Lplions, borl and interest rate opoios, and asser saraps. Luging the same perod,
additional Trpe 3 Loenses fot foreign cxcha nge-cptan and bend-uptico baked notes were
Ikiwise approved. The azent Cennpany’s detivatives pertttilia consists mastly of sharr-oerm
cuttency forward contiacts and SN Py

4.2 Ligquidier Rick

Liquudiry figk is the potennal sl ficiency of fundy availabie v meet the demands of rhe
TSLOUP'S CusOMErs (o refay matukimg Labilities. The Groeup franages Liquitlity msic by bemunng
the matumty teismatch bebareen nssecs and Lahitines, asd by holding sufficien Iguid assee: ot
approptiate guality and roacketa bibry. :

The Gmup recoguzes the liguidicy nisk inbherent i s acodvines, and idencbics, rmeacues,
monitis and contrals the lguidity 1sk inherent o the memhars of th:l Group which aze
bnaneial intermedis Hes. :

;
The: Growp's liguidity policy is ro oinage its OPErRILnS e etstee that fonds avadable are
more than adequate to meen demandz of s cuztomers 3¢ b enable d posits to be e paid on
matuety. The Group’s bquidily pulicies and procedures aee set out in s fimding and liguichry
plan which containg cenan furling requitements based oo assum preans amd use: resgueces.

anct Liability roatutity gap analysis. !
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Pursmant o applocable B3E repulacions, die Group i cequired 2o malitin reserves agnL
depraiat Ialulities which are based on certatn percentages of depuostes. The required pescves
agminst depostt labeizies shall te keptin the foren of deposie, placed o the Cioup's decind
deprersil acerrunts wath the BEF. The BSP alas requores the Parent Can [ty acal BSE to
mainran asyet cowver af 100% for berrcign currcowy derprninated Lalili Lies af thelr fosfae e
FCB Ui, of which 20% ioust be in Dguwd assers. ,

4.2.1 Foreign Currency Liguidity Managememe

The bauedity sk managerent polictes: and objectives described alzc apply fo the
managemneat of any farcgn currency o which e Grewp it syndican: exposure.
Speci fiezlly, the Group ensures that its measurement, Mmoo, sod Can el SFREEMS
accrunr for these exsosare: as well. The Groop eets ond regulasdy eeveews Limies o ile size
ol the vagh {low mismatches for each significant iedividual coceency and an ageieeate over
approprate ame honzoas. The Croups also assesses its access to foreigu exchune inadkets

when setting up s nsk o, I
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Fodlowing BS1F Citentar Mo 02% oo HOAAT the Crroup Lkewne culvufares oo ropingans: a

level of capital needed to suppoer uneapected livscs attrilautalle o liquudiry risk
ystee Mote 529 )

#2.2 Liguidiny Risk Stress

Toaument the efferliveness ol the Groun's pap acoalysis, the Cotuap rpulany asacsses
bgudity rish Eased an behavioral and hypotetical assumpoons wndaclstress condition, Tl
results of these dgudiny sroess simulations ace reparted rnonthly to the RO,

i
#3  Mathes Risk !

The Group's expusure to macker nak s the poten il dimtastee of e s ansing (tom the
awetnent of macker inrecest tates as well an rhe potental lass o market value, promadly of
s lediings of debt secuviues and detivaove:, due ta poce fluctwa o]

The market osks of the Group are: (1) fuegien exchange tisk, (b iaterest rate risk and

i} equity poce nsk. The T roup managss these sisha vin 1 process of | lenidyioy, anakyzing,
measuring and cantreling relevant market sk faciors, il esablisiuog Appecpriste limats for
the vacious exposutes. The market tizk enettcs m cse, each of which Ii:-.u.- 4 corresponding

Lurut, tnchuede the foallowing:
|

*  MNamunal Foziion - an apeq risk position diat 1 held ay of any potut Jo Groe cipeessed
terns of the nemminal amowar of the cxposaze,

*  Drollar Yalue ob 01 {01} — an estimate of th |rice impact due e o une-Lasis foint
change in the yield of fixed income sceurities. Fr affectively capruies bodh the nominal
size of the parfolio as well as ies Jueaben. A pven DV limit accomamadares vatou
combinations ol prorifolic nominal size 2od dieagion, s pprovadi a deweee et Hewlilieg
to the trzding/ rck takieys dunction, but at the same tine rer:-rumntzi a ceiling e the rare
gecisklvily ol the expesure accordiog to the Group's Osk appedte.

1

*  Value-ar-Kish (¥aR] - an esumate of the smount of liss tan e gresn osk exposure s
unlikely to exceed during » given tine patoal, a0 a given level of soati: neal confidence.
Analytizally. Vall 15 the produect of [2) e sengitivaty of the market valee of vae pasiian
by provemeges of the relevant macker mai Gacrsita, ancl S50 e volaalivy of de marker nsh
tacuer Tue s given ioe hogzon at a specified level af stosical confidence. Lypacally,
the Group wies o 9% cenhdence Jeve] for thus measoiement. WaR s osed as a o5k
measure for wading positions, which are iacked.ro-magket (a5 opposed to exposares
recnlting from bankaog, ot accoual. book recources and Labilijas, Foregen Exch nge
Postaen ¥ak uses 1 one-day hielding penad, arhile Tirec Iocomme YaR wses a defeasanze
|'n|!|!l|::-|.‘| asgessed E'.lt:l'l-:’rr.‘lh_":lllfr HE .:IJI:II‘UE_JTL:HE it allowar sn -;_'ln:_:h:':[l_:,' |_|.|1=.:l.-'jn-;:|||_'_|5 al the Fl-r_u_-'jrjr_r_j_
VaR mealels are back rested to ensure that resolts remain consistent waeh the expectations
hased on the chosen swmtstical conldece level SWhiie che Parcar f'_iumpmug.- amd E5E wse
Vall as an umpertant tool for measunng market nsk, they ace copnizant of 135 bmitatioens,

nowbly the following:

= The vse of biztotcal daa as a busts for detecontning e possille @ ol fuiute
cutcomes may ot 8laays cover all nossible scenanns, especally thoees ofan
exce [ificmal narure, |



.

— VaR iz based va hipprical volatibee. Future volatiloy sy Te duite e dae o erhet
random, wne-time cvones o structural clanges dncluding chapges o cizceelaticen).
Vali may he vialle to captue weladig due to either of fhose

—  The bulding peood assunpuen may not be valiel m all cages, :::l ¢l dx during periods
of pacreonely steezsed market Ligudiy. r

— VaR 1= by definition, an estimate at 2 specified level of canfidence  Losses oy accr
heynd Val. 8 #90% VaR amplies that losses can exceed VaBE (1% ol the ume

= locases wherm o paranetoc disibution bs asaemed o calcwlane Wak, the assumed
diztrbuocon ey mot ik che actual distiibuton well.
:
= Val aggumnes 2 stauc pesibon over e bolding pericd 1o reality, teadiog pesinons
thange, even during the tradmg Jay.

* et Ioverest [ncoe (NTH.ar-Rizk — mere speeitically, i 1t carcen) implemeacation.
tefers 0 the tmapact o net inetes) income for @ B2-monch hodzop of adverse
YR LS L0 dnberest rakes. For this purposs, the Group emplavs a gap aoalvis e
tovasute the eyt pate sen=itivity of s fnoaceial posiden (ool ain-j Frelan currencies!.
As of o given reporonp Jdaie, the materes) rale pap sealysis [see Mote 4 3.7 measones
trdsiat;hiss Letween the amounts of Wileresc-eanmng asscrs aod iy rest-Deaging liabalities
be-|rbiciug withzo “tene buckets™ going oraacd from the cod of tie sepoenng period. A
POSIATE pap et et dsar senginvity, which impliss that an incepase inoche intecest raoes
wolld have 3 pastiive eflect an the Grovp’s et interest income {Lonversely, 2 negabive
gap mean: ner lahliby sensdivity roplying thit an increase in toe nterest rates would
have 1 negatree effect on the Crooop's net interest ineoine. Tl cabe maeegrzgns assoermed
Fat ameasictie N-a0-Bask ase consiztenl with 2 99% confulencs lével wath espect to
historical rate valatlity, acsunung @ one-year heddoge pesicod, Tl Secop comsider: e
shm af MU -at-risk aand the VaR ol the FVPL and BT partiobos-ss the Earcings-at-Fask
(EaB} catimate.

o {apitab-an-Rask (CaR} - BT Cikcolar Mer 544 refars na tha st - ral the e f (e ol

jesrerest rare changes ax nacaaly withs eespect o eanungs, T alsepen the Geonge’s
coconcmuc value, The estumate, therefors, must conseder the faw valuaton eflect of cace
charges ¢n noan-tading posioons  [hee chades both chase posisis with faur walue
changss agatnse probt oo Joss, a5 well as those witk faic value chanpe:s cecopgmzed dueetly
w equity. Adibiop this e the Bal derermoned vsing the procedured desenbed aboser
provides a measuce of cagal subyece to interese rate ik, The Grgup sets its Cak Lmat as

2 pereentapee ol the erihy 1 the statemoent of finoncial position
1

1
In addibon o 1he hindt: cottespondig to the abore measorements. r!'|r leallerarrge are alza oo
place: |

*# Lo Lamit— Fefatesenls 3 C-_‘il‘iﬂg on et umulated meshe- e dare H.Ll:l A C-fep-mte Jovssay
Vot tading positions, # Managernent Ackon Topger [MAT) 15 413(! usually Jefined to be

a1 509 of the Loss Limit. When MAT s brepched, the ri.ﬁk-ml:in,!-; itk must consalt =ah

ALCO for approval of a course of anbon moving fucaald

#  Praduct Limit — the nominal pesiuen cxposute for coman specibis Baancat instruments i
earablished.
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Aess Fesuny, which uses nuare severe rare/price volanbey and/oL T ding peciord
assumptions, (relative to thase wsed Gt VaR) 1 applied o zarked - to-fos ke QoS b
H (] 1 M ! ]
Azrbee ab "worst case” logs estmates. This supplements the VaR measnse. in recodnlon of iy
limuravions mentioned alwoee : '
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4.1 Foreign Excliange Risk

Hurelfms exchange ek g the risk to cammings or capital aosing feony chappees o bareyrn
exchange tates. The net forign cachange sxporare, or the difference benveeen firepn
currency denominated aseers and foreipn cocreney denonunancd lalalulez, s capped Ly
curcent B3P regulabons. Comphance wich this celing by the Grooup aild the rerpective
fi:nr-:ig;n CLOIonCY p-l’.:5i.r.l-:'1-:|'|:-' cif s subsidiaties ate repicled o the AST oo dailr hasas ac
tequiresd.  Feyond this condizaing, the Groop manages its foreign i:::clmlpgt LAposare by
lirmiting it vathio the conservative fevels jostifiable from a retoenS sk petspecove. la
adition, the Group regulacly calenbates WaR fop el curency positien, wlech i
wncerporated i che Foregoing nagkel sk manapemenr discussion.
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4.3.2 Interesr Rare Risk

The interest eate sk mhetent i the Groun's Rrancial statemenss agyes o re-pricane
migmarches berween assets and labtlites  The Growp follows 1 palcy oo IiinamRE (s 28Rers
and Labilities 50 as o easure that exposure e Huencitions 1o intesest eanes aee kepr aithin
acceptable bmuzs. ATAIO) meets ar least on o weekly basiz to setrates e warions assees ad
Lacilies and rading products. ALCO employs ol rest cate gap analyse 1 measuce the
Interest rare secsibdty of those financial taruments.

The interest rate gap analyses of asseds and labilines as of Decenbicr 3 lizsed on

o ppicing metunties are shown below. [ should be noted that sech mpercse tie gan anatyees
are based on the following key assorr endns: :

*  [oang and himg depostty are subject to re-pocing ow chen conreas gl Aadunly dales.
Mun-pecloming leans, however, are nor ge-peiged, ;

#  Diebt secunties at wnartized cost ace hucketed based on their re-pricing peobile,

- J'J.i.'|l:|-5EII-tlH+.'|]|'.||._'.; sacupbies 7ad Jecivaldves are consudesed as non-rate sEnEmre; and,

= For asscws aol laliboes with no defimce re-pricing schedole o numarize, sl 1 Bused

of the Geoua's eippines] assumpuons.
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4.5.3 Equity Prive Rick I
|

'[.'lu: ':._r.I‘I:lIII,'I:‘EI EApOZULe b price bizh o ecuity secaeides beld and dasyified moche siaiemenr ot
i]llil:lfl.:l] PDFI.I:I.L!d'I ws fingncial assers at FVEL or Brancial assens ar FVECTT 36 ol December 51,
2017 and 2018 s managed theowgh divesalficanion of porubolin aod mpntrerting of chamges in
Eﬂrknt poces. Phwersifrcation ol he portfolio v dune o accordance r.vith the henins et by rlie
roup. ! -

['-"[I'_'I.H‘.jl'_'l'l-"'.'.l'.:_ R[-Hf, a [:jtai ard HE|  esbmate the Fu'_f||[|,'|] low: and de TiGines thie Irearoe] a1
posiion di:k tequremant oo equay secuntes at FYPL incthe compubimm of the masker aml
postficn gisk cequicement Gur all equuey positions

ECAT uses the celta-normal approach as its YR wmerde] o somare (ke aiiy potental lizs
that tan be mncurred frum equity secunties held for eradimg VaR is 2 key measisee i the
mandgeinent of marker price fisk. WVal iy defined 35 3 s aestical astimate of e maxiogwm
[rwssibale loss on 8 grven position dunng 2 oone Liscizen rithin g rlven confidence inte el
BCAF uses 2 99% ranbidence level wend 2 mminuoiam 2Gl-day r_||_‘-|:-:1.'nr.-|.|;:'r,:|n peciad i Yall
caleulacen. 1o additien. K51 comjsules its macket and posioon cisk bgr all equity peatis. 1f
ADY, I Conjunctism with ¢he Rask Bascd Capiral Adequacy watie tequige) to be maeiained,
Matket and poaibon eisk cegurement is calowlzeed gz position cisk [facrol walijdied by
toath, to-market Falue secuney

¥4 Credir Risk

Credit msk a5 the zisk that the counterpanty i transaction eay delani, sod arises from
lending, trade Mnance, 1ecasory, decivatives and ocher 2omvinies oudertd ken by the Crecup.
The Grup toanapes coedit cisk thooogh 1 spstem of policies 2od authpobes thae grvern the
procesees aned peaclices af all crzdit-onginating and Lamrowang reldoaship managemee
LnLLE.

I
The Credie and SGroop Fusk Dovisin (CGREDY of CRISME 5044 5E:I1ILJI IO E ML L
im) i eylilishing msk cuncentanon Lowes an e purtfolic leeel; and <50 in e conbnuows
menirgaring af (e agig | cpedit Gek portéebo fron de persprecnive of Jhese mits aod other
risk macagement chiecrves. The Credit Management Civoup (3403 anehe athar hand, iz
cespunsible Jor (3] the development of credar palicies velaiing o aceolant management;
(B the Arancal evaluatican aead ered ngk aung of borrowers: and, {0y asset quality 1eview.

Ar the indneadngd borrowes lave], rprsnce to coedit ok o menased win adhorence e a see of
pobcies, the s notable fearuees of winch, o this conex ate: [a) copdit approviog
authoniy, except as noted below, is not eaercised by a singlz ind:vidual but cather, throosh o
hierarchy of imits iz effecuvely zrercised collecawely, (b busineas n:r.n:h:r marages have
Limited approval suthoeity anly for credit exposure related e deposie-rzking rperannns o the
fraren of bills purchase, seceprace of second endossed checks and 1:7) loan acoengnondarons;
(c) an independent credit sk assesemert by the CMG of large cocpemte and moddle -nacket
bormoweers, summarized into 4 bocoower nick catiny, s acovidal as inplan to the crelin

decizion making process;, and, () bomoact coodi woalyas s peefoods an ongimaooa and ar

least annuzalty therealter.
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Impaimment provisioos are recopouzed boc lusaes that ave beco incwréed ar e cnd of e

cepoeing ethimd. Siprrficant chargres in the sconomy, Grig pactcwaz|ilusioy segmens )

FEPIESENE 3 COncEutTALo i e ':rL:-I.I.'FI’5 financial naieurne ot ]'_u;_r|_1__|'|_;||| veoald result in hogses

that ate differenr from those provoded Mor at che end ol cadl seportop perial. Manapeomoar,
[:!“:l.'{' b, carefully inonaeors the cihannges sl adjoses e Crraup’s expEesier by such oredn

tivk, oy NECEsIATY. |

Loans and receivables, regaidless if the accounts have L fuliy paid,|extendded or renewsed in
subsequent year or period, 2ie subjected to evaluation tor possible loskes. The Pareat
Crrnpany vses it 1oceroal erecdit osk rating syseem JTORRS) vo desernane aoy svidence of
uiprarment. The rating systeim clasifies peofowmag accounts {ro aisca]:_- ul AAA mdicabng
an exbicinely stoog capacity of the comate rpanty to meer Dmucial comomutmens dowe oo i
rabngs lower tha COC drmnstianng weahaess jo dlw counterparne™s economoic and Eoancial
conditen i rowin lead to pavoicas defodt on Boancial commummenis. Past due accouss,
wcepunts Wentbed Lor phase-oul and those thar exhibit dhe chazwc et ot classfied Loans
shall be zishk-raled tollowiig the guidelines on credir classificarion per PSP Manual of
Tegulaoens for Daunks, i, Fapecially Menbened, Sabeiaodard, Dieolful o 1oss.

Croly impaited aceuunts will significant amount ave sulvjoer s pecifit impaizment test.
Impaiied ageowenls pefer to those accownts which wire mtel BRI ger [bwer chaw U004 aned
accoets tated as Bspecially Meaooned, Subs padard, Donbefid and Less. Sigasfiean
amount i at least POUS for sales comtract cecervables and PSS 2ll iodher Juan and
tevesvable accounts,

Io the process of applying the Pavent Compaoy™ ICHRES in |‘||*I:e7l,r|j_|_'|il15 Ui anens f
npaiteen] cnindived vally siemficane swems of Juars acod seceivables, Lh: Patent Conpaoy
apalyaes the credil guality of the boroaer: and counecrpacnes :JnuuT a st of Cobecia and
raruy, scale classilicd e the follpaing:

—Faih Barivg: Eabog mMMT- ——
A Excremely sirsng cypucing 7 maer Apdpsikl comanitnesn s

AuhT Very stoang capacy fo meed bBinaocs ] commicmen:s

AT Srbrony copatity o meel inaneial comackments, hot
somewhal susceptilile troadverse eranomi coamfinorg ard

Lhungez- N circumsbines

TTE* Adequars capugity i mest fnanyial  oraginens. e oo
sabipec b adwgrne ecgaznie coodiignsy

By Les wvdusralile i thie noic-iccon Bur oy nosgu sneong
l..l|h'-|.'l.|..'li|l|_il.'h EQ) Hd vrearc |||:;i|:-f'-.:-|I |-I||:|r||, ::|:| :|:||,| T LILE IS

criraditinn:

E' i"h|_|_||_|: ul,.lll"l;|u.|,:|l: Iu nfkﬂlff |'|u:-j|'|t$-,_ ﬁl‘l:l.,"ll\.'u.l gl
erovaink chndwwns bt currsnlly nas The capacike o meel
fimancial comeru Enencs !

CCC amd belaaT oL AL ik of loss #r the momens ard the botcawer las the
Tmancal] rApkIcaty £omee! ik nhIJ_E;.m-::-m Iul s CRpELTe
sivarse husines: | dunancial or ceonomue comdioans Las weyemsed
it and, vnless presea reads gz aseercan, could eveatually lead
I losses.

|
Lspeviatly Mequcard ITas [autenhial weaknesses that tleseove mu |u|-;v:|:|.c1|l': chone

wircytiof wnd i el ez eesred, theae wedkneases sy o Ffecr the

3= el o gl Jondnn.
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Fubsrangdag) Iav= well-de Dued weakness s, thar iy oo edize
Lepay et epuclacscn in Cull, eLber i eespeen of sl laraniess,
ash ow v Dnanciol posidun, which giay inclode sdverse trends
2z Uevelopmens that atfecr willingress o scpaymenr akalite od
e Lorrmeer. [

Clomalatbul Lerans amd cocdit accomnwaditinns char e chibi] moge seusre
weaknesses than rhase clossilied ps " Substendard”. whoss
vharsflenstes on e basis o caneonly kidevn B, condinans
aod valuer rrvke collacrint or L'-l_]'|.l'_1_'-l.|1|.l|'. thl:.' improlal:le

Lapcs Lowns coziercd alaclwisly nenalle=eble o vio rlebees

* Briznps frove (24 o SO0 o ssdidited i o e [ ) de” ooy 14 FET o PO rrArDor i wutten S ot
wrMgarser,

The Foregoing [CRRS is exrablshed by the Pascat Compaay o cumgnibnce with s writh
reference to the cred ngk ratog encthiodalogy wied by Siandard & Pope's (580 m
mezauting the creditwnoaluness of an andividual Lelt issae ik iz s perterang oo cureent
in srarws. The disk raoags determined by ihe Parent Cornpany For s prethclo of lozns and
recervables at a privo review date is updated to considel the possible shuft L the economy ot
business enyieonment of circupnstaiess abecting rhe jodusioy and the ey o boorover, L
parbculze. Accardingly, a penasdic assessanent of gredic qualicy wiy impprove the Loarrgwer's
ratuing Lot could lead 20 oue or moce ranng dewogeades oecr wie,

1
Credit Rizk Managennent i2visiun {CRMIY of R5E 35, in mora, tasked K medaure, contrpl and
riarge coedit nsk or dhe snaumer luans busivess of RSB choeugh i pecformance of
regubar ovoitong, reporting and recommendation ol cizh mitigaton theascres of the 3¢l
credit ok pustiulia to the Sredic Conioittes and Kisk Comminees, s well as accamplishmear
uf the comesprniding sevieor and develepment of credit podices amd Eudelines no slain
anser quality

For consurace loang, sk aszessment is eckoomed on aa eadivadua] o fower throtgh rhe uge
ot 2 credit applicatan soorecaed for Housig, Avwe and Fersonai Tamang while for Corprate
Jalary Lians, cule-bared coedic crueria o eompany acereditatne anal bhbrroranes svaluation las
been establizhed, The credit applicatien scotecacd makes uze of custenner, loan a1d caplliteral
<harartensncs which huve been assizned weigho hased oo ther predicve puwer in
deteranning the propensity of an acgonst e defzult o mainte @ satsGutary creds
perfeomance. Credic decisicas are bazed on recacnmencec score cut-ifts.

Asset quality f RET i munitoeed throwgh a ecpolar pornidiolia pe rfuzmance eeview sl ng
TURIOMET Sepuentativn snd lpan poncentration nsk asseasiocnt 1o idendfy sources of tisk ained
to determine nsk itigalion oo segments that dive delinguency ac mmamfests trigpers for
defaule Likewnsie, close mnamiaring andd review of industzy pesfotnsuee, sounomic changes
andd reehe L connditons that may affect che consumer eans busmes: is alse: taken int
tumstlerateon to establish 2 hobstic ick asses senend feodeas,
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4.4 Bxposure o Orechi sk

The faryiog amusint of Aol cear oo tecopulacd i the Baccrat statements, negor any
allowcanc s Loe losse:, which epecsenls the maxemuem cxfrunure e Cregin wek, willioul ca L“.p-
mre accizunk the valoe of any collatersd oboawed, ws of Deoembes 31 |;t:-”-:l".'-.'
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COUnteIparties a1 e iukabic lauks with higlh qualicy external ciedir rgimes.
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4.2 Colfateral Held g5 Secorty and (iher Credst Snftan CEMICEHE S

The Creup holds collateral igiinst loans and advances tcustomerns i the o of

beld-our depasits, roul extae Iourrtgage, starallyy lercees oFf credit or bank HUaTAALY,
Fovernment puaranty, clailel moctgage, asugnment of Lecetrables, pledpe ol reaily securiles,
personal ond coepucate guacanty and uther foons of secuelly. Esumuies of G valys ase
based o the value of caliatera? assessed ut the e uF bonawing and'are generally updated

angally.

Generally, collateea] is oot held pver loanz gnd advarcrs
securities aee held 25 part of revece epurchase and
{vllateral s oot ws sally held agamst tradiog erd invesment SECUEILIY,

was held as of December 21, 2007 aael 20714,

An esmraie af the tair vaive of sillateral aud 1other securnily enhanceon
lesan poetfelis ax of December 31, 2 7 and 2006 is shown helrw

.‘Lg-ains.: I.I:i.le"«l'_i_lei]H:.l' ji:lllJ:d,i_D.'_d
Heal property
Chatrels

Aot classified accounts bor ot irmpatred

t.eal propeoey
izhatbels
Equity secitrigies
Cithers,
Agaminst peither past due nor Irviprai o]
Real property
Z lattel
1ledd=am I_lt‘l‘_u’_'lﬁi["_-'\-
Crehets

Apminat individually impaees]
Real property
Chities

Aguinsl clossafied accaunes ot not impared

Rezl prupeor
Faqury seninges
f_:]::'LrIr,]s
{hhues
Agrinst oeither past due nat npaired
Real propeery
Hli:d-cmit -:‘I-ﬂpn::l:s
Crther:

e Other Janks, sxcept whan

od ner zuch collateral

Securies B rwjrt_l alfanerments.
n

i
1ir.nt.-' held apainat the

_sturup

_ Imi e
r 1,164 [* L2
Ztr i
54,256 54014
lU',';JﬁE 1,285
5,351 55
i 1,027

.F

'.]‘EJJEI-IE 2,504
55,0 EL Y
15,79 1¢ 37
Zﬂ.f”l 21 08

[ T

2017 2016
r LIsd P 12
_ E
42,5% 54,047
5,356 ah
1,434 Z5m%
77T} 3K7
16,77 12,5000
14,330 15,525
2105 RN
N 11203 1/ UM T
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4.0 Cuncentrations of Credie Risk

1
redit msk conornlation in tie conte of bavkime senecally denoces B risk arizipr foont 2o
uneven distribuacen uf countee:ntias 10 crelit or 0 any other |.r|.|.-=j|1i:$i eelaiunshaps, ar from
A concentralion in busicess sectorn or peoptaphic regienn s whitch by caprabile of SrneTanng
losies Jacge eouuph b [sopacdize an mstiabon's soalvercy ;
The Lerowp menitars comccntrations of credit risk iy sector Ar inalgsas ul concantialons of
credit tizk of the loan portfole a1 the e of [he reportinge peried] 15 shiarn g Mode 1101

Jee the course wl 1he Graus implementatiog of 104 AR free iWore 5.2) e aduay 2
quantlication of credit Osk cancentration Fiallerwing frarruconccks prescribed by soe of the
oy advanced European cenncal anks as well as extalias hed concenioalivn nwies  Dsing
sCeton alistobubien ax 2 taal. the © oy pertorens a stonightlorwind oppbeavon of the
Flectindahl-Hirsheao lealer (MTHI) 1 determine 11s ¢ sistence of credit zisk funLEnkTa b,
The Creoup supplement: 1his methenlislogy with the use of the Cevmipre henzive oncentra bion
Index (CCT to oenitor and avalyze pame concenietion. |

I
The Crroup, however, recagmzes ehe inhecent Livunations of the ase of TH L acl CCI e
Assess credit cancenrramon cisk. To augment this meazoce and to al;-lnl-r:q:-riar:h- Leddriapre sl
tsk, the {rroup performs an o depth analyas of irs lacge bunsewing groups T ensure the
independence af this prucess, the rvicw ang analyae: arc fone in the cooe s of RO
e tings.

444 Credre Rivk Stress Texsr

To#nhance the assesament of ceedit csk, the Group silopred a ceedin oxh steess esbag
{eemework welng rbeak-even sale. and cash faw deba cervice to detcomine @ borrower
vulnerabiliny and utimately tigract o che Gy apilal adequacy. The Pacent i pany
adeets a puct fubio coedic nsh, westing framework that takes 190 consedecation the causal
teltunstups amang indostoy seckars. -

45 Operarionnt Rick

Uperatioaal rizky sre osks avisiog from the potennst inadeuate infarmation sy rems and
FFSICI, upnraluns Of transacouns | probiems (relaoog o service oo priche delivery,
Lrecaclies i internal contrals, frawl, o unforeseen eatastiophes that sy tesult in upexmecry
loss. Operational dsks inelode the risk of loss 2nsing from vasiow; tvpes of human
techrucal erecr, sertement or paynwents [aduces, business, Ut upo, admindsieative g lesgeal
risks, 2ol the Gsk ansing froan aysioros not performuog adeguately.

The Cperanianal Risk Manapement ¢roup (CREMO) szt YN FELIC R Jo kR it
tespoocusilility o undersiend and naeege cpeational sk etposwes aosd 1 cnauce consisent
application of operancnal risk mapapement tools actuss die Crlarup
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The CHMC apphes 3 number of lechniques o efiiccny T s c||:|q|:a.:juml TEEEIEN, I
these ars as follows: ' '

*  Lach majur business e las an embedded vpesational gsk oaoagemens flices who o
#5 & polnt porspn bor e waplementatdon of watioue aperanonal eitk taols The
wpertioml nsk officers weend annuat risk briefings conducred bylthe CRME o keap
them up-to-date will different opemational dsk soes, chails nites dowd Indinkves.

v Wil ORMG's bocten up sebf-assessment process, which s coaducted at leass Aoy,
atear with bugly oisk prrcewal ace highbehted wod eeporred, and conirnl measuses aee
idenafical. The ceswic of said sell.assessment exercise also serves s ane of the LNpUs 1y
identifying specific key risk indiraton (KR1s); i

*  ERIs are ased o monitor the aperational osk proile ul the Sroup and ol each business
wntz, and alewz massygrioent of itpeading |rolilems in a tinely I';a.-:runn-_

= luleenal Toss infoemanon is cillented, reooapted, anod uillizad s mopde apetalonal rigk;
ang,

*  The {JEMG ey ey PI-LH.‘IUEZ arnd UFEtﬂljl1g I'nﬂl'll.l-'ils., puﬁ-::jc:», E.ln.lccdl.irr.;:. and i;i_n:l_'daj_ﬁ,
thus slhewdng the sobedding of devired cperanosal sk mwowgement prastices n ail
busmiess Lo

Uperational Bisk Management, as ic relares 6o capuat alequacy, iz curressly uoder Rage
Indicator Approach jsce More 3 2).

The {.;ﬂ'.:ll.!]:I has alze -:.‘I'.'.'I-'tjl'_'lpi:l.‘! a Busloesy ':.l_:-nl;||_':|,|i|;:|.' TPlan {Hl: r-'] Bazed 1r acverl grisis
sevedy levets which 1s tesred at lesst annuelly and opdated o any nuajor changes in systems
and prrocolutes. Centnal ke the Group’s BUR is o disaster recovery plan w addecss the
combionued Tupctivoing of systems, recovery of coilizal data, and contmgency pracesog
requarcanenrs io the event of o disaster

4.5.f Reposarmon Kisk

Reputation cisk iv 1 cisk to eacnings or caputal ansng Broan ngralve pullic gpinien. 1l
affects the Growps abilimy oo establisl new celativmz hips vr servicey. of o conmnue seeviong
chisting relatonshops. This sk can expose the Group to Lidgadon, Grfazwal less, or danage
by s reputation. Reputabon tisk atises whenever techoology-bused banking products,
services, delivety channés, or processes may penerate adwerse piehlic guueaicre socl dhar

setously abiects the Grreup's rarmngs o impaire its capital. Thas rizk Iz present i1 acHvLhges
|

auch ay asser paagesent aned ropolayety complamee.

The Croup adupred i repmatatng cisk oooitoring sk ceperiop unewosk e manage public
e, Cenntel na rhe said Frameseark is rbne coearior ol the ROCHAC ™Mbl Be ladicons
Commiller. cluueed by the head of e Poreore Company™s Public oo Sledia Relations
CHwisaion. T

1
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4.5.2 Legral Risk and Kegulseory Rivk Managemrent

{.banges L Jawe and regndations and fiscal prabicies coulil advetsaty 2401 1he Greup's
Aperatans and tnancial wparting Tosddinoa, the G o Fiees legal bsks in e loring i
righis under 1 loan aptecanenty, sucl s f'-:.-n:n:lnsing afb cullaters) Lepal cek i hagher 1w
arcas of busingzs wlhiare the law semams vores ped by the couees. The Guoup cses a lepal
it"-r!{fw process as the privnary contodl mechaci:m for legal nisk. Sucle a legal teview aims e
wenby and vahdate the exisrenge, Eeowneness and due execoton of legmal Jdocumens, snd
veify the capaciry and authurity of counterparties and cusiomess 1 eriee ko M nsag ey

[ wdditian, the Group seeks to rummize i legzal risk be nsing eoomgent lepal dicumesrtauon,
IMiewsio g £2 Ml cequireenents desigond ta ensure g transantions aod praperly authoozed,
and cunzulting internal ad eaternal degul advisaors, i

Brgulatory sk refers ra the potenbal for the Leowp o suflee fiaaacelluss due o changes in
the Laws ur monerary, tax or other porenuniental repulanoey of the cogney, The Cirpun™s
Complanees Propran, the desipn and inplementaton of wlicl js 1w:11;=;::|] amnl coordimared
b the Compliance Officer, 15 the primacy contoul process fuc reprolatony tisk jssoes. The
Lomaliance Qiffice is conunived t safeguand the isegcity ol the Gro Lip by mawntaicing a
fugh level «F cepulatocy complianee. [tis responsille Fog cummuuj-;;a:j?g. and diswerminateny
e puies and regulzdoos to all undts, asarssing and sllressing wdeanfi complianme jeopes,
pertorming penodic corapdivnee testicg o ranches and head otfice uTu!t-:, snd reportiog
cartpplance Bndings ta che Andn Commitree and the BOILD,

46 Anu-Mosey Laundesing Conteots

The AMLA or Rt Mo, 9160 was pasaed m Seprember 20T Trwas sobomuently amended by
RA Mo 9194 Ba Mo, 10167, and BA o 10065 m Macch 20, June BM 2 and

February 2013, respecrively. Tagether with the Terbpdsm Financioe Miovendon aud
Aupptesyion Act {LFT) which was passed in [une 2012 by virpwe of B M. TG1G3, thews Fra
provide the cegulatary facneareck for the Philippine Aoo-Muoey La ungleitng and Lezroesr
Vinaneag Preventon eesulanons, I

Uinder the AMLA, a5 amended, ¢l iTIOUR 33 regaitel toosano ©orered 1'ransoe e
Reports (CTRs). CTRzinvalve siugle ransacdons in cash or other eyuvalent menezry
instruments W escess of PR3 witin ooe banking day. The rroup s alyn cequieed b solang
&TFs ta the AMIC in the event than thers aze remscnalle grounds e ldheve ehad aoy
amolnls processed are the proceeds of moncy iundening or teeeorist r:]|“ MEI0E A0S,

]

The AMLA requeres e Carcnp o safe keep, a leiaigr s Lhe accounr ﬂi;iwl all the e Your
Customer {FY 0] docoments involving us ¢bents, includiog official docwments thar ¢sablish
wnd record their oue and [ul idengey. 1o addieicn, rapsactional du-_'mn:ura[: are resquired o be
maintained and stured for five years froin the date of the transacuom 1o cases involnng
closed aucpes, the XY docoimyenrs coeast e cetained for hoee reaks after their closure.
Meavwhile, all cecords of ateounts wath crwrt cases must be preserve] onnl resolved wach

tinabzy.

Chn Jaouary 27, 2001, B0 Caecular Mo 706 [the Cireubar) was noplerented superseding prioe
rules and eegulecions on AMLA, The Circalay igquites the Group e adopt o coumprelzen s
and risk-based Money Lavodering and Tervariar Financing Prevention Unsgecan (MITT
desigaed according o the covered institation’s cresetale sirusture and Gik peofile. L
complianes wath the dik-bhased approach randated by the Cirodlar, gl Group profiles its
clierits based on cheir level of nsk, specifically, Levw, Notonal, or Eligh. These tisk levels have
their carrespoading level of due diligence, sperifically, Reduced, Averuze or Fnhanced  BSP
Clrewlar Ma 70 was later amended iy BSP Circular Mo, Y5
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The CGroup's MLPT 15 1evised anmually o easure dhat its BV soucies and priicdeles, are
upslated. Ulnder the mudeloes, each business una as required vy validdie S rue idenrite of 2
custrmer based un efficizt o ather reliable jden Byung documcors we fecands pooe ta account
opening. Mrecisions to eoter inte a lnsiness teltivnsbip witk o hiph rsk costoner renULce:s
seniee manageinant appreval, and in some cases suel as a pobiocally c.‘lr:]'_-!'.r:: val pezson vea
prvare individual holding & poaninent Prsiton, 3 Group Flead s appraeal s s sacy.

The Crrouip's ©hief Compbawmey Officer, thtoagh the Anti-Maoney Louchdering Division,
merdtars AMLUFT complianes by cond uedings regulae compliance wxntaing ot the head office
and busioess units. Resals of it AM L/CFL acuvities and "—'-"“PU-:‘-!HC'% ERIUTILELITING: Ol
cegulardy repirted to the AMLCaom, Secior Managemenr Comnies apg che BT o ensue
thar ail AMLSUFT mattess ave appropriawely cucalated. !

Ly MG, thee Grbeaup institured celonms aimed or ceinForce s A0 L,.-‘[_'I-TJ' camirels  The
Crrompr siyniBeandly laweeed whe dheesholds for reiiiGences, requited rmore pusing: revaeas
dunng 1he day, and streognbiened the prucess For escalanee, Frand anmd sl transactinns.
In addierun, the Group bas embarked o0 4 cees ngineermoy of £ sertlende s and buginess
cenler operatinns, anil the consolidating and seztopthening of s fraud managecneer
Featsumanzh.

An essential azpectin the provention of mency Tunds tinz, and reeooeist Bnancieg s the
teainioy of Crroup's personnel. 1o e Laer part of 2016 wr the ficst guariee o 2017, the
Liesup conducted 3 gne-lime baok-wide AML Certfcation training o abl 1 employees watl
. - 1 -
Ve axd of ao exreenal AML expeer. Anmual AL tranetngs, classroom pad e learning, ate bey
Fearures of the Group’s cegular teankor program. .
[n addilun 20 the Troup's existing tranzacdin mwnltoeny syitem, he Srroup hes alsu
subscribcd 10 an international warchlist database in 207 to farcher stegrygthen ies CLEECLNY
capabilities har client un-boardng sod rross-border teasac ions I

The: C3roup continuously wsproved conteels sver Muncy Lao ndeuny 15k anal had
knplementzd the necessary enhancements of b vo-buarding proceduces, sk prfing
model, bansaction processing and moatoziog. Correspernding tainings were provided o
equip prmonoel with the necessury skills to peeform the enhanced provedurss. O Judy 31,
ANV, the AML Board {Commrittee was coeated o el on o monthly hagiz and provide
uversight of AML velated activities of the Bank.

CAFTTAL MANAGEMEWNT
St Negwlarary Capriead

The Growp's lend regulater, the BEP, sers andd encniizes the capidal recwiieonzars of i

Croup,

[ irnplemenuog the clserent capital cequirements, the BET requeecs l'|'|4"_(_QI‘-;|}|i1 1 T"*‘“”j” 1
prescribed ratio of quabifpiog cepulatory capatal g togal cish weighiod assets including market
eisk ad apecayonal cish computed based on BAP-prescnbed furmula provided ader s
cercualars.
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I Jamwaaty ]5 ZMF3, the BSP issued Circular Mo, TR, Bare! fT Saafriemtenting Caidtiies oe
Mrmunraer Capital Kegarervener, which provides the impl-:.n.{‘nul:]b guidelines wan the revised
rzsle-baged l;i]:ul:al. adequacy Damcwork pacticulacly on il wiwimum canmal an:l disclosure
requirenicnts [oe universal banks and comenercial banks. as well ax I:|1\-|1:r sahsidrary Lunks and

quasi-lanks, in acoordance wil the Bage] TIF standacds. Civcular Mo, r.y,] 15 e Herve an
January 1, 3114,

The B3P has adopted the Gazel 1T fick-besed capital adegoasy Eramewors effecuve Yanoace 1,
2014, wiuch peruires the Grroup to manstae st all fimes the Eollovwany:

it Comnenoes Beguity Tiee 100211 of an Jease G.0%0 of sk welrhted asos,
{2 er 1 Capmmal o? a2 Teast 7.3% of dak-weglicd azacts;
fe} Crualifping Capital (Tiee 1 plus Toer 2 Capital] of at least 10415 ul ;iah--.v.-n;-jght:d assets:
arnd,
ig] Capital Congeramion Bullet of £ 5% of ek wephted azsers, mmpme:d af
[ETL Capil
Under the relevane provisions of the corcent BSP egulations. the EEyQ L:u:.r:-.i Lainensin
uputllla:ah-:vn far the Tarent Company, RSE, Rizal Micoohank, RERGC {’_.apj_l_.q] ad ROB LFC
15 P200U0, P2 000, 4040, P30 a0 TN, respectively.

Tn computing for the capital adegquacy rauo (CAR), e tegulaney 1.||,.|1:E_i fving capital is
analyzed e 1o Lets which aee; 1) Tier 1 Capital compused of CET and Adilitional Taer |
(AT capital, and, (ii] Tiet 2 Capial, defined as followrs and are *:I.I|.'l|i:i: to ddeducoone: as

defimed in relevant regulations:
fut) oreare Equiaty Teer | Capital mcludes the followding:

[ paid-up cotamon sock;

(i) common stock avidends disiobutable;

jrer) additienal paid-in capital,

fiz} deposik tor common stock subscopoen; :

f eetainel] sareings; ;

Al undivided peolic: i

fwi) other comprehensive income from net unrealized pain: of lesecs on fnancwel aseces
at FVOICT and cumulative formign currency translatinng and,

fevie] oty wkcrest in subsidiary banks whach are leos than W‘]mlyr awed, subpect to
regulaicry conditions.

i) ATL Capatal indhadrs: |
|
{f]  instreroeents At oo men gualify as CETT, bat meet ¢he cotena set vutn Aooes B oof
TAAP Circular 7BI; !
fir}  finanecial babiloes meetng lozs abenrbency regquicernenits st -:rur e frmex Ko IEP
Cizenlar 751, '
{7l Aanaracial |.1:I.|JIJ.I.LI.E‘. Lranng luss alsurlency featuces ar polnt *.:-f' nen-viabildy s sel var
1 Aumea F of B3P Circalar 781,
ffut additienal paid.in capital resolting foom ssoance oF AT 1 capital,
ju)  deposic for cubscoption go AT instiurents, and,
e minoeity interest in subsidiary banks whicl aee less than whelfp-caned, sulbject

Ii::gt_'l]:td}t'}' condibons.
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[l lher & |'_;:|.[!-I['.'|| Lrer luarlae: -

{5 instoumenis issued thar aze oot gualified as Tier 1 capazal buc meen the coite g s
furth in Anoex C ol BET Cicoular 741

frt fBnancial habilites hearg Joss alairthiency fenrures at proint ol non-viabaliog as e o
i Anncx Fof BEP Circula 781,

fer)  deposic fue sulbscption of Ller 2 caperal;

[ appraisal inCrement rescove oo bank premises, as aurhamzed by the Monerey
Buand (ME); '

O peneral Ty logs pmw—mm and,

b rrunerity interest in subsidiaty banks that are Jess than wlmhg,- waers] | ulyjoct <o
regulatory condibicns.

In the caboulation of Risk-bazed Capical Adequacy Eane, vae earal CQualifiong Capal i
l.".'[pl":SEClﬂ 8% & percentipe af Tratal Resk ﬂ"tighttd Assets bared an haak exposures, wheee
Risk Weighted foeets is composed of Ceedir Rk, Marker Rigk ape Operagooal Risk, net of
specilic provisions 1nd ex[wiares covered by coedit mzk mangabon [CRM

Banking hook sxpocires shall be t1sk-weiphted tased oo thicd parky ctedm_- aszessmaent of the
mdivrdual exposure pmven by eligible external coedit in: hkacions and e cuoeee: prending
external credit assessment ore mapped with the cortespomiling rizk wﬂq]-m. Felleraday che
Srandurcized O oedit Rask Weights able as provided under BEL { el u 334,

The Group’s and Farent Company's repalatory capical posmon hased !::-11 rhaz Basel TII
risk-biazed] capital adzgquacy tramework as of December 31, 2007 anc 3014 follow::

; Farent
Lrgup - Company
01T
Ties 1 Capriral
CLET r MM D 40811
ATl 2+ k|
54,520 40,076
Teer 2 Caprtal 13,15 12,4546

Tutal Quabfyusg Caprtal E 5444 B A3.532
Towl Back - Weighted Aussets iy Ade 269 B 347,933

Capiral ratios:
Tutal yualilpmg capual espresed a3 a
prercentage GF oonal osk wegheed asseas 15.46% 18,327
Tier 1 Capiul Raoo 12, 45% 75%
Timal ©ET 1 Rauw 1Z.45% 11-75%
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2Ul B

Tiet 1 Capatal

EEF 1 r 49,54? & 3:"._1'1-5:
Ties 2 Capual TE';E i;gﬁ
Catsi ) uabbying Capiral L woly I L
Testal Rish — Wriphred Assets Lo ZEGHE B g

i
Capital rafos: !

Total qualiiruy capital expressed as s

peresntape of tulal sisk wegdioe? 2ssers Tep Lt L 20,
Trwer 1 Cajuial Rang 13240 | 133,

Total CET 1 Rativ Lz | [RIETT
The foregoizg capital rabes comply with the celated BS1? presenlaek o fices.
2 Imrecoal Capical Adequacy dsyessment and Filtar & Riske— ll?-','r;-_,rf:rcd Assels
I

In January 2099, the BEP issued] Circular Ma. 639 un the TCA AP and Sll_lr.l-: rvisory Revigw
Prowss covenng univera) wod comomerciat banks on a g [wade Basiz. Ad 2 supplemeat
B4 Circular Ne. 538 oo the sk -Based Lapstan Adequacy Veamework, HIAAP sets cut the
tolleraang pemeiples:

fal Bapks must have a [racess for assessiog capital adequacy telative tu: their fizk prisfile,
weeTating envicanmedt, wiul stcategic / busness plans;

it Lhe Bank's ICAAR 15 the eesponability of the 5600, must be propealy docamented aand
approved arul wath policies aad methodologies intepgraiced into banking aneranens;

{¢/ ‘The Baok's 1CAAP should address ather material eisds - Pillac 2 dsks — i sdditon oo
thse covered by Pular 1wl risk measoremear gebodolopies anked o the assessment
af correspumling capital equicement both on 2 busiocs: -2s awua BALY aed witemssed
SCEMIO, :

gl Tl nuoimum CAL presceibeed by the BSP after zocuaerting bor Pellar 1 and ol csks is
retateaed an 10%; and,

fg The Bauk® PCANT document most e sulsroitted to the BSE eury [ammary M oof each
vesr, beginning 2001

The Geoup submitred s st JCAATP trhal docement in |aowa oy 20405 Bubscquent revisivos
v tine belul document werre minde, and likewize subsndtred i Felsruary 2000 and May 2010
following tegulatory eview aod the Groop's owa process colimnueinents. Complementiog
the ICAAT document submissions were dialogues berween e BSP and the Crmoup's
fepresentalyes, the eecend of which rmngplt'ed Jast Muvember 2010 bebareen o BST? [ran]
chaiced by the Dﬂpul‘}' onrernae fox dupervision and Fxamination, n.]d!:hu_'- raetabors of <l
Prrent Company's EXCOM. The Ceranp subiniteed its final ICAAT decwnenr aarlun the
deadline set by the BAP. Henveforth up ta 20M 4, the annual subrssion of an 1CAAR
docurment is due every Tanuary 317 and every March 317 szaning in 2015, as prescsbed by te
RsP
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Thr Group idendfiel the bollstog Mallar 2 dsks as oo cial oo | tione, and
consequendy ser oot methodulogies w quannfy the level of capina] that it et hold.
|

)

i

()

il

~ - - - - I
Credee Resk Comcenracor — e L3rcup has so far linuced its analysis o credit nsk

COnCEntativn asising teore the uneven cectot distdbraton of <he aroup's ceeldn
ckpasures. Aside Erors sing a simpibied applicacon of the | coneentration i
estnated wsing the Comprthensive Concenteation ladesx J001). The capital cliacg s
esimnated iy caloulating the change in the Econcmic Capial [(EG) requirement of e
ceedi puoctfrolics s an etleet oF credit detesiotadican in the lasges i..nl.hl.al:q.' EXpOnULe.

Imirrest Rawe Birk im the Bankeng Book (JREBBE - Ttis the cuorent agd FECspCive negatire
Lmpact o earrings and capial adsing from cetest rate shiles, The Gop estimates
imterest rare fisk o the Banking haok s its BIL-a-1ak, aned nccui-dmglg,- deducts the
same fram regalatery qualifveeg capin]  Stressed TRRIGE is calcalated vy afa|ahyrnug the
highest observed marker werlanlities over 2 deteerinee imeframe . .

ftgurndify Rrek — L'he Sroup esrnates its quecity nsk unsler BAL scenacier using
standard gap anaiysis. Sircssed liquidecy stsk on the other hand assumes 4 tepeal nfa
histiscical Liquidity steess, and cstivnates the impact if the Cooup were to partially detesud
ity depuasits and pargally pay-off by drewing (rom its reserve of |J{Il_‘]L'.i-:'| AREETE.

daferemadwa Techuoizpy Kerk — 1o i the cosnei ol poospec e "-"':EF.':U""': CNE T V-
anizing (rom fadare of 1T systerns and ceallzabion of cylee seierify thoeats Uhe Croowp
stears Vs Tisk as Eorming paic of Operuicoa] Wk |

¢ oetfrufamee Sk — Tt is the current and prospeciie et fmpade on capming and
capual atizing from violation of laws, repulatiens, eihical standacds, and the bke. Fen
Business-as-usual scenatio, the Creoupr estimates compliance fsklchatge P lusigoeal
Enves and renaltics ws the weorst-tase luss determined via o fiegquupy vty analvsis of
each penalty brpe. The resulnng complianee nisk chatge valcalation is kewiae dieectly
deducted frum earningy. .

Jeratsate Basiwess Fisk o« Ty he corcent and prespective nepaue @it gn sinmogs aod
capital arizing frarn advecse business decisions, impropee bapleme nrann, amk Filare o
rerpoad oo induatey chaomges. The Giroup doeats strategic business sk a8 4 caeh-all osh,
and EXPIEEET LES eSUENale 45 4 cap am Loddiriszral TLHl:-‘AN':iHlﬂ:I;‘ﬂ gt pven other aske
and the desired leve] of capiral adequacy. The Croup mandatns that 1he assessment of
steateyric sk 35 embedded o the bodget of the Groop. ©e a:a]'.-:i.ra.l'l unpact theeefoe s
husines= 2= usual care is :lr-e.a-.-]]l' EIFTEHHE(] ioe Fhe armanunt of rsk I:-rr,:q{'{l;r:d b b taken
et b the Borccast vears, Hosaover, thie Crbaup does fecagnia I|:|1: (] TS T
e it wioudd enabile oo pur 2 aambast o the sk oot I]u_'.- gropl ol s i

sErategies, :
Bepwiation Birk — Frorm e adopdon ol thewrstical s, thy Gezp armciulad D5
apjiruach o eeparanca nsk i 2] by adapting instead a reputanon sk monitorng
and rt]:mrr_ing PIOCEES, CUA DI rj]:,r 1-"“." its Pulale: Balarerao: ':'.umtlmtrr.n. The

rrecasurement of reputabion osk under stoess 1 Faided inta dhe Goeap's 2sses seent of

siressed Jgunkitg sk,
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CATEGORIES AND OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL AEEETS; AND FINANCIAL

LIABILITIES

#.d  Lariying Amrounrs aond Pair Falues by Categron:

The follownng table summarizes the cattying amounts aud corceaprading fait valees of those
fipancial assets and bnancial Babiities presented o die slatements of Hpranel PosIfn

Lero g

Fireaco) Arsces
Ar apocized cost:
Cash and cush equivu_=nis
Inestment securines
Laxans and seceralles . ook
Ll asowroes

ar PR,
ALV

Finamoial Liztylioes
Al amortized ek
T pusit balnlines
Tiilh p-'-'l]':'lLllt
Buraly puyabile
Suhocdinated delat
Acorued inuesest
aod arher eapracs

[lther Lialalities

Drepvative finanvial Labiliecs

Fiarncial Argeis
Al amuarbized vk
sl and cash rr.ju.i'.lulrul:s

[inugsimeinr seayinig;
Lurans and meccinbod: - rct
Lther resougoes

ArFyrL
AT

=17

C:rr_l.'l'

2010

'.',:l::'l'_liug

_Agiermd . _Faig Yalug _.11;!_-&,1.1_1_ Fraar v adus

F 10310 P 103,180 P 115395 D 115203
59,078 &6 90 L HGd 4 g
354,305 hd, 205 3IS 452 305,632
1.134 1.L38 H7 _ Pl
16, M2 554,920 478 TR 471410
1.5 1.0 LaLy &0
5 i} 5,363 Ty 547y
L GAMSE P MIAT: P Nrsa B gu s
PoodR4E M SEE41Z D WSSOI B 3T
43,957 43,957 . 37442 EERCE
28,060 A0 HES PR LR
i ek 15,178 G5 247
1,929 5.027 P AnHe 1 55
— a3 . 1125 . SHHG Bhibd
b5, 5654 492 154 435 734 40 95z
483 4531 355 .l
46052 1 d9X8R] L HikLIY ! 2317
Paccot Company
w1z 2015
Catrpuog Careviag

—dpgnon - _Fawr Yalue _ Amewnd . _FarYaler
" B4l T giddr a1 M A
48,141 47,754 a1 4 1595
245,753 265,753 pat i I moav
i I dial 4
W7 515 7 154 jnd 3L 364, Ta0
o553 G h33 171675 17075
JhaAy J Ak EIA AREN]



Frnwnpia] Linbriimes
Abamocbized cosr:
Clepuosid halaliwes
Halls pavible
Bepids prasvalake
subnrdanaved dels:
Accouard racecesr

anrd prhey, 2% e

1 Mther leakilities

Urr.'-'tl'.i'-'l: ﬁl'lll'l".]ll IJIL'II.L‘U.‘.'E

- Fr-

— — .._l-mulﬁmm? !
LT 20104
Carrying {areyinp

- —FairValee, __Jupouot  _Dais Value
P OMREAGT ¥ 285,.4857 P IR ] 1 260, LG
Mo, bt 6 M LI 3715
25 el T3 ANS +1.505 EE N
9,748 15174 Lz 25

1
3R 3, (Wt T 3315
— oo A PR —  nlkMg
FiL 5 b 3350133 S 230
482 o 431 : hT=N] 185
B Be4y L A5 AR T L 2 GG

Bxcept fut investmeant securitiey at smnontzed cost, bonds pavable and subordimared deln
with tair valie diclosed difterenn deon thedt corbeing sincools, management considers that
the Catiplag aciaounls ] 1rlbker himancial aswets and financal hialbilihes 'FIDE:'\_-'\.L'nttI_‘I qbove which
are mocaruzed at amotuzed code, aprprroxirote the Lok wilwes cither beeawse thpse s brpmenks
are short-tecm i nature o the effeor of disceonnng for thoee swad oatics ol e tuo
cos yeat sl roatecial. The da valos wdeonation disclossd focthe Grousa's aod Parent
Company's imvestment secundes ar amortized cost and other onaocial assets aod abddities
measured at fair vilue oo recuroing bacs are deteemined based oo the procedure: and
methodologies discussed i Mete 7.2

g Chlxeidny Flodnclad Axsely aqid Financal Ll

1
The lalleway financial aswet: prescnted in the statermenes of foaocial position ar pross

arounts are eovered oy enfarceable masoer neteng arrangements ard 'simular ArCBgeme Nt

[hefemien T SPI7

leodne ictel nefLivabkes =

Ilgcuas 1beke [rvemn
AT T, ]

“Tradhnz ardd inweclmenl
mrinilma = Mnecaloen:
werunkin al arresioied
Tial

Lirhr s -

G ESELRUETITTHY
1 ey 3, L

Teoans aowl rocs abke: -

Iy abikt e
rulHmEr

Trmbuy; il oA NI
[PE PRI R
mrunibe s dl b
L1 |

flww praminica —
Mangin dypemin

by

11

gy
Gerord amoymty .
seaagmicad in Pcluded Landuuth nud gt Tl e che
L= INATEADE N _ smumdnipal financal peaicon

o Nmame:al Fmncinl Tinb

¥ ¥imy (T

T |
I
n LAcpetl] [
T |
a

I57%) T - rr
5586
[ i1y
17y I . 12
1
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Thee Loolhowing lnancial Habiaes presented inthe seatemenes of Gnancial pasition a gross
smounts are covezed by enforceable raster nertng artangements rmd golar apree menes:
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Tor fancial assers zod financial Gabiities sulject to mntorcealle master nettg agrecments
ot similar arcangements above, each agteement betarcen the Goup and 11 LU L CRAE L ey
allows tor ner setlement of che relevant Snancisl wssels and labilies when botk eleer 10
settle on a net basis. Io the abaenes of such an eleciion, finaocial asseds 1nd Habuiwes wall e
scitded on g g00es baaix, Hirwever, each practy tor the master 1A lEnp apreement ar similar

AR LRk I will livwe thie aprizan by sekde all suchy arisnts a3 aet Bask. 0 Hae evear ol
delauli o the uther patiy.

Fut purpgses of presenting the above intoeimation, the related amiownts nat set off 1o the
statemencs af Maneisl position peetams t: (13 hold-cut deposts which werve o the {roup's
cellateral enhaocement bor certain Leans aned teceivebles; [b) collavemesd bills payable widee
sale and tepurchase agreemcat, and, (o) margin deposio which seree as secuoty for
outsranding fnaacia, marset wansacucns and other babibues, The Gopncial msruments thar
can be set atf are ooly disclosed tir the e of the ameunts al e {rruup’s obligations ro
CuCLl G PAraes, :

FAIK YALUE MEASITREMENT AND THSCLOSLEES :

o1 Fair Value Hierarchy

Inacrardance with PFRS 13, Far Fafve Measnrewens, che fae valur of Goancia, fssets a0d
Oinancial abifities and aoo-fnancal assets owhich are measosed ar lair value oo o3 cecuriing o
N tecutring sis and those acaers and Labalides not messured ac fawe value boat B which
tair value iv dsclosed in accordance with oet relevant PFRS, are caregorized ing rleey;
levely Lasel an the sigmificance of ies el ro measoze the fair valoe.

The faiz value luerarchy has the Dollowuge Levels:

* Levei : quoted peices Sunadjusied’ in active markets for identical azseis pr Lalalioes
thaet an enlily van access at the measurement date;

#  Level 20 aapats ather than quoted prices included wathin Level 1thar ace apseraalile (o
the asser e ahaliy, citber alivecily {ie. ax poces) or fadicecdy (Le., desved Eroen prices),
and, :

» Lzwe] 3- inputs for che asset or Lability thae ate oot based e olservally macker data
{ungbsr.nr: k= |nF-|_|.r5:|

The level withijn wluel she asse ot Lanlig is closifed is dewerodned Bised cn e loacest
Jewe] af Higllil_ll,'ﬂl"ll inpauar ren the Gaie walue meagtemenr, .

For putposes af Jelegruntng the marker value ac Lesel 1, a market 15 separded as acrivee (6
quated prices are readily and cegularly available from an exchange, dealer, brcher, infusicy
group, pridng service, of mgulatory apency, and those prices represeng actial and regularly
orourdny markel Thesackons on 2 1S length bases. )

'
Fuar wovestanents wihach die not have quoted mzker price, the fain valog s detecmined By osiog
penerally acceptabie priciny masdels and valuaton techoigues se by refercage o fhe cutren
macket walue of anocher tnatmement wrhich 1y :-:ul:s[.’ln[i.’lll}' rhe same atres F:ak’lnt_{ IR ACCH I
the related credit osk of cownterparties, on ie caloalated based oo the !i'I:FII:L'U.'.d cash flows of
the underying nez asset base of the (nstmment
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When e Crrooup wees valuauon technbue, it maatndees the ase of ubearvible macker duts
where 1cis availalde sol rely as hede as possble on entiy specific cstmares. Fowever, areas
such as credit tisk (both own and covnecparty), valatlioe: and crreelatons bequire
managcien Lo make estimares. T7all significant mpwre teguired to deteremine the %ir value
F:If 10 nscrmenl ace obsenvable, the instrument is ioclugled 10 Leve] 25 Oihe panse, it 35
inclucled o Level 3. Changes in assumptions could alsa affect the cepbored faie value wf e
hnanenal imstrumentz. The Cenup uses judiment e selest g vareery ubvalualion techniques
and to reake assumpdons that wrc ramgly hased on marael conditions exisung a1 the end of
racly reporting e . '

7.2 Fiaanciaf Insmrumenes Measured 20 Fair Valire
The table Lelow shovars the B value ieratcly wf the Geoap® clazecs of Ananaal assers and

flnancial liabilges aoeazured at fair value io che statemseos of Aoancial Pocition o a rLeurang
basiz as of December 11, 20107 and 2014,

.. Upap . -
——hisll  _ Lawell - Lgrel 3 ; Toul
HIIT:
Fempovisl assco
u F¥WPL.: .
Cansnnmnl H
LAl ] r 4. 1N I . I . 3 ERL ]
Lavgirml, 4 |
wiunin: 1.4 . . 1.
FCy aky wrooriiicd ra1 q4L ' pra]
I ezinaling: mare o Lt —_— ... . L
1
L RS 11FHI a1 ' T.an
Ml im| dikcth
ul FYMCT -
Fyjudp wxunliva R 111 ——— Jar L.T-1 21
T2 Resawices
al Fam Walue I 11 L LIm L 1233 | L AL
Deivklive labilies  F B B 1k E ; I a3
DHE: i
I el el :
VT :
e .
AL b I+ H I " . L 143>
Lo s
YRS (TR i ald
Japitr wrnnps, H ] - 1kn i 1305
i acrer aamein 1l [ I . 117
1AM 1147 FCT T
Fanancual 3
al VLR - :
Ay wrasiige .- EAEL] U2 L.7id —— 34Tt
lakd Bamdiunoes
o Jigin Wahiz L 2y T (IR, i el Lt ALY |

L ny g v bl L . L 13 L . I! 1.7
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Frmarcinl veacin
wt FYPL;
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Caigeieabe thds )
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-
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BTUMLHE 418 . LD
| ApHEy woTie: 1 - ki AHE
Ik rivalnT =orre . i L147 B . LITE
15842 1147 TR 170175
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Drescaibed below are the iaformnadon alsout ki the fair valoes of e Geoop's classes of
financial arsets and financial Labilites were Setemmined.

fo) Crovermoat owad Compurate el Sevimnes

‘I'he Fair valoe af the SGroup's gevernment secuarities and corpe rate paper cateporzed
witlo Lewel 1 1% L rermmined Ll.i:t'.rll].' Laaizaee] rara |1-|J.h'.'i.:~|::.t:d. -I":]I.:Iﬁlrli_ﬂl |:-r.il:‘i|::e-: mwiiluhle Femvhe
i:li:cl.‘.[l:iml; E_l‘lﬂl‘ll;i.tl -:_]H.I:u :cr.n':il:_:t:: 111r_:ll.-'l|lt|::_< which had ey based amn ikles -_]umed 134 :|.1;I:|.|.'.|.|.'|:|r
dealt in an acdve macket at the eouk ol vach of the sepoenog (aeood. L el obece band,
government secutitiss with Gt valuc eancgoied within Level 2 deterntined bazed on the
paces of benchroath guvermoon secuiives wiwch are al:o quoted Uvan active market or

bond exchange {i =, TOIEx]. |

The Fap value gt che Group's gowernment serorities careoeized |J:Ié|l.']cl' lavel 2 ot the
hicracchy e esturmared and deteained based on prcing micclel developed by applang
benchmack pricue cutves which ave derived uang the vield of beachomack secury with
sitvulat bovanerities {0 e, poernment bonds arnotes]. foapplyiog fitis 0TS
methadolegy, the vield ol the undeslying secuntes is interpulated Getween the bserrahle
vaelds 10 coasisler duy gaps in the matunines of the beachmuck scounues wsed o develop
a benchmark cunee.
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it} Equile Neasetities

The fare vihies of egouty secuntes classitiod as Fnaocial assces at FYEL and 5040 0. T
Drecember 31,2017 and 2116 were valued hagel on taeir raachet [rrices quotel in the FEE.
at the ead Gf each reporung perod; heace, categoized witljy Level |

Lovel 2 catcgary inclodes the Group's invesoments in propocrary club shares us theic
PHiees age not denvend fram a matker corsidecsd a5 2o ive Jue to lack of trading activitirs
ampng ararket pamcipranis gt the 2nd of each CEPLULLLG prerio.

For equity secunities which az= oot foaded L 3n ackive markey wod cadey poiged witlun
Level 3, their Farr vilue o deteemined chimugh she ne asset valar or a nacher- Lased
approach valuauon techuigue {price-to-beck value method) wsiog cuccent macker alues
uf romparabie Bsred entibes, The price-tp-baok value ciehial pses che P -Tor-laesk
tatin af comparable bauwal entities as mulogsle m deternining ke it valae of the Limnp™s
squity scsurities adpusied by @ verliin valoawon discount. L he pecs-o-baok ratie peed Ly
the Crroup in whe Gair vabue measorement ol its level 3 equuey secumbns clasofied as
ferumcial assets ol LWL as o Trecember 31, 2007 aned 26 ra nges [tem 05761 Lo
221 eod from 746 1 4 27971 respeccively.

Inrcreace or dectsage 1 the price-to-booh tugn and oet asser valug }.»-L:-ul-d esult in bighes
vt lorarer faiz wabuesy, all else equal.

!
A recomcilinlion of the cacryung s of level 3 equity secuciiesd st the bugoing st
eod af I007 and 200146 12 <lwan kel

—_ G
Financial Financial
AREEIs a1 Assels gl
FYQ! FYPL Lotal
2T :
Balance at beginning of pear F 1744 P S04 T 2350
Fait value losses v AC1N . I 53T iy
Dalance af #nd ol wear ) L W2 [ I L 243 P 2253
AR o5
Baance ar beponmg ol pear r A [ T r 337
Additons 1545 - ) LE4S
Fair walue pain;: [locees) { 251) 21 5
Tmnsker ta devei | { Z015 _{ 215y
Balance at wnd of year E 1794 1 Shelr . 230
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Financial Financial :
Axgets i Axgeis gt
FVoc] -YerL Trpial
2017
Balenor at beginoung ool year F L5153 F S [ 2,10
Fair value Jussen [ it ) A3 1y
Balunce at end of yeat E_ 1481 E Ml L A R
2010 .
Balance al leginming of year T 2145 0 e 2,512
Falz value Ea_ina 1,345 2 1,004
TranxFer ta level | [ el 53] i 205
Balunoe a3 end of year I Lals L ":-ﬂﬁ E 2101

The wansier to level T P16 pervams v a crrtain equiny investtuiol 1o en entity which
shares of stock wese pubiely hsiml in the PSE o S overnber 20146, There wete nz
trafisbecs Lebwren the level:s of the faie value aeracchy [or the peac eoded Tiocember 310
2MT.

Crerimafive Ariets amd Liebiier

The tair vaiue ol the Grroup's dedivative assets calegarries] within Level 1 s detormined
directly based on published price cuetabon available For an identical instmment in ao
acuve rmacker at the mnd of cach nf the Reprstling prricd

i2n the other hand, the faic values ol certan decivasdve Anancial assets aud Dabilues
caregorized within Lével 2 were determined through valuaoo s hoigoes using ner
present valae computation which makes uee of the soreams ol casle flows related o the
dereaimees bnancial veihoiren s sach ae inteee sk pate s pi a0d Curtenay s aap

7.3 Fimancral fnseromienss Meds vrod ar Arpresced Coxe for Bich Fair Vadue is

Fisclowed

The table Lelow summanzes the fair value hiezarchy of the Cronp™s sl Papent Compang's
finzocial assets and financial labuiges swhich ape oot mueszaeed ar lare value in the aacements

of Bnancial positien kg for which B vatue s diselosed,

Crip
Lol Laxel 2 Level } Tpeal
T
Frmameral Ly

< =h amd utlier

Caadl 1l Pe I 14061 7 - 7 . 1" [EN A
12 Enom [l ELILHE RLAL |
I’y fmim

nthie hankr 1% Had . I'~HIH
1.0arck eurbng I ey ke

nywrchaw apnymenl 2Rl 'k hil
Imgmmare uowilicn

1l anninkazd ezl AL . . R LU
Laraim ned

L L [T ER T WM hEd 1At
1Mker mmuzie> Ll LI
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The fullowing are tlie methods weed Lo adelermning the fuir valoe of Onancisl assets anal
finacntial Juabilivies not preseared in e sratameniz ol finencial posicon st e Tar ealoey

jai 12w o HYM and Utlee Bomks . med Loves dod KeeWmibles STetfay frazr tlizeras Eeturnifase

i

sLorvesrnl

Crue from BaP pertains to deposits made by the Bank to the B2 foc clraog il rescoes
requirements, gvermirht and tom depost Beeilitses, while Juans and meceivilees stsio
lromm ceverse repnec hase apreement peeain to loans aod recervables from BSF ansing
(orm c:-w;mighr lending fram excess bquidity, D from ather bankes Incledes 1eme 1o
the cowrse of collection. The fair value of loating rate placeracnts and evereln depusils
i5 their carrying senownt. The estmated fur value of hxed incerest-heaong depresits is
based on the discounted cash floaws wsing prevailing meney matket mselest rates fear debt
wach stmilar credit dsk and remmining matahey, whaeh far shore-teem deooss
appivaimate the nominal vajug.

dmpesmoremt Secrrveies s =larorsicaid Cogd

The fair value of investment securiies at anorozed cost s deterrmioed Ly clirges eelerice
L prublished price quated iroan actve marker for caded secamties

Deguriir Licbiltiies wend Darenengs

The sstimated Far value of depusis is the unount repayable on demand. The estimated
Fair value of long tetm ficed interest-beadng deposits and ocher borrawergs withot
quuted miarker prece s based oo discoungd cash Bows using Interest rdes boar oo debits
with similar eermaining ey, The fir value of bowds paypable and subordinated Jdeka
t2 computed Lused anthe averape of published ask and bid poces.
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Lrue oo et clectl durabuse, the cazrying amoonts of other rescurdes ami habilteg in che
staternect: af Ananrial position are consdered w be teasanalle agproximaticon of thew
[aar valoes '

o Fur Valiee DHsclosures foc fnvestareone Fropesties Carefed ar Qo

The tptal estimnated fir valoes of the investment propertes amuu:ﬂcdilu P 00wl M4 TIH)
0 e Cizoup™s imaacil srarement: and 6107 aped PS_F0Y 0 the [-"a:i:lnl: Cr_‘.n‘_.r}nn}l’g Anancial
sbd by ls wds ol December 31, 2017 and 20145, r{.FF-:I;I‘_I"E"-t‘J}' -:sq::: pfat L 5'[4.3}. I'he Far value
hieracchy of these propeeties as of December 31, 2017 and HH G 15 camgoneed as Level 5

The {air values of ihe Group's and Pareit Company's inveibmenl properies were desernined
bared on the follswiog appuadches: :

i} Fadr iher Seleainenmment for Lorn :
The Level 3 faer volue of fand was Serreed using the obserrable cecont prices of the

e ference properties 2ol weee sdjuseed for ditferences in key :nttrihultr:s such o property
kize, zondng and accessibality The moet significant snpul inre ihis vpluaben ap):eaach s the
price per squade meter; hence, the ligher the poce per square meter, Lthe Tugher vhe fair
walue of the propertie:.

(B Lude Vet Aeurrsrensens jor Bandirmgs

Tl Leved 3 fair walue of the buddings was dotertodned wsing e cogt approach chat e flects
the cost to @ market pazbeapanl W cons!bacl an asset of comparablepuzage, constnacton
standucds, design and tayour, adjusced for sbsolescence. The oore pigruleat Dnjauts gsed
in rh: valuation include direct and iodireut costs of consoracden sudh as but not mited o,
labor and cantrusior's prefin, matenal: and cquipment, surveying andd el cisls,
electnncty and utility costs, amchiteetural and enpreecnnp fee:, insurance and legal [ees.
These inputs were deeved from vanows suppliers and contraciors ques, price catalogues,
and constucnon pacs indices. Under his approach, ugher esumaeed costs used in the
walwation will resull jo luglere fus valoe of the propertis:.

These bas been no changr 1o the valuodon techmquer ducing e v

SHGMEMNT INFOREMATION .
&1  Business Sepmaenis

The Gioup’s petating businesses are recugnized and manaped sena r:'s!t-:]g.' 20U redingg o ghe
arature of services provided (pomery segtaentsy aod the dilferenr geographical markess s reed
isecondary segrraenls] with o segmet represeadng # wtrakgge hosmessiunit. The Geoup's
business segments follow: :

1
fal Fetaif - principally laadles the business centers offecing 3 wicle 1aidze of consumes
banking pradicts anl services. Products offered inchude individugl costemec’s deposas,
eredit cards, hime and moctgage leanz, auee, peeional and Iml'.r{:-l'llﬂancr lgmne, siverdrakt
{aculicies, payrment cernittaaces and foreign exchioge teansctions Lk also upsells bank
produsLs [unit invesomens teust [unds {LTTE:), etc.] and I.“:rl.:-!'-h-!-ifli!!i bancassurance
praducts. This segment neludes perticlos of B3I and Rizal Miccobaok.
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I
iy Corporare w [1hiocijually harlles loans and mther credic tacibities and <equozil and murrent
accounts for corporate, sl and medion snerprises and inztibodonal <ustonse..

(1} Terwuwry — rrinuipatly provades moeney marker, mading and oheasory jsecvaces, ay wel] g5 the
management ot rthe Groop's tunding opetadons by ase of ceasnrd bl gove cnonea:
secutitics wid plavernents and acceptance: vath ather backs, ook reageny and

wrholesaie banking, :

i@l Chiters - eimslsls ol ather snhyidianes except ior BSE and Hizal Mickobank alach are
presented s nam ol Rega.

These segments are the bass oo which fhe Gioup pepoics s poomesy secinenl mlocmation,
Crher operances of rhe Ciraup cotopstise e operations ol fnancal control groaps.
Transactions hetween sepments are conducted of estimated moarket rates oo an apn's leogeh
Irasils. .

Septnent revenues and expenses than ale ditecdy atmilrutable oo parucacy bunes: segrnent anmd
thee eclevant porticas of the Gorop’s reveoue s aod capcoees bt can be alocied o
business segment are accondingly seflecued a5 eevenues and expenses of that bushoess
TRATIEDL

For secondary segments, revenues and expenses are attcilote | i geogeea phic sbeds based o
the locanen of the sesounees pteadnein the revenies, 2nd wewhich loeacion the expenses are

Icurced.

There were oo chanpes i thy Gesop's ppoeealing segamens mAlLy an-:j LN
i

8.2  Anglysis of Primzoy Segenend Informadon ;

Primary segment informativn ey Lasiogss sefmear) oo 2 LnL:mﬁdati:-_".i lrasis as of amd for the
peazs ended Dlecember 21, 2017, 20 1 and 2013 Follow: i

Ertail Cograrate . _ Treasury _.!ll.ll.t.ll_ﬁ_' — Tomal

01T i
Aerveanuts .
Beorn egngeeaul cuscromers |
Tretarest tMoHmE T ool P 4,05 P azud [ wie T TR0
Interast expensy [ 4 2600 UL 2L0b11 I Faal N0y LS HE
PFiet inberecl IRERMme 15%% 5. 494 1,257 M 2= 407
Hon animen picfane A M 1,735 : 125 027

19374 . T4ld 257y, LM 11324

lotccapmitnn Tevenues
N L9
Lubezest Znard - ARl T 2,50

Men-rleoreat Iy ome : . : L g

£ R - FLIG 305

Total v 18574 10507 R LM S

Expenpza
li_'rp:ﬂlmg ExpEIIALY

wxgluding d.-:pm‘jnljun -

and agoHarlizalin | 1.1 IR LRl JE0 19,53
Depeeciamon and .

AHCATELLON _ [k, U4 B LEN [21]

Lo Aol Sk LyI1% JLeninic)

5=E|'|1|_-|11 o'qul.'I.';ng T 12 [' .ﬁlu I m P m L I 'HE P w
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Kol  _Curporats Treasury irhecs —_Tougl
i,
Triah tenourcen
and babilitiex
TeAal zravacees r | ETTATY b awndds L 23718 B ' Ml L 401 p0d
Tasel liabilisies I A [ e o [ pd L : it I 1Y
PINS
Herenuer
From £aremal custemers :
Tingecal imcun e n I T 1hipge P Pdan T R MaN
lntersst exp=nze [ EN LGN o 23041 2047 [ 15007
Iet inberes ireome 15,874 L, JEC ' 157 A0
Fatmenslcasal msoanc Lo L2323 LA : LlTa ALY |
1150 O T 240 : bisd e it
Inrerpegmens exvenues ;
linewssr inorme . 2374 ) % 204
et (BT T T T - . qialx 11
s L - 6 Z70]
Toaal reveanues 17,50 AL R/ ET i LB L g
Expenses i
ﬂpi_‘-r:‘n[iﬁg LI 1
excleding depreculnn
Ao aomerzlag L 1> 5&N 1,730 3 1145 LIATT
Dl:l_'l[l:l,iuril'_ll'l acnd _
HETRH L [l a7 EY 1 ik N
11080 LAF _ 4485 1473 |5.552
Bepment apemane, | i
incomE B SHIE I L = B Qs I 15 42
Totas cemrurces and liahil s
Taal ceroprces M . Iy anap [ JEEE D e M - 1 11
Total laliliues S B |- . O L AN e 15 LA - %1111
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[reerese expse e [ Fa AL G [ anmr o Lag: WGt b
Mer meweal inuoe '
(expenss=] 10050 T My L35 1T HER
Hun-nterest incocme 1 RL]) Lasi . LG ! [ Haah
b 5 BrG ] LaHl L JebE 26342
Inecrecgmenn rovcaues !
[ocerest imciutie - 11t & A LTS
onp-ift2resd mume - 3 410 413
.l Hid L350
Tulal cerecnues 143G TS24k 1oH] ! 1234 o0 2
EHP'.'I'II'Z%-
Crperanng rxpenses,
sxcludirg depracishnr
and amorbizabion 114K ERA | 434 1,5%1 1ajikr
Depreciton wnd .
amoctuabicn 07 ] u ! 137 oy
11737 Llid 432 load 1Sty
BERMEE OpeCaung
lnconne E ZHst T Lo I Ll [t ki 1r4iz

Tuta cesuurces and Lalikics
TeHal cesaucees G 741 10 A N 4 -1}
Teaal Labilies B Sl T sflal

J3 FAecoacilizoion

ja 23,041 |;'| 152 F i

Fresented beluw s o reconciliation of the Group’s segmun i.nl'rgrltm:'.n!ﬁ rex the key Boancial
infemmation presented in it conseldated Onancial statements,

T i FHH . k.l ¥
1
Revamuez .
I nial wpmiml e e ¥ 1431 F L1 I b “EE Tl
LCnalhicaied merun; [ EO2T ] | R L 1712,
1 Yinmtnn of diceesLpneznl
sl [ JIH 1 1 LHH% | i . Aot
|
ILeerhiue at eriatel in paahlon b E a1l I e T R Pl ]
Prafic or [owe
“Lugal fcprmunn eqraemp; ww anee r LR I 13,742 I+ 12,022
Linallecaied pavdi [ e8] 0 TEI LN et
Phnciainab ul Bl Begamire
ot e LpEEE =1 ilin)
Comp mut Jreafiz de dugiried
B |1n||F|-: wr D Mﬂ | 1AM L clat
R paun;:ed _
Tiral spmicnt nestinreis F are ey I* [P " T34 11
Linalbiaied vl £1.153 cLa LD
ihmunadsn ol intepm nl
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89 Anahsis of Socondary Segmtest Infarmarion

Secondary wfostoaien [Ly geasgraphical becations) as of and Foz the weazs codeat

December 31, 2007, 2010 and 2005 Dallow:

United Atu siid
i
HIFr: .
Simrememn ud pruficor buss !
Tirnl werizma; I LN . " w1 21212
Tial et Ar ey ; . . dTAH
Bt fiealir {lowih F 1355 E - it LN 4,310
2013: !
Imtrmrne of finapsial .
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Talal nanier p sorddt B | P 43 E FILR 1
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALEMTS '

The camponeints of Cash and Cash Rgwvalones Follow:

Gioup E
LT 204G 247 ! 201G

Cach and ather cash Lierns P M9 P 1517 T 041 L1,¥H}
Duwe fom BT 53 & Ak gZ0 4T 1540 ALLETL
Toue feum wiher banks 17 518 a0 13,364 21,100
Lazan= anzing from

L T e

IE QMg B3l * AR Ti4ds 1,931
Iagerbenk; boans pecviva bles

{=re Mare 1) A1 =1 = A L1t

PR [ 157 [ fid1 I ] 130

Cash coensists primacdy of fuads in the foom of Flubppiee ceeeeney notes aod coins and
includes frerowgn ciurreacics aecepralble wo faom part of the inteenatonalirsenves o e
CGoomp's vanlt and thoese in che possession of tellers, jnclading ATz U:I et 1ash Lierns
inchude cash items other than currency and coine oo haod, suchoas chr_u:k Urawn ran nither
banks o1 wther braaches after the clearing cut-off ume voow the close nlf the vepruiar Tk

hurs.

Du: E;l_'l:_:lrn H-.':':]:" I:EI::I'EsEl:lIs Llse a!;gntgille huh.nr:t ur |j=|1-:_r:-.l| #roacafs |na|:nral:m:|.] '.'l.-'|1|1 r|1{ ESF
[rrirccaeily to paeer reserve tequalrements (see Motes 17 and I7), w sence a: cleating accouns tos
inteclank chaiom and o comply wite erirong ust eegalanons Duoe feom BEP ol

firclwles Overmghe Depust and Tetn Deposit Accownts. The balance, of Chvernight Drepusis
amounied 1o P2017 and PTOHS far the Cieoup and, nil and 1*3,B04 foc'the Parent Company,
in 2017 and 2013, respecuvely, whle Term Deposit Acconat smonnted o F2040 ard P1LES0
for the Group, sod D200 and 1900 for thee Paeor Company as of Depeonbes 30 20T and
2IH6, msp::l:.li.w.::lj.l. Crverngelal depeusel boaes boerest 50 22000 peacs wa 2917, 2006 220d 2015,
while term deposit tocoun® carns inteeest of 5.8%, 335, and 2.5% Lo ZUA7, 2014 and 2415,

renpe vely.
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The baluore of Brue froro Other Banks arrpunt represenes regulat daposits wile ke
folorwing:

I
— Crougp . Poaceoy Cepppupy

2017 2l - ] A 2L
Foeegn Larks P 1 iz o FEM P 23

Lol Baggha 2 Fd +iHal logq [ 11|
1
L1038 B 2o0m P WME Do 24

The breakdown of Due itom Other Banks acoount by curiency i shomn bl

Crroup - EHE.I.IILCLI:IIIPIII_'I'—

| v FAT 007 0 _ zony

Fuccim curcencies T My - »Bs 1780 | 25,501
Phalippici pe L5986 L5l __ = . 83

i
PSR L 23l B 8368 [ Zapue
|

Trrerest rates et annum on these deposits in ather banks cangre. ooty QAGZS Do 1L 21F i
2007, Preeer 41 35549 g LOMYS in 2010, and Brorm S co 03005 1 115

The Group hay luans and receivables From B3I as of Decemlber 51, L7 and 2014 ansing
Eram averoight [ending ferim axsess liguidicy whick earn =ffective intgeest of 3.0H% in brorks
yrams. These boans notmally mawoee within 30 davs. Inteses) income earned fring Liese
{inancial assets 35 prosented under Taterest Tncotoe accounr we rhe satements of Profie o foss,

TRAMMMNG AND INVESTMENT SECU/RITIES
This wvLount is comprsed oft

—Cyrep — . _Xagn Copgrany

AN il [FAS 2L i
Fuwouuil as=ets a7 FY 'L P L N 150re * -ﬁ,5.5:j. 1+ L* n7s
Fonancial wastia ar FLC 5243 BB .'!-,'1»'5:9' 3,735
Investment sacwriries .
w amprhzed cost gUHTY oy X CERET | A4 f42

E LRl [ Aani E 2 G T O 5
M Ringneist Agzets or Feir Valfee Thraugh Frofie or Loss ;

[inancial assers at 'VPL ia composed of the following;

—  fGiowp e Tororioiopany

P, 1) 2Ll 2017 2005
L T Agvaaginics " 4He P 145822 F 4,29 I 1.1, 7%
Carporete dehr sezunioes LT 214 458 454
Eouiy secuniuas EAT4 15 4+ GiY
Liervalave bnancial assets L1 L1rs 1.11% |

[ Lifl [ ey L o Radd L LniE
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Fhe cacrying smovnts of foaswial assers a1 EVPL ate classtie] as follows

— Groug r 1

2014 1] ] — M7 ! S
| T« kl-Eirr- 1 raling F 4848 [ 15,30 [ 4744 p 15,201
L:‘tlwi.lllﬂ asar FYW1L 1,429 L5 LIt iR
Drerivacives L.LL% LI7E . N Y N & 1173
L 9] I Mg LEEY [ 17434

Teeasury Dills and dvler debt secaeties issued by the government and dther private
corpoeations earn snowsl miecest as Follows: .

2047 P L ms
Pz denearuneted 3 13% - B.TE%, Laddha - 12 15 200 - [ a3
Forest cuccency denmming ed 2UEY, - NG 1A% - L Lai% 3 d5% ioi

Equity securoes ace comnpoted of listed shares of seock coaded ai the 512 and sharcs i skl
tesienated as ar FVTL. .
Deovative tastraments used by e Sroup inclode Forvign cowency »luset-tenm foramndz,
Crods-cutrency sorapd, debt warrans anl optiens. Foreign curmency [ueeacds represenr
ot Ls b puarchase Ssell un 2 fues date ac a speafic eoclunge mee Forega cutrency
shere-teton swapr are simulsanenus forengn currency spot 2o forwacd deais with reaor 41 poe
year Debr warrants attached fo lhe bonds and other deht seoutites allowsrs the L','b:mp o
purchase additionsl debt cecunties fram the sume contzacting issuel at the same price and
yiedd a5 the initial purchazed seoudity. Option is a derivative lancial instoament char
specifies 4 comtmes lelwern bwo partics fora fonis Lansaclon on &n oet af 3 refeoence
poOce. !

!
The aggregate contractual of notional amouot of deovave Gnancal ogteumens ansd Ui
aggregative faic values of dedvauve lnoncal assers and Oowovial abalines 05 f Tecember it
buoth i the Greup's ond Facent Company's Anancial staiernents are shown belos.

Elotional Taajr Wa |ibeg
Sy rlan € Apacis | .. Lialclicegs
2HT:
Cwency augpe and lecwads I LM o w11, T qu2
[rcecen cave swaps and futures 26,10 1 7d1 A
Dbt wurmarts G, X500 ! .
¢ Iptions 17s sl I
Corecat refonlt LR L : i
E ixizz [ Lt E 493
2016 |
Corrercy sumps and Jurdand: T LN I (HIER ST Zh
Lrbroest gabe swaps and Futur=s 2340 LG nz
Lol wueran'a [Tl ] 11 I -
I1.:'|:II:||:hn5 3,000 15! =
[ oedut ai=Fa-ais AL i i. :

r LVt L1y L 183
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Dleeralive Tabalitie: amownung to P43 and PIES a5 of Drecenales 51, 2017 and 2010
respectively, ate shown s Destvatyve nancial baleidties a5 pats af Cibee Liabdwes accoune in
the Ttatemeans of Bnancial posteg (vee Mo 22], The sipoficant praction of sueh derirative
biababiies have muatuicy periods of less than a vear.

Other wfoeination abowt the Doe value measuceinent af the Lroup's apd Parent Company s
tinancial assets ar FYPL are presenied in Mo 7.2, ' '

firE Financeinl Assets af Fair Faolue Fhrouph Orker C'a:-'.-:rprc..!.rmu:r'w frecme

Fananrial aazers an FYVOC] 45 of Decernlier 31, 2087 and 20316 1 cnsist of

Cargup —Lawcni Compagy,

— &y e BHT 26
riated Equily acsunlzes F S8y P inis  F LI T 2.0H:
Unquotad FOUbp CeCng Ly L7l L4 1,481 1323
I LW L WSl 1437 L 115

The isroup has designated the above Local eyuity secunities a3 a0 FVOCT hecawse they are
held for Jong-tetn mvestments and are neither bebl for trading oot debimaed as 2t FYIL.
Unguoted equiry soudues pectain to golf clul shares apd investments ij;n nc st ket ble
equiby seourites. '

Inciuded in the carrpng amaane of che Ctoup's Bnancal assets ab v o of
Decembes 3, 2007 and 2010 ace urquirted equity securities with Eue vilue of T'LT10 and
PLT44, tespectively, Jetermined using the ne psset valoe ar a macker-based i rpruash
{ptice-to-book value methody, henoe, categurized under Level 3 of e dmr valuz hirrarchy
(Fee Naote 720

The fair value changes i FVOCT are recopmized 32 a0 adjustieeat 1 wther comprehensive
jncoeme and preseaced in the s1aiements of comprehenarie neaie under ey that will nor
be peclaasifled subgequently to profit or loss (see Mewe 100300 In aq_l-:_lj'r_i-;_:n, ar a asult uf the
Carup's duspusal ol cectain fnancial assets ag IV e celated fair value pain of

P4in 2007, and F3 i both 2006 20 2005 recognized in other compreheose seme prioe
te the yeae of duapesal was tnsferred from Fevaluaboon Feoemees 1o Sutrplas rocount duding
tlise Yeurs.

I 2017, 2006 and 2015 dividends on these equiry seculies were recomuzed smuuniing &
234, Faat and 23T by the Group and, 19190, P30T amd PAT By the TPacet Campany.

respectively, wnich are included as part of Miecellanerus incenee wnler 1he Oithes Crpe raning
Liscrane acaao e the sraternents of bl ar less see Mo 25.1).

I3 Invesement Fecemifes qt Amoeriroed Cose

Insectment secundes at amortized cost a5 of Decemlber 31, 2007 amd 2006 oot of

Dapeur Compragry
2097 2014 27 U gy
Crovebrdietn [ secutitey, D kN LY I Iy o 137 F il T
'Eu.l:pc-r.:.l:e telst recarb=: 20,234 5474 15,761 PR

P s P ks TS PR N K
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The breshdowa of these investoncot secuoties an amorbizsd cose by cwcrency 15 sl beloaw

SE—— T T Pareprumosny

Aty <015 ir o | { £
TPhilepguet pris P LR I N p LM I ’ L3
Fricecgn curcen.ies ol e 0542 13507 J0L543

B SO0 [ SiEG B SR L aeg

Interest tates per annoen ua grveonment secudtbes and cocprcate delit sacoatees range from
2. 03%0 o 3007 i 207, 21 3% oo 394% 0 2010 and 1.03% o 8 &% i X1 F [ peoo
denonunated seownties and 1.63% co WO I 2007, LAFY v 100030 en 200G and 1 400 s
263%% 1n 2003 for foreiga comrency denomangted secuobies.

e BOVELONEN L FETURICH S ALe depasired wrch the 5T a5 secunby bor rh% Carep's Farrlaful
comphance with its Bducsary ablyabons in connecton aah st l'_'-l.hEII[i.iIJIIS- feme Drole 27

In 2017, the Paceen Cormypany disposed of cerain peso and 173 dnllnx-dcnm!nha::d Lords
under its HTC portioba and classified ax invesiment securioe: al amnorlizedjeest wilh
aggrepale cateying kot of F22,279, resalung in gans ameunong o T6H] The bspesal
wira lrade w conmec oot wihobe Parenr Company™s aanpucan of FERE & Q204G 0 2012
wtuch wonld require adehtional allowaoce for pnpaitoent vo ceaan finsncgal 2ssers onder te
expecied coedit Toss mo<del, and s 2 reaade, cay danaush the Pacent Compant's exsting leek
of qualifyuny capital The disposal alio aime 1o cosuce the Patem Companyls contnung
repulatory cumnpliance sl the Jequited mindmum CET 1 oo Tn 2014, the Tacent
Creopparyy and R3B also disposed of cortain dnvestreent secutitaes winder s [ITC portiolic
wnth toral cArcpng amount of P54 906 whicl esolted i ner gans of PLL39Y Those
navestrments were disposed f in compliance with eepulacery caputal and bapdisi

reruerelyent Chains arising trom these bspes dls weee iecognieed a8 par o T rading aodd
Secudities 3aus aoconnt in the 2077 arad 2000 scavermenrs of profa less.

Manapement hacl assessed diar the Sroop's and Parent Compang™s dispuaals of die
Investment sécurities dunng those perds aze coodsient watl die Group's §1T basisess
medel foe the pontalio vath the chjecuve of coflecung contraciual cash fows sl hase
qualified under tor. penntted sale events ser ferhon she Group's busoe=s gwdel n
manegine finanutal wsets manwnl and the cequicements of FITRS T and T"-.'S!’[ﬁn:u]nr 3

The alsve dispesals of investment securities weee approved By the respee ikt Execunve
Commirtes of the Taseot Covnpany amd B30 in complance wirth the dixcumpentaiien
[l:rlu:i,rq:l'nhnlzt of the BSP, and were ur_'Luthl'LE,]:r' ratfed by thoir respooyve ﬂ':ID'

As af Deeeraber 31, 2017 anl 2016, mvesoneat secaties ol bl il Grogp and e Pao
Cohspany with an aggregaie amortized cost ol 7437 and PR3 respreticly, wese pledged
a5 cnllatecals ot bills payenle widel cepurchass apresments Gee Note T8
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Id4 Inrevesr fncome fom Tradinge aod frveasiment securres

1
bnterest income from teading and wovesnment secaciies recozmzed by the Group and Fareor
1

Company 10 20007, 2000 and 2005 agonts L !
1
|

LETLILINE] :
i1 2UTH 2 ]
Firnaawrl asser ar FVTL 3 it T 93 T (el
[nvesimeenn secucities 2z
amoriverd cost 2137 243 . 105G
B 2 'FH I § oI I 3 gyl
l’mn.linmnan:r—
21T 2] I 13
Finanerd ss3¢1 ar FYTFL P L1 T R | I B14
Livveserient securivies ae !
amuctizesl cost L.752 LA 20417
I It @ 2uil 1 [ 1435

5 ]"'.r.:uﬁng el SecrFeres Cralis .|"L¢'.r.mr.'.;l' |

The Group and the Tatent Coinjrany recopolzed raling aud secorile: pains (Josses) in its
trading os dispuosals ol inveshsenn serontes, uchoduag cheir tawr walue changes oo 2007, 2014,
aml 2075 ag folerss,

A0 1
2017 2010 [ ikl S
Periin or boan:
Funarcial aseet ot FUTL F m n TP i
Inwssnntnl SeCWLiniee ar )
amnorhzed cost ey 15} L3a? . lal

B 20 L Lagy | 112

(Mber comntriebeapive incame:

Funancial aswets ar FATH iF 15 2 LAz i 130
Trunster of fuir welug g
I sucplus ( 4y £ il 3
L lar [ Ly g IER]
Facsor Compaoy
T FL L] a01:
Feofil or ks
Finaucal scset ar F1V'PL P o KT A
Lrveswmenn secuccles il o
urmnarlies] £ost 4154 | A 1lid
L _—] L 10} I [ AY3
Citber comprebtnnive incame: K
Fmancial ssset o FYOL] { 269) 1M mm
Tranaler of fair valee pain
Ler ALcplvs { 1 0 A2 1;

iP 273 T 1392 (I 323
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11 LOANS ANMD RECEIYARLES

Tl acewnl congisis i 1he I:'l:_1|.|-:_|1.=.-||1E (e alzo Tdopqe Zti.l.:.'

ronp Prareon Comnfhamy
1] I 2T i.o.._ane
Recermbler fcam customers: |
Losis avd digtomrs P OMSMe P miges P TIES (D T
Credit card recermahblas 14 495 1X 30 16,405 | L2nn
Cuttearrs” Lubiline: on |
ACCEPLACES, unpoct ‘
bills andd susl ceceipss 12 404 TETS L4 IR
Lraze conmat reecivaliles Lind Pl ) - | -
Lille puzshyscd 14GtT 2 ERE TERE 115
B ectivables financed . . . ! ———
A3 662 Fk5 WIZ 2, S L2770
Uacacacd diecwunt [ BiTh [ Lt R 2330 [ 220
T Y YT 35 40 ToAES) I T

THher reivahles. .
Accoued vneecest cecervaliles 3,4 2,1 AR 2akTa
Accnunts recemvables :

fice Mutcr 15 | s ;

205 [k ared (k] 2441 1,504 1IN 1,150
[_rf.ql:.med debe secunioes
cheseafied g5 loons 1,959 |23t LT . 1,15
Rales contract cecervables 1,679 1,70 9 wad
Tarerlank: hans cecarvables 5
free Mane ) b1 =1 3 515
o437 LR ) [ [ _ S
P AT L L B L | el L A2z
Allrwence for
impainment (scc Mot 100 f WL ERN) T L 49427 | 4,731
3523 [ 3Jor EZasTh L EHddl
Receivables from cvstomet's portbolio sarn on awverape annwal mkerest 01 range wF mslETEsl
ws Bollowes:
T aldl 4 — 2016
Louans aod digcsanes: o
I"h.ﬁ.lpp:iut peeF AN SIA% = :il::'-':u
Fumtyigy cuceances Y537 A= LA
Ceedir rard eecervablas IT.0HF% - 2300 LN S0 10 - F1L0RIRS
Lewse cnnkact ceceivablee AR - MY HINFS - ML FH Fa LE AP A

Rrcrivable Boanced TG - 250% KO 1200 Lot - 2500
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locluded 1 unquated debr securines ciassilied a5 lwans and ceceivable 25 of Deeermber 11,
2007 aned 2006 )5 w 10-yeur nate from Phlippiae Asset Groweh e [ncd iPAGC) with 2 face
ot af P31, which s part of fhe consideration peccivil in celation v the Pacea
Company’s disposal i February 2017 of it non-performuny asscrs (KT As), cunssung of
st -pettormung leans [MPLs) with a carryung arount of 307 amd nen-perforoung
investment properbes wath a catcpiog sl of 11,236 (see Mote 14 135 Thos note receivalile
carmies & vacable soercst rate of 1.0% per annum dunng the B fve yeacs, T.0% pex annucm
ire 1he siath to seventh yeas, aod T.3% per anauny in the Laic thees yeac. Thas note eceivabie
way initally recopmzed in 2005 a1t value essliog in the zecogition ol day e Ioas of
T"E1 whish iz included a3 par of allowance tor impawinent. Alse inchled in the onquoned
deln seurites iz B30 10 pear nove, which bears 04470 mnmerest et anauen wirk present
value of P74 Iy Tume 2077, B3 enteted intw an agreemnent wich @ thied paery for the sale nf
vagous foreclosed ceal propertes with boolb valoe of P1,137, for a towml coosadeeanion of
P1385; of which P396 and PPEY [faee amounr) wees i the fotin ab cash aod ool recevahte,
reipectively  Accondingly, the Group recognized 2 g@in oo sale amountide @ P1Land is
presented &5 part of Gams oo assers sald under Mescellaness come in' tbee 2007 stanerment
of protit or Jose (see Blates B3] and 25.1).

Accuunts teceivabies: inclds claiom ‘Fnl_m'l. thi= Brecean l:_:'E Imternal Flee n1:|-.-.§ {H-]R:: |.'v|-:|:.l;'|n!__!I kca l:]-u:
2M% hoal vachholding tax on Poverry Eesdicanon and Alleviation Certiticates (["EACS)
hands smounting to P199. Ok Janopor 13, 2005, the Supreme Count mullibied the, 2001 BIR
Rulings classifung all bunds as depusit subsotutes and ordeced the Eurcdu ol Treasuny to
rewnrn w the peouoning banks the 20% final withbolding tazes i withhehd oo the PRAC:
Bonds on October 138, 2011 ti-uh:ﬂt,qun:r-[l:.r. an Maech 86, 2005, rlie Parent Corapany tled a

. Motion for Clacification sod far Partial Reconshberarion (the B and rewecared 115

arguments with the Supreme Coutt, On Qerober B, 205, e Suprene Couct pactatly
E.rantr_-d the Maton for Clanficacon and for Partal Reconsidecation fled Ly the Pacenr
Company, staling thal {a) 1 Jesttimane wiherber che secunioes newly is-su-?d and =old by the
Burean of Treagury shoudd be treated 25 “deposit substitutes™, the phcise "2 any one time™ in
telaben to 20 or more lenders™ shoold be rechoned ae ke Bene of cheir osipinal ssaance,

(b thus interpietatioon, at any eate, cancor be apphed eetroactrvely since ths weuld [rrejuadice
the Bank and RCBC Capairal whach 1ebed in good fanh on the palings/ epinians af the BIR
that the transacdon in dssue is exetopied oo any foal wachheldiog tas, and {o; such e
the case, the PRACe Bonds cannct be treated as deposit substituigs. Ta Nuvember 2015, the
Supreme Couct Jered the Moton fled by the Q50 (see More 202 Agcerdingly, 10 2006,
the Parent Company ceversed the related sllowsnoe Fut smpaireseot and n M, rubstantial
arnount of receivables fran the BIR oz pecovers) dneluding the legas intesest of 1435 whirh
i# prevented as part of Other Interest Toeaone account w the 2017 stateroent ol poodiv of Lass

[see Do 20.2).

Alza ineluded io Parent Company’s accounts teceiva bles 1 the amount dus [Tom

RCEC JPL which was sequired Erom Fuzal Microbank in 2015 amnuonog to 222 As ol
Dhecemnleet 30, 2H 7 aod 20H 6, the vutstanding balance atnounted e PIYZE. The teceivalle
aprcwanit is unsecured, nonuorerest-beaing and payable in cash po e (see Mote 28

There is 0o impaicment tecogaized wa this accoont for the yead ended Decemlbae 31, 2617

and 201G



TR

1.1 LCredit Concepiratron, Secenty and Mzatunny Profife of Receiyatles
Frren U8 oen e :

The concentraen of credi of recervables. foom custonners as to lod wsery -follows

Letaup Faseay Tq

QEERMY
2m7 AL 2017 . . 1)1
1
Faral gerube, eenring and ather '
related oetimibes P BLS:T T VA Y. o LB ! F 42,463
Electovity, gaa ao water 64,794 52, N4z 4,453 ! 51,4R0
s wimer 54,196 a4,174 1B, 458 13K
Wliplesale and cacail reade A, 50 26,270 35,007 ! 25832
M'un,.fn;.runu.g |
(v induscoes) 35,024 4] 3L LA | oy
Tiansporanian and i
COOWTTLL St cH Tr s 14,270 17,182 | 14,508
Fuoercial snreomedianes 2050 L9713 1n5H I 17,273
Do by LA Uy, soatal and '
pegrenal acthntes 14,7 1L B 10,735 1431
Aprewiure, Badung and
{urestoy 4,924 4 (Hxh 4479 1M
Howeh 3nd repreurancs 3134 N 20k 1,132 LN
Mirarg and quatcyung 1922 L0234 1,114 1,001
( herr SRR . % 1.5 R 11 e TG

P J5rRes P SUsgay P ZE4ER (L
i
The BEF considers that loan coscearzation exists when (he ool lomn expoesune (08 pa cliculas
industry exceeds 30% of the toral loan portfilia plus the sutstonding intechank loans
ceceivable. The Group and the Prrent Compaay are 1n compliance wirh!:lmz Lizan
concenteatinn ot of the BAT a= of the ¢nd of rach rvl::'Fl-l'_:-rri.ng |:|Etll..l|.{.

The beaakdown of the recemables from customers” porrfolio as e secured sod usecored
El_r]l.:_rwﬁ:

) i . 1) [ M. | e | | L M

Seeared: :
Real estale mrogage P a3 JRTOY O 4355 . [ *1],1;'?‘.-'1
Chattel medTgaae ;1975 I3 6k} : 454
Held-our deponil 15,799 10,57 4,320 ! 13,97%
Cither wrunday | 1 R & 11 | 15,975 . :':‘J il
1646 L85 156,200 AL LT EE
nsecuccd I "% - S £ ] I 1| B = — 110"
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The mawdty profile of the recervables brom cosiomets ' I_-..:”u'-;rl:.:, ol

Group La
P i - 2017 0]
LDlnit aitluan vne yoac F qr.Ef0 [ W1y F TILHZ T LA L]
Dhuc bcyuol v year 60 205 LA 192639 - 1310m]

1.2 Nea-performung Loans and fippaimment

MNPLs wieduded in the naiol ivan partfolis ot the Gronp and the Farem Compang as of
Ciwember 21, 2017 and 2006 are presented badow, ner of allowance Do 1rn-_|a|rn'|1:nt 11
tompliance wich the BET Citoalar 772, Amerdmonr to Begrdosonr o Do _l.f_lp:-l'.'.;;urmng I cxerua,

Uroup Farenl Company
2917 Zalu 2017 ' 2010
Goss L5 r NT P k1 F M L) B 15T
Albywance for wmpaicment | 1 U6Y 2272 1 130 | L5321
r 143 [ iz 1457 D 1)
i

Based on BSI repulations, MI'Ls shall, a5 2 peneral cule, refer to Joan accounts whose
prinvipal and/Gr weeresn o wnpad for 30 days o moce atter due dace o pier they bare
beeame past due in accerdance wuh easoog males and repulations. “This shall apply w loanz
payable in lump sum and leans payable 10 quastetly, remi-annoual or annusl inskallments, in
wrhich case. the rotal cutstanding balaree thereof shall be coosadeced wogeperfortring, [ the
case of inans pagable iu ooy msraloeaes, the totat oustanding balance thereaf shall be
cunsidered noen- Ptl’fﬂm‘.ﬂnﬁ azhen thees o moee installmenis are aoaccesks. 1o the caze ot
lvans papable in daly, weekly ur seau- ey mstalloents, the entbire sgtaranding balance of
the Toan receivalle sliall b evnandered as non-peofomming orhen the fotal amount of
ArTEHLACS ceaches 1059 of the Lotal loan teceivaldle Bulara:, Featiuciuted loans <hall be
considered nwn-pecfotroing except wlen as of restrucnudng date, it his do upclaged poncipal
and interest payments and it 15 fully secuted by real entate with ioan valae of up o 60% of e
app[ﬂ_‘iﬁ:d value of teal estate secunty and the insubéd Wapraveean: and such other ficst £1uss
collaterals, 1 a loan become noa-performune, nor agstul ol nterest income Ls sucognized.
Interest 35 revogruzed as income enly when aciwl collection thereon s eeceivel,

A recameciliatizn of the alloeames for mpaicment of Joan: and reeesvables at the beganming
andd end of 2017 and 216 is sbupwn below [see Mote 14,

Lioug —.. Faentloopiuy
) . ahyn LT FIN] R
Dalange ac reginning <l yeas T TALL I e r 7% T LE2%
Lmpaicrmant hasen
dusing che year — nel 2,076 |.TH 1,084 ]
Aottt wemen ot
and cabhees [ Lagndy_ LG50 | k) A

Balarwe at end ol pea r____ LT L HETH R EICL O R WL k)
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[NVESTMEMTS [M SUUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOGIATES

The: components of the carsying values of invesunens 1o and advaoces 10 sobsidiaces 2nd
wsscanes are Az follows (eeter o Mot 12 for the effecove peccentape of ewenetalap, luve of
business, and cownrey of incorporation af sulsalianes and associoes:.

Group
[:lote 27 Sk
Acquirmon COsts Of dtsuiates:
Hi 'L " 1 T |
LIP<C 57 : L
Yk 4

Accutbulared eqeuty et sacningy

Falance at beginouag ot yeu 231 ' 2N
Share w cocl #arcongs frir
the year 2 151
Share an sctnang | gaing on
defined renetn plan 20 4 . .
Cazh dondends { [ I 111]
Balance at end of vear . 5 : 234
(Acrpanp amaoLne L i1 B id
el |11 20
Aequisinon costs of subridacocs: '
[[44 4 P R L L DR X1un
RCBC Capital 2,151 _ ALY |
Fuzal Muzcoibank 1,242 . L2242
ECBC LIV, 1,187 : L,LEY
RCRC]PL 375 L
RLBC Furex 150 L5
RCBC Mot Amncics 134 L34
RUBL Telemoney 72 B
R{.HL IFL. 53 B
BG4 fhis
Accumulaterd equity in ner &atrings:
Balance af beponneng of veac T.EI7 L4432
Share inonel eamninga foc
1'1.; YE;[ 1,@5“ Illl!llﬁ1
S'hn:r: v webuacaal E:um-
on deflaed benedic pan 2 19 24
Share v Fau waue gaims on
{inancial assciz ac FYOCT 234 113 q7
Share in wanslatics adjusments
iy fzreign oprrabans 236 o L] E_j
Cash diwdends { kLRI 1433
thers { o) : Al
Falance at end ul yein RRL _ LElv

CRCMYINE armpunt fimsied ) L % 16,454



—Farem Company
Tduare 2097

- — 2
Carryang amoudnr (o by furuar F LA 2 I 16450
Avepuisitiun cosis af assg=nare;
MWL g Ht ) L]
HCF L) | 9]
LIFC 57 5
VS . i 4
240 ; Sgll
Avcumolated eqoity in [l Farniogs:
Bialance at b-tginmnﬁ wf y=ar 1E2 - a3
Shate in net macnnge for '
the yeas 1540 136
Shatt in actuanal pains oo i
defined baneht plan i 4
LCash divedends { J9F Li%)
Balance ai end of yrar 2T _ Lia?
117 ) ) 722
Carrying amHene F 19 018 [ : 11 a7h

At e el o each hégaeaTtarLle |'.-|-':rJ-:_:|-:!. the Largugt has nognatecial igterest g1 uncoasobdated
slnctured eneties,

Also, the Parent Company and itz subsidianes did not eoter in any contractual acangements
b poavicle Flecanicial Sufrfrecl i dny enldies undes the Rt e

The Farent Company received deaidends Erom ats wubridianes and associates smonaang bo
Fil5 and 349, cespectively, 1o 2007, 191 and PL11, respectivaly, in 200, a0 PO and P70,
respecrively, in 2015,

221 E:ﬁ'ﬂ#gﬂ iy Farvaa e i i Spheidiares

On May 25, 2013, the Parc Cotnpany’s BOD approved the equity infusion into zal
Mictobank of PZ30 by potchasug additional 2,500, K0 comemon shares of stuck with pa
value of 100 each. Uhe additional capatal infusicn Do Rieal icesbank was appooved by
tHr T4 an September M1, 2003

Oin Belouney 23, 2013, che Pagent Companr’s BOD approved the subscapban to P00 worth
af shates of areck of RCRBC LFC, 1o 2016, RCKC LEL fded applhoagon wath the SEC for
increase in authonzed capilal siek after it has secured the cerulicals af punhartiny b annend
the articles of ipcorparanon from the BYP. Acceodingly, us of Decemnber 31, 20ME, the
5|_.||;_:-ﬁ|:r:ipum1 to PSO0 worth al skt F stock of RCEC LB was reclasstfied o the elated
msestment acoonnd. As of Decenlaer 31, 2017, apparoval Botn SEC 15 il peading,
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128 Infoimenon Abowr fnvestorenes in Associales

The Farent Company, vedir o shacedwbilec’s agreement, agtesd wich aouthet »pckbalde of
FLCTT e cotrndl and uodertake teoovode 35 3 ung, the shaoes of sosck cheteol, which they
propomondtely own and held, and o eepulate the comidict of the robng and the selauonsty
tratwewn thermn with respect to thenr exercise ot theit vooag bpline As o reandt of this
agrerment, the Pacent Company s 1ble oo exercese sigruticant tolluenes over the oparatinge
amel financial policies of HCED “Fhus, FUCPL bag been comsideted by the Parent Company as
an azrociate deypite holding oaly 1288 oweneesbip ntereds.

The rable balow presenrs e summaty of the nnaudited Anancial wformaten of FICE] as of
a1l o rhue VEurs prcdaed Mecarnber 31

Lder
Begoutegs Lipbilives | Reveoues | Brgfie

201T;

FICTL F a1 F 1905 P &S5n5 F G
Fall iy :

T m vl T o T 231 F‘ TR

BAWK PREMISES, FURMITURE, FIXTURES A™D EQ1I PMENT

The gross cachping atums and accwmalated depreciabon s amr}rtlzul:luﬁ et hank
premises, furniture, focores and eqwpment ac the begooiy and end of 2017 and 2014 are
showrn below,

LET, 7T -
Fusmabere, [eawrlenld
Flzmurey and Bights cad
— [aw#  _ MuXing Eguipmem! ~ luoroecmesn. o __Tolal .
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¢l " I Ldd o (ECL I Lans FX
Lo mdaled
dejrmalem
an] Imar=aen : [ LAl a1 200 » . N L
THel Careying, ameHin| B L Bl L L5 L Lz kK LS
Liromber ¥, DIk )
Cuar " I 1Ry UKD s 195K
Meiunradatod
thprsLailiih . ]
and 3Nl — i LI o -2 L B T U | 111
bl Larmullg el L LA L ol k- L LN— .1 S G Lt L LR
ninguy |, LG .
] Hu-i I 125 F azm I TH I LHE 1 11,007
At k]
diegesiznan . .
) A malain 1 L r 41,001 - B — Lo — =t
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Pzl Lmary ey G dar ]! | W a8 n L1 k] 1 Luls l L
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A reconfilianon of the carrving amoeunts of bank premuses. fucnitue, lixtares and egquipment
ar the heginninge aod end o220 T and 20 0 5w below :
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Under B5P ndes, jovestments i bank peondses, eenibare, xoeees: and t';r|1||.|-:rr:rr|.[ snowld neet
exceed 50% of (e tespective upimprired capitsh ol the Patent Company and ws bank
gubsidianes, As af December 31, 2017 and 2046, the Pavent Company gmd s bank
substdianes hawe satistacionly complied with this B3I oeguwirenent. i

‘The cost of the Group's aad the Pazent Coimpany's fullp-depecciated bank premises, .
Furmituce, fikriees and equipment that acc w0ill 1 uee in opeeanons 1 T3 78 and A5
[{s}ﬁ&:ti‘l.?d}r, ar of December 31, MU 7 aod P41 and P3,40357, resprecovely, as ol

Drecembet 31, D016

[INYESTMENT FROPERTIES ;
I
Investoent propesses pectyin 1 Jand. baddngs oc condurminipm i acquired by the

(Group, in settlement oof leans from detalfing buprowees choough: fereclosure ur dacien
NLE

payment and pruperties which are held for rental.
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4.1 Addiuons and Disposafy o IRvesimens Progerfics

The Groop and she Pacest Codviasay Brrrenclised oeal and oiher properties totaling F2,360 and
F19, cespecavely, in 2007, P359 and P44, respecrively, m 3G in seidemeant of certain loan
ey .

In Et'.rlt:m'he:r 2514, the Parent If:-:_lrnp::.n:lr nealed 1o A rhard parchy bu'!,u:r A CRIERTN
men-performing investment properties conzizong of lind aod budldig wath a borl caecymg
attvauel wf PTTA Foar o Letal evinsicleca rqu 01 FPT '“_.l.l r.{lnsist:lnl; -:_:-l:_ F‘ﬁE cn 51'|'| as dr_'uwn Fn}'m::nh
['] accounts recervable and Po65 sales contract eecemrable wizh oo inpesest and payatile 1o
staggered amount for a penied of rour peaes (Fec Moie 111 Lae saucs contact receivalle was
cdtally beepproiced at i faae value resaltiag in e weagnitioon of a day goe kies amonatiog 10
DS which 15 inclusled as part of alluwance fuor unpawmaot

The. wial guin tecogoized by rthe Crrompr and the Pateos Coompany brot disposals ol
trurettresnt b properies avnoomied o P41 and P37, respectively, in 2004 100 and Y,
espectively, in 2014, and PZE1 and P10, toypeenvely, in 2015, which s T:r-:i-:nh:d a: part of
Craims o0 a5sets sodd under Bixcellaneous Tocume sroowl e the =it ol HES Bur b Joss
fsee Mote 25.1)

4.2 faceme and Expenecs from Invesiment Froperties Flefd tor Rentdf

The Groug and Pavent Company eacned rental income (maon svesiient Foperies
arnounting 10 Pd 1A 20d P, cespectively, in 2007, Tald and D399 espeemvely, in ZLLE, and
PHN eed PA3D, tespecavely, iy 2019 ancd are presenied ax pacc of Benala uniler
Miscellnnees lncome accouan 1o the statement ol penur or locs |see Motey 35 1 and 285 0)).
Expenses incueced by the Griup and Pacent Company m rclanoe e the irvestmend
properties Joclude taxes and Lrenses anauing T P25 and P1B, cespecusely, boeth i 2017
and 2016, 17 wnd FI15, respectively, in 2003,

M3 Valvation aod Meagprenene of fmvesimens Propereias

[n 2015, certal nvesoment propertes al the Group were writen dos o heil caeoag
amount of P352 based on management's latest evalustion of recoveralle aoount computed
based on fair valuc Jeas costs of dispagal. The recoverable amount b thse properbies weee
computed Lased oo che latest available sppeaisal eepects adpasted Boc thae coses of disprsal of
4% of the appraized amounis sods'vL estimated selling prie.

I'he &aic value of investment propertes as of December 31, 20007 and 2014, based o rhe
available app ratsal reports, amounted oo e By annd P, TOU, vesrectivedy, Eur the Corongg; and,
P6,161 and PRI mspectively, for the Pusenr Company (see Mo T
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15. OTHER REOURLCES

Orther tesntees congtst al the delloaene

CIouy B gng L onr ey
[ocas =217 2000 2017 20l

Creditzble

wil:hl'-:nl'l_ﬂg

[FPTot " 2,110 r L 12 LY 1 141
Aoaese beld-for-gade

and dusprsal

Eraup 164 L59d 2,584 BaZ 1.31%
Naucick Lirensec 15.5 L IHKHP 1,1H:5 (ML L) LIES
snfhyare — net 15.3 ¥ WLl Bl Fhi
Prepud expenses L3R a7 4 U5
Croealwill 183 135 13 -
Fefundalle deposis 154 Aol 2345 14
Llnused sravanen:

and supplies LAE 2u2 I 15k
Lhue Coonm < leacing

b s ol -
Fuctigr vapagiey

rols o% a2 n 14
Rrrurmed checks

and other cash

e qT 2 izl ]
Iotco—wllice Mk;as

FIEFIL H1 112 a7 L2
sardlry deluts Pl ¥ i -
Margin depnsits 154 A 20 ik 21
Miscellanauus LAt &l L L

u, % 10, L% I M8 6,21

Allcwincs for

imp:l.ll:m-_m |53

1 N i LY i | 2]t 1]

Bl [ idel B Gl L 14

Piepaid expenses mclude prepayments for insuraace, laes and licenses, amd siafrware
mamtenance. Miscellaneows arcount 1acludes varous deposits, advance centals, sennce
pravider fand and orher assets.

15,1 Aserts Flald-far-Safe apd Diaposal Group

Assers held-for-sale reprosents real and othes properdes that are approved hy management fo
be imeneliately seld. These maindy include resd propertey, awomabiles wod equpment
frreclused Dy the Parent Company, REF amd RERC LEC i aertlernent ol Loy,

la 2015, KSB classilied 2 portion of uwvestroent properies areemiog 12090 as

assels held-foc-sale (see Noate 14) since the carrying amidanr of thaee properties wilk e
tecavered privcipally through a sale umpsacdon. The properties ware readily available E-;J_T ]
rmmediare sale i is present comdifion and thak Management believes thac the sale aas highly
serrhable at the ume of reclassification Tn June 2007, the properiss were solkd 102 ccd pazty
with Lata] consideration of P1AMS: of which P36 and P (poesent walue s PP42) wees
the furm of cash and nere receivalle, respectively (see Mote 115 ’
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Loy 2013, rlee. Tharesre Cranjrany eniered oy g joint venfurs agresment with a chaed parey
developer to develop certata myveaiment properies Cis Muote L) s the musprse of
recavenng the <ot through evennual sale wluch led 1o die reclasslicatnog of the properaes
amounting to P33T as azsets held-fer-sale. This joint arrangeaent iz :u-::ci‘mnn:d [ 2%
jeatnely crntcdied aperain as there was g separate sanuy crgisd saonded s oot wenoece
agleement. The julnr wentuse agrecmgot snpoudaces that 1l Paten) E-;_uuf:m}- shall coozhion
parcels of land and the co-wennes shall be responstble e e planningl concepoualizarun,
design. constmactien, fimancing and macketiyg of wnits o e constroceedion the propertes,
1o 2017, the puint wereioce AR e ey Lerteainad ed @l bk pcraes erilrbee] mla wovomirace
ol sule, wady e pomt veaoscet propetty developer potcbaetng the propedues conttlbated by
the Farent Company at 3 consideraton of P251 resulting in a gain from dale of P19, wrhich s
tecapnized ax parnf Gains oo assees weld uoder Muscellaneous Ineodne gecownt o the 2017
stavernent of orofit or loss (ree Mote 25 1) The owtstanding recemvahlos related i this
rarcaactipo s of Drecember 3BT woouwcted oo P46 20d i presented s (ralt of Moo
teceivables under Loans aond Hecsivables account in the 2017 statemenc OF fionncal posioos
see Note 1T].

Tov 20HPY, dnv aconrdanee with thi Jestet pecerved by KRB from Bb)t dated farch 26 209 RATH
teclassified certain investment propertes [0 egquity Wvesbncots as Lk :nvlk;tm:nf In
suhaidiarics 1 its separate bnanoml statements which sussdied wa the aclusion of the assers,
Lalsiliies, jncioree and expenses of the 3PCs of RSB m the Sronfa's consplicared Inandal
staternenls. The approveai of the BST through the MB s sulijecr Hh: ffiliilwil1g coinditions:
() REH should immediately dsgoivs 1he S22 ance the underlying dacioped real propeery
arscts were wold or disposed of and, fi) the equry nvestments i the ST s hall Ter dAusprised

wf witlue a Learonable peood of tme. ;

1a partisl compliance with e toyquiteecars of the BEP, the mansgoong b RSk reselyed
that cetain SPs e ilispozed of through the conversiva uf the SPC0 exisong commen
shares inte redeetnatile preterced shares sehich shall e subzequendy redeemed. Acerediogly,
at their special meeting bield oa September M), 2013, the respective RO and 1he
swpekholders of the SPCs apperved thar a portion of the eonunen shaees of the SPCys awrael
by BSTH shall be converted w tolemahle preferred shazes and that fooe such pugpose, the
Articles of Incocpotation of the 3745 belewr have beeo anueaded. The ame ndmen) was
appreoved by the S0 wn Movender 2, 20005

(@) Seldpath (g [riceasay
() Esghr [ls i Greabwings
f€] Crescent Iark i Top Pl
{d] Miceview () Cresiview
i) Lifeaay (k) Best Vahe

(] ol THace

(i Drececnlier 23, 2013, she BOD ul RAB approved thw fegoing $P0C8 oralempuon of the
NP rerpective preterred shares Ror 3 wotal consideraeiun uf 1555 Tlis vansac Li.-un
pezulted Lo the recogrioog of 4 cedempiian loss by BXB amounang to TS which 15 popuricd
in the 2073 consolidnted leancial statements of the Goap as pazt of Ciber Reservey aciiund
pending the evearual retireroent f these redeernable preteceed shares. Do dday W 2004 a0d
on Cictober 16, 2014, cthe ceticzmenn of the prefered shares was app puved by the BOHD and
SEL, tesprelively; hence, the reritement ab shares wun execuled by R:i-]?ri t'.':..-naiq'qur.ntl}.-, th
amoum of the cedempiios lise was transferred dicecty 12 Surplus accupur e Other
FResetves sccount as the iedomprtion of shates of these SP0s i gunsidered trmosacoon

berwesn cwners within ke Group (see Now 2340 ;
i
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I relabeen v che SPCx ool (raca and e Sully comply wich the eequrements af e BSp
the BOTH of RSB has approved in s meeting held oo May 30, 2004 che shetbmg ol the
conprabite Ube of these 3P0 uptt December 5T, 2003 which was approved by the SEC in
wadous dates dunny the last quacter of X4 As the Geoap s the proces: of hquidating
the aperations of those 3FCs, which is expecied ro be complend aatun 20HE, the cacrying
armaaunLs of the el propecties of those SPCe subject for hquidation are aceounied for coder

PFREY 3, henee, chisifel as asseir held-for-sals !

152 Sofieare

i

|
A recongiliation af the camying amoanes of sotoegne an the beglanog :m-l.'l end of 2017 and
2076 s shoan belaw.

Crong IFarcotCompany
2017 JH G 2017 PIJ LA
Halance st heppnauge of vear r b1 L T LTI o HEI;{I- I T
Adddinions S 204 237 M
A Mz arkn I 2B L) 2120 | i, 110y |
Balince at end of pe T 93] i - s T 1]
!

. . | o
Amorhzabon I:harEr_s for solterare aee wacluded as pac of Depreciation £ Adnolizacten
account in the statemen s of frralin e Toss, |

|
i

15, F froocowal!

The goodunll recognized by the O ronp as of Tlecembe 31, MHT and 26 pertains e the
Fallawing: I

HSE T 244

Rizul Mirrobank IR

AT

Allowauce [t anpaimoen [ | | &3
1

& g

RSB tecognized goodwill agse foan ivs scquisition of the noassees of pother Bank in 1998
froaten which i bad expected e eeonomic benebits and synergtes that pall cesult frem
crenblmng the cpe batiooe of the acguired limk wirh that uf RS :
Gondwdll 12 subjece to apmaml cesagment teeang and wheoever there is an indhgation al
wnpairnent. Tn 2017 and 20116, K3B snpmged a chird pacty comnsiant ta|perform an
mdependent impatereent testing of goodwall. Chn the basis of the wpet ol the rhinl pary
eonsultant dated Junuary 28, 2018 ind Jacuacy 30, 2077 wuh valuation dae ax af the end of
2017 and 2414, cespectvely, the Ceroap bua pssessed that tbe recoverable ameuni {.rt 7he
guodwill i hipher thur irs cacrying calue. Accordinply, nir Impainnet ch_:_-'.s. 15 reguueed e e
recngnized w the statements of prodi e loss o both years, '

In additieny, the poodwil] peerainiog eo the acguisiten of izl bdicrolaak was bally poecided
with impaicment 1 2071
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154 Maigin Depasits

Margia deposits serve as seoudty for cutsandiog fnascnl iwacket transactons aod ailwr
Liahisbtacy. These ace designed o puovide sdditiooul credie nsk prodeemon o coonterparny
ER M.

I8 5 Mrarrelt Frcmnses

Bracly lickases cepresent the ngats granted by the BSE w the Pacent Company i 2013 w
establish & certain nurober of branches oo the restdeted preas in the cowney, Tlus wewwa
alsar includes the vxoess of the total cost of mvesmment aver the alleaesd net assets acgquired
by the Parent Company Lioon RORC TPL.

ALLOWANCE FOR IMPAIRMEMNT i

Ch:l.ﬂ_gtﬁ iy e arocrunes ol allosance {fi;c :mpn.il:mr.nl; are sarmmaresed a;:.:fr_:-lir_'.w;:;
i

I
Group Pargapn Conngrany
Morss 2017 23 L 2o
Pabner a1 begnninyg ol yeac :
lans and ceceivalles i o i1 B lda B 4, T 1 H25
Inveslmeant propeces H H il - -
hbice résuurees 1 208 240 1 e
.. TIM 1550 ¢.T'.i-l.'i- 4 0L
[mp:.lrr.nenl: Lowsses: 1
Loana sond e iea sl kI 1074 LR 1.EIEA 1A
[ Iche=r smcouroes ] 4 B s Tiﬂ | Aadh
2155 1,77 LG4 ol
1
1
Chiarge-u M ard othet . |
adjuzinsen s dweing the yesr i L) | LTy Loy | LIsIy
r.. s s r 151 I 171
Balance at eod of yeaz
Leans and eeveivahles T 19 T Ao Lud: +7
[iaweeansing properkes E 55 34 ; ‘ .
LILhies cepsHirees ] 191 __2db ) _l

I 24z T piar v .oaddd P 1293
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1. DEPOSIT LIARKILITIES

The following 1z che breskdssan ol deposi habilices Gsoe alse Mo 25,70

Lmyp Farem Co ik
2T ZU1G i | I 2l
Diecnand P ek T Azogr I 40557 1 ERN
Sawinps 165 187 pLOICREE 141,160 140,21
Time 1Rl 71 L2217 7,144 32
].-.'mg-lzl:m NEEDI’.“I.I,‘.I'!-F. Carnbirare
wl Dopuraws (LTHCL ]| oy L1.GH) T ) LlAsl

P Hagdl: [ 010 LB AEART L 2 Es

The MFarent Company's LUBECs ar of December 32, 2017 aad 2010 e ag bellowe:

Emlpml g i,i_mjmg [ LE) PO

— Dyugnrelgie  _ MomgptyIate  _ lotereed 20TY G
August [1, 2017 Febioasre 11, DT i i I,_E[E P -
Lreeoinbice 15, 2014 Jurn: 19, Zik24 A 13 ZIM 3 LK
Hevembier 14, 2613 May 14, 2% 1.25% I,EH 2, Bl
Mowember 14, 24315 May 14, 20 .00 pAiL | 1,070
Moy 7L oymmlar T, 2 b2 5% - 1,151
Thecamiber 21 2011 June 2, S 5,350 - EXILYS
Droccanber 2. 2011 Tuvie 20 T 10D, - L4

I’ ol L LLRIL

The Parent Compuany® LTWCDS were ueed in the eapapgaan af s II-:I.'rI:|II.|E|H':-5.l[ base o
suppoit long weon asset prowth and for other geneeal Fumding puspuoses. | As of
Drevembet 3, 2017 and 2006, unsmortzed el tsoe cost aroownted 1o P20 and FY,
mapectvely, Anurization uf debt issoe cost of P in 2007 sl P2 el 2004 and 2015,
respecively, in reconded as part of Intesest expenses io e statziments -:_rffptl_llh v loss.

The mtunty profile of the deposit on bills payable habiloes bollows:

2i17 2014 A1 r T S 1 [ S

Wilithen one year o 71,505 2 SR 53.51-‘.-' I* Sl B4
Cine pear 1o ciare 1han \ .

B ek 13,734 111,323 12, 544G EIE H-'.-

Hon-mmipinag SEpaTe _ 3W58A EZ.Z.S.F —_ 1

U VL% Ve R LA [ zu.ﬂn;}_ 2 2104

Deposit habilities, aside teem LTHCLE, Leas aIinual inberesl cares ra ng,irEE_: Eram 0. 24%h o
177% o ZULT, 0.09% o LL3E% 0 2014, apcd (. 15% oo L OO im 20005 L apeeit lalailiries ace

stuted At amounts they are o be pand which approesomats the market valge.

Under exasting BSP regalations, now-FCDU deposit lubiliues, uclodmg mx cacoipe ieag- term
Negotble Certificate ol Tirne Depesits, of e Pazene Company i3 Lot to resepve .
requiresnoit equivalent to 20% i 2017 and 2016, while E5E and Eizal Mecrolank are subjec
trr eserve TeyuisEEnt equivalent 1o 8% w 2607 and 2016 Puso-denompnated LITICL)s of

(he Patent Company are ubject to reserve pryuiraaear squovalent Lo 'fi-“'% iea 2017 and 2 G
|
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Ae ol Drecainbee 31, 2017 and 2016, he rIoMp = I eednelizne wirly '-=|||:||'| reaulatory reserve
[EqUICErELS.

Usnder BEP Circudar Blee 733, varh i vault and regular reverve denusit .:l-".a'.-:ru:|11._~. wh TSP are
excluded as elipble bosos of cumpliance for the resere requiements. T eeuired Teserve
shall cuoly be kepr i e fonn of demand deposic accanars with the BSE' Available ceserves
cogasian ol T From BAF ameunting te P35 340 and P34002 1or the Craup and P48 986 and
F3AF 1 feec the Macear Company as of Deceenber 30 20017 age 2010, Pt s bty

[see Moare Y],

BILLS PAYAEBLE [

This account conzss of ottoswmgs [

Coup Facept Compamy

2017 2016 e . Ui
Pu:l.—.lg: brinaka P 3\3,1“1 1" EI}I,‘:"-‘]'::- F 3\,1,1111 [ R URD
Lowcal banks 1842 ING%E 3,415 1,721
[lahers 3 L1l IE 4
T 43,07 [ TR S MO0 [ T2

The maruney pentile of bills payable feliowee:

Cizoup Parspn Company
i 2t ALY S I
Wichun ane pear F wE4 b 13 1% P 29045 P 114
Bepeend ane e buar
apthin five yeacs o7 PR H L K 1% 470
Maca than bve years ALY LAss L g I - ).
’ 1
i
B a3 P ean b 3ol L MU
Dorsorwings foom foreign and local banks are subject to annoal Bxed meepest sacs as follows:
2017 . P [ : e
roup I
Pesd deanccrumared 1A - 4 80% NHHS . 3 IHY LM 2 5HT
Facagn curcensy denomanaied LOG% - 3.46% L L0 - 280 [LN2%E . L0
Pareur Compony
Fareign coreency denwriinel 1.06% - 34T 0 E% - 2.96%, O 275

The satal inserest expense incureed by te Grow): on the ball: payalle ai:llluimf.cd wr PEYL 1o
BH17. PY31 1o 2016, and P32 in 2013
|

As of Deeetaber 31, 2017 zoul 2016, cerrin bills payalle availed uoder cepurchuse agreements
are seeured g the Geeup's and Farent Company’s investneat securibies [see hoce T1L3].
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BOWNDRE PAYABLE

The bl TN LY 19 thi wecoen dare ha 'i."rruul‘:l arl rkae are |.':-e:-|r|||:-:|||:|l Leadlawmane:

Coyapyn Fars Wuhor Dymianding Talangg
_lowgoce Craee  _ Mosugio- Draoe  _ Inderser _fin milliune) | a0y
Miarmber I 215 Frhroarp X, 2021 LR % o] H P 15577 It 15,90
Janwacy P 2015 lanuars TF, 2020 £ 2% e X JLAIHE I
Jamwace 20, 2012 lanuar: 31,2017 5258 FAK) L 1
1
& HoL L HTT S RN

lex Mevesnber 2115, the Pareat Company issucd uaserured Us denoninared Semor Metes
with poncipal amoune ol U5E220 beanng wn ineceat ul 1.45%0 pe1 aosun, pavable
semi-aonually in arrears every Bay 2 apd Maveinber 2 of cacls pear. '1'|H:1: Senier Motes, unless
redeemed, will matues oo Febineaty 22021, Ax of December 31, 21 7 apd 20140, the pesa
equivalent of this autstan:bag bowd seoe aosoeared o P18 7T amd T3 B0, esp vy

Tr fzouasy 2145, the Farent Company ssoed insecured [ISF denomanared Semoc Notes with
pracipal amount of US43 beanng an lotecest of 4.I5% per acoum, payahbe semi-amioally
in acrears every |anuary 21 and Julp 21 of sach year, which rommenced nn July 21, 2015 The
Seniint Nutes, unless redeemed, will mawee oo Januwary 22, 2320, Ax of Deceeober 31, 2087
and 2016, the pese equivalent ol ibis vutcanding bond issue aenguneed to FFL2 083 and

PL205S, eespreoctively.

In fznuany 2HE, the Paren Company issoed weccuted LR deoovmoated Seogee BMartes with
prineipal ataount of USIATS bewomy an iategest oF 5,23% per annun, payable semd-ancatlv
i arrzars cvery [aowsry 18 and July 18 ol each vear, which commenead oo [uly 18, X112 A:
of December 31, 2016, the peso equavalent of dus outstanduoy hend pecue amonnted to
FL3.673, The Senwr Motes matwesd po Jaouacy 21, 2017

Thr jaterest expense incoced on these bonds payalile arndruabed v PLLES 0 2007, P10 63 o
W16, and 1,262 in 2115, The Growr and Parent Company tecagnized fareign cutscacy
exchangs losses relazed o thess bonds payable amounting b P1LE @ HH?, T34 00 2006, and
24 1 25, wlhich are ceited ajainst Forelgn gxehange gains presented vader Cther
Operating lncomse account in Lhe statements of peo tic or los:.
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SUGOERDINATED DEGT

On June 27, 2094, the Parcat Company aaed BY billion Bazel H-complant Tiee 2 Caparal
Blaotes (the “Tier 3 Motes™) which saall be parl ol the Giowp® cogulaiony cipital complanee
in secardanve witl Fasel 0 capicl guadelnes of e BSP The Patcen Compray te-opened
e Tier 2 Mores and maoed an addmoeal B3 holhon of the Mares on Sepoemher 5, 2014,
which consamited a further issuance of, and fommel a sinple sernz wath the 2 igting T MO0
Tiet 2 Moages. The 3:|gmﬁc:mt eermns avd condinons of the Tier 2 Motes with an ageeevate
issue aneunc of P10, are as Folloes:

E2

-

r

e

)

i#/

The ‘lier 2 Motes shall marvace gn Sepember 27, 2024, provided that chey are oot
redeerned at an caclier dare.

Suhject to sansfaction of rertam cepgulatoty approsal regquiternents, the Mfaren Company
may, i Sepleanbet 24, 2014, and o0 any Tnterest Paymient 1ute therealtet, oedeemmn all of
te 'E'"H“"d"“E Tier 2 e at tfd;:mpun;_.n orIce rqu::l per LB el 0 fuce valoe [u-gn:-tt:u:r
wrich aceoeed and unpaid nteresl theteun, The teems end condations ot the Lier 2 Toses
alser allowr Foe carly redemprion vpon the vecurrence of 2 'lax Bedemphon Fyent o a
Ry Redempoos Lrent,

The Tier & Netes shall inzially bear incerest at the ate o 5.375% per annum feon and
ineluding |une 27, 2004 to Lot excluding Septembes 27, 2002 aud shall be payable
quntterly in arczacs at the el of gach interest pened wn March 27, June 27,
September 27 arl Deceraber 27 of each year.

Uriless the rer 2 Motes see pirevienisly cedeemed, the waeal inrecese rzee will be cesel cn
Septernbet 26, 201 a the equivalect of the five-year FTI3T-R2 or the pelevant five. year
Lenchmatk plas the widdal spread of §97% per anourm. Such et intecest slall be
pavable cpuasteely 1 arvears commenciog o Septeminer 27, 2010 up e and inchuling
seprember 27, 2024, nont ol rwise redeemedd carlier,

The Tier 2 Motes Thave a loss absempricn traruze which mus she notes aee suljest tad
Mo Vinkiliey Wite-12own in caze of the aeoutence of 2 Moo Viahdity Cweat, subspeen
certain condidons a5 set oor it the terms aad conditions of the potes, when the [ssoet b
considered non-viable as detecmined Ly the BEP. 2on-Vealnhoy 0 defined as o deviation
frm a cettain lewel of CETY rate oo the mabalicg of the [awer o soatnae busmess
{cloyuce] orany other eyt as de e omiied l*.-g,r the B5T, wluchever oomes eatler. U|‘.|r:|1
the occurtence of 2 Non-Viabiliy Event, the 1ssues shail vrite-Josan the principal
amounl vf 1he notes to the cxeent required by fhe BSP, which coubd Lo 2 lovar a5 meber. A
Mon-Viskilig % Gte-Dhuan shall have the folliwang cftects: |

fp it chall peduce thee claim on the nores 0 bquidation. , .
(] reduce the amouot re-pand when 2 call or redvonpicn i3 propedy exercised; and,
&) partially s bully cecluce tha interest payenents on the rusres. |

The total ntezest expense ingured by the Group and Pareor Company o the oot
smounted to P55 in 2017, TS5 in 2006, and 53532 1n 2015, ;
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ACCRUED LN TEREST, TAXES AND JTEHIER EXFENSES

The compositon of chis accvomt fullows

Axcpaed rxprnses
Accnsed inrecest
Taxes payblc

Lipup Parepg Compapny

2017 G 017 il
B LA T 3321 HIT1 T I 92
1,120 1,243 EE L 1,025
. 254 239 bl N IE:
L 4153 E 1471 F M2 [ 1033

Accroed sxppmnses cepresent mainly the seceuals for vblities. cnployee benelits aod ather
ppecating wxpenses. Accrued inleeest peimanly mchwles wnprad inrerest v dejresil alnlibes,
bulla payakle, bonds payable and subordinated debr ar the mod of el ru?—mﬂng peninad.

OTHER LIABILITIES

Crtlace Labibides consist of the folloong:

Anagrng pavable

Manapes"s checks
Balls purchased -
LOnCra
[leemvabire Bnancial
lialnlitics
Cwrstandiog
Kepances
prayales
Al crediss
Dicpusic e lease
CURITCEE
Frrhbolding rawes
rayable
Papment vodoes
pripa e
Aundry eedirs
Post-tmployrenl
defi-ed eneliL
wholegabom
Guaranty depouits
Thee 10 HET
Mizcellaneows

Accounts payable is mainly comprsed of p
billap from credit cand perausue aod the

Frowg Pocctn Compray
Mo 17 2016 P v 006
1
2854, :
M) P G451 10 Sz T 373 T 1,4t
1575 10w B35 Bt
LK T2 1.1}?'4 o Fi]
1w 483 pre 4B 555
a6s K2 s a2
¥ a4 E-ISE- A
H? La? -
ms 308 3 L42
193 |7 Lt 144
121 a2 P Bl
i
241 1 1,345 s 1557
2 h 1] 2 LT
kY 35 M an
#51 115 816 __ %y
TR I SR 1 N T hi3q B _GkaR

sertled wachun the nexr repuaing, peovd.

Miscellangous Galnlities inchads Pag-ibjp, 555 anal

doee wa Local baniks,

repaid card balunces al ciargmets, sertlernean
Greoup's expeaditure puzclufes which s ro Lo

PrulHealuh premiwoe and oilict imiunts
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EQUITY
L1 Crpital Seack

Tl duwvennieng i e oursanding capial stock of the Parent Company are as falloaes:

Mugabrtr of Slares
2017 el K H : 2013
Peclecaesd stodk — wonmg, noo-curmlarive
aoo-tedecmabile, pacicipaune.
canverhlle sy Costunn sk
P oo waluc
Avrhanmed - 200, IHIHE] hace:
Ealunce ur logrinming OF pear ZYE,787 2m0as iM29
g rsier <af slsres dusng she veat [ vl C>* NI o laddy  QELHL]
Balarice a1 2d of pear _m.m iy ST __.LlLLH'.l_ .
e eimarm ok SLCK — [ L par vahus
stbopzed — 1400, DOHHED shares )
Falance ar bepinowmg, of war 1355 12 464 1,48 908,244 L.275,550,728
Conversyan uf ahares during the year LIk RO ] i
[ruemwes diniog rhe yeac _ = T SN .t WY fEc
Halance uf ciad uf wr O T 3 T T S B D 0 [ I W UL B T

Oy Nevemnber 27, 2017, the BUAL of the Pacent Company approved the mereds & 12 the
Parent {ompany's authoeizcd capal thzough the inceease in the avthonzed cosen shaces
from 1 400,00 HM shares to 2 i) AN shares at P10 par value per share v for a Lot waf
capital stack at P14 IRt T2 0, Thhe 0T also appioved the amendment ol I.l:|L.‘ Parznt
Company's Artcles of Incerpataooa for the ponetpal purpose of refectn tHhe soud increise
in authamzed capital. These resolutions wese approvesd by the Paceat Lompang's .
sroeklolders represenmmg ar least toro-tlunls of its outstaoding u*.upllmll ek in 2 gt
meeting keld oo January 20,2015 lo the same meeting, (he Pareat ompany s 'IE.{:ID.
apptoved the stack tighe: offenng (Righes Q1ftes) whach will he subscribgd owr wf lne increase
e the authunzed) capital. Sulxject Lo the relevant eegularory approvals and macker conuitien,
the Rights Offer alms to radse wp te M3 fresh Cutratoon Lguity Fier 1 capital For the
Fatent Company

As of December 31, 207 and 20M0, therg aee 753 and 779 leaders, sesaecuvely, of the Tarcor
Company's Lsted shares holding 2o equivalent o 1AL, of Lhe Parent Company™ ol
isrued and outelanding shazes. Such ered slares dosed ae B35 35 per sha:c itrl

133,55 por thare az of December 31, Z0LY and 2010, rexpecarely. i
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In LY86. che Parent Company Juced s v sharcs: wach e FIE. The bistoaical
infurmancn on the Farent Company's ssuance of common shares ansipg from the initial and
5\_1|:|-:5.-:qu1:r|t Publjr: L:-f&:ri,nj;s._ inl:ludinj._{ private plecerments i poesen il welow,

Tt of
PEFIE N Sub:crber lertance [laty Sharey [msund

[eulizal j‘:-lll}lil: qﬂtli.-n.g Tramkaas Slosrmmbe e 1985 1AM e
Bierck diglite vleting Warsos Apal 1947 444920
Lok [iﬁhrs n'fF:ri.r.g_ Vanmnas Jul}' oy 3 A8, T
Stk nghts offenng Y aados At Fui HALL G
Lk righes atenng Lanre Jinewey K2 1T 479,462
Sk, rights nfierng Yaririas Tune 202 A N
Follow-on offering ELG Belarn [y 20H17 210, AT
Privare placenem [mecoancal Fioance

Corpeabon {[FC) Maceh 2011 T3 LR
Povate placement Hesugun Iniveemoenrs G meptember 2011 126,551.775
Meivate placeoeit hArATC Maeeh 2015 ) A305A1.N00
Teivare placement 12 Capiinbizanon L Aprid W TLISLES
Prwvage placement Cotlay Lile Grsoposge Corp Apnd 2HE 124 202273

0 May 29, 2006, the Patcat Company®s stockholders approved the sruaace of vp o
UL, 000 converdble preferred shares with a par value of PO per share, subgect to the
approval, wtawng others, by the PSE. The putpise of the issnance nlthe eomvertible
preferced shiares i3 1o waise the Tier 1 caputsd pursoant to BSP regnalalicn s, thevely
strengthening the capital base uf he Patent Company and allowng it w expand its
anerations. Un Falituary 13, 2007, the P3F apprewved the listing appbesmon of the undedyiog
cetmeon shares Far the 105,10 convertble preferred shagses, subgect 1o the comphance of
certain conditions of the PSE. Prefemerl shures have the following Feaures.

jw) Entitled to dividends at Hoating rate equivalent ra the three-manil Lamden Ineerbank
Offep=d Fae [L,lL'iClI-L} Flus n sprr.ad at 1.0%s per apnnm, maleulated quarte tly;

f&) oovertible to conatoon shares at any tone aiter the psue Jate ar theoption of the Farooe
Company at @ conversion price using the adjusted net ook value per shiane of the Panoo
Company basel on the fatest avalable fnancial statements [repared in accorlance wach
PFRY, adiustec by Joual segrlatons, '

it} Non-zedesrmable; and,

(i [faricipatng as to Jividends on @ e raga basis with e commaon st khuldezs o tie
surplus of the Parent Company atiet draidend payrments Tad been made (o he predered

sharehodders.

On June 28, 2010, 1be Pavent Company's stockhuldecs wwnnng, or represeniing mere 1u
rueir-chirds of the vusanding cajutak sock confrowed and atfied the approval by the
majoriry of the BOLF on their Frecutive Sescim held on May 20, 2010, the eojrosed increase
i Mazent Corspany's authonzed capiial siock and remarval of pre-empiire fghes from bolders
of capital stuck, whether common o puefeered, o subscrilye for oo w parchase any shares of
stuck of Any chass, by nrmaeaaduny: thie Patecr Company s Acticles of Tucugporative.

The |roposed F15,000 authoteed capital stock i= dividesd mto the Eu]lu-.l;-'ing classes ol stacks:
) 1 AMEACDO00 commen shares witn o par valug of ken pesos (PLYOH) per shate.

7 20000,000 prefeceyd shares with a par value of ben prsas (IO per shaee.
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The reroral of pre-erpovie bglne was spposesd by the B3P aod 51 on Oeralier 20, 24010
-'vll'l'ﬂ Nﬂ-‘-"t‘l‘n’:ﬂ.‘.[ -1, EUlU‘I !I'i:'SFl-tl:U‘."Iﬂ‘l.'. L chet wLliex |::|;1|.'|.|J.r 1k inr.rr.:._-u:. ir| ﬁ.u[hf_'l[i_zi_'d caF—J[“a]
stock of the Parent Company was approved by e BSIY a0 SEC wn Sogust 24, 2011 and
Septemnber 140, 2011, respecovey.

f-ummon shates may e transferred to local and foreign naticmal: and shall, st all dmes, not
L lesn el G0 ancl 2vag snare tgan H0 of the vebog stock, be benefically owired By linal
natienals and by Boceign navonals, respecorely

2352 Forchase and Nesssudooe of Trea sury Slarey and fysuence of Gernaron Shanes

Clan Blacch 17, 20171, ihe Paren) Compiny assued 73,8044 275 common rhares, composoy, of
WAZT T3 creasury shates sessuance Pwth rozal cost od TIT 10 a0 23 020,349 immgsoea [ aanck
[aicly coatal faar walue oo PN, e TFC Claganalizaniee Focnd Doe o ool coneidesaiuen of 772130
tepreseang 720N owackslup witetest The 152 uance fesuleed 1w the tecpru bon of addibicavat
Capital Faid in Exxcess of Far amounting to 1,078

Also, on Seplembec 22, 311 ibe Pzeent Company issued 3,321,548 courumen sloaces
{equivalent of 18,082,311 preferred shares and wach tetal par value of T'34) from the weasury
aceaunt resssuance paach matal cost of P1E2 and an addidonai 120730177 commun stock
fwnth toral par walue of 111,207) trom umssned postion of the increase inauthorized cappiial
stock on Seprember 23 2011 te Flexagon Invesunerns B vhar s e wivhlent ro
approximately 25.00% of the cutstanding voramon shares The ssuance wesolted 1 the
recopnitivn ol addiduiad Capiral Fad i REacess of Tar amountng, to 1'3,064

Tm 13, the Parent Company isaed coramnon shates to PMMIC 2od 1FC Copaabizaton Fuod
at Pid and P& per share [ 2 otal awe poce of P4074 g0d Ta 137, respeciively. These
issuances resulted m the crcogoauon wf Lapital Pad 1o Broess of Par amasnting 2 D5 4%7
and P3 415, eespecuvely, ieduced by toral 1 suance costs ab TPIIT.

In 2015, 1he Parear Company ssoed cocunun shares mCalhay Dife Tosdrance Corpecation a
1144 ez share for a total wswe price of FY W51, This isuance cesulred m i‘rhi‘. becogidon of
Capital Paid in Excess of Par amountung to P60 reduced by the soial Buance cos QI’ priz
The acyuizingm involves Cathav; (i} acquirng Erom Hexagon Investments B, 20 cabtiby
comtrolled Ly Foads manaped by V0 Ao Pacidic Lumuted, 118,925, 890 secondarye eoaees at
I'Gd pet share, pucsuant o o 3ale and Purchase Agreements (U} izt 30,724,156
secondary cotranen shares from TFC Capitalaanon Fund zho a1 @204 pey share, pursuant to s
Sale and Puechase Apreemnent, and, {1v] enteeing into 4 shaeeholders aprepment witks EMBLT

and the Pacent Cutnpany. i
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ZF5F Surplos and Dividead Leclaraitons

The deails of the casi divideod disceibaons Toallomw:

Dale

Lhirrkoard

— Dxclucy  Fxa Shar

Lot 27, 11T
Lxaohes 07, 2074
Jaman M4 hI1§
March WL 3k
Muchk XL 3H 5
Ao 2T, A1
Julp 27, 2015

Pz gmbscr 4, 2HRS
|rauar 25 2000
wpnl 25, fld
Apal 23, 20040
Apnl 15, 2014
|wlp 2. 2NC0
Pusaibe 1, U116
Jaraawry A, HLT
Annl 4. A0
Apnl W4, 1Y
Ayl 2a, 20l 7
Jsh b f7
Chnha e 1, =0T

LA b owdimn s b Bl -roon

[IH- P
nik
noml
HEIFAl
nio4nl
IRt ] 3]
a9
145
UELTPN]
1F 121k
[LAed 11
T
Iz
vrldl
ERIL TN
AnSH
~155R1
VLIIF<HI
T

R TLRITY
naj
nn:
nmz
iz
12

b
n-=
1z
1.

—Bccond Diaee

Ihezerml e 21 Hila

Moaseh 21, HilS
May 15, LIS
M 1, 21

Jaene 1. 04
spumbr 21, MI1E3
I'neemhr A1 Jnli
H:cn 21, 2010
Jooe: 21 2

e HI L1
L L R B L]
Seresmibee 21, g
Lacembre 2, A0
Mach 21, AT
Juns 2., 20T

apnl 2307

" |'ml 4, Al

S mier I1 Al
[ heeparl=y 21, 00T

= (o ayuh o, THE g -t e crlrtld g LR g var peran

bre B0

Dl Apcurred

Tikiler 21, 21lg
[z 21, B d
Jamuary 35 20R
Rlarch W 2D
Phanch W XIkL
Apail 37, 2005
Iuk 1, 2095
Mimumher &, 20l5
l3eaict 25 I
npnd 232160
apnl 23, 2un
aprd 25 2110

|uly 25 20104
Fhsemlna = 21016
|ears aamy I, AANT
i 24, 2077
el 24 7
e e g
|y 31, ik
1lerede-s HI, AT

Trzeerndker |0 2114
Rl Iy
odarrh 20 20k
e I, 2E

oy Vi ANy
seprrber 10149
mepormlwe L0015

N

(YT T K

[ 10, 20 s

Jows 10, A0
optenbee 16, HS
Joory 17, 20T
M oarch 22 s
Ayl 26, A
=il 20, ART
Al 2, ST
Hpesmbar o HOY
Iaciember 12 2007

Tlace

P23 Capahbe

Janae ZK, B0l
REeddl 20
Mar™= 25, A5
Joow % 3HE

Farm: & Al
Yopnombar 1T 20E
Srpwemter 14 2005
1P zinber 13, 1102
Mlapch A, MG

Jum 21, HElA
Jule 1.l A
Inly 11 Fin

ke A1, G
Jazucer 17, 2017
M-rch 24, D21]
laumy, 37, 2001

Moy 15 2L

kdve 1% IRT
Spplutlar 22,00
Ik 25, 000

In 2015, ihe B3P, diough the Monctary Boaed, approved the liberaliznl pules for baoks and
auasi-banks wn dividend declaracon. The policy requises that dividend dechisauo be
wmmedistely recopoized e a labilivy and rhar it he disclosed o clie statensnt of Chuores in

crfuily.

2 parior of the Pawent Campany's sorplus cocbcspondioy, te the eguily b net carnungs af
gmetain subsidianies and agsociates totling P38 and Fr,539 as of Drgeoler 31, 2017 and
W16, zespectively, is not cuttendy available fur disinbooon as dividends,

234 Oihrer Beservey

Oy Drecember 25, 2003, the BP0 [OD appmwd the eedeimption of the SFS° Ce s tive
preferzed sliees far a totas cunsidaabion of P1,355. Asaresult thergal, the Ceoup mn:u_rml a
redemption los: amonnbing to TAHS and s presented a5 parc of Other Reserves account in the
2013 statepent of Goanciad posic. On May 30, 2H 4 and on Crewaher 10, 2014, 1|1-§ B
and SEC approved the execution of e rwumemeor of the prefetied zhaces cesulimyg Erom the
SO redemplion on December 31, 2014 Consequendy, e aacow of Lhe pedeonpoon loss
of LS previowsly recopnized i the 2053 I_'i_l-rl:-.l'_:-lil..i'.'ll.'l.‘.d FEAtement n.F changes w eguily of the
Group, a5 part Oibee Benerves accuwd, was transletted dicectly o Sumlas (see Meowe 13.1).

A3 of Deceigher 31, 2007 and 2016, this sanunt consists f peserses ansiog Erotn the
acquisiben of RCRC 14 and Riral Microbank Tor o tutal of TET and PG, respertevely.

235 Hybrid Perpetual Seruritics

Chn Cycrober M1 2006, the 1arear Company received the proseeds fron fie EETIR uf_
Hem-Counulative, Step-Us Callahbe Pespetanl Secupities (Perpetal HECULLes ) AMaunung
L5396 orillioas, et oF Fees and ocher charges. Met procesds were used 1 ::u[:l.'tnﬂﬂ:li:.'ﬂ The CAIL
of the Parent Cumpany, repay cortain tndebtedness aod eobagce s finagcial suability and tot
genesal cocportite purposes. The issuance of the Precpetual Securides wag appouved by the

BOD oo june ¥, 280G
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The Pespetual Secunnes represent LSS0 mullion, $.573%, nen-cumulasee step-up callable
perpetua) securities issued pupoant ko s eoast deed dared Clenaler 27 2006 Lirtween the
Parent Company and Bank of Mew York = Lomedon Braneh, eack airks o bopedarion
prefecence of LEEL thousand per TISH thousand in pancipal ameonnt of the Petpeooal
Secucities. The actual lisung ol quetatioes ol the Perpetual Secuebe:s uoa aroesun board
lot size of USEL hondzed 16 the Siogapote Exchange Sccueibies Trading Linuted {55331
was done on Movember 1, 2006 The Peepetanl Souctics weie azuedd gussaand o T55P
Circudar Moo 5023 dated Decernber 2 24005 allosvetog e wance i e tpesual,
nun-cwmnlative secicabes ) e LS 25 nudlien whicly ace ebpgble wo qualify a: Fybod Lier ]
Capueal.

‘The sIgnifcant tecms and rensdinicog of the ssuanee of the Perpetwal Secunoes, among
orivers, killing:

fal Teaterest (efteceively divideods) wll be paid from anil ingluding Ceansbee 27, 2006
ithe "ssae date™] to (bor exchulio Crobes 27, 2006 (the “Fiest Opncnat Fedemplion
Dhate™) at 2 rate of ¥ 8758 per annum payable seru-anovally 1o areap oo Apeil 27,
2047 and, thereafrer a2 rate resel and payable quacteely in amreaes. of 1020 per ancmm
ahgwe the then prevailioy LEBOWR For these-manth U5 dollar depoits,

i} Except as described below, snterest fdividends) will be payable an Apnl 27 and Cretober
27 in each year, commencing on Apal 27, 2041 and ending ne the Fist Qpoonal
Redeanpuon Date, and theceabier (subyect o adjustment bor digs which aee not busness
days} vu [ty 27, Apeil 27, July 37, Cwotober 27 10 cach year commensing v
Jamary 2T 2016;

1

[ '1he Parent Cotapany mmay, in s abselate discrenon, clect noc to caake oy inlees?
fdrvidends] payment in wiole ar m part it the FParent Copaay has oot pandd o ceclared 2
dividend an ws coswnon socke in the preceding hnanoal rear; or crperoine that 0o
dividenl jx i be patd on sach sgucks the correnc financal year. Aciual payment: of
inrerest (dividends) on 1he Tybnd perperval seguoties ate shorn in Note 223

i) The righte and elang of the helders wil be suboedinatedd w b clanas of all senier
creditors fas defined in the condiicns) 4od the halders of any priveiny melerence stecks
[a: .;Ig,{'mc.l:l 1 the cundui{mg]_ 10 that paFments M respect af the seobmes are conditienad
wpon the Parem Cotopany being sralveot at the ume of paymear and o that no payments
shall be due except tue e cxent the Pacent Company coudd make such payments Al sl
be sobvent unmndarely thecea fren

fe) Tl Perpemal Secutmes are not deposits GF the Parent Lompany and are ol fruaranteed
or msursd by the Farent Company of any pacty felated o the Paren Lompany o the
Thelippine Depasai losurance Carpamaoon (FLAC and they may not be us.-.:d. as collateral
[t ay Joan made by the Tarent Company or ang of s subsadiaries a affiliates;
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The Parent Company undeecabess that, 1F oo ang Ireres) Payement Dhate, pavenear of all
[nrezesr Pavmcars seheduled to be made on such date s not made i1'|i [vall, 1t shall Aot
declaee ai pay any disrabution or dividend or make any atber payrneat un, any juimar
share capital or any paoty secunimy, and 1 whel ool tedesm, repucchose. cancel, teduee or
utheraase acquice any furar shace cepital wr ooy panily secorities, -_nh;q:r e oy the coe ol
ANy panal LAberEl payinest, [2rp s @aFmeat: L, ol redemnotuns F, pacily serutitie s the
dividend and capital stapper shall cemane w tawee sa 2s 10 prevent dhe Facent Company
from uodzrtaking any socl declaration, payment or other acovity a5 afaresand ualess 2l
untl 1 payment 15 made o the holders 1 o anownr eqgueal 1 the unpaid amoont (1 any)
af interess paymenrs in respect of intecest periods in the taebve enonths naladiog anal
immediately preceding the date vuch tobetest payment was dog and the BSP does net
otherware object; and,

‘The Parent Company, at its option, may tedecin the Petpetoal Secarives an U Bxed pr
tinal redemmption date although the Parent Company may, having given oo less cha 30
not mots than (0 days” natice o the Trostes. the Repistear. the Poncipal Panog Agent
and the J'l.ul.d-l’.“tﬁ., coelecons all |;|.:lu|: [ TR T ol B -:_|r||:|r_:| afb 1he sgeurities: |:|.::| rn ihe Fiest Upl‘_il’_:-n.i]
redempies dare; sod, (0 on cach interest paymenr dae diereafres, at an amount syl o
1he |.ir.]|.|.1'-:‘]ul_i.|a-r| prelerence (Aas acerued inlgeesy.

2n barch 30, 2015, the Parent Company's BOD approwved che redempticn of s hybreid
pemerual secunaes at 3 premuum amounbng oo FPEY mullon.

AT Revaltrapon Kegernoy

Tht components and reconciliation of wem: of other compeehenues mgumg freverri | am the
statements ¢f changes in equosy at their agerepaes snoud wodor Bewahanon Kewcooes
gccount are shown belaw
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Habinee an af January 1, 2015
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Lurene CAmpans |
erremalaned Acnarul
Wovaletenm -l rnekilien [T, TTH
1inanral Tl frdTa A=, [ FENTEY)
AR K “ih G v I eed
I | v puuns L T TR AT Lol
15alanis ol Januars 1, 215 I' e n a1 i e nH2
Actaonal oeaz it debeed boncic plan . . I 14499 3 1,649 3
Iair walws lossc+ i Fnancial asace
EY Ea e | i 141) . . ! 1433
| ranahbn b ealmeak: i
lrvm iHadhnm . ] LU T 123
LUnileer ccanpralnsive hes i LERINE HY I L+ A
Veaoster foum far value paons an
Bivancial asser ar YT e | - . . " 2]
Balance av of December 31, 2003 L 2l L a1 L A i FILH

24 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
24.8 2aines and Emplyvee Sevelfos Expense

Exfiecmes eexopnized for sdlanes and olher emplayee beuelis ave shown belowe

Lirgup | .

2017 pir 1A 2015
Sheartdeom eoufroree Bepe i F fAE3 T 030 [ 4170
Tostempluymen defised benedirs bk Al S— 1}

Emnlﬂummﬁ.\'

017 ) -+ I E
baart-dcann coaplovee Lene frs P dwd P e D E.?El
Toust. employmeen) defined henala . . (- 1. LN _ Il

C 4,081 I Ly T i1t

24,2 Pase-creploymant Iefned Benefit Plan

fu) Charairriitic of the Dejined Beaefil Plas
1

“Lhe Fatest Company and cerain subsidiagie. ipainrain a tuaded, tnarqualilied,
non-contabutary prst-employment Trenefit plan that is heing administered by che Farent
Comnpany’s and BSFs Frust Departments, covering all vegalar foll-titne employees. The
Patent Company's and R3B's Trus Departments nanage the Fand L cardination wirh
the Parent CILII'.I'.I"JH.iIfrI-“ Hetiremes:s Comnttes, Tzt {.El:l'.l.'LITIJI:I:t'tj aand rhe [=spechy
committess of the submidianes which 4ot i the best ureaest of te plan assets and are
responsible for setting e investment [»:hicies,

The nommal retirgaseat age of the Group’s employecs aages botwoeen 35 oo G L the
plan alse provides for an eucly retrement at ags 3 tor 55 with 2 miaimuwn af 10 o 20
vent: of credited service. The muximwn retiremenl beoe At is the Jump sum equiatent bo
1.25 to 2 mumihe nay per veur uf contnuous employment based v the employees’ salary
at fetitement, Any (raction of 3 veas stull be computed reerortionately.
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|"I!Fl,.| E'*:".'.'l-'lﬂ'-ﬂﬁ'ﬂ'l'?-ﬂ i llr Alepnats Pravested tu By Brovtdcowd Ndorforwpsts

Actuanal ml"“i' bios 2ze made snnually ta update che pust-einplorment bens i coses aod
the. amount ot contibutions. Al aomunes peesented belisw ape bazed on 1w achoagal
valuation reparts nhtained floom independent actuatses in 2017 2md 2011,

Th= amounts of post-employment beaelir alligauon recognized in <he hnaocial stasgements
are determuined as follousa:

' Croug — —  loreniCompany
Pl 4 2000 207 — anln
Peeetnl value of rhe
ehigation I 4905 T 4451 P 41k 1 £, b0
Fuir value ol jlan assees 4ROt} | AR 4, 1MH 250
Effecr rif a5re; il Lo . _ 1 —
Dreficiency olplanuzses B I L. 173 [ ¥ oB Liz}

The Gr::-up'g wd Puren: ':v:nmpﬂ ny's p b-eanplotoenl debined heae bt obhga.u:_nu asy ol
Lrecember 21, 2017 aad 2116 amw inchaded as part of Chler Tialnlities acoauant in die
smternents of fnanol pesiton (see Mate 23

The snovccen s in the present valee of the debaed bewefs alibigation follos:

—_ . moug Faueon Cosgpany
—..21F Al 20T 2110
Ralance ac hepinning ot year T 4753 T b3 P 4,156 1417
Cuceedl veprdse cusi 37d L1 a7 250
Intcresl expemas 274 T4 250 I
Yemeusurements — actuaral
harcs {runs’ ansioy ituny
chaoyxs= in:
lnancual wszumpbions 23y i M Qi) q b3y
= tapczberstr adjustrmeenis | 115} el | X5} 14
— gt s
WL - i al - -
Beac e paid by 1he palan L 23] o 8. .. . _ _2HiI« p LN
Thalaire af cond lq,:l-:,lrm; E___'-_Lﬂa JHE | L ".lﬂ i 4 |5

The mavenencs iy Lhe fair value of plan zasec ae presenied belew

—  Lmwp__ Parznt Compaoy
k. 2017 ey Ly PLI IS 201G
Balaner at hugnu:lmg ulvear I 1218 i 158 e o =i
Interes* ircome 135G 17 EL I4H
. Rerfurn can plam gesets
[c:r{'ll!dlng AT
included jm ner cnaecesry 10 AU LT i)
{amccitadinns pud e
- thie plan L] a5 4] 21
Tienedics paid by the plen i 263) | 430 ¢ L)Y ENEN]

Bulance ur ead of veac I 4449 I 128 [ | II}!] L il
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The com naitan of the e value of |:|]u.n ansmt- b Uhe ergd ol wach :EE:II:.I::Hng p:ri-:l-'_:l |.'.-:|r
catepory and ek charactenishics iz shoorn elawr

Gluu[: F'p.ltl“ r..'l:ﬂllrlﬂ.ll\'
21T G JULT G
Cash and cask equoviien:s F az 220 P n op 2
Dicbi oz vaalees
F_.-u;m_-l_x:n-mlq: delal imiucaies 204 Ul sl
Crovarment bonds L2 114 1 Ll
Fquaty sacunees:
[Juoted Fquity secucsles
Finanual s icripediaces ik 1,800 W 1.0
Tﬂns.pn}rm.m:-n ard
ORI LT 208 I i L
Clectnewry, pas and vealec 171 e LY Il
Criwrrseled balding,
curmpanues an L] 2 b4
Llthec= 21 LE 1 1
Lhesuated long-le rm =gquiry
IrFEstmEents pLL 171 10 1nin
UITF w7 41 L3 T
Twwermens propeches 6] 4 L1 1
lreinm und recenmiles 1 [ t -
L Ithar wcthmicnls 1 1 - _
P LRTL I AL - 440 E 2y

The fait valoes of the above delst seearirics and quorted equity secunties an: deenmined
based i market prices 1o active matkers. Lang-term equity inveshnent. |eptesent
Ln¥Esiment in curpuratons net bsted 1o active and orgaozed ooarkets. Paicvnhaes ate
determined hased oo the baok value per share based oo latedt audited fnanesad sraeioents
of the investee campany. The fac valug uf the ULLT s deteromoed Taned 1 the net aseet
waluw per urur of investment leld a the fund.

The far value of the plan assets i at Level e rhe faie vae hiseazchy escept hor
uesgyuoted lomg-teom eyuety mwvesotents, loans an:l becewaales, Investment propeenics and
ather wvesenencs which are ar Javel 3.

The cetutus on plan assers are as bullows:

Qroup Larme Company
P 2070 _ L 1 1 | P
Fair value gans [uascs) r 1,187 o 40z o 1,167 I j'::lli]
[nicoosr ipeame 1h6 | w1
Awrval oo laen F L4y B ardl L Ll (L S40;

The arncunats of pest-employment beoefic expense eeervriized in the stalerenis of profi o
ioss andl n ather comprehensive incomse 13 respect of e defined benelu | A -enployonen

pilan are deterrodaed as Eallows:

F1 T -
N7 EUE] Rl
Regagied in .l'-“"":'_l""—r e EL : |
Careent aarnce cast T I+ I it ot
[t crnduresr e panise [tnoome) _ i) : 3 K10}

T 3z T —til D dll
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lisparted re ofher ompredres paper.
Avtiaridl s lospes) asiag fem
chunges in:
Fruzzical assumipriaos F L D BRI Ta
Erproence acljusinirnls 13 I e 127
Lemporruphuc assumptioms - L ]
Tifecr of asser ceding test [ ™ .
Retim fuy plav azsers jedcledng acreunss
inclododd In ok eiedese) L1?4  © ot | Lol
I L8d L 125 Lil15)
I'ncend K ompany
Z1F PINF [P TN
Flrported 1n peofit or oz
CLrEent sacnce cusly " Mr T 28 I i
PAEN a0 &kl Bxpanse Z1 ..l ]
L s L Qo O il
Haparsed er ieder iamipradenre onme
Arbuacas e (e ey acusiog, foum
chamges in:
Financiol Lssurmplivies T M T GH
Expeoencs adjustnsnis Ir 187 1 &
Efferr of asser cellng i T -
Return e plan aesers fercludiog smounts
mcluded i e inrecest) [ | S S v | I (. - -
SN - R LN ) ] -RN——.

Cuptent senvce costs, ncluding, the sitecr of curtaliment 1o past rervice cos, fusmi part of
Erployee Benefity under the Other (perating Brpenses sccount, while netrerest
expense. of income i pressented as part af Inloeest Exprnse — Bill: ayable arat O1her
Bomowings ur [nterest Income Ol i the statemeors b prudlt at lies.

Amaounrs tevcgrazed in ol cumnpeehensie ieome were chided wathin wems that wall
qist be peclassiliel subsequently s profic o loss.

In detechuning che amounts of pest cnjloywent eliligauon, the follwing auge. ol
achuagal sssLenptions were wed:

Expecizd raix el sulany s

21T F s
L
Driscount mtcs &.dH% - & (NP S0 - 5 i 0.05%% - 5.1 3%
Expeored cule of silir incecases 0% - B0 TuH - 1D IHEG 4T - LIRS
Farent Curapdny
Chzesmdiit FLICS % 4% S 5%,
3N H0n1% AR
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Assutnprinns tegarding tuture mocralry ace based oo published suustics and snartaliy
tables. The e Life ERfreLaney oif ao inadawicinagl n:h_n;na at che {_..t-;'_u u|;| t paiserraal
I-'EHI'lﬂg RS of Gk 15 baecd on the 19 AR table, sor back «ix YA, fq'_:-|_ temiales. Tleesc
assumphons arere drveloped by moanageonent sah the asristance of an ndependens
actuary. Dhizcounr factoes ate deternined close ta the end of rach epuiung peoaod by
ecbecenes ta the interest mates of zero coupon government bonds sl coiss to malacity
FPpIoAIating to the teone of tie pust-anglayment ol teon. Oither asFIAPLLOIS a1e
based ou carcent achwsial lenchmacks and managemenc's lustoncal 2 recoce.

ot JLrkr treocteted wir ite Retfrasens [fion

The plan expoees the Group woactoatal siks sueh a: mvesanel Uss, iilebss) bate rsk,
longevity dsk and salarr osk.

) Trvestmend ena fugrmar Dote [indi

Thee. preseor valoe o the dedined Dereeln oldnganion s calealaied waing o discpunt e
deteomuced by refecsnce to macket yields of prverament boods, Genecably, a decrease
in the terest 1ate of a rederence gove onmen) bords will angrease che plm olaliganioon.
H:rweves, thiz will oe paroally ottaer by an increase 10 the cetoen o the plan's
investmments in debt cecunties and of the cetoro on plae asses Galls beloa this tace, o
ardll create @ deficw in the plac.

Cucrently, the plan assels of the Goeup are sgnifcantdy invested in equity and debt
wecuriies, while the Cieoop also invests in cash and cash equivaients and vilier
investments. Due ta the leag-term nataee of e plan abligahen, a level of contimunp
equity Invesimmenls L an appropeiare demens eb the Group’s long torm sthatéy o
manage the plan e fciendy.

i) Lampmady et Sordury Wivde:

'I'he peesent waiwe al the telined benefif eblipation 15 calculated by refecenes do e
best estimate of the oeortalicg of the plaa paricipants during theit ermphey ment, aod
to theic fubers salafes, Concequently, increases in the ke expecincy and salory of
the plan partcipants wall 1esult inan ioceease i tne plin elliganon.

) {reder Lnformmating

The information an the sensuvity anabysis tor oerladn aIH:]lJ]CQﬂ[ actunoal asaompiicre.
the Craralp's asset-labibity matchuog steatepy, and the b snd uacertainty of falees
rash flows celated] 1w rhe post-employmoeo plan aee descnbed 124 aucceoding pages.
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The following talle somimanzes the effects of changes in the aenficant actuaral
ARALL [T el m the deretramation ar e e BEped e u|J|jH:|tiU[1 s al
Decembes 31, 2017 and 2006

Lrroug -
Impacyan Post-emplayment Defined

(Chaoge in Increake in .'[Jlecreau in

LTI TRLILS T Acsowmprion JABEUMDOION

2017
Dhscount sate +7-1% {P ny P 403
salary goowih gase +i-10%% 460 | 3BE)
2010
Discount rage i 1% F looy [ w2
Zalary goower rae +/ 1% L& N
Batcis Comupany
[mpact on Post-cmployroent Defined
H:E;Et leiga.ﬂ.ilgn
Lhange in [increace in Decraase in
2a17:
THsednul 1aie iM% r i r 454
Salary groadls zutz +/- 1% 1 I Ja3)
AH G
Thscount rate +5- L% i 153y I 172
Salary provwth cate +i- 1% 147 [ 1535)

The sensitivity analysis is baged oo a change in s assumpion wiie boldiog ol uehes
aggunitians constant. Tlus amalysis may not be eepreesencative of the acraal change in
e deficed benefit I'_:II'F.I-II'_TJ.Li.-l.:II:L as It 35 vnlikaly that the changs N AsEuMalcng wiondd
ocout i isolation of em: anather as some of the assumpticns oy e correlated.
Vunhermore, in presenting the sensitivity analysis, the present valae of the -I.‘|.{'|'_Il1t'l:]
henefit obliganon at the end uf cach reporng petiod bas been catilaced using the
prujeated valt crect et hed, which is the same az that apyided 1n calc u:!:l.tlug the
defined broefie ablization recngaized in the starements ol fnancat positiou.
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Tu efflciently manage the rearement plan, the Seoup itough et Betrement Fan
Commattes 10 cocrdinatien with the Creoup’s Teos Crhepactmcnts, ensuees that the
tnvestment postion: wie ioaueed consnbering the compuoted reticement cblygatiens
undee the retiteracat plan. This sreatogy aims to match the plan aszets ta e
retitement phligatons due by investing, 1o aszers thar are eary o liyoundoic

(L., ROTEONMENt sEClbues, Cotputaie bBonds, egqudties el high valoe wonower;, Az
the Grovp's retizement cbbgadons are in Phibopmne peso, all 2ssews aec investad in e
sl curtency. Tl Gorp autcely menitoes lhow the duration and che expected
yield of the invesoment are reatching rhe expecred cash o flerar ansing Trom e
cetirement obliganons. [noview of this, warioos mvesoteors aeg fode ioos paoerheln

thit may be Lguidite] onthin a ceasonshle pedod of ome

A large petion of rhe plan asaco as of Decombes 312007 ard 20714 Lt ol
pOuiny secutiries wath rhe talance invesred o fed come secories sl cash and
cazh equivalents The Group bebeves that equity securities offer e best retocne erer
the Loay ceem witks an acceprable lewvel of osk.

feie) Fumdrn 19 _.-"].rr.-:rr.:_gam.rr.-n'r arg = a eoled [oonfrbrazanr

The plan iz curcently undarfundsd by P11 and 733 fioe the Ceroap amd Pacent
'::l:.ll:'lﬁFl:Iﬂ!.'.' t*cip—n{h'vi:]:r', based wn the [atest I:'unl;_]ing weluarsal wiludtlone wa 2007,

The matueity profile ol widissouned expeceed benefic payiments from the plao aatha
20 years fioen the end of each repordng petiod fullow:

Lirpup . Papent Company

FAP I 2T M7 _ 206 __

Lese shan one peoz P I I L F dd T 5
More fhan one pear b [oee yeals LaL 1004 1,0Fm any
More tran Bve pears to benpmars 2435 [anl 1054 1.7

I s R R N A N ¥ e

The Croup and Patent Cumpany expect: o contribube THTH wad TULE, ros pecirely,
tea chie placy in 201G
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i MIRCELLAMNEQUS IMCOME AND EXPENSES

These wcsomi s congist of the E’JI]r:n:l.."inE_'

5.2 Miscoliameous fivoite

LTI
e 204 2000 L5
Bentals la.2 P 41 I aga 335
Cawnt on assets sol I1L. LLEL,
131 441 10 Ml
Coavidend ipvwee Lz EA L) 441 L
Reacawesies Erram wencen o FF assors 15T 111 [at
Liers 240 254 |
E 1A% 0 LR [ 120
Dartnl Cornparmg
Tl 201+ sl pd
Rertais 112,
24.30) F o I ar P i
Ciwns o assets sald 14§ R |3 Lol
Dividen:k imcmaie L2 19c a3 1
CHhers Lig 221 A%
E Lz I 0 Y .= [ CON 5 )

Miscelaneous income classified ws Cihe e meludes, sebares, peoaley charpes and other income
that cannot be appropriately clessafied anler 2oy of the faregomn g moeme accounts.

252 Miscellaneors Expeitses
Loup
e ol 3 20 I | 1 5 R

Ciedic card-relaed expenses ¢ ffid T aet I w4
[nsucance L 1B L3
Commumication and wnloereation

YLV 447 b5 143
Munupreir at orher

prefemiunal Fees J&R ANH S0
Ardverising and publiccy 133 TG B
Transpuorbalin anch Lavel 214 L1 11
Baubiig G (LK [4d T
Hatiure ey wnd affice supplies La9 112 12
Chher pamide temvices L0 126 1%
Dunavds apdd chancahle

coatribrarion 51 b1 1
Representation arvd enrelancmenl o 15 'Z'f
]_,lhg:.mn."unu;n auigired experses 16 A Fl
Membecshup dees " 2 I'_]|
Lakers I L133 . I N R

" 4pnz T HIE 1475
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Farem Company
[ Y R y 2L ]

Cradic csund ralajad EMpCNEEL r HEd r ey T 84
Tnswrance e 1 R&d BT | a7
Sepncr aril processing bees 697 5ol 511
oarmamudecanien ned infnoomahon

BETVILCE hrd 3 ot | 258
seheeuear g and publiciby a4 A L
Munayemen and other

pruteasivnal feey . L% 217 175
Darbung lees LE |5 1 H 141
1thar pulmide secnzes ns 13 K]
Toaaspeamanion and reywel (111] 92 159
Seaimnesy wred pEfice supples T B 2]
Drnatans and chantalile

cunrzibntisng 51 LE) e
Ulit;.ll.iun.-"als-tl: '.er=|l.li:rt=:| b Pl Ly £ 141 &l
Bepresentuien and enterranmmen: s ILh +1
Membersmp Eeee 1 1R 15
Irhers M o243 LebL ] 347G

B 1039 I 13 L L]

The Sieoup's ather sxpenses are composed af Teephr, employes activibties expenses. lines and
ptna]'ul_-s,, and seagomad pivessays. The Pazent Cuml:langlr':: aflier cagiesses al wachade Tees for
recoreds, facilities apd management aebeiees oo oa elated party cnader commuan soniiol AUt
tr FaG, P35 aed (453 10 2017, 2016 acrk 2015 i rectively (see Mote 28 3)

THCOME AND OTHER TAXES

Under Philippine tax laws, the Parent Company aod its dumestic subsidianes ize subject o
percentage atid Gthes taxes (presemed as Taxes and Licenses in (he scabements of prodl o
loss), as welf s ingume taxes, Peccentage and wther taxes paid comsin b nrincipally of the prose
ceapts tax JSGRT) uonl ocumienlary stamp tx LT

BA M. 9238, which was snacted on Fehtoary W), 2004, poiscides teer the reimpusiton af
GERT oo banks and non-hank (uancial iatemmediacies pei fonmung quas-Lankieg Nt
anck ather non-bank financial Lterrediacies hqginnmg_l:ummqr 1. K13

The recogmoun of Lability of the Paseus Company and ceain subsidharics Jee GRD 5 baged
on the eelared regulauons riued Ly the tes audantes,

Tocame taxes inclede the repular corporate ineusne tax (RCIT) of 3%, and Bol Lax rraid at
the rate of 20%h, which represeats the binal withhalding 1a® oo grass ILEres Meome Trum
FUUETNMCNE EECUTiLiE: and other depresit subsatutes.

Frterest allowed as & dJeductible sapense is reduced by an amount eguavalent Lo vceam
percentage of lngtest income subjected to final . Migwrewen CopoTe income ax BACIT) of
i an mesdified pross oo 15 computed and compaied with the RLTT Any excess of the
MLCTT aver the BOIT is deferred and can be ured a5 2 @ credit agidast eegulac incase rx
lability in the nexl Uwes consecuave praa. [ addition, te Group’s el apering lose oty
aver NOLCO) is aflowed as a deduction lew taxable incame i the net chree cunsgcuoee
Vears,
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Fabfeaiive May 200, BoA Iea, 920 resicrted the ms exeonidaose o FOT ) aod afichere
banking wts {3BV5). Undez such Jow, the income deoved by the KDL from toregn
gubtency tnsaclion: wilh pon tesidents, OFBLUsz, locsl commecctal baok: Inzlwding branches
af foreign banks is tax-exempt while interest inceme en fevsign currency Loans foom sesidears
ather than OBL: g other depository banks under the expanded sysrom e suljeen g 1050
POOSS NECOME 3.

lnterest icome on deposite anth other FCLUs and offshore banking woits 15 sulbpect to 7 5%
final tax.

To 20017, 2006 apd 20013, the Croup opted b contiowe cluimmoe eoaized deduciones Do ucsne
ld3 PuLip s,

The Pareol Company™s tergpn subsudiacies ave solbgecr to wcome and other waxes baged on
the emacled 1ax Tvass of the gpenlcies andfor junsdicions where they operate,

I Curreat and fefermed Taxes

The taz wxpenne (accm a3 epoed ke stasemenis of poolin e Joss comsess ot

Crryay e
- || r —-_ 1| [ —— ] - N
Current tex EXpEnSE:
1T F F A 41a F QLTH
I¥1raal tax 233 177 E
Gxrcess FMIT werr BCIT ) I I |
Al 51 EXl
Appbaanen of MCLT i L1y - ————
S0 T3l 31
Delcrced tay ¢¥pease (income]
sehhig 00 capunanan and
sevegsal of tempocacy diffcrensss 28 ] A I X
I 4 Lo L .
Farent Cognjpany .
1T LI] 20l
Cupeent Llan L Bl
RULL P L1 B L I ELUNEEN Y lul
Ejnal tax 147 173 LT |
Eocess MCTT wwe RECLIT 5 Lt 4G
Ttk ank 441
Applcacan ol MOT {— 3oy _ .- - —
IRd HE 41
Dlelened rax expanse (i o]
elating to crlginacion and
sevessal of tompowary differemees J43 gddy o 945
T 07 I Ve H I 1i
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A cecancillatian o tax rn pretax pratic compiced at the appleealzle stacutoey e b
rxpense (income) repocted o profst or bees 15 as folloues:

rong . —_—
P2 (11 2l . 201E
Tax on pretax Pmﬁr at e i 1,54k P 11 T L Ad%
Adpsiments For incame swlges bed b
loeser income g 1 [ 454y il 112
Tax eifeces of:
“un-taguble imeome L ThEy o g43; | 521K
Me-dedocuble repenies RO& M L1
Recomwan of previously wnreonemuzeed
deferoed ram Wil - [ dEq | )
Ubbraton af MEIT 350 .
FZDU nmeume { 1L | MM 125
L.Inrﬁ;u_gnizni T Y ch FEFrenres. L L} Py L2%
1tilizarian al OO | L I 4411
L hers - 1 J
E 4] I 1741 (2 Jun
Faregr Company
— &y s I IHS
Tax nn precas probie ne 3005 F LT NCEL |54
Adiestrments Hor sncome sulnt e To
lrwer ineunE Ik 1dlds i LT 0] IR W
Tua efiects of:
Man tasable ancome { =101 I HaEh W
Moao-deduc il expenses LES ] QR 425
Necognition of presiously dnessag mized
delezeed tag #5547 - [ T k)
Llrilizarion al MTET 356
=MLl incoame { 275y I L1 125
Uirecogruzed semperary dilleee nees { 13} . [ EL Y
Unilizarian of BOLE - . e LN +3)
u [ ! .' a 15

The deferred tax assets ol the If._’.n:lu.]:r j.i:i:I'_'lE_ﬂ:i?;i:d in the eopsolekited siarements of hnancial
position as of Decernlrer 31, 2IHT and 2006 celaee to the aperanicns of the Parear Company
wrigl vertain subeidiaoes as st ledosy.

Sateanents of Sracanenss of
‘inanu AL —_ D'rirfiy ¢ Laops
2017 ML 2017 20 __al5
alkswawe for impauwment . P 1410 0 1,17 (R 0T an? P 4%5
Deonasean bier voedst cacd )
cewand fa PRI Iz? ]'E"'_l _ﬁEE- %
Fazems MCIT fill L | 204 156 -
Fast.amplonnent banetal 3
obligutivn A2 Gl B al -
Theberped cenl — Pabs 17 M 17 1% | - )
ML - - - ; 443 LE
Lhhece 12 FIN | k] . 1S -
Dieberred tax ussets | CON .| T SN ¥,

Deferred mx o
ilkoane (expense) - el i 1ALy B HsE L1
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Ln 2IK5, the Paten Company cecognized deferred tax gsaet sangruniling to P443 on a pottion
of i unutilized MOILLD atopan ring te 1,474 The total vowalized NOLCD amounted o
F1825 a5 of Decemnber 21, 2003, 1o 2015, the Pazent Company wolized 2 paricn of the
tetnatning MOLLCO amounang #e P12, whils the Talaoee of P77 expired.

The deferred tax axses b e Parean Cormpany recognized 12 i soaremenrs of lnageial

[essbeen g5 of December 21, 2007 and 2006 & sl belewr,

Swarcmencs al

Slatemeiy o

— Finanuial Purition Pugfivgr Lo
—.. 2017 L ] s ld S 201
Alyaance forampacnent. P T T wr (T aly 1 YHOO? -
Travisen Ber veedu card
crvwaacd Pa;mErLs 12T |05 2T o -
Pog - rivplagne it L nefic
ohlipatin Lr 18 i 13 -
Defeored enl - FAS 17 Ik I 13 1F -
Encesa MCIT - 330 o A3y 1) -
BJCRLCL] - - : 443 fEM
1 Jtherrs 13 3l i __ ] e
Crelceeed dux aserls T 4y T Laiia
Defeccad nay
MO [e:-:prnse-] — et ir 135 | 3 113

The Fatent Company sod certain subeidiaries have oot recopnized determed tax assets oo
ceHan penpatacy didferences snee macagerent beliewes that the Parcor Company and
crtiain subistliarics 1oy oo be able o generare sufficient taxable profitin the Jutue against
wlili 1he tax henetins ansag fuam these deducoble temporany difierences, > OLCO and

other rax credic: can be utifized

The unrecopnized defermed tax assets relate 1o he folbowing:

G;ﬂu Pargne j:gmﬁu
2017 i 31 1Y 20

Aleaance bor impacment F 250 ek T Ty P W2
Towcese MICET L) I -
FCHLCCR L | B .
Fos-empkiment heneds

talTiggcian pl3 47E - 244
Advance rerial - 2 - _ -

L Ll I LRI I T Llys

Censequenty, deferred tax liahalities were alse not recoppneed on ceriain saxable renporaty
differences a5 the sertement of those can be offsct by the availzble Jeduenhle reooporary

daifferences it faturs.

10 addigun, detetrmd tax Liabilites oo aceuodated traoslation wijierments, relaong s
Farcign subzidiades were not eegognized since theic reweesal can be controllul, aned ar is
probable that the termpoary dilflerenee will nog erverse in rhe bosesezalble future.
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The cdetails of the Ceroaupp’s WOT.CO which can e cdusmed as dedocrivn crean Furaes rasalile
icoezse withiin theee years beoin the vear the tagable boss weas wacuered and swachas five years
trom the pear S0 losses wrene wcnmeed, 1 shown beleor

lucepuicn Expiry
AULTe P 1. T 21 n . K L0 M e
20l [ - &y

.Y S NN || Y \SSS-T S L.

The brcakdown of the Group's excess MCIT over RCIT with the cottespondiog validicy
proods follows:

207 P % I - (LR [+ s 2K
M 144 151 - 4 Y
2H 3 44 cl - .

K4 |20k 2

Mu

The P350 avadable MCTT appalied by the Gmup o 27T solely pectabies w thor MACCIT b the
Parent Company a5 il bis genctaced et wxable incoroe ansd 15 Jeable b BACLL Bor the reat
ended Drecambee 31, 2017,

N
E

262 Supplemantary Infernarion Regoired Lader RR 15-26000 andd RA 19-2411

The BIR izsued R 15-2000 and RR 19 2011 oo Movember 23, 2000 and December W 3T,
respectively, which require ceotun i induumaton te be disclesal as ol the aotes Lo
financial statements. Such supplementany slvrmatio iz, hesever, out a requeed pare of the
basie fiewancial seatements prepared in accordance wirh PFES, i1 is neither @ teguteed
disclrsure under the SEC rules and regulations convering form snd ciosent of financial
staterpenls under the Secunties Regulativa Code Ruls 68, ax amended

The Pareat Company presenied rhas gax informatae requured by the BIR ax 3 sopplementad
sehicdule fled sepazutely from the bagic Iancial stateme nis
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TERLST OPERATIONS

Secutites amk progerties (other haoodepozias) hebd by e Paceey Coampiay insd TAT
Eiduciary or apency capacioes bt therr respeciyve cosmamets abe dor wcledid e ghe Tl
slatements, SICE these ate aul tesourees of the Tatent Company and B52 The Gtoup's wetal
trust meowrces amaunked to PY1585 and 34,804 a5 of December 21, 2017 and 20146,
respectively, The Parent Company’s total toust resowrces amowated to P4.593 and 41,26
as oof Decemnber 31, 2017 and 2004, respectively (soc Mate 29 1),

In cunnection wath the toust operauens of Qe Farent Coopasty acod RSl ome de e
placesnenrs: ad gravetnment secummes with a o [ace value of 1933 fer the Gooup and
04 for the Parenl Compuay west deposioed widy dw BSE w 2016, On Oowher 27 311060,
the B%F ssued 3 memarandum mofifinng Hee appooval of Muneary Board on the
disenunoinee of access of trust entines to the RAT deprosn Lacilities effective an july 1,
017 '[he BT mandures thar the BST deposit facilities shoold seres a2 monetary poliey
in;trument fof managng deme:be iqoudity in the Brrocial syslencaned these ane aor Lakernd e
to Deeotne 3 Iorestmenn outlet of baaks and toust entsbize. Congequently, the Geoun baz
withdeawen all its cutstanding depuosits and placemenc: warh B2 0 2R

In coenphance with existing BST reguiavons, [P af che Pazene Company™s anad RS prir
Freaom brust busicess 12 appropriated to surplos feserve. This annual appropristivn s tequired
until the surplus teserve For trust buriness equals 20% of the Parent Company’s and RSV
regulatory capital. The sucphes ceserve is shewn as Resenve fue Teuar Business in the
sranements of changes in eyguity

Te Group and the Patent Company tran:berccd b Sogplus 4o Besarre Bae Teust Business
T2 and LG, rerpectvely. e 2017 1127 and F32, respectvely, w D0, and, P and L5,
respecuvedy, i 2013,
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Miangenien] pasinne] amil nehers
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ez enuel Decambe 3, 20 7, 20 0 a0 HH S is firsvetiod heiee:

Groug
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Amomnl ul Dulrisnding Anenee of W ulaanling e ol uraandng
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|.mare wm] fecen 3bkr FLN| Lr o Maoqr W Mo Lo 124
1 2punl balabiby 2 I FLl LU 1 va5] 1,=11 I,3uk LILTE]
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2} fpans and Hecoivaides

Thet summary of the Group's aomd Pacent Company's sigabiant tansacion: andd 1he selbawed
outetanding balancss Eor loans and reeeivalles wich iy celared patucs as of ancd For e pears
ended Decetnlmr 31, 37, A6 and 2015 are as follows:

Lgup.
Interext linans

—Belated Fay Cavigury —lzauances  Bepevmotie _ lwowme . Quntandiog

L1

micholders F - B LI In P b
Poelated oz wer urndes
SO ke LE | 214 1 - P
Key manapemen: rersaanel a1 4B1 1 211
Urher eedared inierczi B2s? A . an3 L 1
E 1l E £ IC5E I ) L1 12547
2016
Stosckhashber L' I 55 I+ el I k|
Relzed pirrjti indre
Lianmon camership - Al 14
Koy management pecsonnel 1 i . [
Lither related intereses Tl 1475 R 1,341
I P L Sir B e 1013
A5
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Pagsol Compaoy ..
Imierens Triann
—Belated Py Cascposy lovwagvz = Bepayments locomie Llutstandiog
2010
Alockholders I - I 5 T A I N
sulnuliaces 1,173 1,2% 2
Relargd pyntigs wizder
COMLE frter | A1 R .
¥ey manugermeng personned 1 2 - 1
Llcher eckared anieresrs La3) 4474 57 4541
i E&OR D §3%] T il T 2135
2%
“Aackholders 3] - I i 1 o EMI
Pubipidiaces AL 1002 3 2z
Beelated pactics arder
Cammek sanesrshap a0 2 A5 Pl
ELef marugement personrel . 3 . £
Uther celated intcrcila dix] EXE) 101} 1GHG
L [ L4 I g JEIT

In e ordinary course of business, the Group has loan iansacioes wieh each crher, ther
other afbliates, and with eettign Incecton, Qftieers, Stockbolders and Kelated Intenets
[DHDSRIs). Unaler exasung pobicies of the Groun, these loans are made substanbally wn the
sk ledny as [gans tnoother individuals and businesses of comparable sk,

Under gurreat BsP regalanens, the amoont of iedividoal loaws 1o o CRCRERL, 0% el adueh
st be secwred, shoudd not exceed the amownt af e ensuandnzeed deposoe and ook value
of the iwesamnent in the Groop arl Pavent Cumpany and, o1 acy of its lending and oenlank
financial substdizriss. 1o he sggrepate, Joans ta DOSRIs. penetally, shomid vor exceed the
tatal equdby ar 15% of e total loan portfolio of the Group aned Parenr Company . However,
nen-rsk kams are excuded in both individual anl agregate celing computation As of
Dreceanbae 31, 2007 and 2016, the Group apd Parese Comnpany 13 i compliance with these

regdarooy tequiesnents,

The following table shoos tic other information celating w1l luana, sriher credit
secompmndations and gueeantees granted to OSBRI as of December 31 in acconlaace wiel LGP

I:l}l:rn:ing E_l.,lj-ﬂ::“nr_':i'.

Group Pargp Company
2y 0 . 2019 Al

Toww. vuizanding

DRI lnans r Rd2 ! WP bl I 533
Limsecared LA TSR] bl | il il +1
Past due BI005EL 1 1
Ban-acving DO i . 1
et of CH SR Joaps

b tatal Jural poaredinlic {+15% [N oyt 0. 1'Fe 0 21%
Mercent oof onsecuced

DUER] hoans e Ll

D FsR Inans 19 14" [0.22%% 1.0 A 4%
Peaceny of past due DUR]

bpuns to tata] TH ISR 0.L5%, (NENELS 0, 19%% 1%
Peccent of non-accnung

THISEL frrana v toesl

TSR] loana 1Y (L . H% 0, [
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In 5137, she Group recognized impairment los < en cectain loans and cezervables from
L3RI amovnhng to 100 and ik recoguzed as part of noatemoeot Lozaes acopant o the
2017 statement of probt or lovs, Theee ale no unpallment lesses incorted i 2006 and 2015,

282 Dhepasie Liabilities

The swwacy af the Caoup's and Pavest Company's sgotlcant naosacuois and the aekmed
worstanding balances foo deposic labiliies witly its gelated pacoes a5 of aod for the yeans eaded

_.———

December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 are v follows (ree Boe 177

'E-I:U'EFI'
Intereni Chutklanding
—Bebed Tarcy Cacgory —Drepaeits. | Withdoewals Expenec Balance.._.
M1
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Key manapemnent proacnue] +.34= 1 19F 1 213
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Ulcheer eelaced] nnegears alad) F.a08 2 aul
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teocklold=cs I+ o I AR I R 5
Sl Juries IT AT N2 47T | ::’:5
Assooiales 22335 120k > i
Belaled purlics lasder o
CAMUITn Gk rwelEhap B '2“.'1:; ; .I’.‘H[;.
- 4 i
Kev aanngement perioanel 114 e E
[ hher ccluted Laecests Lhi [0 14047 . ]|



—_

o 3R

_ i e Tagep Compagy

Interes1 Uul:in.nd:ing
—Aclated Faoty Calspory —Drepopics = Wihdrawgle _ Espenst = HWalagce
2L4:
Stecrhoklers I WMale W ARG 17 o P .21
subsidivgies L W | IR E a 2.a7H
RELET T b RY T X P 1L
Bakered pt::its winder
commen aanership |.ZB7, 3l L 243 Bad 14 | b
Bty managtmerr peosinme| A M5 4208 1 EEN
Ulcheer celaced inceresrs LOHhIs L& ATE i) 115
[ 13045 A3 R L i It -+.151
mils
“snckhialders [ 440024 d8.4HY W I ANE
wibisidliacics [ E L 1,042,521 H ERT )
SLrales b AL 20,153 3 N
Felated pnniu unedar
conmnenean surerchyp 121.2:3 T21,E09 Ik 2,20z
Kry managemene personnel 1055 522 3 G
Licher relamed incecests M0 N I 2 3
o IPERARN 4R [P = A

Drepogit Labilioes transactions with related jratoes have similar tzome with ather

Ut Ko,

283 Saie and Purclase of Securities
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The Tatent (ompany's and ceptain suhzidianes enpage in the tcdieg ol lecsunent seeaooes
a5 {ul,lnh:.lrpu_rﬂ-ﬂ. ter the Hapsathon | lre [EASACHIONS ADE ]-_lr_ir:ed warbla b e rramsad tons weth
other counterparties <rutside che Group and thens ave no un cebtled trapsactusng as of e end

ol each reprtng period.

I d Nepremient Find

The Pareat Company and vettam subsidianies’ retzemenr funds covered uader et Jefined
bene fit post-empluyment plan maictained foe qualified enployecs are adnnisteced and
maraged by the Patenr Campany's and RSES Truse Depagment= m areordance wath 1he
rEspeCOve LSt apTELine COVETinG the |2l

The rerdfement funds Liave transactions wieh the Group and Taseo: Commany as ok

Decemime 31, 2007, 20146 a0 2015 as fullves

Araremi Compagy . —
Mer Amount  Dumtanding Tet Amnont Cnts canding

 Mptwce of Trapeectipns ol Tmapaacton _ Balance  of Trpgaacin _ Dalapce

HHT-

InvESCmEenD L GRLTE L

shates pf Paccnt Comnoany (P 6] 1 312 41 t} P LIZ3
|nwrcatpuwsne in corproike
deta secinties [ 1] LA 4 -
0 s aath the Faroil
D':E-;l'l:lnj!dn}' 220 427 23l i
Fan walue gains 1200 - 1, Z0dr -

lmrcccsr cnerarm i .
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Farent Company
Mes Arwguag Crenaraeding Mot Auneunt Cutatanding

o4

Lwrrslmenl m comomen

shaces of Parenl Company o . ™ 13y P . b 1,043
Levestmedt un crporace

b [T T v b E11] . Ay
Drrposits witk: che Farent

Compary 75 =l 2z
Far walue i T . 31
Inderest iIncome i . L]

=
12

2014

Diaveesimenn i Cormnonr

thaces nf Tacent Coampany L 53] [+ LHLT (P gy P 1,503
Liave esrieenn 41 COrparars

Aeld secarnices [ %1 At - 4
Mrposits wirh che Purent

I:|:|r|1|:||_m' 11 124, -
Far value luyse: ) LA . [ a4
Linvmest income < - A

The carrping asuount and the composiion of 1he plan agsels as ol Deceanba 31, 2007 and
MG ave disclosed in Mote 24,2 lovestmen| i gozjiciane deb secaribes include
lung-Leemn negotiable certificates of deposit #sned by the Parent Company

The ifotmation oo the Group’s and Parent Cumnpant’s contiibutieons to the reuteowat fund
and benefit payments thiusgh the fund are disclosed o N 242

Tl retiremeat Fund nelther |.I|:':.-l'~'jdl?--'\- any guamnt{g b BUbLTY fiae any -:':l‘.]'agi'.jliilﬂ oof tla= Gl"iJ'I.'I[J'
RGE ks Lwcsmes o its ovn shares of slock corvered by ang restriction auel ens.

ZNF Oeher Refired Parry I ragsachions
i} Lease Ctmiracts watk BRC wrd Snblenir gressent wetl Sk vadiarre:

The Parent Conpany and coctain subsidianies occupy severa Hoovs of RCBC Tlae as .
Jeaseholders of KRG see Muie 207(b)]. Rental oxpense incucred by tlie Girowp related to this
legse aroangerrend 15 ncluded as et ul Checupancy sk Tywprnent-eolate IJ.q'-x pronses ACC ot
la the statemenis of profit o loss Tlhe Parent Company's Jesse <onlact with BT 1
effective until Droeerber 31, 2020 afrer v was renewed in 2015 for auuothet foee years, The
cutstanding payable o the lease contruct is presented as patt arf Accounts py pitlvle: under
Chket Lizhilities account in the 2017 and 2016 statemwnts of buancia pospion {see Mote 221
The zelated curziaading payable 12 unsecured, pusarerest-braciog and prayable in casla oo
desmand.
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The Patgny Cum[.:-:l ny entezed e sublease AEteEnE L with cermain sihgidices which
orcupy several o of ROBC Tlaza Rental inceme by Parert Comoany relared i thiee
sublease arranierents 15 includad as pact of Hentals ander the Miscelancuas inrgme accooor
in the sraremnents ol rrafie o loys {5ee Botes 1420 The vorstanding receivable oo the lease
COlLiEACry 0 l:lbe:entnﬂ ax part il Bcoounts eeceivalle under Limans and Becervables acoeoand in
the seatetaeats of Ananciel pesition {see Mot 113, The relared owtstanding recevalle i
ﬂﬂi—l’.‘:’!lﬁl’td, fonint=ces I:-hrs:i.ng and] pa‘_ﬁlblf i1 eash on demand. Ba n.u:l._:r.n;q:nl; bar|jewes that
the eeeeivaliles oa the sublease agreenzents aec fu].l:,l reacrrcrulbile.

(% Lager Comtraet oo RYEB Lorzonsie { snler

Lo Crowaibies 20103, the Parent Company and RSB envered ioce 3 lease agieemient covecing
cettain uffice and packing epaces of K3B Corporate Center ar a enonthdy reotal dee of 77, The
mwrilhly rental payments ace subject o an escalation rare of 3% anuwady eftecivea o 2011 up
to the 5" year of the lease tee. Thi lease v {ur 2 peniod For five years which :hall end in
Cetlrer 2018 asal renewabic ws may be ageeed by the partizs. Uhe culitandmg recsvable on
the lease Cunrtach in presenmed as pacl of Accoonts recervable uoder Lean: and Recervalles
account 1o the smaeements of Ooaccial pasition {see Noee 1100 Tae relaed ourstanding
receivable 15 wneecured, noninterest-bearing and pavable in cash oo demand  Managernen:
beliewes that ceceivable from the lease contract 5 bolly recorerable

fel Jerwie Agreessens wieh 1URC

The Paeenr Company has Serace Agrsement (the Agresment) wqth RESC wierein LESC
sheadl F!’D‘-’i.-d'-? the Parent CUJ‘I‘II_'IEI.‘.!T’ wath rn::rktli.ng, clix Lr]]‘.lulj-:nl.I I'E'Ell.IIJ'E:'IL valire i dend
selling assistance and processing seraces In gommestion wich the operaow of the Pareo
Cranpany's credie card business. The total service proces:ing Tees wareed Sy the Patent
Conpany 15 recagized as part of the Servace and prscessicg lees vadet Ghe Miscelanesas
Expenses account in the siatement: af profit o loss (see Moz 2520 The outstandicg
payable related tu the setvicy ageectnear s presented as part of Accounts payable veder
Other Ligbililies account in the starements ol Aoancial posiien (see More 2280 The relaea
outstanding payable js unsecured, nemanzrest-beanng and payable in cash on deroanl.

(] Key Manapameens Peranesd Congterrafion

The liteakderan of key management persaancl cempensaaon fodees:

Geowp
2017 . L 1] ]
Shorr-reem amplovee oot s F 44 F we F 3
Post-rmplayment detincd beue i1s 16 1% L4
E 495 [ n L Soy
Pageyn Copapany.
2017 2015 ! |1 - B
oL becm q’mph_l:l-tf b nezbiuts r SIH P 2N g iy

Vost-empleyrment debined Lenclis -

= 28 T 21 B Aar
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COMMITMENTS AMND CONTINGLNCIES

lu the aoenal comse of aenainne of the Goup, there are varioss omciling coarnutneus
and l:-::rntingi:m Liakrilirees, sivch wes FUARAN LI, comamidiarerily Ny exhrpudk coedlt, thx assEssmens,
claums fzom cwstomess and third partes, ec, wid arowaes o tefeceed oo e Tiascial
staterments. Managemenr does aor anddpace Insaes Boan these rransacinoes that adhl
advetsely alfect the Ceraap’s apecationg.

[0 e opuion of muaagensent, the $ws 300 clouns auskiog o e eodoal couese ef
apecatons F the Geoup that remmain vnsettled, U deceded adversely, will oot avolse sums
thar would have marenal cfbece oo the Group's tinanoal posioon or operatng cesules

281 Contimgent Acceunts, Grarantees and Otter Commiinrenis

The fallgwing is « surnmaty of eonmogenctes and comunibnent: arising Sooem cransactions net
given mecopmitten 10 the statement OF taocial podton, expeessed at then eqpuvalean pego
contractual amounts as of Decemnber 31, 2017 and 2016:

Crigup r
2T G 37 0L

‘I rnagr depairmene gecaunrs r Y L b Y pilg I dd s P Gl 20
Tremvatuwr aacls 45,130 L R Ay 25 2T
Crganarsding guaraness sraed 41,458 11 EE 41,358 LY
1k=rrmtiv= Liglibibes 4] 517 2T 256 4] Are 17290
Urused comomcinl [ereres

ol oedir 17,355 Inra} 17,055 19,724
e exclaa nge s1d 0,2 5453 1 G52
vip exclange booghe 20 5457 6,20 1455
Tnward lulls Jur vollcetivn 1407 i LA EXICH
laie xiepn:mb:.-"pa.}'mznts e i o [} 434 L
Cupwgd Telle Bac collechion 133 H-a 133 4
LIers 17 L+ 17 17

202 Poverty Eradication agd ANeviation Cortificarcs Hotrels

In Cctobier H11 1, the Bank Al = cose before the Couwrt o Tax Arpeals guestionug the 205
fral srdthholdiag @x on PEACe Feands by the BIE The Dack aubseceontly withdrew i
petition and joied agonas banks in their peatian befure the Supieine Courl e b sae
miatter. [Nenarchstandizg the peadency of the case and rhe isuance ol 2 Tompuoracy
Restaiming Oeder by the Supreans Courg, the Buzeaw ol Teeasury withlield P197 0 Ocrober
A1 from the Bank oo the interest oo its PEACE bonds boldiongs. The amount wis
oeiginally recognized s part of Accounts pecavables undes Loas and Recereallis accaunt in
the sraterments o financial positnon unhl iowas setted in 2017,
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O lanwary 13, ZME5, the Suplesne Court oulldied the 20T BLA Mealings elasatfvirg ol b=
as depusat substitutes and erdercd the Burcaw of Treasury to et the: 2075 Boal withholding
ax it omehehd un e PEACe Bonds v Chotgber 18, 2011, Oy Macch 16, 2015, the Baok
a] RO AT Aled a Motion fer Clatification and/or Partial Recnnsideration, secking
clapfication to exchidle fein the defimoon “deposit suhsorutes” Lthe PEACE Bl since
thers was only ane lender st the pomary marker, and subsequent saley i the secoodary
mrarket (24ain to 2 sale ar assigorment of credit, which s net subject i wathholding o The
lfarent Company and BOCAR alao sought jrartial cecensideration m the rubieg that showlt the
PEACE Punds be considered as depostt substrtutes, e TR sheuld colleer rhe unpaod el
withlwlding Lix dicectly from BEADN Code NGO, ot aoy lepder oo inwestse, as withbalding
agents, since there was oo interest eained and collecton of the withholding tax, it atall, baz
alpeacly prescoibed. Tl Tank and REAT also reiterated its amguinits that the tax consobates
domalale wxanon, violates the oen-impaimmens clause of the Consuwton, and s a reach of
the oblipstions by cthe Buceaw of Trewsuey when o pizved the TEACe Donds. Thae Office af
the Solicitor Cieneral {050, 3 counsel for the Republic and aibel publc responduots, abo
fled & Muticn for Recansidecanon and Claficanon, eeiteratiog ke BIR' oght i wililobd
A08%% a3 Final Wichholding Tzx aod askine fioc daafication an the effect of the neing on athet
B CHINNELE SEOLLakIcs.

1o a Resolunon dated Qercher 5, 2016, 1he Sopraine Caurt partially granted che Baok sol

RO ATs Botion Fer Claphoaiion and, or Paerial Becon side ran o, Slaung that (2] (o determine
whether the secusities newly issued and sold by the Butean of Treosury should be treared s
“deprrar subsites”, the phrasc “at any une ot in eeiarion to MW o oure enders’ s hould
e teckaned at e e of theic algingd saance, i thi iterpretatiun, A any rafe, cannat be
appbed retaatively since s would prejudice the Back and BCAP wlich rebed in grood
faith on the eulings/ upinusas of the BIR dat the trosaction in wsue 15 exempled fLom any
final wishholdiag tax, and (g such being the case, the AL Tonds cannzt bo zeated as
deposit sulstitutes, O the atler hand, the Supreme Courlloied the M tor
Reconsideation and Clacification filed by the D3SC0L The Supreme ot tikowise Trehl that
Aus 1o the crentinued pefsal of the Puceau uf Treasery o release the amounl of T4 000,
which it withheld upon matunty of the PEACe Bunds, 1o wiolaricin oof the eder isswrdl Ty the
Suprer: Gt the Burean vt Treasury s Tiahle oo pay Jezp! interest of sis prrcent (6] per
annum on e aforesaid diseunt of 1t 950, counted fooms Coeeber U 2011 umil dully paid

On Apdl 11, 2017, the Parent Compiy received a copy of the Cntry «f Judpmenr stating,
among athers, rhat the Drecizon dated fanaacy E3, 2013 and the Resuluuon daned August §6,
2016, which partially graoted the Matian Far Clzificaccon and, ul Fartia] Recunsndecalion filed
Ly the Parent {iompany pecame lieea] ool executony e Croeober 210 2HG. The Bureat ol
Treasury hay s far seuled FI%Y oof the Perear Compang’s clasn. The balance of PLia
cuttently the subject of discussiun hetween the Pacent Company, the FIAC and (i Hureaw
af Treasury, The TDIC s evalualng, unuog vehers, the deed ol assipornens execared in
favor of fhe Parsnt Compaay by sural bank, wihich has since then been niaced wriler
Licguukartion, alits PEACE bomls haldmgs o partial settlesment of iy past lean cblpaton.
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I8.3 Nale of Marionad Seeed Cocpocaiton {INFC Flans Awwee

Tn Chenpliet 2008, Glebal Steek Phibppines ($3PV.AML]), Inc. G500 and Global 1spat
[[cldings (SPY AMC), Tne {GIHE (collectively, "Globul Steel), which purchased the Thpan
Planc assets of the MSC [“N%: Panr Asseta™ from the Liguaidatos in 2004, aaiatal
arbireatinn penceedings wath the Sinmpote Joinacional Achitranon Ceete M3LA0 T seekiog
damages on account of the Gilire of the. Liquidaror and the Secored Lredinors, meludag the
Bank and KCEC Capital Corpeeatiom ("RCAP™), to delmer the MNAL Pl Assers free and
cleat from Bens and encusnbeance, purnortedly deprving hem of the opportonty tooose e
said sssers 1 seonee additional loans to Duod the 1’_1|}i:'l_'".‘|1‘_il:-|_".$ eif el TAlarrel wead U|J_5:‘.]di: the
saspe, Uho May 9 20H 2, ths 3140 Arbutra] Trbonal peadered a Facial Award o Favee uf
Global Steel in che tota] amuunt of () LISFEL, ar apd vy waray of Jost LlFlFu'_'ll:I:Ui'li.l.'_!.' el cnaks
pra fits and (L T 402, mp:cs-:nr_i.ng the vaier of the undelivered Hillet Sluep Laod neeas u:ing
3.71 hectares (ile “Last Lacad {laen™).

(O appeal, wod on July 31, 2014, the Siegapore Fligh Court set ase tie Parwal Awacd, and
subseguemly granted the Secuwd Creditors” application ot ihe Ity of the Jmnriis
issued in DA and dicecred the relesse of Cilobal Steel™s insraliment payment o 1he Secuzed
Creditors. Accordingly, e Bank and RCAD zegrived thenr respeciive share in the Bands
previously lichd 10 escremar Murcuer, the Secueed ¢oreditoes may nuw cumnjel Global Seeel tro
comply with theie nhligations under tbe Omnibus A greemeet (OMNA} Assa Purchase
Apteernent (APA) and take lepal acton upen Glabal Steel's Ealaire: 1o oo 5o,

On Mazch 21, 2015, the Singapure Court of Appeais tendezed n decisian which affiomerd the
eatlicr decision of e Singsene High Couct inncdat as it set azide () the monetary asard of
LISER0 and P1403 represennng lost apportuctty re make profic aad che value of e Lost
1aod Claim in Gavee of Global Steel, respectively, and (B che detement of Global Seeel’s
obligatian to pay the purchase poee of the TSC Plant fAssers. The Singapors Daart ol
Appeals ruled that (3] aside from the lack of jubscictien (o 1ule oo tlie pszne of Lost
oppartunity to make profit and absence af evidentiary suppart for the award, and {1 the
prematuees tuliog oo the bise af the Lost Land Claim, the dispute celating re Cilobal Steels
payment nblipaton i an obligation under the OBANA, which is beyond the amba of
arbirtanon, so that 1he STAC Arbireal Tribunal viaudd not properly audes the Rank, RCAT and
the other Secured Creditors to defer holdiog Glolial Sreel 10 delanll. Herwever, g ngapors
Cours of Appeals held that the NSC Liquidatat 20d Secuted toeeditors are soill requized Lo
detiver 10 Crlibal Stee] clean ode to the NEC Plant Asseis.

Cig Mowvernber 27, 2015, the Singapares Coun of Anpeals fucties held that e istue of Glubal
Yteels lust oppostusity to make profi cannot he remnanded o the Athitl Tobuonal, or be 2
qew Asbitral Tilmsal For that maceer, to Le Uugated anew atter the seimog aswde ol the Parual
Awird. The ducteines of pes judicaca aml abuse of process alie wprecated to preclude the
r-mpanjnﬂ ol thiz 1ssue. However, the Sipapore ot of Appeals hzld thal ri:ai:.]_.t_:ant I ad
Cinirn Iy be the subject of 3 fresh arhicranon proveedings befule 2 aew aclutral ealyimal.
The Singapace Cowrt of A ppeals likewise awacdal htigation wosts o the Liguidator bat none
to the Secured Creditors.
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The Patenn Company’s sswmated exposore 2 apprerunaresy F20U 12 c2ome of esdneaed
property taxcs and tanaier cose:s due ou the M50 Plant Aesers, whide it has a wecovable B
Calobal Steel in the amount of P46, taking into comsideratieo the P49 wessallioent paymean i
had rocerved from the funds previously n escrow. The Farent Company has recogized foll
wmpaitment logs on the recervable since then_ with rthe pross amount of recegvable classilied ss
UDSCL wndet Loans and Beccrvable account. The Parcos Coopany’s op o, horaguet,
may he varied n|_:|i.:'!:u::|'_||;].i|'|;__ri an whetber e Blapan Cin's axsessnuiu al Lhe el ke
il b sustaioed as valic] Qochuding thse opsenl o nen=speraoncal snachieiceies], aow cat
all pre-clasing raxes on the M3 assers sold ro Global Steel, covering the peziod 19417 w
Clotoher 14, 20004, are deeaned paid, fllsesasy the denal watly hnaliey ot the Cior of Tbgan's

Feoton for Beview by the Supreme Counil and the dssuanee of an Eotey of Tudproene on
darch 16, 2014, i the case initiated sabely by the TS0 Dageidator.

in drfiance, howewer, of the aforesad Bnad and executory rding, the Ciry of Higan {a) ssoed a
Meoce of Lielinquency apainst (S0, seeking te colect the wax arceacs covenng the peood
WU by 200G, [B) fevied the NESC properies, wed (2] set thee saone [or pubbc auztion on
Devulaee 17, 2006, which procceded even as the Togal goveenimeat uni (LG received the
Clowgles 15, 2006 Wer af Lascudon issueed by the Roprooaal Tual Couver of Makat Ciry,
Branch 57, directing ot to () coniply with roe vabid and buodiog Taa Amocsry Agreeooent
dated Octoher 13, 2004, and [b) aftard NEC celief from the paymenr of interests aod
penalies. Om November 3, 26, the Jlgan Ciry police took possessdan ot ahe MsG Manc
cumpound. On Movember 4, 2016, the M5, theeugh the Liquidater, liled an Chrenu s
Motion prapiag thae (s} the City of I, 1le Sangguniang Panlucsod acd Cay Vicasuier be
dieeted o show cavse why they sheouald not be held in coneenipee, and, (o she Aoction Saly ol
the FSC propemes beld oo Cciober 14, 20140 ke nuallifizd.

In aa Croser daced Aped 4, 2007, the Makao “Vrial Court i@) nudlihed the pubhc aucticn nt_'lh-l:
MAC THant Asugts, arcong cthers, (B} enjamed any and all ceal property 1 collecoon actians
agaimst the WS untl the Crecisoo dated Oictober 7, 2011, whkuch held chat te BAC e -
clusing taxes have been paid, 15 fully executed and M3C'y remaiang tax lalulines sz correctly
conputed. The Iakat Trial Court Lkewize (2 directed the Hazan Ciry Teeasurer sllqlw
qayag why she should aot be held in contempt of coutt for heldop the auction sale of the
M3 Plant Asscts withour cleaniog NSE of the pre-clasing taxes, and (b direcred the ligan
City Trensuret, amaong athers, w0 oanform the Makau Teial Gouct of the names o the
responsitale persons wh ardered, aided and aberted her :aﬁsa_il:d -:m?-:lur.r. The LGEJ il rhe
Eligan it Treasugee, amnong vthets, merved the ceconswderstion of the Apul 4, A7 Onder.

294 Verote! Merelant Servioes & V. Case

In 2011, Verote) Merehant Services 1. (VMS), & Necherlands coguitauon, atnd Vearatet
Ternational Industoes, 1oe. (%11, a Fhilippine corporabion. civilly -"‘-":"-1_ the P-"”:":“ "
Company, Backaed, Inc. (Bankard), Gioup: Mezcarse Cocp., CIND "n"'-"l'_'l:[ll'.lWI'!]l:, Inc. [ LHP K
and several tndisduals belaze the Los Angeles Superior Conre for varicus causes ol aulcn
wcluding Fraud, breacl of contrace anil accounting, wanung tI1;I|L."r’II and 105 Aileped parent
company, WS, failed o ecete the tortal accwnr of V5515 milien. wE.:u:h the detesdants
allegedly misapproprated. Vi3 is an inteenel merchant providing oo-Lle adult enlerrainment

and on-line pambling, in addition to the sale of pliarmaceuticals ver the [nterusl.
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Afver neacly five years, and aties being transtermed w0 a foocth parlge the case wend o ol o
|anuary 13, 2610 1 [aouaty 6, 2016, wheee the iseues on prescopdon, Y1Us lack of cagacity
i s and WIS lack of standing to sue were reseeved or Judges Michael [ Baphael™
disprosaonie. Ldn faowary 27, 2010, the jory cendered o verdost solale e linewr ol YAz, O
Mlacch 10, 2010, whe Parent Company/Bankard wfermed fudge Rapoacl that they wil, mstend
e [lling 2 rezastion Foae padgroent aclwithseanding verdict IOV and mution Der new gl

Cho Apel 11, 20100, the Parent Campany Bankoed omely tled theic oo (oe JROV and
riow trial, ard oy Aped 20, 2006, che farent Company ABarkeatd likewise uenely filed thene
Beply o the Opposbions fled by VLT 3WE.

n May 12, 2016, fudge Faphael hestd. end pactially pranted, the Tacear Compnnyd Bankard's
Mobton FuJ:JH'I:I"E 'I::.- Lil:l'l'."IJ.:I:IE the LS55 mdlien Frun:itjv: a g wwirdsd o VRS IR rThe
abaence f proct that (3} 2 corporate officer ol the Parear Comnpaay, Fankaed knew ol
authenzed, or mtifed Gavdulent acrs, and (b janet Comeay wis 2 macagieg ageot of the
Farert Company, Bankar) within the meanng of the Calilformis Cued Code Secoon 32¥4).
Flowrever, [udge Raphael roled that Cooomy wis aoagent of e Pareat Compay/ Bankand lar
siune purposes, and sustained the anard of U515 milbon. Judge Kaphael bkewdse deuied the
Parent Company, Bapkard's Mooen for Mew Lrigl, anel Jikewnse partialy poanterl, plaianffs’
mwiticen [on foterest and aorazdm| WMS pre odement interest o the amoune of LISE0E muillican.

Cho Julp 11, 2016, the Pareat Company/ Bankard nooely fled thear Notes ut Appeal oo the
partial denal of it Motion for JNOV wah the Catiforma Court of Appeals, 10d received 2
copy wof the Motice of Appeal solely led by VMS on July 3, 2006 Oin July 21, 28016, tlae
Parcit Company/Bankurd mmely posted the amaont of US33 1 millice, 25 and by ey of
security to stay the enlircement of the Smeoled pudgment cepddereal by Judge Hatael

Cha September &, 2010, VIS fled ity unsealed Cernficate of hueweated Pereans, afror the
Califormia Conet of Appeals susiained the Farent Conrany # Gankard™s prsiscon thae the
identities subjest of the discloyure was, in fact, 0 cenreal 1ms0e 10 this cie o the appeal, a5 il
selares bo whether VIS has standing 1n ehis case apd is enttled to any damages. In an Orlur
dawel, and Bled, on Noveinber (6, 20146, the: California Cowtt of Appeals adapred the bazbing
sequence peoposed by tne Pancar Companyy Bankatd, thus, allowseg he full veotlatian of the
case on appeal. ks pooce daced January 23, 2017, the Ualiforaia Loudt of Apjacals mmfermed
the partes ol the ling of e reposter’s tanseenls.

Subcequently, v Macch 72017, judge Laphnel ganted VME's motion For cost 1 proot
canetion and direered che Pazent Company/Bankand w pay VMES 1lee additional amauor of
L3008 mrallicn tr corver the cast ol {a) the servicas &f @Xpert walieane: and h} their
presealaton dudng the toal, given his ruling that the Farent Conpanys Bankanl Lz LsLiETalrly
dented VIS reyuest For ailmission chat they buled to campily with hlas e rCard aod WIS
qespenatinn les. The Parent Cutepany/ Bankavd timsly (ed thair Netce ! Appeal anihe
afozemennoned Onder of Judie Faphael b ner longer pusted 2oy addiliaal fhag fers,
Following WME's agres mant not seck 1 en focie. of tie said awatd duiing e pendeney ab the

appeal.
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The Torent Company f Haokard Gled ther Besised Openinyg Bries en their Appeal with U
Califveia Coute of Appeals en Clotobar 2, M7 raising the follosaings argrnents: (i there i
uo substangal evidence b establish that the TPucent Cotopaoy S Baokawl caosed YRS joss,
whizh atoue as o pesult of the processing of V45" transictign: nncsr wond wsiege the meechzn
ID of ancther merchant, in o wide deal withaur Bankard™ knoodsdge and congent; by theer i,
vheeefobe, na coctract no processin relstonship beraree n WS s Baslbaaed; o) thewe i e
substanmal evidence to estabhsh chat the Parent Company/Bankard cawsed YMME' Loss under
agency law, given that () Cinoway could not be Bankazd’s agent a: 2 matter ol lw, Leeasse ihe
war defmudiog Pakard, () plavuifts did not esablish that Consay was wo apear of Bankad,
(UL} pladpei I dirl ner esrablsh that Canway was a purported spent ol Bankard, and,

(i) plaintifFs licl e eseablsh that Cooaay's wremglul aondicr aas within the scope of her
agency; annd, {d? the Trisl Court abwsed it liseretion in avearding cost of proad anetioos, Thae
Farene Campany/Bankard is awaiting the Bling of VM2 Reply Briei.

Z8.5 dApplicability of 88 #2001

O March 15, 2011, rle BIK ssued B 3-2011, wloch prescobed et fer meozs tas
reportingr futposes, banks and cther finascial (naritutions must () ceuel Lot and expenses
cither under RBU or FCDC /EFCTIT o CIBU it specifically bienutied as such; oo (B) allocal:
sucl com wed expenses, which cannat be specifically idemibed, based on peroentage share ik
0055 inoasne cataags of o unit. The BLE, howewsr, issaed assessment notoes o bunks and
ather Binancial institabnns Gt defloency insoemu tas for alleged non s unn allocaoon Gf
costs anid expenses b exempl ngume and facome subjrcied to final tax wsehia RT3,

Cho Apok 6, 2015, the Parer {ompany and wrher membe r-banks ol the. Bankers Assoriatiaon
o the Philppimes TBAPY) (ihe "Pennonaers”), el the sbove-captioned case aath
Application for TRO and/o1 Wit of Prelienvary injunclivn stk the Repional Toal Court of
Makats (“Makati Trdal Coutt”), wherein the Pesiticners assailed e validity of RR 4 2011 on
the pround, amang athers, that fa) BB 4-2011 viclaies the Pedticners' suli@ngve du
prusiess rights: {B) it s st ouly wlepal Bk alser unfain (o i seres a5 a detertie i hanks to
inrest in cupital macket treosacicns to the projudice ob the secmeany: {di ir se1s 2 dzngerous
precedent far the disalloeance of Bull dralue ons due te tne prescobed meth:xl of allocabien;
{¥] i was pramulgate] wilbout prio gosiltaoon, thos, violaong the procedoral doe proeess
mghis of the petiooonees; and (£ it violited the equal proection clover guatanteed in the
Cooslitution for requnng Banks and orber fnancia] insiutions 1 e 2 maethod o
allocation when other msttutions sod taxpapers weer not beow eeguied Lo de s Dy he
Iepactment <f Finance [“MOFY and BIR.

On Apzil ¥, 2013, the RTT-Makati isywed 2 TRO cryining the IR trom enlurting

ER 42011, Alse, o Apel 77, 2015, BTo-Makati pssoed 2 Wit of Preliainany Inpunction
enjoining (e BT from enfarcing, casrying out, oF inplenenTing e any wiy OF Inanier

R% 04.208 1 apairst che Parent Company and other BALD member Lanks, incloding the
iszuance of Fealiminary Asscssment Morice or Final Assesamint Plerbice agasst them dufing
the pendency ol the tagation, waless soence drssrlwed.
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Chn June 1002015 the BV -Ddakati issned o Confiomatory Ulzdec stating that the UKO and
et af ]’:tlﬂJ.l:'!l!l.Ll.‘l:j]:}' 1|::|i|.|.1!|r:I'_1l_"l|:| alsey i:ltul:.j.LrJl.s. Llie BIR {ocwrn rqung coar -:‘Ici._".l:iing U0 RV
adrmunistrative natier FEI.'!I.‘“I'IE. = rr_:-n-. o rr]i.l'i-:_'m fre thi: sl,:l'l_'ljm:l: [T | W T :'4:5|_l.]3,|'_|:_u|‘:.3 and
msufac as the Narent Company and orher BAP member banle: arz concerned The Pre-toal
Crenfereace af the case bepgan oo Augost 2, 2006 and continued to Auguer 3, 2017, Do
the Augusl 3, 17 heating, i beo g tral Borthe resolation of the case, the Makat Toal
Couoge directed the parties to fle chewr respective Memotandom an Sepiombec 13, 2037, A
el Creughes 3, 2007, the pardes 1 the case bave sulmmdtimd eleil fes reative Mernpcanmdum

Z9.47 Affeged UinaveRorized Transier af Funds = faak of Hanglfadesh

1|_'|_ I"lt'l:lmar}' EDIE;‘. |:]'|:IC' Woas A0 HLHEE.‘I_‘I 'I_Iﬂﬂ.l.i.t-l'll'_'l'l'iz:l:'l.‘l tf;ll'l.!-iFE"r r_:-|' ‘I.II.I'HIi. Er‘::ll'l'l. ||.'i!" ]J.lil.rl.k. I:l‘
Bangladesh o fowr account: o the Parent Company, which sere eventuaily trnsbemrol
vagious accounts outdde of the Parent Company. Tn gt 2008, s Mty Beouand of
the BSP approved the impositicn of suprrrisory acioo e the Taresn Cunpiaoy 1o pay the
amaunt of 1O billion in eedaion ue the complered specal examunaoon. The Panent
Company hay fBelly cecngured i che 2005 statement of profit or less the P1LO Biliion
Aupetzons acaon a5 part of Miscellaoeous Faipeness nader Clrlace Cperanog 2xpeoses
account {see Note 25.2), and las lully pad the same. The Parent Company dozs ot cepeer
this impusition ol 5u|_...:r1.rjmr}- action b nffect ooy ahalitg tor petfonnoars cxzong eHigaoens or
unduly bunper it oporadons.

The AMLL has filed a crimuog| casiplast apainst former and et cifticees and employees
af the Parent Company for alleged violanon of Sectan 400 of BA Ivo. 9100, a3 amnended,
othersice knoarn as the “Aan-Money Laundedng Law™, o eonnecticn wieh the allegped
unauthodee] rcansfer of fonds taken from et acconnt of the Bank of Bangladesh with the
beewr York Federal Reseeee Mank. 1The AMLS alleged char cach of the respondois
51:|-|.|-m,.;g._1[}- p:rfmm._-.;l rar Failecl 1ea p.:;-[mm an act, which Gualnared the eome of money
Javezing, particularly the remattanes and eventoal withdawak uf the afoeemezntioned
amcunt from fhe 15 Dollac acoouwnts ol Entaco 'L Yasques, Mickael F. Cruz, Alfred Yergata
and Jessie Clidssepher M. Lagresas fthe "Heneficiary Accounts™), wiucks weee then bong
maintained uf ie Pareor Campany's [upiter Business Ceoter  In patuedlar, the AMLC
alleped that ach of the respondents fakel w elfecta held vl go the Bene ficiary Acoounts
decpite the supposed “red flags" in the SWIFL pavinent vedees aud therr suppoued recelfs on
February ¥, 20M6 of the $WIFT MTUSY and MTIM messages of the Bank of Bangladesh
requesung {14t the stop payment wf the cemittanees w isaoe, cesolting in the witlidrawals from
thie said accounts. The AMLE alse charged the respondents tor their alleged Balure to
perform Enhanced Dae Diligence (FEDD, despite the afaremendoced “red faps™ of alleped
integndammes in the temirance:.

Oh March 27, 2007, (e foeneer and cutreny abbicers ol the Pacent Cenpppany bled theic Joint
Cemnter- AMdavit, pointing cut thae [a) the ARLC aed to ;;.n:l:ul}lnih.tl_mt t_hw_,- Tad :u:t.u:il
knawledge, as reqquitad by the AMLA, a5 amended, That the UEF81 mllizn inwanl rinlEace
procceded from 2o widavwbl activity or that the williul blindness ducine vodec LS
jutisptudence is applicable; (b} nuw reedcate crime war establizlet, 10 Tll? abzenee uf r.1:ru:|: neeE
slirwing the oeturreace of the supposed “backiog mcident”; aed (23 cheir seppresed Baidmoe b
conduct EDD al the bifting f 1he hodd wur oo che Benefieary _'f'ni.'i_'l'_.'\-l.'-rllr: £annok AT 1o
Eagilaanon of mooey-laundering, cunsdeding kil nuoe of the seenaeias cespmreal fisiir te
conducting E1713 15 present, and banks an: no legally allorwed 1o elfect any uzilareral freeeing:
af a depositar’s aeconnt uader the AMLA, a5 amnended, and relevant juospondeoce.

O May L&, 2017, he AMLE fled s Consolidated and Joint Reply A lfidawe. Qo Ly 10,
2017, the fotmer and curcent ufficers of the Parent Company §iled their ospoctive [indevadual
Batoinder Aftadarica.
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There urg po koo claksne, deneods, 2i0d commimnents. events, o oncamaoties (hal wll

have 4 iyl tmpacs on the Thaek’s wperatienal pesterman = and abuliby to webuice
oblipatucs.

Lircept tor the abrrce-mentoned protesdings, the Parent Connpany is oot awale o any sairs
and claims by or agaanet it of s subsidiacies, which (F decided aslvesewy ooould Lave o amadetial
affact onats financlal positen or aperating resules.

287 Lrease Canrmrimicnis
da) Paremt Cowrfrmy 2r o Lenine

The Tarecr Company has earered into various lease contracts related te KSH Cocpaitate
Center, an imvestiment eaperty keld for cental, wath lease tevios cangrys leom one to e
years and with monnhly cent depending en macker price with 5% escalation male every
year. Toldl ool inowimne earned from these leases armmnded 1o P97, PEEO, a0d (214 n
ANT. 204G and 2015, respectively, aduch are presenracd as part of Keotal wadar the
Blisce Do, incomme apeoont in the scatzments of proofic ot boss (aee Tee 3515 A4

eertain office and packing spaces in RAB Corpozars Cenrey aze beng Lease-vul 1e RSB
[gee Hote 237 £l

The Parent Company®s fuzure rdmtmun rental tecervables under this nnn caacclable
ppembng [vase acangement ars a5 fulows-

7 Hlh
Within one yeae P 375 P 111)
Mlter o vear ot no
mure chae frier years 434 i |
E 2] & 1.2

ft) Grmwn ar Larsee

‘1'he Pagent Company and aetiain subsidiacies, lease some of the premoses occuapied

by theit respective bead of fces [see More 28 303)] and braoches Shosiness centers for leage
pericads deean oo b 23 years. Uhe Cronp’s rental eapense celavd b dheze ke,
{included a5 part of Oecopaney and Eguipiment-celated expenses accoune o the
statements of profit or less) aswnted te FUY, 42 and FPS4 0 2017, 20146 anad 2015,
tespeciively. Most of the lease contracts cuntain cenewal opnigns, which give the Group
the cight to exrend the lease oo tetns mutually agreed apan by the parties.

The fatuce minimun el pavables under these non-cancelable wperating leases ace as

Fralina
Giyup Pacent Company
2017-
Wechin one pear Iy an r Oi3
After one yeat bl oot
muce han five year 2,040 =375
More than fre frars 233 |
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o P rcaat aggogsany
Al
Wtk oy et T W53 T b2 I
Adter one year Dol ol
ngee Wean five yeala 2alkl I
Muore chan fvs vears 22k R
I 3 5] I REICT)

EARMINGS TER SHARE

1T teilowing shorans tiv prafin and pe= shae data ueed 13 the Bisic 2l chluied EFS
compuiations for the thbee vears [rresented-

- LECdrLTh )
91T ) 2000 2015
a. Mo fraln simiboable fo
Putent Company®s shaceldiee r 43 3 LT iz
Alleared e peefareed 2ad
Habridd Tiee 1 (1T 1} drag<ind = . [ 21% !
b. Acjusted el proll e fure capiral redemption 4,304 A 1,414
Fedempriun peevninm ar EITI _ - - [ I3 )
€. fudqusted el peolin B +308 L b0 L 451
d. Weighred weerige aurnbe ¢ of
autstambng vasrimion sirvka 11, 1 R W -
El before capiml redermguca (k4] L L] . 210 L 240
Basic and diwueed 2% ofd) E ki L adlk L sy

The comvertiole prefected shares did not Jave 3 significant o an the B75 fereach ab the
periods presented. The Sieaup and the FPaeenr Company law rua puonental dilutive slures 2. of

the ¢ad af each roproing peried.
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acul Tarent Company:

. SELECTED FINAMCIAL PERFORMAMNCE INDICATORS

The following basie mnduatos and ratios mewsure the foaocial petlarmance of the oo

Hevenuss

Ediiripr .
27 . 4 15
Behucn an averape 2quin
- Blat profn 4.T2% 3% L%
Awerage bzl eguicy
Maturn ap avarags FsuaLc:
Ldeg poc B LN LA 1 (10
AVEREE Mol reamiacss
R Ty ST
— Mebwnbeesl incoms 4,000 4 LE%s A.15%%
APETASE LSS Carting, cesosies
Traltt macpn
-l 17.15%% 14 23%% K RLpLTS
levemuet
Licbe-u-equily b
Local lalilygss .17 T.aq TR
Taral aquier
) Resimces-ta-guity 1ol
Jptal cespurces 0 o 55 s
Teoral esuiry
Limecest vane Cotm:rage
Eacaunga Lclun et onnd sopes L73 L.l 1.B]
o Intecest EARELE
Paton Comppany
2017 200 1
Returi ik pwerage equicy
. _ ek goe(L IRE bt 4% ER RS
Avraiggt ond equiry
Fcrumen iy average resaucces
. Met gl . L2 1LE55 1 i
AVECEC Lulad e rat
N THE1 DNeest e r2in
peel \nbemegt oo Eq LU LY o Abd%
| .-'L'rer.:.ge Lmdereal l,—.lrlu'lra P T Y-
Dperlit marpia
- M) probit X234% 22 ol EITY
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RECOMNCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING
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An instinct for growth
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rhe Enlerpnsa nar
to Accompany the Securities and -3;3; :ﬁu,ﬁgr;,
Exchange Commission Schedules Biliprines

i +&3 2 °EG E2BD0

File Separately from the Baslic
Financial Statements

The Board of Dirsctora snd the Stockholdars
Rlzal Commarcinl Banking Corporeticn
futhangoo Towar, REBS Pleza

62318 Ayala Avenua cor. San. Gl Puyat Avenue
Makatl City

We have audisd, in accordance with Philppine Standamds on Auditing, the consalidated
Tnancial statements of Rizal Commercial Banking Corporslion and subsidiaras

{tire Group) hod the yeer ended Cecamber 31, 2017, an which wa have randsrad dur tapart
daiad Fabroary 26, 2013, Qur sudits were mada far the purpose of farming an opinicn on the
bagic financlal statemants taken as g whole, The applicabie suppsmantary nformation

{3ee SEC Suppismeniary Schedules) |8 presenied for putposes of sddiions| analysig in
Coampdgnee with the eqeirements of the Secunlies Regulaion Code Ruke 68_ 85 amended. and
K Not & raquired pagf of the besk: consolldated financial statements prepared in accord ance
wilh Fhilipgine Financial Raporting Standands. Such gupplementary imfomnallon s tha
responziblity of ihe Group's managemant. The suppismantary informetion has been subjected
K the audiling progedu res appiad in the audi of tha basle consoldatsd financial stalements
and, in our opinion, is falrly stalsd in sl material respects 0 relation to the basic consobdated
franclal stalements taken as & whols.

PUNONOBAYAN 8 ARAULLO

Iy Rntor D bl

Ey: Marim Isaisl E, Comsdla
Partner

Fabruary 26, 2018
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ANNEX "B-2"

Riral CommerSal Banking Gorporation and Subsidiaries
FEC Supplementary dchedules
Creceandeer M, 2017
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Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Oirectars
RCBC Savings Bank, Inc,
fA Wholly Ownad Subgioiary of
Rizal Commeareial Banking Corparation)
RCBC Savings Bank Corporate Cantar
20 ang 25 Streats, Borifaso Global Sty

Taguig City

Raoport on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opimlan

We have sudited the financis statementa of RCBC Javings Bank, Inc. (the Bank), which
comprisa tha staterrarts of inancial position as st Decembar 31, 2017 and 2016 and the
statemerts of profit or loss, statements of comprehensve Income, staterments af changes in
aqurly and etataments of cash Aowe for the years then ended, and notes to the financial
etatements, incleding & summary of significant accourtng pelicias

If1 ol Salnlsn | e Sccompanying fnancial statermants presant fairly. in all matesial respegis,
the financial pasition of the Bank a5 at December 31, 2017 and 20796, and s hnancial
peErerrracs gHd vs ash flows for ke years than =nded in accordanca with Philippine
Finangial Reporfing Standards [PFRS),

Basix for Oplnion

We corductad our audils In accordancs with Philippics Siandards on soditing (PSA) Our
respengibiites undear thope standarde are turther desaribed in the Apditez’ Ragspongibitias for
the Audit of the Financal Stalkments sechon of cur reporl We arg indapandant of ivs Bank in
eccordence with the Code of Ethice for Profegeional Accauntarts in the Phil' ppines (Code of
Eirics) together with the elhal requirements that are relavant o our auciks of the knancial
staterments i the Philippites, and we Baws fullilled aore ather sinical easpansibllibes in
acmargdence with thesa requirements gnd the Code of Ethics We beliswe that the audil
evedence we have obtelned s sufficlent and appropnate to provede & basis for our aplnlon



ol

Responsibilities of Managemant and Those Charged with Governence far the
Firancial Stalaments

Manzgerent 1s responsible for the prapamabon atd far presentation of e financial statanwents
in accardance with PFRS, and for such intemal comrgl 25 managamant dalsm nas is
necessary 10 enable the preparation of financial starsmeants thal are free from meterial
rigstatarment wheathad dus o fraud or amar.

In prepanng the inanclal stalsnsnts, management is respongible for assessing tha Bark's
abulily bo continue a8 8 going Ganeem, discloding, &5 apphcable, mattars ralated to going
CONGErn and using the goitg concern basis of eoecounting unless management ether inkends ba
liguidate the Bank or to cease operglions, of had na reaizte allsrnalive but to do s0.

Thosa chargsd with govarmance are respongible for guerseeing the Bank’s financial rpating
AroCess.

Awxditors” Rexsponsibilitios for the Attt of the Financie! Stataments

Cur chjectives are 1o abtain reasorenle gassurance aboul whether the financial stalamants 25 2
whaole are free fromy material misslatamant, wheter due ba freud or ermor. Bnd (019508 an
audilors’ repan that includes gur opinon. Reasonabde assuranca is 2 Nigh leval of assurance,
but 13 nat 8 guaranisa that an avdit conducled in accordance wilh PSS will Blweys celect &
meterial misststement when it exizts. Miestatamants gan arse Imom freud or error and are
CohSidered matarial f, indivdually or in the eggregete, they could reascnay be sxpacted ta
imfluence the economss decgong of users taken on the basis of tase financial statements

A% part of an audr in accordance with PSA we exercice professional judgment and maratam
profeagiangl gkeplicigm throughoul the audie, s alss.

= dentify and assess the rigks of matenal misstatement al he financial statements, whethar
dus ta fraud ar efrar. design end perform audit pracedures responsiyg Lo e lsks, and
obmain audit evidence thal is sufficient and approphale @ provide & bas:s far our opinian
The risk af not detechng a matanial misstatemant resuthng frgm fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fravd may involve colluzicn, forgery, Intaronal amissions,
misrepresentason s, or the ayarrica of internal candrol.

+  Obtaln an understanding of nternal control ralevant to the audit in order 10 design sudit
precaduras that are approprete in the girgumatances, but not for the purpose of exprassing
an opimion on the efectiveness of the Bank's Intemal condmal,

= Evelygte the eppropriateness of accountng polces used and the reasonablenass of
accounling estimates and related disclosuras meds by management

+ Conclude on tha apprapriatenass of tnanagemant's yse ¢f the going gongern basgis of
acgounting &nd, based on tha audit evidence sbtamed, whather a malarial uncartzinty
m|ste o ated b0 gvants of condiions that may cast signficent doukd on the Bank's ability te
Canfinus B3 8 Qeing concern  IFwe cenclude that & malerial uncartalnly exists, wa are
required 1o draw atteEndon in oo audibors’ rapgsar b tha relaled disclosures in the Grarcial
tialwmanis or, f such disclosures are inadequate, o megdify Qur pRinicn, QUr conclesions
are based on the augt evidenge plitaned up to the date of ouf auditors’ rapart. However,
future events of condllons may causa tha Bank to ceass o canfinue s 3 going Goncem

=  Evalyate the overall presentation, structure and contaet of e finansial statements,
mcluding ta disclesuras, and whather the financial statements repregent the underdying
fransgctipng and gvents in 3 mpnner that achieves far presentaton.

e commurncate wath thess chanjed with govemance regarding, amang other matlars, the
planred scape and fiming of the audit and signadfeant audit iindings, ncludmg any significant
deficsancins in hemal conieal that we identify during aur gudt



Report on Othar Lagal and Regulatory Requirements

Cur audits were conducted for the purpese of forming an opinion on e basic finansal
cletements takes a5 2 whale., As discussed n Mobe 22 to the: finandial stalements, the Bank
present@d tha SURpEAaran lary inkabmaticn required by the Bureau of Intemel Revanue under
Rever ug Regulations (RR) No. 15-2010 and RR Mo, 1920117 1n a supplemantary schmcuks
filed separatzly from the basic inancial statamanis. RRE Ne 15-2010 and RR Mo, 13-20°1
ratjulre the information ta be preeerted in the nobes o the financial statemenis. Such
supplementary infcrmaton 15 \he responsidlliity of meanagemant. Tha supplemertary
infarmation is nal a required par of the baeic Gnanciel statements prepared N accordanca with
PFRS, iLis a1go not & required ¢laclosure undear the Securities Ragulation Code Rule §8, as
amanded, of the Philippine Sacurities and Exchange Commigsmgn

FUNONOBAYAN & ARAULLO

N W N S

By: Marda Isabel E. Comedia
Paitner

Fehruery 19, 2015



Report of Independent
Certified Public Accountants
to Accompany Income Tax Return

The Ecard of Dirachors
RCBC Savings Bark, Ing.
fA Whotly Dwned Subhsidiary of

Rizal Cammerelal Bankitg Corporation)
RCBL Savings Bank Corperate Center
287 and 25T Strests. Bonfaclo Glabal City
Taguig Cily

We have acdited the financal statements of RCBC Savings Bank, Ins. (k4 Bank) for the vaer
anded December 31, 2017, on which we have rendered the attached raport dated Fabruary 18,
il

In compliance with Revenve Regulatons V-20 we are sating that no partmar of aur Firm is
ralated by consanguinity or alfinity to the presiderd, menager or pringipal stockhokler of the
Bank.

PUNONGBAYAN & ARAULLD

By: Maria lsabel E. Comedia
Parirer

February 13, 2018



Supplemental Statement
of Independent Auditors

Tha Board of Direciars
RCBC Savings Bank, Ing.
fA Wholly Cwned Subeidiary of
Rizal Comimercial Banking Corporation}
RCBC Savings Bank Corporate Ceartar
267 and 25 Strewls. Bandacio Glabal City

Taguig City

We have audited the finanoal sistements of RGBS Savings Bank, ing. (i Bank) for the year
anded Decarnber 31, 2017, on which wa have randered the sttached report dated Februany 19,
2018.

In com plianca with the Securities Regulation Code Rule 52, as amended. we &re stallng that
the Bank has on'y one stockhclder owning 100 or more shares of hea Bank’s capital stogk as of
Decembear 21 2017, ae digcloged in Nobe 20 to the fingneial slatements

PUNONGEAYAN & ARAULLO

By: Mara lsabal E. Comedla
Parinar

Februsdry 1%, 2018



RCBC SAVINGS BANK, INC.

(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation)
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Notes 2017
RESOURCES
CASH AND OTHER CASH ITEMS 7 P 4,457,783,721
DUE FROM BANGKO SENTRAL NG PILIPINAS 7 10,332,553,346
DUE FROM OTHER BANKS 7 2,153,704,387
LOANS AND RECEIVABLES ARISING FROM
REVERSE REPURCHASE AGREEMENT 7 2,313,002,922

TRADING AND INVESTMENT SECURITIES - Net

11,507,055,935

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES - Net 9 82,206,531,110
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - Net 10 205,611,977
BANK PREMISES, FURNITURE, FIXTURES
AND EQUIPMENT - Net 11 1,057,519,864
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - Net 12 1,353,306,060
ASSETS HELD-FOR-SALE AND DISPOSAL GROUP - Net 13 662,884,186
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 22 829,385,833
OTHER RESOURCES - Net 13 792,127,796
TOTAL RESOURCES P 117,871,467,137
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
DEPOSIT LIABILITIES 14 P 101,684,558,574
MANAGER'S CHECK PAYABLE 16 740,530,829
ACCRUED INTEREST, TAXES AND OTHER EXPENSES 17 871,001,380
OTHER LIABILITIES 18 2,595,451,920
Total Liabilities 105,891,542,703
EQUITY
Capital stock 20 3,087,216,300
Additional paid-in capital 20 102,783,700
Revaluation reserves 20 ( 19,041,261 )
Reserve for trust business 24 42,092,142
Surplus 20 8,766,873,553
Total Equity 11,979,924,434
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY P 117,871,467,137

See Notes to Financial Statements.

(

2016

P

4,146,105,882

14,712,658,644

1,994,411,693

2,958,465,090

6,881,206,226

72,512,195,758

155,140,355

1,114,831,988

1,124,068,737

1,875,562,556

744,234,865

701,835,133

P

108,920,716,927

P

94.760,715,397

521,972,467

1,039,359,692

2,054,022,379

98,376,069,935

3,087,216,300
102,783,700

104,080,383 )
36,788,410
7,421,938,965

10,544,646,992

p

108,920,716,927




RCBC SAVINGS BANK, INC.
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation)
STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Notes 2017 2016
INTEREST INCOME
Loans and receivables 6,308,195,299 P 5,754,894,522
Trading and investment securities 386,826,907 327,350,276
Due from BSP and other banks 7 74,197,519 7,958,684
Loans and receivables arising
from reverse repurchase agreement 7 17,857,639 16,094,444
6,787,077,364 6,106,297,926
INTEREST EXPENSE
Deposit liabilities 14 1,558,950,516 1,248,052,887
Bills payable 15 1,563,117 20,947,290
1,560,513,633 1,269,000,177
NET INTEREST INCOME 5,226,563,731 4,837,297,749
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES 9,12 793,335,334 807,718,818
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES 4,433,228,397 4,029,578,931
OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Service charges, commissions and fees 2 762,092,271 944,479,479
Gain on sale of assets 8,9, 11,
12,13 90,325,959 120,618,150
Share in net income of subsidiaries 10 72,124,273 7,326,646
Other income 19 87,156,656 69,886,584
1,011,699,159 1,142,310,859
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and employee benefits 21 1,271,351,662 1,181,837,270
Occupancy 26 512,513,047 497,059,606
Depreciation and amortization 11,12 458,566,034 424,043,497
Taxes and licenses 12 413,876,439 445,075,912
Insurance 362,953,207 334,072,834
Litigation 108,240,253 199,276,558
Loss on sale of securities 8 - 178,251,640
Miscellaneous 19 935,770,750 877,631,065
4,063,271,392 4,137,248,382
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 1,381,656,164 1,034,641,408
TAX EXPENSE 22 31,417,844 29,500,798
NET PROFIT P 1,350,238,320 P 1,005,140,610

See Notes to Financial Statements.




RCBC SAVINGS BANK, INC.
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation)
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Note 2017 2016
NET PROFIT P 1,350,238,320 P 1,005,140,610
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Remeasurements of post-employment
defined benefit plan 21 85,039,122 30,004,844
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME P 1,435,277,442 P 1,035,145,454

See Notes to Financial Statements.



Balance at January 1, 2017

Transfer to reserve for trust business

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at December 31, 2017

Balance at January 1, 2016

Transfer to reserve for trust business

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at December 31, 2016

(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation)

RCBC SAVINGS BANK, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Capital Additional Revaluation Reserve for Trust
Notes Stock Paid In Capital Reserves Business Surplus

3,087,216,300 P 102,783,700 (P 104,080,383 ) 36,788,410 P 7,421,938,965
24 - - - 5,303,732 5,303,732
21 - - 85,039,122 - 1,350,238,320
20 3,087,216,300 P 102,783,700 (P 19,041,261 ) 42,092,142 P 8,766,873,553

3,087,216,300 P 102,783,700 (P 134,085,227 ) 31,614,365 P 0,421,972,400
24 - - - 5,174,045 5,174,045)
21 - - 30,004,844 - 1,005,140,610
20 3,087,216,300 P 102,783,700 (P 104,080,383 ) 36,788,410 P 7,421,938,965

See Notes to Financial Statements.

Total

10,544,646,992

1,435,277,442

11,979,924,434

9,509,501,538

1,035,145,454

10,544,646,992




RCBC SAVINGS BANK, INC.
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Interest received
Interest paid
Interest expense
Impairment losses
Depreciation and amortization
Gain on sale of assets

Share in net income of subsidiaries
Operating profit before working capital changes
Decrease in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Increase in loans and receivables
Decrease (increase) in investment properties
Decrease (increase) in assets held-for-sale and disposal group
Increase in other resources
Increase in deposit liabilities
Increase in manager’s check payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest, taxes and other expenses
Increase in other liabilities
Cash from operations

Cash paid for income taxes
Net Cash From Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of investment securities at amortized cost
Proceeds from maturity of investment securities at amortized cost
Acquisitions of bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment
Proceeds from redemption and sale of investment securities at amortized cost
Proceeds from disposals of bank premises, furnitures, fixtures and equipment

Dividend received

Net Cash From (Used in) Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from bills payable
Payments of bills payable

Cash Used in Financing Activities
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
Cash and other cash items
Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas
Due from other banks

Loans and receivables arising from reverse repurchase agreement

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
Cash and other cash items
Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas
Due from other banks

Loans and receivables arising from reverse repurchase agreement

Notes

2017

7,8,9

14,15
9,12
11,12
8,9, 11,
12,13
10

11

11
10

15

See Notes to Financial Statements.

1,381,656,164

6,787,077,364 )
6,672,834,693
1,502,169,622 )
1,560,513,633
793,335,334
458,566,034

90,325,959 )
72,124,273 )

2,415,208,640
9,911,664,373 )
746,257,011 )
1,212,678,370
219,634,557 )
6,923,843,177
218,558,362
159,004,488 )
628,514,769

362,242,889
116,461,389 )

245,781,500

5,810,114,565 )
1,019,031,664

245,597,641 )
168,866,772
45,782,686
21,652,651

4,800,378,433 )

820,000,000
820,000,000 )

4,554,596,933 )

4,146,105,882
14,712,658,644
1,994,411,693
2,958,465,090

23,811,641,309

4,457,783,721
10,332,553,346
2,153,704,387
2,313,002,922

19,257,044,376

2016

P

1,034,641,408

6,106,297,926)
6,030,358,708
1,188,734,776)
1,269,000,177
807,718,818
424,043,497

120,618,150 )
7,326,646 )

2,142,785,110
11,839
9,408,709,549 )
183,383,529
253,796,710
1,037,251,576 )
14,785,909,199
32,393,360
23,186,895
696,819,939

7,164,732,036
114,087,056 )

7,050,644,980

715,359,120 )
1,076,429,018

223,675,048
3,147,248,052
11,872,979
72,175,500

3,368,691,381

67,980,981,051
67,980,981,051 )

10,419,336,361

3,943,015,524
7,523,946,480
1,925,342,044

13,392,304,948

4,146,105,882
14,712,658,644
1,994,411,693
2,958.465,090

23,811,641,309




RCBC SAVINGS BANK, INC.

(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

CORPORATE MATTERS
1.1 Incorporation and Operations

RCBC Savings Bank, Inc. (the Bank) was incorporated in the Philippines on January 15,
1996. The Bank provides traditional consumer banking products and services such as
deposit products, home mortgage loans, auto loans and personal loans. The Bank has
154 banking offices nationwide.

The Bank is a wholly owned subsidiary of Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation
(RCBC or the Parent Bank), an entity incorporated and domiciled in the Philippines.
RCBC is a universal bank engaged in all aspects of banking. It provides products and
services related to traditional loans and deposits, trade finance, domestic and foreign fund
transfers or remittance, cash management, treasury, and trust and custodianship services.
RCBC is a publicly listed bank at the Philippine Stock Exchange. The Parent Bank is a
42.45% owned subsidiary of Pan Malayan Management and Investment Corporation
(PMMIC or the ultimate parent company), a company incorporated and domiciled in the
Philippines. PMMIC is the holding company of the flagship institutions of the Yuchengco
Group of Companies, with registered business address located at 48th Floor, Yuchengco
Tower, RCBC Plaza, 6819 Ayala Avenue, Makati City.

As a banking institution, the Bank’s operations are regulated and supervised by the Bangko
Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP). As such, the Bank is required to comply with banking rules and
regulations such as those relating to maintenance of reserve requirements on deposit
liabilities and deposit substitutes and those relating to the adoption and use of safe and
sound banking practices, among others, as promulgated by the BSP. The Bank’s activities
are subject to the provisions of the General Banking Law of 2000 [Republic Act (RA)

No. 8791] and other related banking laws.

The Bank’s registered office, which is also its principal place of business, is located at RCBC
Savings Bank Corporate Center, 26" and 25" Streets, Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City.

The registered office of RCBC, which is also its principal place of business, is located at
Yuchengco Tower, RCBC Plaza, 6819 Ayala Avenue cor. Sen Gil Puyat Avenue,
Makati City.

1.2 Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Bank as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017
(including the comparative financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31,
2016) were authorized for issue by the Bank’s Board of Directors (BOD) on February 19,
2018.



SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these financial
statements are summarized below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1

(a)

()

(¢)

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements
Statement of Compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with the
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRS are adopted by the Financial
Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) from the pronouncements issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board, and approved by the Philippine Board of
Accountancy.

These financial statements have been prepared using the measurement bases specified
by PFRS for each type of asset, liability, income and expense. The measurement bases
are more fully described in the accounting policies that follow.

Presentation of Financial Statements

The financial statements are presented in accordance with Philippine Accounting
Standards (PAS) 1, Presentation of Financial Statements. The Bank presents all items of
income and expenses in two statements: a “statement of profit or loss” and a
“statement of comprehensive income.”

The Bank presents a third statement of financial position as at the beginning of the
preceding period when it applies an accounting policy retrospectively, or makes a
retrospective restatement or reclassification of items that has a material effect on the
information in the statement of financial position at the beginning of the preceding
period. The related notes to the third statement of financial position are not required
to be disclosed.

Functional and Presentation Currency

These financial statements are presented in Philippine pesos, the Bank’s functional and
presentation currency, and all values represent absolute amounts except when
otherwise indicated.

Items included in the financial statements of the Bank are measured using its
functional currency, the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Bank operates. The financial statements of the Bank’s foreign currency deposit unit
(FCDU), which are expressed in United States (US) dollar as its functional currency are
translated to Philippine pesos based on Philippine Dealing System closing rates
(PDSCR) at the end of the reporting period (for resources and liabilities) and at the
average PDSCR for the period (for income and expenses).
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2.2 Adoption of New and Amended PFRS
(a)  Effective in 2017 that are Relevant to the Bank

The Bank adopted for the first time the following amendments and annual
improvements to PFRS, which are mandatorily effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2017:

PAS 7 (Amendments) :  Statement of Cash Flows —
Disclosure Initiative
PAS 12 (Amendments) :  Income Taxes — Recognition of Deferred

Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses
Annual Improvements to
PERS (2014-2016 Cycle)
PFRS 12 :  Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities —
Scope Clarification on Disclosure of
Summarized Financial Information for
Interests Classified as Held for Sale

Discussed below and in the next page are the relevant information about these
amendments and improvements.

i) PAS 7 (Amendments), Statement of Cash Flows — Disclosure Initiative.
The amendments are designed to improve the quality of information provided
to users of financial statements about changes in an entity’s debt and related
cash flows (and non-cash changes). They require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities. An entity applies its judgment when determining the exact
form and content of the disclosures needed to satisfy this requirement.
Moreover, they suggest a number of specific disclosures that may be necessary
in order to satisfy the above requirement, including:

e  changes in liabilities arising from financing activities caused by changes in
financing cash flows, foreign exchange rates or fair values, or obtaining or
losing control of subsidiaries or other businesses; and,

e areconciliation of the opening and closing balances of liabilities arising
from financing activities in the statement of financial position including
those changes identified immediately above.

The application of this amendment did not result in additional disclosure in the
Bank’s financial statements as it has no outstanding liabilities arising from
financing activities as of December 31, 2017 and 2016.
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(iii)
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PAS 12 (Amendments), Income Taxes — Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealized Losses. The focus of the amendments is to clarify how to account for
deferred tax assets related to debt insttuments measured at fair value,
particularly where changes in the market interest rate decrease the fair value of a
debt instrument below cost. The amendments provide guidance in the
following areas where diversity in practice previously existed: (a) existence of a
deductible temporary difference; (b) recovering an asset for more than its
carrying amount; (c) probable future taxable profit against which deductible
temporary differences are assessed for utilization; and, (d) combined versus
separate assessment of deferred tax asset recognition for each deductible
temporary difference. The application of this amendment has had no impact on
the Bank’s financial statements.

Annual Improvements to PFRS (2014-2016) Cycle on PERS 12, Disclosure of
Interest in Other Entities — Scope Clarification on Disclosure of Summarized Financial
Information for Interests Classified as Held for Sale. 'The amendment clarifies that the
disclosure requirements of PFRS 12 applies to interest in other entities classified
as held for sale with practical concession in the presentation of summarized
financial information. The amendment states that an entity need not present
summarized financial information for interests in subsidiaries, associates, or
joint ventures that are classified as held for sale. The application of this
amendment has no significant impact the Bank’s financial statements as the
Bank did not present anymore the financial information for its interests in other
entity classified as held for sale.

(b)  Effective Subsequent to 2017 but not Adepted Early

There are new PFRS, amendments to and interpretations of existing standards
effective for annual periods subsequent to 2017, which are adopted by the FRSC.
Management will adopt the following relevant pronouncements in accordance with
their transitional provisions; and, unless otherwise stated, none of these are expected
to have significant impact on the Bank’s financial statements:

@

()

PAS 40 (Amendment), Investment Property — Reclassification to and from Investment
Property (effective from January 1, 2018). The amendment states that an entity
shall transfer a property to, or from, investment property when, and only when,
there is evidence of a change in use. A change of use occurs if property meets,
or ceases to meet, the definition of investment property. A change in
management’s intentions for the use of a property by itself does not constitute
evidence of a change in use. The amendment provided a non-exhaustive list of
examples constituting change in use.

PERS 9 (2014), Financial Instruments (etfective from January 1, 2018). This new
standard on financial instruments will replace PAS 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement, and PFRS 9 (2009, 2010 and 2013 versions — herein
referred to as PFRS 9). In addition to the principal classification categories for
financial assets and financial liabilities which were early adopted by the Bank on
January 1, 2014, PFRS 9 (2014) includes the following major provisions:

e limited amendments to the classification and measurement requirements
for financial assets introducing a fair value measurement for eligible debt
securities; and,
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e an expected loss model in determining impairment of all financial assets
that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), which
generally depends on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition of a financial asset.

In view of the Bank’s early adoption of PFRS 9, management has conducted an
assessment and comprehensive study of the Bank’s financial assets and
liabilities as at December 31, 2017, which has been limited to the facts and
circumstances existing at that date. Management has determined the impact of
PFRS 9 (2014) on the financial statements as indicated below:

e  Debt securities held for collecting contractual cash flows solely for
payment of principal and interest (SPPI) will continue to be classified as
investment securities at amortized cost.

e Inapplying the expected credit loss (ECL) methodology of PFRS 9 (2014),
the Bank has adopted an ECL model for its loans and receivables in
accordance with the prescription of the standard. On the other hand, ECL
on government bonds and corporate bonds classified as financial asset at
amortized cost shall be measured using 12-month ECL as these financial
assets are assessed to have low credit risk, considering their respective
credit ratings. Management has assessed that the application of the ECL.
model will result in an increase in the required allowance for impairment of
certain financial instruments as at the beginning of the next reporting
period and in impairment losses in that period as compared with the
amount that would have been recognized under the impairment provisions
of PAS 39.

PYRS 15, Revenue from Contract with Customers (effective from January 1, 2018).
This standard will replace PAS 18, Revenue, and PAS 11, Construction Contracts,
the related Interpretations on revenue recognition: International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes,
IFRIC 15, Agreement for the Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18, Transfers of Assets
[from Customers and Standing Interpretations Committee 31, Revenue — Barter
Transactions Involving Advertising Services. This new standard establishes a
comprehensive framework for determining when to recognize revenue and how
much revenue to recognize. The core principle in this standard is for an entity
to recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to the
customer in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Based on an assessment of the Bank’s revenue streams as at December 31,
2017, which has been limited to the facts and circumstances existing at that
date, management determined that its significant sources of revenues pertain to
its lending and investing activities which generate interest income, loan
origination fees and service charges and penalties. Except for service charges
and penalties, substantial amount of the Bank’s revenues are generated from
financial instruments which are outside the scope of PFRS 15.
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IFRIC 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration — Interpretation on
Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration (effective from January 1,
2018). The interpretation provides more detailed guidance on how to account
for transactions that include the receipt or payment of advance consideration in
a foreign currency. The Interpretation states that the date of the transaction,
for the purpose of determining the exchange rate, is the date of initial
recognition of the non-monetary asset (arising from advance payment) or
liability (arising from advance receipt). If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, a date of transaction is established for each payment or
receipt. Management has initially assessed that this amendment has no material
impact on the Bank’s financial statements.

PFRS 9 (Amendment), Financial Instruments — Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation (effective from January 1, 2019). The amendment clarifies that
prepayment features with negative compensation attached to financial
instruments may still qualify under the SPPI test. As such, the financial assets
containing prepayment features with negative compensation may still be
classified at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Management is currently assessing the impact of this new standard on
the Bank’s financial statements.

PEFRS 16, Leases (effective from January 1, 2019). The new standard will
eventually replace PAS 17, Leases.

For lessees, it requires to account for leases “on-balance sheet” by recognizing a
“right-of-use” asset and a lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured
as the present value of future lease payments. For this purpose, lease payments
include fixed, non-cancellable payments for lease elements, amounts due under
residual value guarantees, certain types of contingent payments and amounts
due during optional periods to the extent that extension is reasonably certain.
In subsequent periods, the “right-of-use” asset is accounted for similar to a
purchased asset subject to depreciation or amortization. The lease liability is
accounted for similar to a financial liability which is amortized using the
effective interest method. However, the new standard provides important
reliefs or exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low value assets. If
these exemptions are used, the accounting is similar to operating lease
accounting under PAS 17 where lease payments are recognized as expenses on
a straight-line basis over the lease term or another systematic basis

(if more representative of the pattern of the lessee’s benefit).

For lessors, lease accounting is similar to PAS 17’s. In particular, the
distinction between finance and operating leases is retained. The definitions of
each type of lease, and the supporting indicators of a finance lease, are
substantially the same as PAS 17’s. The basic accounting mechanics are also
similar, but with some different or more explicit guidance in few areas. These
include variable payments, sub-leases, lease modifications, the treatment of
initial direct costs and lessor disclosures.

Management is currently assessing the impact of this new standard on the
Bank’s financial statements.
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(vii)
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IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (effective from January 1, 2019).
The interpretation provides clarification on the determination of taxable profit,
tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and tax rates when there is
uncertainty over income tax treatments. The core principle of the
interpretation requires the Bank to consider the probability of the tax treatment
being accepted by the taxation authority. When it is probable that the tax
treatment will be accepted, the determination of the taxable profit, tax bases,
unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and tax rates shall be on the basis of the
accepted tax treatment. Otherwise, the Bank has to use the most likely amount
or the expected value, depending on the surrounding circumstances, in
determining the tax accounts identified immediately above. Management is
currently assessing the impact of this new standard on the Bank’s financial
statements.

Annual Improvements to PFRS 2015-2017 Cycle (effective from January 1,
2019. Among the improvements, the following amendments are relevant to
the Bank but had no material impact on the Bank’s financial statements as
these amendments merely clarify existing requirements:

e PAS 12 (Amendments), Income Taxes — Tax Consequences of Dividends. The
amendments clarify that all income tax consequence of dividend payments
should be recognized in profit or loss.

e PAS 23 (Amendments), Borrowing Costs — Eligibility for Capitalization. The
amendments clarify that any specific borrowing which remains outstanding
after the related qualifying asset is ready for its intended purpose, such
borrowing will then form part of the entity’s general borrowings when
calculating the capitalization rate for capitalization purposes.

e PFERS 3 (Amendments), Business Combinations and PFRS 11 (Amendments),
Joint Arrangements — Remeasurement of Previously Held Interests in a Joint Operation.
The amendments clarify that previously held interest in a joint operation
shall be remeasured when the Bank obtains control of the business. On
the other hand, previously held interests in a joint operation shall not be
remeasured when the Bank obtains joint control of the business.

PFRS 10 (Amendments), Consolidated Financial S tatements, and

PAS 28 (Amendments), Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures — Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associates or Joint 1 enture

(effective date deferred indefinitely). The amendments to PFRS 10 require full
recognition in the investor’s financial statements of gains or losses arising on
the sale or contribution of assets that constitute a business as defined in

PERS 3, Business Combinations, between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. Accordingly, the partial recognition of gains or losses (i.e., to the
extent of the unrelated investor’s interests in an associate or joint venture) only
applies to those sale of contribution of assets that do not constitute a business.
Corresponding amendments have been made to PAS 28 to reflect these
changes. In addition, PAS 28 has been amended to clarify that when
determining whether assets that are sold or contributed constitute a business,
an entity shall consider whether the sale or contribution of those assets is part
of multiple arrangements that should be accounted for as a single transaction.
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2.3 Separate Financial Statements and Investments in Subsidiaries

These financial statements are prepared as the Bank’s separate financial statements. As
allowed under existing financial reporting standards, the Bank has not presented
consolidated financial statements because it is itself a wholly owned subsidiary of RCBC,
which presents consolidated financial statements available for public use that comply with
PFRS. Moreover, the Bank’s debt or equity securities are not traded in organized financial
market and the Bank is not in the process of filing its financial statements with securities
commissions or other regulatory organization for the purpose of issuing any class of
instruments in an organized financial market.

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) over which the Bank has control.
The Bank controls an entity when (1) it has power over the entity, (i) it is exposed, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity, and, (iii) it has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity.

Any goodwill arising from the acquisition of investments in subsidiaries, representing the
excess of the acquisition costs over the fair value of the Bank’s share in the identifiable net
assets of the acquired subsidiaries or associates at the date of acquisition, is included in the
amount recognized as investments in subsidiaries.

The Bank reassesses whether or not it controls an entity if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of controls indicated above.

The Bank’s investments in subsidiaries are initially recognized at cost and subsequently
accounted for in these separate financial statements using the equity method. Under the
equity method, all subsequent changes to the ownership interest in the equity of the
subsidiaries are recognized in the Bank’s carrying amount of the investments. Changes
resulting from the profit or loss generated by the subsidiaries are credited or charged against
the Share in Net Income or Losses of Subsidiaries account in the statement of profit or loss.
Dividends received are accounted for as reduction in the carrying value of the investments.

Changes resulting from other comprehensive income of the subsidiaries or items recognized
directly in the subsidiaries’ equity are recognized in other comprehensive income or equity of
the Bank, as applicable. However, when the Bank’s share of losses in subsidiaries equals or
exceeds its interest in the subsidiaries, including any other unsecured receivables, the Bank
does not recognize further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the subsidiaries. If the subsidiaries subsequently report profits, the investor
resumes recognizing its share of those profits only after its share of the profits exceeds the
accumulated share of losses that has previously not been recognized.

Impairment loss is provided when there is objective evidence that the investments in
subsidiaries will not be recovered (see Note 2.18).

2.4 Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognized when the Bank becomes a party to the contractual terms of
the financial instrument. For purposes of classifying financial assets, an instrument is
considered as an equity instrument if it is non-derivative and meets the definition of an
equity for the issuer in accordance with the criteria under PAS 32, Financial Instruments:
Presentation. All other non-derivative financial instruments are treated as debt instruments.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on their settlement date.
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Classification, Measurement and Reclassification of Financial Assets

The classification and measurement of financial assets is driven by the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial assets. The classification and measurement of financial assets are
described below and in the succeeding pages.

(1) Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

Financial assets are measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are
met:

e the asset is held within the Bank’s business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and,

e the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are SPPI on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus
transaction costs. They are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment in value.

The Bank’s financial assets at amortized cost are presented in the statement of
financial position as Cash and Other Cash Items, Due from BSP, Due from Other
Banks, Loans and Receivables Arising from Reverse Repurchase Agreement, Loans
and Receivables, Security deposits under Other Resources account and Investment
securities at amortized cost under Trading and Investment Securities account.

For purposes of cash flows reporting and presentation, cash and cash equivalents
comprise accounts with original maturities of three months or less, including cash and
other cash items and unrestricted balances due from BSP and due from other banks
and loans and receivables arising from reverse repurchase agreement. These generally
include cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly liquid investments
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant
risk of changes in value.

The Bank may irrevocably elect at initial recognition to classify a financial asset that
meets the amortized cost criteria above as at FVPL if that designation eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch had the financial asset been measured at
amortized cost. In 2017 and 2016, the Bank has not made such designation.

(i7) Financial Assets at Fair VValue Through Profit or Loss

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortized cost criteria, or that meet the criteria
but the Bank has chosen to designate as at FVPL at initial recognition, are measured at
FVPL. Equity investments are classified as financial assets at FVPL, unless the Bank
designates an equity investment that is not held for trading as at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI) at initial recognition. The Bank’s financial
assets at FVPL include government securities and corporate bonds which are held for
trading purposes.
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A financial asset is considered as held for trading if:
e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term;

e on initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that the Bank manages together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or,

e itisa derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or
financial guarantee.

Financial assets at FVPL are measured at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses arising
from changes (mark-to-market) in the fair value of the financial assets at FVPL
category are included in Trading gains or losses under Other Operating Income or
Expenses account in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
while realized gains or losses arising from disposals of these instruments are
recognized as Gain or Loss on Sale of Assets in profit or loss.

Interest earned on these investments is reported in profit or loss under Interest
Income account, while dividend income is reported in profit or loss as part of Other
Income under Other Operating Income account.

(i2i) Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprebensive Income

At initial recognition, the Bank can make an irrevocable election (on an
instrument-per-instrument basis) to designate equity investments as at FVOCI;
however, such designation is not permitted if the equity investment is held by the Bank
for trading. The Bank has not designated any equity instruments as at FVOCI.

Financial assets at FVOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value, with no deduction for any disposal costs.
Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value, including the foreign exchange
component, are recognized in other comprehensive income, net of any effects arising
from income taxes, and are reported as part of Revaluation Reserves account in equity.
When the asset is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in the
Revaluation Reserves account is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is reclassified
directly to Surplus account.

Any dividends earned on holding these equity instruments are recognized in profit or
loss as part of Miscellaneous under Other Operating Income account, when the Bank’s
right to receive dividends is established in accordance with PAS 18, unless the
dividends cleatly represent recovery of a part of the cost of the investment.

The Bank can only reclassify financial assets if the objective of its business model for
managing those financial assets changes. Accordingly, the Bank is required to
reclassify financial assets (i) from amortized cost to FVPL, if the objective of the
business model changes so that the amortized cost criteria are no longer met; and,
(i) from FVPL to amortized cost, if the objective of the business model changes so
that the amortized cost criteria start to be met and the characteristic of the
instrument’s contractual cash flows meet the amortized cost criteria.

A change in the objective of the Bank’s business model must be effected before the
date of the reclassification which pertains to the beginning of the next reporting period
following the change in the business model.
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Non-compounding interest, dividend income and other cash flows resulting from
holding financial assets are recognized in profit or loss when earned, regardless of how
the related carrying amount of financial assets is measured. Interest calculated using
the effective interest method for all categories of financial assets is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss (see Note 2.14).

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Bank assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a loss event) and that loss event

(or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of assets is impaired includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Bank about the following loss
events:

(i)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

(i)  a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

(i) the Bank granting the borrower, for economic or legal reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, a concession that the lender would not otherwise
consider;

(iv) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization;

(v)  the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties; or,

(vi) observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
tuture cash flows from a group of financial assets since the initial recognition of
those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual
financial assets in the group, including: adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the group, or national or local economic conditions that correlate
with defaults on the assets in the group.

For financial assets classified and measured at amortized cost, the Bank first assesses
whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that
are individually significant and individually or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant. If the Bank determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues
to be recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.



-12-

If there is objective evidence that an impairment for individually assessed financial
assets has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognized in
profit or loss. If a financial asset has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under
the contract. As a practical expedient, the Bank may measure impairment on the basis
of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a
collateralized financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure
less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is

probable.

For the purpose of collective evaluation of impairment for loans and receivables,
financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk characteristics (i.e., on the
basis of the grading process of the Bank that considers asset type, industry,
geographical location, collateral type, past-due status and other relevant factors). These
characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such
assets by being indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the
contractual terms of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for
impairment are estimated on the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the
group and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to
those in the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current
observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the
period on which the historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of
conditions in the historical period that do not exist currently.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets should reflect and be
directionally consistent with changes in related observable data from period to period
(for example, changes in unemployment rates, property prices, payment status, or
other factors indicative of changes in the probability of losses in the group and their
magnitude). The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows
are reviewed regularly by the Bank to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.

When possible, the Bank seeks to restructure loans rather than to take possession of
the collateral. This may involve extending the payment arrangement and agreement
for new loan conditions. Management continuously reviews restructured loans to
ensure that all criteria evidencing the good quality of the loan are met and that future
payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to an individual or
collective impairment assessment, calculated using the loan’s original effective
interest rate. The difference between the recorded sale of the original loan and the
present value of the restructured cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate, is recognized as part of Impairment Losses account in profit or loss.
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When a loan receivable is determined to be uncollectible, it is written off against the
related allowance for impairment. Such loan receivable is written off after all the
prescribed procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss has been
determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off decrease the
amount of impairment losses in profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognized (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The
amount of the reversal is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

(¢)  Derecognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
financial assets) is derecognized when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from
the financial instruments expire, or when the financial assets and all substantial risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to another party. If the Bank neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Bank recognizes its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Bank retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Bank continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized
borrowing for the proceeds received.

2.5 Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the resulting net amount, considered as
a single financial asset or financial liability, is reported in the statement of financial position
when the Bank currently has legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The right of set-off must be available at the end of the reporting period,
that is, it is not contingent on future event. It must also be enforceable in the normal course
of business, in the event of default, and in the event of insolvency or bankruptcy; and, must
be legally enforceable for both entity and all counterparties to the financial instruments.

2.6 Bank Premises, Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment

Land is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any. All other bank premises, furniture,
fixtures and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization
and any impairment in value.

The cost of bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment consists of its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use. Expenditures for additions, major improvements and renewals are
capitalized, while expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as
incurred.
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Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets as follows:

Note 2017 2016
Buildings 3.2 (d) 25 years 20 years
Transportation equipment 5 years 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and
other equipment 5-10 years 5-10 years

Leasehold rights and improvements are amortized over the estimated useful lives of the
improvements of 10 years or the terms of the related leases, whichever is shorter.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (see Note 2.18).

The residual values, estimated useful lives and method of depreciation and amortization of
bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period.

An item of bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment, including the related
accumulated depreciation, amortization and impairment loss, is derecognized upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in profit
or loss in the year the item is derecognized.

2.7 Investment Properties

Investment properties pertain to land, buildings or condominium units acquired by the
Bank, in settlement of loans from defaulting borrowers through foreclosure or dacion in
payment. These properties are neither held by the Bank for sale in the next 12 months nor
used in the rendering of services or for administrative purposes.

Investment properties are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses (see Note 2.18). The cost of an investment property comprises its purchases price
and directly attributable costs incurred such as legal fees, transfer taxes and other transaction
costs.

Transfers from other accounts (such as bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment) are
made to investment properties when and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by
ending of owner-occupation or commencement of an operating lease to another party or
holding the property for capital appreciation, while transfers from investment properties are
made when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by commencement of
owner-occupation or commencement of development with a view to sell.

Depreciation and impairment losses are recognized in the same manner as in bank premises.

Investment properties, including the related accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, are derecognized upon disposal or when permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss on the retirement or
disposal of investment properties is recognized in profit or loss as part of the Gain on Sale
of Assets account under Other Operating Income, in the year of retirement or disposal.

Investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.
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2.8 Assets Held-for-Sale and Disposal Group

Assets held-for-sale pertain to transportation equipment and real and other properties
acquired through repossession or foreclosure that the Bank intends to sell within one year
from the date of classification as held for sale and remains committed to immediately
dispose the assets through an active marketing plan. Assets held for disposal group pertains
to the Bank’s investments in the shares of stock of its subsidiaries which the Bank has
committed to liquidate under its equity divestment program in compliance with the mandate
of the BSP (see Note 13.1.3).

The Bank classifies an asset (or disposal group) as held-for-sale if its carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. In the
event that the sale of the asset is extended beyond one year, the extension of the period
required to complete the sale does not preclude an asset from being classified as held for sale
if the delay is caused by events or circumstances beyond the Bank’s control and there is
sufficient evidence that the Bank remains committed to its plan to sell the asset.

Assets held-for-sale and disposal group are measured at the lower of their carrying amounts,
immediately prior to their classification as held for sale, and their fair value less costs to sell.
These assets are not subject to depreciation. If the Bank has classified an asset as
held-for-sale or disposal group, but the criteria for it to be recognized as held-for-sale or
disposal group are no longer satisfied, the Bank shall cease to classify the asset as such.

The Bank recognizes an impairment loss for any initial or subsequent write-down of the
assets held-for-sale and disposal group to fair value less cost to sell, to the extent that it has
not been previously recognized in profit or loss. On the other hand, any gain from any
subsequent increase in fair value less to costs to sell of an asset up to the extent of the
cumulative impairment loss that has been previously recognized is recognized in profit or
loss.

Assets that ceases to be classified as held-for-sale is measured at the lower of: (a) its carrying
amount before the asset was classified as held for sale, adjusted for any depreciation,
amortization or revaluations that would have been recognized had the asset not been
classified as held for sale; and, (b) its recoverable amount at the date of the subsequent
decision not to sell. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of an asset that ceases to be
classified as held for sale resulting in either a gain or loss, is recognized in profit or loss.

The gain or loss arising from the sale or remeasurement of assets held-for-sale or disposal
group is recognized in profit or loss and is included in the Gain on Sale of Assets or
Miscellaneous Expenses account under Other Operating Income or Other Operating
Expenses in the statement of profit or loss, respectively.

2.9 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets include goodwill and software used in operations and administration
which are accounted for under the cost model are reported under Other Resources
account in the statement of financial position. The cost of the asset is the amount of cash
or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the other considerations given to acquire an
asset at the time of its acquisition.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the net
assets purchased from Capitol Development Bank in 1998.
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Goodwill having indefinite useful life is not subject to amortization but require an annual
test for impairment while other intangible assets are subject to impairment testing as
described in Note 2.18.

Capitalized software costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives (ranging from five to ten years) as these intangible assets are considered finite
[see Note 3.2(d)].

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and install the specific software. Costs associated with maintaining computer
software and those costs associated with research activities are recognized as expense in
profit or loss as incurred.

The costs of any internally generated software development are recognized as intangible
assets; they are subject to the same subsequent measurement method as externally
acquired software licenses. Any capitalized internally developed software that is not yet
complete is not amortized but is subject to impairment testing as described in Note 2.18.
Amortization commences upon completion of the asset.

When an intangible asset is disposed of, the gain or loss on disposal is determined as the
difference between the proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in
profit or loss.

2.10 Other Resources

Other resources, excluding items classified as loans and receivables and intangible assets,
pertain to other assets controlled by the Bank as a result of past events. They are recognized
in the financial statements when it is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to
the Bank and the asset has a cost or value that can be measured reliably.

2.11 Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities which include deposit liabilities, manager’s check payable, accrued interest
and other expenses (except for tax-related payables), and other liabilities (except for
post-employment defined benefit obligation), are recognized when the Bank becomes a
party to the contractual terms of the instrument.

Financial liabilities are recognized initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, for maturities beyond one year less
settlement payments. All interest-related charges on financial liabilities are recognized as an
expense in the statement of profit or loss under the caption Interest Expense. Finance
charges, including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, are
charged to profit or loss on an accrual basis and are added to the carrying amount of the
instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the period when they arise.

The Bank has no financial liabilities measured at FVPL at the end of each reporting period.

Financial liabilities are derecognized from the statement of financial position only when the
obligations are extinguished either through discharge, cancellation or expiration. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the
consideration paid or payable is recognized in profit or loss.
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2.12 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when present obligations will probably lead to an outflow of
economic resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of the
outflow may still be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or
constructive obligation that has resulted from past events.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present
obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting period,
including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Where there are
a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. When time value of money
is material, long-term provisions are discounted to their present values using a pretax rate
that reflects market assessments and the risks specific to the obligation.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate. In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resource as a
result of present obligations is considered improbable or remote, or the amount to be
provided for cannot be measured reliably, no liability is recognized in the financial
statements. Similarly, possible inflows of economic benefits to the Bank that do not yet
meet the recognition criteria of an asset are considered contingent assets, hence, are not
recognized in the financial statements. On the other hand, any reimbursement that the Bank
can be virtually certain to collect from a third party with respect to the obligation is
recognized as a separate asset not exceeding the amount of the related provision.

2.13 Equity
Capital stock represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued.

Additional paid-in capital includes any premiums received on the issuance of capital stock.
Any transaction costs associated with the issuance of shares are deducted from additional
paid-in capital, net of any related income tax benefits.

Revaluation reserves pertain to remeasurements of post-employment defined benefit plan
based on the accumulated balances of actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions used in the determination of the defined
benefit obligation.

Reserve for trust business represents the accumulated amount set aside by the Bank under
prevailing regulations, requiring the Bank to carry to surplus 10% of its net profits accruing
from trust business until the surplus shall amount to 20% of its authorized capital stock.
The reserve shall not be paid out in dividends, but losses accruing in the course of the trust
business may be charged against this reserve.

Surplus represents all current and prior period results of operations as reported in the
statement of profit and loss, reduced by the amounts of dividends declared.

2.14 Revenue and Expense Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that the revenue can be reliably measured; it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Bank; and, the costs incurred or to be incurred
can be measured reliably.
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In addition, the following specific recognition criteria must also be met before a revenue is
recognized:

(a)

@

(©

(d)

(¢

Interest income and expenses are recognized in profit or loss for all instruments measured
at amortized cost and financial assets at FVPL (debt securities) using the effective
interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a
financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Bank estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future
credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between
parties to the contract that are integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a
result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognized using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss.

Loan fees, which are reported as part of Service Charges, Commissions and Fees
account in the statement of profit or loss, are recognized as earned over the terms of
the credit lines granted to each borrower. Service charges and penalties, also presented as
part of Service Charges, Commissions and Fees, are recognized only upon collection
or accrued when there is a reasonable degree of certainty as to its collectibility.

Dividend income 1s recognized when the Bank’s right to receive payment is established.
Dividend income is included as part of Other Operating Income in the statement of
profit or loss.

Gain on sale of assets, which arises from the disposals of assets held-for-sale, are
recognized when the related risks and rewards of ownership of the assets have already
been transferred to the buyer.

Gain on sale of investment securities, which arises from the disposal of investment securities,
are recognized when the ownership of the security is transferred to the buyer and is
computed as the difference between the selling price and the carrying amount of the
security. Trading gains also result from mark-to-market valuation of the securities at
the valuation date (see Note 2.4).

Costs and expenses are recognized in profit or loss upon utilization of the goods and/or
services or at the date they are incurred. All finance costs are reported in profit or loss on an
accrual basis, except capitalized borrowing costs which are included as part of the cost of the
related qualifying asset, if any (see Note 2.19).
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2.15 Leases

Leases, which do not transfer to the Bank substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset, are classified as operating lease. Operating lease payments

(net of any incentive received from the lessor) are recognized as an expense in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Associated costs, such as repairs and
maintenance and insurance, are expensed as incurred.

The Bank determines whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease based on the substance
of the arrangement. It makes an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use
the asset.

A reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

(a)  there is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the
arrangement;

(b)  arenewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless that term of the renewal or
extension was initially included in the lease term;

(¢)  there is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a
specified asset; o,

(d)  there is a substantial change to the asset.
2.16 Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation

The accounting records of the Bank are maintained in Philippine pesos, except for the
accounts of the Bank’s FCDU which are maintained in US dollars [see Note 2.1(c)]. Foreign
currency transactions during the period are translated into the functional currency at
exchange rates which approximate those prevailing on transaction dates. Resources and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Philippine pesos at the
prevailing PDSCR at the end of reporting period. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of foreign currencies and translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in profit
or loss.

2.17 Employee Benefits

The Bank provides employee benefits to employees through a define benefit plan and
defined contribution plan, and other employee benefits which are recognized and measured
as follows:

(a)  Post-employment Defined Benefit Plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment plan that defines an amount of
post-employment benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and salary. The legal
obligation for any benefits from this kind of post-employment plan remains with the
Bank, even if plan assets for funding the defined benefit plan have been acquired. Plan
assets may include assets specifically designated to a long-term benefit fund, as well as
qualifying insurance policies. The Bank’s post-employment defined benefit plan
covers all regular full-time employees. The pension plan is tax-qualified,
non-contributory and administered by a trustee.



()

(9

-20-

The liability recognized in the statement of financial position for defined benefit
post-employment plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end
of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation
is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows for expected benefit payments using a discount rate
derived from the interest rates of zero-coupon government bonds as published by the
Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp. (PDEx), that are denominated in the currency in
which the benefits will be paid and that have terms to maturity approximating to the
terms of the related post-employment liability.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions and the return on plan assets
(excluding amount included in net interest) are reflected immediately in the statement
of financial position with a charge or credit recognized in other comprehensive income
in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period,
taking account of any changes in the net defined benefit liability or asset during the
period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest is reported as
part of Other Operating Expenses or Other Operating Income account in the
statement of profit or loss.

Past service costs are recognized immediately in profit or loss in the period of a plan
amendment or curtailment.

Post-employment Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment plan under which the Bank pays
fixed contributions into an independent entity. The Bank has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions after payment of the fixed contribution. The
contributions recognized in respect of defined contribution plans are expensed as they
fall due. Liabilities or assets may be recognized if underpayment or prepayment has
occurred and are included in liabilities or assets section of the statement of financial
position.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Bank before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Bank recognizes termination benefits at the earlier of
when it can no longer withdraw the offer of such benefits or when it recognizes costs
for a restructuring that is within the scope of PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent 1iabilities and
Contingent Assets, and involves the payment of termination benefits. In the case of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured
based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due
more than 12 months after the end of each reporting period are discounted to their
present value.
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(d)  Bonus Plans

The Bank recognizes a liability and an expense for bonuses, based on a formula that is
fixed regardless of the Bank’s income after certain adjustments and does not take into
consideration the profit attributable to the Bank’s shareholders. The Bank recognizes
a provision where it is contractually obliged to pay the benefits, or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

(e)  Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are recognized for the number of paid leave days

(including holiday entitlement) remaining at the end of each reporting period. They
are included as part of Accrued Interest, Taxes and Other Expenses account at the
undiscounted amount that the Bank expects to pay as a result of the unused
entitlement which are expected to be subsequently used.

2.18 Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The Bank’s investments in subsidiaries, bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment,
investment properties, other resources (excluding security deposits) and other non-financial
assets are subject to impairment testing. Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life or
those not yet available for use and goodwill are tested for impairment at least annually.

For purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows [cash-generating units (CGU)]. As a result, some assets
are tested for impairment either individually or at the CGU level.

Except for intangible assets with an indefinite useful life (i.e., goodwill) or those not yet
available for use, individual assets or CGU are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. Impairment is determined
for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of the CGU (or group of CGUs) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the CGU (or group of CGUs) is less
than the carrying amount of the CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated, an impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss. Impairment losses
relating to goodwill cannot be reversed for subsequent increases in its recoverable amount in
future periods.

Impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss for the amount by which the asset’s or
CGU’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount which is the higher of its fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use. In determining value in use, management estimates the
expected future cash flows from each CGU and determines the suitable interest rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The data used for impairment testing
procedures are directly linked to the Group’s latest approved budget, adjusted as necessary
to exclude the effects of asset enhancements. Discount factors are determined individually
for each CGU and reflect management’s assessment of respective risk profiles, such as
market and asset-specific risk factors.

All assets other than goodwill are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment
loss previously recognized may no longer exist. An impairment loss is reversed if the asset’s
or cash generating unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its carrying amount.
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2.19 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred, except
to the extent that they are capitalized. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset (i.e., an asset that takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale) are capitalized as part of
cost of such asset. The capitalization of borrowing costs commences when expenditures for
the asset and borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalization ceases when substantially
all such activities are complete.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalization.

2.20 Income Taxes

Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the current and deferred tax not
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, if any.

Current tax assets or liabilities comprise those claims from, or obligations to, fiscal
authorities relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are uncollected or unpaid
at the end of the reporting period. They are calculated using the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the
year. All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax
expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method, on temporary differences at the
end of the reporting period between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes. Under the liability method, with certain
exceptions, deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and the
carryforward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can
be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profit will be available to allow such deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled provided such tax rates have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
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The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Bank expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. For purposes of
measuring deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are
presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted, that is,
when the investment property is depreciable and is held within the business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Most changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax
expense in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if the Bank has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxation authority.

2.21 Trust and Fiduciary Activities

The Bank commonly acts as trustee and in other fiduciary capacities that result in the
holding or placing of resources on behalf of individuals, trusts, retirement benefit plans and
other institutions. The resources, liabilities and income or loss arising thereon are excluded
from these financial statements, as they are not resources and income or loss of the Bank.

2.22 Related Party Transactions and Relationships

Related party transactions are transfers of resources, services or obligations between the
Bank and its related parties, regardless whether a price is charged.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. These parties include: (a) individuals owning, directly or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries, control or are controlled by, or under common control with the Bank;
(b) associates; (c) individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of
the Bank that gives them significant influence over the Bank and close members of the
family of any such individual; and, (d) the Bank’s funded retirement plan.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance
of the relationship and not merely on the legal form.

2.23 Events After the End of the Reporting Period

Any post-year-end event that provides additional information about the Bank’s financial
position at the end of the reporting period (adjusting event) is reflected in the financial
statements. Post-year-end events that are not adjusting events, if any, are disclosed when
material to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Bank’s financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires
management to make judgments and estimates that affect amounts reported in the financial
statements and related notes. Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may ultimately differ
from these estimates.

3.1 Critical Management Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies

In the process of applying the Bank’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgments as enumerated below and on the succeeding pages, apart from those
involving estimation, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in
the financial statements:

(a)  Evaluation of Business Model Applied in Classifying Financial Instruments

The Bank manages its financial assets based on business models that maintain
adequate level of financial assets to match its expected cash outflows, largely its core
deposit funding arising from customers’ withdrawals and continuing loan
disbursements to borrowers, while maintaining a strategic portfolio of financial assets
for trading activities consistent with its risk appetite.

The Bank developed business models which reflect how it manages its portfolio of
financial instruments. The Bank’s business models need not be assessed at entity
level or as a whole but shall be applied at the level of a portfolio of financial
instruments (i.e., group of financial instruments that are managed together by the
Bank) and not on an instrument-by-instrument basis (i.e., not based on intention or
specific characteristics of individual financial instrument), except for designation of
equity instruments at FVOCL

In determining the classification of a financial instrument, the Bank evaluates in which
business model a financial instrument or a portfolio of financial instruments belong to
taking into consideration the objectives of each business model established by the
Bank (e.g., held-for-trading, generating accrual income, direct matching to a specific
liability) as those related to the Bank’s investment, trading and lending strategies.
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Testing the Cash Flow Characteristics of Financial Assets

In determining the classification of financial assets, the Bank assesses whether the
contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are SPPI on the principal outstanding, with interest representing time value of money
and credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding. The assessment as to
whether the cash flows meet the SPPI test is made in the currency in which the
financial asset is denominated. Any other contractual term that changes the timing or
amount of cash flows (unless it is a variable interest rate that represents time value of
money and credit risk) does not meet the amortized cost criteria. In cases where the
relationship between the passage of time and the interest rate of the financial
instrument may be imperfect, known as modified time value of money, the Bank
assesses the modified time value of money feature to determine whether the financial
instrument still meets the SPPI criterion. The objective of the assessment is to
determine how different the undiscounted contractual cash flows could be from the
undiscounted cash flows that would arise if the time value of money element was not
modified (the benchmark cash flows). If the resulting difference is significant, the
SPPI criterion is not met. In view of this, the Bank considers the effect of the
modified time value of money element in each reporting period and cumulatively over
the life of the financial instrument.

In addition, PFRS 9 emphasizes that if more than an infrequent sale is made out of a
portfolio of financial assets carried at amortized cost, an entity should assess whether
and how such sales are consistent with the objective of collecting contractual cash
flows. In making this judgment, the Bank considers certain circumstances
documented in its business model manual to assess that an increase in the frequency or
value of sales of financial instruments in a particular period is not necessary
inconsistent with a held-to-collect business model if the Bank can explain the reasons
for those sales and why those sales do not reflect a change in the Bank’s objective for
the business model.

Distinction Between Investment Properties, Assets Held-for-Sale and Owner-occupied Properties

The Bank determines whether a property qualifies as an investment property. In
making its judgment, the Bank considers whether the property generates cash flows
largely independent of the other assets held by an entity. Owner-occupied properties
generate cash flows that are attributable not only to the property but also to other
assets used in its banking operations.

Some properties comptise a portion that is held to earn rental or for capital
appreciation and another portion that is held for use for administrative purposes. If
these portions can be sold separately (or leased out separately under finance lease), the
Bank accounts for the portions separately. If the portions cannot be sold separately,
the property is accounted for as investment property only if an insignificant portion is
held for use in its banking operations or services or for administrative purposes.
Judgment is applied in determining whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as investment property.

The Bank considers each property separately in making its judgment.
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Classification and Determination of Fair Value of Acquired Properties

The Bank classifies its acquired properties as Bank Premises, Furniture, Fixtures and
Equipment if used in operations, as Assets Held-for-Sale if the Bank expects that the
properties will be recovered through sale rather than use, as Investment Properties if
held for currently undetermined future use and is regarded as held for capital
appreciation, or as financial assets in accordance with PFRS 9. At initial recognition,
the Bank determines the fair value of acquired properties through internally and
externally generated appraisal. The appraised value is determined based on the current
economic and market conditions, as well as the physical condition of the property.
The Bank’s methodology in determining the fair value of acquired properties are
further discussed in Note 6.

Distinction Between Operating and Finance 1eases

The Bank has entered into various lease agreements as a lessee. Judgment was
exercised by management to distinguish each lease agreement as either an operating or
finance lease by looking at the transfer or retention of significant risk and rewards of
ownership of the properties covered by the agreements. Failure to make the right
judgment will result in either overstatement or understatement of assets and liabilities.
Management has assessed that all its existing lease arrangements qualify under
operating lease.

Recognition of Provisions and Contingencies

Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and
contingencies. Policies on recognition of provisions and contingencies are discussed in
Note 2.12 and relevant disclosures are presented in Note 26.

In dealing with the Bank’s various legal proceedings, its estimate of the probable costs
that may arise from claims and contingencies has been developed in consultation and
coordination with the Bank’s internal and outside counsels acting in defense for the
Bank’s legal cases and are based upon the analysis of probable results.

Although the Bank does not believe that its on-going proceedings will have material
adverse effect on the Bank’s financial position, it is possible that future results of
operations could be materially affected by changes in the estimates or in the
effectiveness of the strategies conducted relating to those proceedings.

Key Sources of Estimation of Uncertainty

Enumerated on the succeeding pages are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of resources and
liabilities within the next reporting period.
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Estimation of Impairment of Loans and Receivables and Investment Securities at Amortized Cost

The Bank reviews its loans and receivables portfolio to assess impairment at least on a
semi-annual basis. In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in
profit or loss, the Bank makes judgments as to whether there is any observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from
the portfolio before the decrease can be identified with an individual item in that
portfolio. This evidence may include observable data indicating that there has been an
adverse change in the payment status of borrowers or issuers in a group, or national or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the group.
Moreover, the Bank holds debt securities measured at amortized cost included as part
of Trading and Investment Securities in the statements of financial position as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the
portfolio when scheduling its future cash flows. The methodology and assumptions
used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

The carrying value of loans and receivables and the analysis of allowance for
impairment on such financial assets are shown in Note 9, while the information related
to investment securities at amortized cost are presented in Note 8.2.

Determination of Fair Value Measurement for Financial Assets at F17PL.

The Bank carries certain financial assets at fair value which requires the extensive use
of accounting estimates and judgment. In cases when active market quotes are not
available, fair value is determined by reference to the current market value of another
instrument which is substantially the same or is calculated based on the expected cash
flows of the underlying net base of the instrument (see Note 6.2). The amount of
changes in fair value would differ if the Bank had utilized different valuation methods
and assumptions. Any change in fair value of the financial assets would affect profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in the next reporting periods.

The Bank had purchases of financial assets at FVPL amounting to P2,396.0 million
and P5,081.6 million for 2017 and 2016, respectively, which were eventually disposed
of throughout the period.

Fair Valne Measurement for Investment Properties

The Bank’s investment properties are composed of parcels of land, buildings and
condominium units which are held for capital appreciation, and are measured using
cost model. The estimated fair value of investment property disclosed in Note 6.4 is
determined on the basis of the appraisals conducted by professional and independent
appraiser applying the relevant valuation methodologies as discussed therein.

For investment properties with appraisal conducted prior to the end of the current
reporting period, management determines whether there are significant circumstances
during the intervening period that may require adjustments or changes in the
disclosure of fair value of those properties.
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A significant change in key inputs and sources of information used in the
determination of the fair value disclosed for those assets may result in adjustment in
the carrying amount of the assets reported in the financial statements if their fair value
will indicate evidence of impairment.

Estimation of Useful Lives of Bank Premises, Furniture, Fixctures and Equipment,
Investment Properties, and Computer Software

The Bank estimates the useful lives of bank premises, furniture, fixtures and
equipment, investment properties, and computer software based on the period over
which the assets are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful lives of
those assets are reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations differ from
previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence
and legal or other limits on the use of the assets during the year. The carrying amount
of bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment and investment properties are
analyzed in Notes 11 and 12, respectively, while the carrying amount of computer
software is presented in Note 13.2.2.

In 2017, based on current facts and circumstances, management changed the estimated
useful life of buildings from 20 years in 2016 to 25 years in 2017 (see Note 2.6). Also,
the useful life of computer software was increased from five years in 2016 to ten years
in 2017 (see Note 2.9). There is no change in estimated useful lives of the other assets.
Consequently, the change in useful lives of these assets, which were applied
prospectively, did not result in material change in the Bank’s annual depreciation and
amortization expense.

Estimation of Impairment Losses for Non-financial Assets

Except for intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, PFRS requires that an
impairment review be performed when certain impairment indications are present.
The Bank’s policy on estimating the impairment of non-financial assets is discussed in
detail in Note 2.18. Though management believes that the assumptions used in the
estimation of fair values of non-financial assets are appropriate and reasonable,
significant changes in these assumptions may materially affect the assessment of
recoverable values and any resulting impairment loss could have a material adverse
effect on the results of the Bank’s operations.

Impairment losses recognized on investment properties are discussed in Note 12.
Determination of Realizable Amount of Deferred Tax Assets

The Bank reviews its deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period and
reduces the carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilized.

In 2017 and 2016, the Bank recognized deferred tax assets on their allowance for
impairment related to certain loans and receivables classified as financial assets at
amortized cost (see Note 9), Investment Properties (see Note 12) and Assets
Held-for-Sale (see Note 13) since management believes that the Bank will be able to
generate sufficient taxable profit in the subsequent reporting periods against which the
benefits of temporary difference can be utilized (see Note 22.1).

The Deferred Tax Assets amounted to P829.4 million and P744.2 million as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, in the statements of financial position.
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(g)  Valuation of Post-employment Defined Benefit Plan

The determination of the Bank’s obligation and cost of post-employment defined
benefits is dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in
calculating such amounts. Those assumptions include, among others, discount rate
and salary increase rate. A significant change in any of these actuarial assumptions may
generally affect the recognized expense, other comprehensive income or losses and the
carrying amount of the post-employment benefit obligation in the next reporting

period.

The amounts of post-employment benefit obligation and expense and an analysis of
the movements in the estimated present value of post-employment benefit obligation,
as well as the significant assumptions used in estimating such obligation, are presented
in Note 21.2.

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Bank is exposed to a variety of financial risks in relation to its financial instruments.
The Bank’s financial assets and financial liabilities by category are summarized in Note 5.
The main types of risks are liquidity risk, market risk and credit risk.

The Bank’s risk management is closely coordinated with its Parent Bank, in close
coordination with the BOD, Risk Management Committee (RMC) and the Risk
Management Division (RMD) of the Bank and focuses on actively securing the Bank’s short
to medium-term cash flows by minimizing the exposure to financial markets. Long-term
financial investments are managed to generate reasonable returns.

The Bank does not actively engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes
nor does it write options. The most significant financial risks to which the Bank is exposed
to are described below and in the succeeding pages:

4.1 Liquidity Risk

The Bank manages its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring scheduled deposits, bills and
debt servicing payments for short-term and long-term financial liabilities as well as cash
outflows due in a day-to-day business. Liquidity gap and liquidity needs are monitored in
various time bands, on a day-to-day and week-to-week basis, as well as on the basis of a
rolling 30-day projection through maximum cumulative outflow (MCO). The MCO limit is
a monetary amount set by the BOD to control the liquidity gap for such currency. The
Bank manages market access to various funding alternatives, how much funds can be raised
from the market in both normal and abnormal conditions if there is a breach in the MCO.
This involves periodical review efforts to establish, maintain and diversify liabilities and their
maturities.
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The analyses of the groupings of resources, liabilities and off-statement of financial position
items at the end of each reporting period are as follows:

Maximum Cumulative Outflow as of December 31, 2017 (in millions of Philippine pesos):

One to Three One to Motre
On Three Months to Five Than Five Non-
Demand Months One Year Years Years Maturity Total
Resources:

Cash and other

cash items P 1 P - P - P - P - P 4447 P 4,458
Due from BSP 2,000 - - - - 8,333 10,333
Due from other banks:

Local banks 1,778 18 - - - - 1,796

Foreign banks 358 - - - - - 358
Loans and receivables

arising from reverse

repurchase agreement 2,313 - - - - - 2,313
Trading and investment

securities - net 150 532 1,462 2,844 6,497 22 11,507
Loans and

receivables - net 3,219 4,265 15,677 43,263 12,348 3,435 82,207
Investments in

subsidiaries - - - - - 206 206
Bank premises, furniture

and fixtutes - net - - - - - 1,058 1,058
Investment

properties - net - - - - - 1,353 1,353
Assets held-for-sale and

disposal group - net - - - - - 663 663
Other resources - net 802 188 33 - - 596 1,619
Total Resources P 10631 P 5003 P 17,172 P 46,107 P 18,845 P 20,13 P 117,871

Liabilities:

Deposits:

Demand P 1,018 P1,484 P 2,226 P - P - P 7,134 P 11,862

Savings 430 1,218 1,827 - - 21,986 25,461

Time 5,447 2,471 1,412 1,193 - 53,839 64,362
Manager’s check

payable 741 - - - - 741

Accrued interest, taxes
and other expenses:
Payment orders
payable 12 - - - - - 12
Accrued interest,
taxes and other

expenses 862 9 - - . 871
Unearned income
and other
deferred credits - - - - - 2 2
Other liabilities 2,492 20 - - - 68 2,580

Total Liabilities P 11,002 P 5202 P 5465 P 1193 P - P_ 83,029 P_ 105,891
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One to Three One to Motre
On Three Months to Five Than Five Non-
Demand Months One Year Years Years Maturity Total
Equity:
Common stock P - P - P - P - P - P 3087 P 3,087
Additional paid-in
capital - - - - - 103 103
Surplus and
trust reserves - - - - - 8,809 8,809
Revaluation reserves - - - - - ( 19) ( 19)
Total Equity P - P - P - P - P - P_11980 P__ 11,980
On-book gap [ 371) (P 199) P 11,707 P 44914 P 18,845 (P_ 74,896) P -
Cumulative
on-book gap [0 371) (P 570) P 11,137 P 56,051 P 74,896 P - P -
Contingent liabilities:
Trust department
accounts P 27190 P - P - P - P - P - P 27,190
Spot exchange sold 110 - - - - - 110
Late deposits/ payments
received 133 - - - - - 133
Standby letters of credit 65 - - - - - 65
Total contingencies P 27,498 P__ - p__- P__- P__- - P 27,498
Off-book gap P 27498 P - P - P - P - P - P 27,498
Cumulative
total gap P 27127 P 26928 P 38,635 P 83,549 P 102394 P 27498 P -
Maximum Cumulative Outflow as of December 31, 2016 (in millions of Philippine pesos):
One to Three One to More
On Three Months to Five Than Five Non-
Demand Months One Year Years Years Maturity Total
Resources:
Cash and other
cash items P 6 P - P - P - P - P 4140 P 4,146
Due from BSP - - - - - 14,713 14,713
Due from other banks:
Local banks 1,811 18 - - - - 1,829
Foreign banks 165 - - - - - 165
Loans and receivables
arising from reverse
repurchase agreement 2,958 - - - - - 2,958
Trading and investment
securities - net 50 125 1,305 1,600 3,801 - 6,381
Loans and
receivables - net 2,189 3,634 14,157 36,340 10,643 5,549 72,512
Investments in
subsidiaries - - - - - 155 155
Bank premises, furniture
and fixtures - net - - - - - 1,115 1,115
Investment
properties - net - - - - - 1,124 1,124
Assets held-for-sale and
disposal group - net - - - - - 1,876 1,876
Other resources - net - - - - - 1,447 1,447
Total Resources P 7179 P 3777 P_15462 P_37940 P 14444 P_ 30,119 P_ 108,921
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One to Three One to More
On Three Months to Five Than Five Non-
Demand _ Months One Year Years Years Maturity Total
Liabilities:
Deposits:
Demand P 148 P 556 P 834 P - P - P 8,023 P 9,561
Savings 803 1,046 1,569 - - 19,977 23,395
Time 6,436 2,054 2,326 737 - 50,252 61,805
Manager’s check
payable 522 - - - - - 522
Accrued interest, taxes
and other expenses:
Payment orders
payable 24 - - - - - 24
Accrued interest,
taxes and other
expenses 982 28 - - - - 1,010
Unearned income
and other
deferred credits - - - - - 5 5
Other liabilities 1,924 - - - - 130 2,054
Total Liabilities P 10,839 P 3684 P 4729 P 737 P__- P 78387 P__ 98376
Equity:
Common stock P - P - P - P - P - P 3087 P 3,087
Additional paid-in
capital - - - - - 103 103
Surplus and
trust reserves - - - - - 7,459 7,459
Revaluation reserves - - - - - ( 104) ( 104)
Total Equity P - P - P - P - P - P_10545 P__ 10,545
On-book gap (P_3,660) P 93 P__10,733 P 37203 P _ 14444 (P_ 58813) P -
Cumulative
on-book gap (P__3,660) (P__3567) P__7,166 P__ 44369 P_ 58813 P - )
Contingent liabilities:
Trust department
accounts P 23544 P - P - P - P - P - P 23,544
Spot exchange sold 149 - - - - - 149
Late deposits/payments
received 121 - - - - - 121
Standby letters of credit 59 - - - - - 59
Outward bills for
collection 2 - - - - - 2
Total contingencies P 23,875 P - P_- P - P_- P - P 23875
Off-book gap (P_30,471) P 93 P_10,733 P_37203 P_ 14,444 (P_58,836) P__ 23875
Cumulative
total gap (P_30,471) (P__30,378) (P__19,645 P_ 17,558 P_ 32,002 (P_23,875 P -
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4.2 Credit Risk

The Bank’s BOD has the responsibility for approving and periodically reviewing the market
risk strategy and significant credit risk policies of the Bank. The BOD shall determine that
the Bank’s capital level is adequate for the risks assessed to carry out the strategy.

Senior management has the responsibility for implementing the credit risk strategy approved
by the BOD and for developing policies and procedures for identifying, measuring,
monitoring and controlling credit risk. To ensure sound credit portfolio, the Bank operates
within a sound, well-defined credit granting criteria. These criteria include a clear indication
of the Bank’s target market and a thorough understanding of the borrower or counterparty,
as well as the purpose and structure of credit, and its source of repayment. The Bank also
establishes overall credit limits at the level of individual borrowers and counterparties, and
groups of connected borrowers and counterparties that will aggregate in a comparable
meaningful manner of different types of exposures, both in the banking and trading books
and on and off-statement of financial position.

(a)  Exposure to Credit Risk

The maximum credit risk exposure of financial assets is the carrying amount of the financial
assets as shown in the statements of financial position or in the detailed analysis provided in
the notes to the financial statements as summarized below (in millions of Philippine pesos).

Notes 2017 2016
Cash and other cash items 7 P 4,458 P 4,146
Due from BSP 7 10,332 14,713
Due from other banks 7 2,154 1,994
Loans and receivables arising
from reverse repurchase agreement 7 2,313 2,958
Investment securities
at amortized cost 8 11,507 6,881
Loans and receivables — net 9 82,207 72,512
Other resources 13.2 97 93
P 113,068 P 103,297

The credit risk quality of the Bank’s financial assets is further described as follows:
(1) Cash and Cash Equivalents

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents is considered negligible, since the
counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings. Included in
the cash and cash equivalents are Cash and Other Cash Items, Due from BSP,

Due from Other Banks and Loans and Receivables Arising from Reverse Repurchase
Agreement. Due from Other Banks are insured by the Philippine Deposit Insurance
Corporation (PDIC) up to a maximum coverage of P0.5 million for every depositor
per banking institution.
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Investment Securities at Amortized Cost

The Bank continuously monitors defaults of counterparties, identified either
individually or by group, and incorporates this information into its credit risk controls.
Moreover, these investments are mainly composed of government bonds whose credit
risk is secured by the Philippine Government and certain corporate debt securities
issued by publicly-known local companies with no observed history of credit default.
Accordingly, all debt instruments held by the Bank are considered as either high grade
or standard grade that is neither past due nor specifically impaired.

Loans and Receivables

The Bank regularly reviews and monitors defaults of borrowers identified either
individually or by group, and incorporates this information into its credit risk
evaluation. Where available at a reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/or reports
on customers are obtained and used. In addition, for a significant proportion of loans,
post-dated checks are received to mitigate credit risk.

The analysis of the carrying amounts of loans and receivables and investment securities
at amortized cost recognized in the financial statements and their credit grading are as
follows (in millions of Philippine pesos):

2017
Investment
Securities at
Loans and Amortized
Receivables Cost
Carrying amount in the statement
of financial position P 82,207 P 11,507
Individually assessed for impairment
Especially mentioned/watch list P 1,225 P -
Sub-standard 3,156 -
Doubtful 48 -
Loss 1,097 -
Gross 5,526 -
Allowance for impairment ( 1,991) -
Carrying amount 3,535 -
Collectively assessed for impairment
Unclassified 79,301 11,507
Allowance for impairment ( 629) -
Carrying amount 78,672 11,507

Total carrying amount P 82,207 P 11,507
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2016
Investment
Securities at
Loans and Amortized
Receivables Cost
Carrying amount in the statement
of financial position p 72512 P 6,881
Individually assessed for impairment
Especially mentioned/watch list P 4055 P -
Sub-standard 1,203 -
Doubtful - -
Loss 593 -
Gross amount 5,851 -
Unearned interest discount and
prompt payment discount ( 9 -
Allowance for impairment ( 989) -
Carrying amount 4853 -
Collectively assessed for impairment
Unclassified 68,189 0,881
Allowance for impairment ( 530) -
Carrying amount 67,659 6,881
Total carrying amount p 72,512 P 6,881

(b)  Concentration of Credit

Concentration of credit arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar
business activities or activities in the same geographic region or have similar economic
features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected
by changes in economic political or other conditions. Concentration indicates the relative
sensitivity of the Bank’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry or
geographical location. In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Bank’s policies
and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on maintaining a diversified portfolio.
Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly.

For trading and investment securities, the Bank limits investments to government issues and
securities issued by entities with high-quality investment ratings.

The information about the Bank’s concentration of credit risk as to industry, particulatly, of
its loans and discount portfolio is presented in Note 9.

(¢)  Collateral Held as Security and Other Credit Enbancements

The Bank holds collateral against loans to borrower in the form of mortgage interests over
propertties, other registered securities over assets, and guarantees. Estimates of fair value are
based on the value of collateral assessed at the time of borrowing, and generally are not
updated except when a loan is individually assessed as impaired.

Generally, collateral is not held over loans to banks, except when securities are held as part
of reverse repurchase and securities borrowing activity. Also, collateral usually is not held
against investment security. No such collaterals were held as of December 31, 2017 and
2016.
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An estimate of the fair value of collateral and other security enhancements held against the
Bank’s loans and receivables as of December 31 is shown below (in millions of Philippine
pesos).

2017 2016

Against neither past due nor impaired

Property — real estate P 77,413 P 69,908

Chattel 53,664 46,927

Hold-out deposits 347 454
Against individually impaired

Property — real estate 11,646 19,986

Chattel 9,525 8,292

P 152,595 P 145,567

4.3 Market Risk

The Bank’s exposure to market risk, the risk of future loss from changes in the price of a
financial instrument, relates primarily to its holdings in foreign currency denominated
instruments and debt securities. The Bank manages its risk by identifying, analyzing and
measuring relevant or likely market risks. Market risk management recommends market risk
limits based on relevant activity indicators for approval by the Bank’s RMC and the BOD.
In managing market risk, the Bank measures the sensitivity of its financial instruments
primarily related to interest rate risk and foreign currency risk.

(a)  Interest Rate Risk

The Bank prepares gap analysis to measure the sensitivity of its resources, liabilities and
off-statement of financial position items to interest rate fluctuations. The focus of the
analysis is in the impact of changes in interest rates on accrual or reported earnings. This
analysis would give management information on the maturity and re-pricing profile of its
interest sensitive resources and liabilities. An interest rate gap report is prepared by
classifying all interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities into various time buckets according
to contracted maturities or anticipated repricing dates, and other applicable behavioral
assumptions. The difference in the amount of resources and liabilities maturing or being
repriced in any time period category would then give the Bank an indication of the extent to
which it is exposed to the risk of potential changes in net profit and equity.

With all other variables held constant, a positive gap on the Bank’s interest rate sensitive
financial assets and liabilities and increasing interest rate will increase net profit and equity.
On the other hand, a negative gap and increasing interest rate will decrease net profit and

equity.

The analyses of the groupings of interest rate sensitive resources, liabilities and off-statement
of financial position items as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 are presented in the next page.



Interest Rate Gap Summa

December 31, 2017

Resources:

Cash and cash equivalents

Loans and receivabkes
arising from reverse
repurchase agreement

Loans and receivable — net

Trading and investment
securities — net

Other resources — net

Total Resources

Liabilities:
Deposits:
Demand
Savings
Time
Other liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity

Total liabilities and equity

Gap

Cumulative Gap

December 31, 2016

Resources:

Cash and cash equivalents

Loans and receivables
arising from reverse
repurchase agreement

Loans and receivable — net

Trading and investment
securities — net

Other resources — net

Total Resources

Liabilities:
Deposits:
Demand
Savings
Time
Other liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity

Total liabilities and equity

Gap

Cumulative Gap
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in million Philippine pesos):
One to Three One to More
On Three Months to Five Than Five Non-Rate

Demand _Months One Year Years Years Sensitive Total

P 4147 P 18 P - P- P - P 12,780 P 16,945
2,313 - - - - . 2,313
1,704 2,626 12,936 54,499 3,151 7,291 82,207

150 532 1,462 2,844 6,291 228 11,507

- - - - - 4.899 4,899

P 8314 P 3176 P_14398 P 57343 P 9442 P 25198 P117.871

P - P - P - P - P - P 11862 P 11,862

- - - - - 25,461 25,461

34,049 14,026 8,288 7,999 - - 64,362

- - - - - 4,206 4.206

34,049 14,026 8,288 7,999 41,529 105,891

- - - - - 11,980 11,980

P 34049 P_ 14026 P__ 8283 P 799 P - P 53509 P117,871
(P_25,735) (P_10,850) P 6,110 P 49,344 P 9442 (P_28311) P -
(P__25,735) (P_36,585) (P_30,475) P 18,869 P__ 28,311 P - P_ -

P 1983 P 18 P - P - P - P 18,852 P 20,853
2,958 - - - - - 2,958
2,442 1,837 10,677 48,889 3117 5,550 72,512

50 125 1,305 1,600 3,617 184 6,881

- - - - - 5717 5717

P 7433 P 1,980 P 11982 P 50489 P_ 6,734 P_ 30,303 P108,921

P - P - P - P - P - P 9561 P 9,561

- - - - - 23,395 23,395

35,728 9,554 12,252 4,270 1 - 61,805

- - - - - 3,615 3,615

35,728 9,554 12,252 4,270 1 36,571 98,376

- - - - - 10,545 10,545

P 35728 P___ 9554 P 12252 P__ 4270 P 1 P_47116 P108,921
28,295) (P_7,574) (P 270) P 46219 P 6,733 (P_16813) P -
28,295) (P__35,869) (P__36,139) P_ 10,080 P 16,813 P - P -
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(b)  Foreign Currency Risk

The Bank manages its exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the foreign currency
exchange rates by maintaining foreign currency exposure within the existing regulatory
guidelines and at a level that the Bank believes to be relatively conservative for a financial
institution engaged in that type of business. While most of the Bank’s financial instruments
are denominated in Philippine peso, it also maintains reasonable level of foreign currencies
denominated in US dollar, European Union (EU) euro, and Japanese yen.

The Bank’s foreign exchange exposure is guided by the limits approved by the BOD at the
end of each day, the Bank reports to the BSP on its compliance with the mandated foreign
currency exposure limits.

A summary of the Bank’s significant financial resources and financial liabilities accounts
broken down into their foreign currency and Philippine peso components as of
December 31 is presented below and in the next page (in millions of Philippine pesos).

EU Japanese Philippine
US Dollar Euro Yen Peso Total
December 31, 2017
Resources:
Cash and other cash
items P 141 P 13 P 7 P 4297 P 4,458
Due from BSP - - - 10,332 10,332
Due from other banks 1,212 135 66 741 2,154
Loans and receivables
arising from reverse
repurchase agreement - - - 2,313 2,313
Investment securities at
amorttized cost - net 5,948 - - 5,559 11,507
Loans and
receivables - net 95 - - 82,112 82,207
Other resources - net - - - 97 97
P 7,396 P 148 P 73 P 105,451 P 113,068
Liabilities:
Deposit liabilities P 7248 P 146 P 74 P 94217 P 101,685
Manager’s check
payable - - - 741 741
Accrued interest and
other expenses 18 - - 771 789
Other liabilities 9 - - 2,524 2,533

P 7,275 P 146 P 74 P 98,253 P 105,748
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EU Japanese Philippine
US Dollar Euro Yen Peso Total
December 31, 2016
Resources:
Cash and other cash
items P 187 P 8 P 9 P 3,942 P 4,146
Due from BSP - - - 14,713 14,713
Due from other banks 1,160 95 61 678 1,994
Loans and receivables
arising from reverse
repurchase agreement - - - 2,958 2,958
Investment securities at
amortized cost - net 4,975 - - 1,906 6,881
Loans and
receivables - net 74 - - 72,439 72,512
Other resources - net - - - 93 93
P 6,396 P 103 P 70 P 96,729 P 103,297
Liabilities:
Deposit liabilities P 6,146 P 158 P 68 P 88,389 P 94,761
Manager’s check
payable - - - 522 522
Accrued interest and
other expenses 10 - - 891 901
Other liabilities 7 - - 1,869 1,876
P 6,163 P 158 P 68 P 91,671 P 98,060

The Bank’s foreign currency sensitivity and risk are measured and controlled through the
value-at-risk (VaR) model as discussed below.

The Bank’s market risk management limits are generally categorized as limits on:

. VaR — the RMD computes the value-at-risk benchmarked at a level which is a
percentage of projected earnings. The Bank uses the VaR model to estimate the daily
potential loss that the Bank can incur from its trading book, based on a number of
assumptions with a confidence level of 99%. The measurement is designed such that
exceptions over dealing limits should only arise in very exceptional circumstances.

. Stop loss — the RMD sets the amount of each risk-bearing activity at a percentage of
the budgeted annual income for such activity.

o Nominal position — the RMD sets the nominal amount of US dollar denominated
instruments at the BSP-mandated US dollar overbought position limit.

. Trading volume — the RMD sets the volume of transactions that any employee may
execute at various levels based on the rank of the personnel making the risk-bearing
decision.

o Earnings-at-risk — the RMD computes the earnings-at-risk based on a percentage of

projected annual net interest income.
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The Bank uses the VaR model to estimate the daily potential loss that the Bank can incur
from its trading book. VaR is one of the key measures in the Bank’s management of market
risk. VaR is defined as a statistical estimate of the maximum possible loss on a given
position during a time horizon within a given confidence interval. The Bank uses a

99% confidence level and a 260-day observation period in VaR calculation. The Bank’s VaR
limit is established as a percentage of projected earnings and is used to alert senior
management whenever the potential losses in the Bank’s portfolios exceed tolerable levels.
Because the VaR measure is tied to market volatility, it therefore allows management to react
quickly and adjust its portfolio strategies in different market conditions in accordance with
its risk philosophy and appetite. The VaR model is validated through back-testing.

Stress VaR is also performed on all portfolios as a complementary measure of risk. While
VaR deals with risk during times of normality, stress testing is used to measure the potential
effect of a crisis or low probability event.

Although VaR is an important tool for measuring market risk, the assumptions on which the
model is based do give rise to some limitations, including the following:

e A 99% confidence level does not reflect losses that may occur beyond this level.
Even within the model used, there is a one percent probability that losses could exceed
the VaR.

. VaR is calculated on an end-of-day basis and does not reflect exposures that may arise

on positions during the trading day.

° The use of historical data as a basis for determining the possible range of future
outcomes may not always cover all possible scenarios, especially those of an
exceptional nature.

. The VaR measure is dependent upon the Bank’s position and the volatility of market
prices. The VaR of an unchanged position reduces if the market price volatility
declines and vice versa.

A summary of the VaR position of the trading portfolios at December 31, 2017 and 2016
and during the period is as follows (in thousands of Philippine Pesos):

Range for the Year

At December 31 Average Minimum _Maximum VaR Limit
2017:
Interest rate risk P 215,400 P 162,067 P 113,871 P 223,669 P 25,000
Foreign currency risk 49 533 49 1,030 12,500
P 215,449 P 162,600
2016:
Interest rate risk P 117,251 P 130,094 P 96,307 P 207,924 P 25,000
Foreign currency risk 355 423 146 1,031 12,500

P 117,606 P 130,517
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4.4 Operational Risk

Operational risks are risks arising from the potential inadequate information systems and
systems, operations or transactional problems (relating to service or product delivery),
breaches in internal controls, fraud, or unforeseen catastrophes that may result in
unexpected loss. Operational risks include the risk of loss arising from various types of
human or technical error, settlement or payments failures, business interruption,
administrative and legal risks, and the risk arising from systems not performing adequately.

The RMD of the Bank assists management in meeting its responsibility to understand and
manage operational risk exposures.

The RMD applies a number of techniques to efficiently manage operational risks. Among
these are:

o Each major business line has an embedded operational risk management officer who
acts as a point person for the implementation of various operational risk tools. The
operational risk officers attend annual risk briefings conducted by the RMD to keep
them up-to-date with different operational risk issues, challenges and initiatives.

° With RMD’s bottom up self-assessment process, which is conducted at least annually,
areas with high risk potential are highlighted and reported, and control measures are
identified. The results of said self-assessment exercise also serve as one of the inputs
in identifying specific key risk indicators (KRIs).

° KRIs are used to monitor the operational risk profile of the Bank and of each business
unit, and alert the management of impending problems in a timely fashion.

° Internal loss information is collected, reported and utilized to model operational risk.

° The RMD reviews product and operating manuals, policies, procedures and circulars,
thus allowing the embedding of desired operational risk management practices in all
business units.

An Operational Risk System is in place across the RCBC group, including the Bank. Itis the
intention of RCBC Group to eventually migrate to the Advanced Management Approach
for Operational Risk, subject to approval by the BSP.

The Bank, in coordination and consistent with RCBC, has Business Continuity Plan (BCP)
based on several crisis severity levels which is tested at least annually and updated for any
major changes in systems and procedures. Central to the BCP is a disaster recovery plan to
address the continued functioning of systems, recovery of critical data and contingency
processing requirements in the event of a disaster.

4.4.1 Reputation Risk

Reputation risk is the risk to earnings or capital arising from negative public opinion. This
affects the Bank’s ability to establish new relationships or services, or to continue servicing
existing relationships. This risk can expose the Bank to litigation, financial loss, or damage
to its reputation. Reputation risk arises whenever technology-based banking products,
services, delivery channels or processes may generate adverse public opinion such that it
seriously affects the Bank’s earnings or impairs its capital. This risk is present in activities
such as asset management and regulatory compliance.
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The Bank, in coordination and consistent with RCBC, adopted a reputation risk monitoring
and reporting framework to manage public perception. Central to the said framework is the
creation of the RCBC Public Relations Committee chaired by the Head of the Parent Bank’s
Corporate Communications Division.

4.4.2 Legal Risk and Regulatory Risk Management

Changes in laws and regulations and fiscal policies could adversely affect the Bank’s
operations and financial reporting. In addition, the Bank faces legal risks in enforcing its
rights under its loan agreements, such as foreclosing of collateral. Legal risk is higher in new
areas of business where the law remains untested by the courts. The Bank uses a legal
review process as the primary control mechanism for legal risk. Such a legal review aims to
verify and validate the existence, genuineness and due execution of legal documents, and
verify the capacity and authority of counterparties and customers to enter into transactions.
In addition, the Bank seeks to minimize its legal risk by using stringent legal documentation,
imposing certain requirements designed to ensure that transactions are propetly authorized,
and consulting internal and external legal advisors.

Regulatory risk refers to the potential for the Bank to suffer financial loss due to changes in
the laws or monetary, tax or other governmental regulations of the country. The Bank’s
Compliance Program, the design and implementation of which is overseen and coordinated
by the Compliance Officer, is the primary control process for regulatory risk issues. The
Compliance Office is committed to safeguard the integrity of the Bank by maintaining a high
level of regulatory compliance. It is responsible for communicating and disseminating new
rules and regulations to all units, assessing and addressing identified compliance issues,
performing periodic compliance testing on branches and head office units, and reporting
compliance findings to the Audit Committee and the BOD.

4.5 Anti-Money Laundering Controls

The Anti-Money Laundering Act (AMLA) or RA No. 9160 was passed in September 2001
and was amended by RA No. 9194, RA No. 10167, and RA No. 10365 in March 2003,
June 2012 and February 2013, respectively. Under the AMLA, as amended, the Bank is
required to submit “Covered Transaction Reports” to the Anti-Money Laundering Council
(AMLC) involving single transactions in cash or other equivalent monetary instruments in
excess of P0.5 million within one banking day. The Bank is also required to submit
“Suspicious Transaction Reports” to the AMLC in the event that circumstances exist and
there are reasonable grounds to believe that the transaction is suspicious. Furthermore,
terrorist financing was criminalized in RA No. 10168.

In addition, the AMLA requires that the Bank safe keeps, as long as the account exists, all
the Know Your Customer (KYC) documents involving its clients, including documents that
establish and record the true and full identity of its clients. Likewise, transactional
documents must be maintained and stored for five years from the date of the transaction. In
cases involving closed accounts, the KYC documents must be kept for five years after their
closure. Meanwhile, all records of accounts with court cases must be safe kept until there is
a final resolution.

On January 27, 2011, BSP Circular No. 706 was implemented superseding all policies on
AMLA. The Circular requires the Bank to adopt a comprehensive and risk-based Money
Laundering and Terrorist Financing Prevention Program (MLPP) designed according to the
covered institution’s corporate structure and risk profile.
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In an effort to further prevent money laundering activities, the Bank revised its KYC policies
and guidelines in order to comply with the aforementioned Circular. Under the guidelines,
each business unit is required to validate the true identity of a customer based on official or
other reliable identifying documents or records before an account may be opened. Likewise,
the Bank is required to risk profile its clients to Low, Normal or High with its corresponding
due diligence of Reduced, Average or Enhanced, in compliance with the risk-based approach
mandated by the Circular. Decisions to enter into a business relationship with a high risk
customer requires senior management approval, and in some cases such as a politically
exposed person or a private individual holding a prominent position, Group Head approval
1s necessary.

The Bank’s procedures for compliance with the AMLA are set out in its MLPP. The Bank’s
Compliance Officer, through the Anti-Money Laundering Department (AMLD), monitors
AMILA compliance and conducts regular compliance testing of business units.

The AMLD requires all banking units to submit to the Compliance Office certificates of
compliance with the Anti-Money Laundering Rules and Regulations on a quarterly basis.

The Chief Compliance Officer regularly reports to the Audit Committee and to the BOD
results of their monitoring of AMLA compliance.

CATEGORIES AND OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

5.1 Carrying Amounts and Fair Values by Category

The carrying amounts and fair values of the categories of financial assets and financial
liabilities presented in the statements of financial position are shown below.

2017 2016
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Notes Amounts Values Amounts Values
Financial assets
At amortized cost:
Cash and other cash items 7 P 4,457,783,721 P 4,457,783,721 TP 4,146,105,882 P 4,146,105,882
Due from BSP 7 10,332,553,346 10,332,553,346 14,712,658,644 14,712,658,644
Due from other banks 7 2,153,704,387 2,153,704,387 1,994,411,693 1,994,411,693
Loans and receivables
arising from reverse
repurchase agreement 7 2,313,002,922 2,313,002,922 2,958,465,090 2,958,465,090
Investment securities at
amortized cost - net 8 11,507,055,935 11,474,763,271 6,881,206,226 6,742,753,338
Loans and receivables - net 9 82,206,531,110 84,997,989,397 72,512,195,758 74,843,295,055
Other resources - net 13 96,822,108 96,822,108 92,715,315 92,715,315
P113,067,453,529 P115,826,619,152 P103,297,758,608 P105,490,405,017
Financial liabilities
At amortized cost:
Deposit liabilities 14 P101,684,558,574 P101,704,122,625 P 94,760,715,397 P 94,769,439,101
Managet’s check payable 16 740,530,829 740,530,829 521,972,467 521,972,467
Accrued interest and other expenses 17 789,363,856 789,363,856 901,043,260 901,043,260
Other liabilities 18 2,533,497,495 2,533,497,495 1,876,025,888 1,876,025,888

P105,747,950,754

P105,767,514,805

P98,059,757,012

P 98,068,480,716
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Except for investment securities at amortized cost with fair value disclosed different from
their carrying amounts, management considers that the carrying amounts of other financial
assets and financial liabilities presented on the preceding page which are measured at
amortized cost, approximate the fair values because those instruments are short-term in
nature. The fair value information disclosed for the Bank’s investment securities at
amortized cost and other financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis are
determined based on the procedures and methodologies discussed in Note 6.2.

5.2 Offsetting of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The following financial assets, presented in the statements of financial position at gross
amounts, are covered by enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements:

Gross amounts Related amounts not set off in the

recognized in statements of financial position
the statements

of financial Financial Collateral
Note position Instruments received Net amount
Loans and receivables 9
December 31, 2017 P 82,206,531,110 (P 347,009,897) P - P 81,859,521,213
December 31, 2016 P 72,512,195,758 (P 454,273,330) P - 72,057,922,428

The following financial liabilities, presented in the statements of financial position at gross
amounts, are covered by enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements:

Gross amounts Related amounts not set off in the

recognized in statements of financial position
the statements

of financial Financial Collateral
Note position Instruments received Net amount
Deposit liabilities 14
December 31, 2017 P101,684,558,574 (P 347,009,897) P - P101,337,548,677
December 31, 2016 94,760,715,397 ( 454,273,330) - 94,306,442,067

For financial assets and financial liabilities (i.e., loans and receivables and the related
hold-out deposits) subject to enforceable master netting agreements or similar arrangements,
each agreement between the Bank and its customers allows for net settlement of the relevant
financial assets and financial liabilities when both elect to settle on a net basis. In the
absence of such an election, financial assets and financial liabilities will be settled on a gross
basis; however, each party to the master netting agreement or similar agreement will have the
option to settle all such amounts on a net basis in the event of default of the other party.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT AND DISCLOSURES
6.1 Fair Value Hierarchy

In accordance with PERS 13, Fair 1Value Measurement, the fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities and non-financial assets which are measured at fair value on a recurring or
non-recurring basis and those assets and liabilities not measured at fair value but for which
fair value is disclosed in accordance with other relevant PFRS, are categorized into three
levels based on the significance of inputs used to measure the fair value. The levels of the
fair value hierarchy are described in the next page.
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e Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
an entity can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices);
and,

e Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The level within which the asset or liability is classified is determined based on the lowest
level of significant input to the fair value measurement.

For purposes of determining the market value at Level 1, a market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

For investments which do not have quoted market price, the fair value is determined by
using generally acceptable pricing models and valuation techniques or by reference to the
current market value of another instrument which is substantially the same after taking into
account the related credit risk of counterparties, or is calculated based on the expected cash
flows of the underlying net asset base of the instrument.

When the Bank uses valuation technique, it maximizes the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to determine the fair value of an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in Level 2. Otherwise, it is included in Level 3.

6.2 Financial Instruments Measured at Fair Value

The fair value of the Bank’s government bonds and corporate papers categorized within
Level 1 is determined directly based on published closing prices available from the electronic
financial data service providers which had been based or referenced on price quoted or
actually dealt in an active market (i.e., PDEX) at the end of each of the reporting period,
including peso-denominated government securities based on the weighted average of done
or executed deals.

In 2017 and 2016, the Bank had regular trading of financial assets at FVPL. However, the
Bank has no outstanding financial assets at FVPL and financial liabilities measured at fair
value as at December 31, 2017 and 2016.

6.3 Financial Instruments Measured at Amortized Cost for Which Fair Value is
Disclosed

The table on the next page summarizes the fair value hierarchy of the Bank’s financial assets
and financial liabilities which are not measured at fair value in the statements of financial
position but for which fair values are disclosed.
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2017:
Financial assets:
Cash and other cash items P 4457,783,721 P - P - P 4,457,783,721
Due from BSP 10,332,553,346 - - 10,332,553,346
Due from other banks 2,153,704,387 - - 2,153,704,387
Loans and receivables
arising from reverse
repurchase agreement 2,313,002,922 - - 2,313,002,922
Investment securities at
amortized cost - net 11,474,763,271 - - 11,474,763,271
Loans and receivables - net - - 84,997,989,397 84,997,989,397
Other resources - net - - 96,822,108 96,822,108

P30,731,807,647

P85,094,811,505

P 115,826,619,152

Financial liabilities:
Deposit liabilities P - - P 101,704,122,625 P 101,704,122,625
Manager’s check payable - 740,530,829 740,530,829
Accrued interest and
other expenses - - 789,363,856 789,363,856
Other liabilities - - 2,533,497.495 2,533,497,495
P - - P 105,767,514,805 P 105,767,514,805
2016:
Financial assets:
Cash and other cash items P 4,146,105,882 - P - P 4,146,105,882
Due from BSP 14,712,658,644 - - 14,712,658,644
Due from other banks 1,994,411,693 - - 1,994,411,693
Loans and receivables
arising from reverse
repurchase agreement 2,958,465,090 - - 2,958,465,090
Investment securities at
amortized cost - net 6,742,753,338 - - 6,742,753,338
Loans and receivables - net - - 74,843,295,055 74,843,295,055
Other resources - net - - 92,715,315 92,715,315
P30,554,394,647 P - P74,936,010,370 P105,490,405,017
Financial liabilities:
Deposit liabilities P - - P94,769,439,101 P 94,769,439,101
Manager’s check payable - 521,972,467 521,972,467
Accrued interest and
other expenses - - 901,043,260 901,043,260
Other liabilities - - 1,876,025,888 1,876,025,888
P - - P98,068,480,716 P_98,068,480,716

(a) Due from BSP and Other Banks, and Loan and Receivables Arising from Reverse

Repurchase Agreement

Due from BSP pertains to deposits made by the Bank to the BSP for clearing and
reserve requirements, overnight and term deposit facilities, while loans and receivables
arising from reverse repurchase agreement pertain to loans and receivables from BSP
arising from overnight lending from excess liquidity. Due from other banks includes
items in the course of collection. The fair value of floating rate placements and
overnight deposits is their carrying amount.

(b) Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are net of provisions for impairment. The estimated fair value of
loans and receivables represents the discounted amount of estimated future cash flows
expected to be received. Expected cash flows are discounted at current market rates to
determine fair value.
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(c) Investment Securities at Amortized Cost

Investment Securities at Amortized Cost consist of government and corporate bonds.
The fair value of these investment securities is determined by direct reference to
published price quoted in an active market for traded securities.

(d) Deposit Liabilities and Manager’s Check Payable

The estimated fair value of fixed interest-bearing deposits is based on the discounted
cash flows using prevailing money market interest rates for debt with similar credit risk
and remaining maturity, which for short-term deposits approximate the nominal value.

The estimated fair value manager’s check payable is the amount repayable on demand.
(¢) Other Resources and Other Liabilities

Due to their short-term duration, the carrying amounts of other resources and liabilities
in the statements of financial position are considered to be reasonable approximation of
their fair values.

6.4 Fair Value Disclosures for Investment Properties Carried at Cost

The total estimated fair values of the Bank’s investment properties, categorized under
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, amounted to P3.0 billion and P2.6 billion as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The fair values disclosed for the Bank’s investment properties as of December 31, 2017 and
2016 were based on the appraisals performed by the Bank’s internal appraisers and
independent and qualified appraisers having appropriate and recent experience in the fair
value measurement of similar properties in the relevant locations.

To some extent, the valuation process conducted by the appraisers was made in discussion
with the Bank’s management with respect to the determination of the inputs such as the size,
age, and condition of the land and buildings, and the comparable prices in the corresponding
property location. In estimating the fair values of the investment properties, management
takes into account the market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
assets in their highest and best use. Based on management assessment, the best use of the
Bank’s investment properties is their current use.

The fair value of the Bank’s investment properties were determined based on the following
approaches:

(a)  Fair Value Measurement for Land

The Level 3 fair value of land was derived using the observable recent prices of the
reference properties and were adjusted for differences in key attributes such as property
size, zoning, and accessibility. The most significant input into this valuation approach is
the price per square meter; hence, the higher the price per square meter, the higher the
fair value of the properties.
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(b)  Fair Value Measurement for Buildings

The Level 3 fair value of the buildings was determined using the cost approach that
reflects the cost to a market participant to construct an asset of comparable usage,
construction standards, design and layout, adjusted for obsolescence. The more
significant inputs used in the valuation include direct and indirect costs of construction
such as but not limited to, labor and contractor’s profit, materials and equipment,
surveying and permit costs, electricity and utility costs, architectural and engineering
fees, insurance and legal fees. These inputs were derived from various suppliers and
contractor’s quotes, price catalogues, and construction price indices. Under this
approach, higher estimated costs used in the valuation will result in higher fair value of
the properties.

There has been no change to the valuation technique in 2017 and 2016.

7. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The components of this account are as follows:

Note 2017 2016
Cash and other cash items 14 P 4,457,783,721 P 4,146,105,882
Due from BSP 14 10,332,553,346 14,712,658,644
Due from other banks 2,153,704,387 1,994,411,693
Loans and receivables arising
from reverse repurchase
agreement 2,313,002,922 2,958,465,090

P 19,257,044,376 P 23,811,641,309

7.1 Cash and Other Cash Items

Cash consists primarily of funds in the form of Philippine currency notes and coins in the
Bank’s vault and those in the possession of teller, including automated teller machines.
Cash items consist of foreign currency notes and coins and checks and cash items

(other than currency on hand), such as checks drawn on other banks and other items
received after the Bank’s clearing cut-off time until the close of the regular banking hours.

The breakdown of cash and other cash items by currency is shown below.

2017 2016
Philippine peso P 4,296,923,355 P 3,941,877,706
Foreign currencies 160,860,366 204,228.176

P 4,457,783,721 P 4,146,105,882

7.2 Due from BSP

Due from BSP represents the aggregate balance of noninterest-bearing demand deposit
account and interest-bearing overnight and term deposit accounts, both in local currency,
maintained with the BSP primarily to meet a portion of reserve requirements and to serve as
a clearing account for interbank claims (see Notes 14 and 24).
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7.3 Due from Other Banks

The balance of due from other banks represents regular deposits with the following
(see also Note 23.2):

2017 2016
Local banks P 1,795,638,855 P 1,829,677,031
Foreign banks 358,065,532 164,734,662

P 2,153,704,387 P 1,994,411,693

Interest rates on these deposits range from 0.50% to 1.75% per annum in 2017 and 2016.

The breakdown of this account by currency is shown below.

2017 2016
Philippine peso P 741,214,205 P 677,608,719
Foreign currencies 1,412,490,182 1,316,802,974

P 2,153,704,387 P 1,994,411,693

7.4 Loans Arising from Reverse Repurchase Agreement

These represent loans from BSP as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 arising from overnight
lending from excess liquidity which earn effective interest of 3.0% and have maturity of five
days. Interest income earned from these financial assets is presented under Interest Income
in the statements of profit or loss.

TRADING AND INVESTMENT SECURITIES

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, this account is comprised of investment securities at
amortized cost amounting to P11.5 billion and P6.9 billion, respectively.

8.1 Financial Assets at FVPL

In 2017 and 2016, the Bank has traded various peso-denominated treasury bills, government
bonds and corporate debt securities with interest rates ranging from 2.13% to 4.75% in 2017
and 1.33% to 6.06% in 2016, and with maturities of six months to 10 years for both
reporting periods. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Bank has no outstanding
financial assets at FVPL.

The Bank recognized net fair value gains on the changes in the fair value of these financial
assets amounting to P17.3 million and P13.9 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively, as part
of Trading gains under Other Operating Income in the statements of profit or loss

(see Notes 19.1).
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8.2 Investment Securities at Amortized Cost

A reconciliation of the Bank’s investment securities at amortized cost at the beginning and
end of 2017 and 2016 is shown below.

2017 2016
Balance at beginning of year P 6,881,206,226 P 10,215,343,472
Additions 5,810,114,565 715,359,120
Maturities ( 1,019,031,664) ( 1,076,429,018)
Redemption ( 165,233,192) -
Sales - (___2,973,067,348)
Balance at end of year P 11,507,055,935 P_ 6,881,206,226

These accounts are composed of investment in government and corporate bonds
denominated in Philippine pesos, US dollars and EU euro with fixed interest rate ranging
from 2.13% to 10.63% per annum in 2017 and 1.33% to 6.06% per annum in 2016. These
debt securities have maturities ranging from one to 30 years.

In 2017, certain investment securities at amortized cost amounting to P168.9 million was
redeemed by the issuer before its maturity. Such resulted in gain on redemption amounting
to P3.6 million and is presented as part of Gain on sale of assets under Other Operating
Income in the 2017 statement of profit or loss. Management has assessed that this
redemption of the investment securities is consistent with the Bank’s held to collect business
model.

In March 2016, the Bank’s Executive Committee approved the disposal of P4.2 billion of
investment securities at amortized cost relative to the Bank’s liquidity requirements. The
sale of such investments is consistent with the Bank’s held to collect business model for the
portfolio with the objective of collecting contracted cash flows, and have qualified as a
permitted sale under PFRS 9 since such is considered significant but infrequent sale. As of
December 31, 2016, the Bank sold P3.0 billion out of the P4.2 billion investments approved
for disposal. The Bank recognized loss on the disposal amounting to P174.2 million, and is
presented Loss on Sale of Securities in the 2016 statement of profit or loss. The Bank’s
management did not intend to dispose of the remaining investments. There are no similar
transactions in 2017.

The composition of these financial assets as to type of counterparty is shown below.

2017 2016
Government P 9,252920,056 P 3,712,562,982
Corporate 2,254,135,879 3,228,740,435
11,507,055,935 6,941,303,417
Allowance for impairment - ( 60,097,191)

P 11,507,055,935 P 6,881,206,226
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The breakdown of these investment securities by currency is shown below.

2017 2016
US dollar P 5,948,246,520 P 4,975,154,242
Philippine peso 5,558,809,415 1,906,051,984

P 11,507,055,935 P 6,881,206,226

The information about the fair value measurement of the Bank’s investments and trading
securities are presented in Note 6.2.

The maturity profile of the investment securities at amortized cost follows:

2017 2016
Within one year P 2,143,949,571 P 1,480,132,551
Beyond one year 9,363,106,364 5,401.073.675

P 11,507,055935 P 6,881,206,226

8.3 Interest Income on Trading and Investment Securities

Interest income earned by the Bank from its trading and investment securities are as
follow:

2017 2016

Investment securities at amortized cost P 386,553,817 P 324,575,341
Financial assets at FVPL 273,090 2,774,935

P 386,826,907 P 327,350,276

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

This account is comprised of:

2017 2016
Loans:
Loans and discounts P 81,691,128,372 P 72,516,171,002
Prompt payment discount ( 564,201) ( 4,403,167)
Unearned discount and interest ( 1,506,212) ( 5,128,729)
Allowance for impairment (__2,342,972,748) ( 2,049,231,015)
79,346,085,211 70,457,408,091
Other receivables:
Accounts receivable 1,426,766,877 441,725,320
Sales contracts receivable 909,787,415 1,069,560,580
Accrued interest receivable 801,417,033 687,174,362
Allowance for impairment ( 277,525,426) ( 143,672,595)
2,860,445,899 2,054,787,667

P 82,206,531,110 P_72,512,195,758
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Included in these accounts are non-accruing loans (net of allowance) amounting to

P3,865.3 million and P3,326 million as of December 31, 2017 and 2010, respectively.

In June 2017, the Bank entered into an agreement with a third party for the sale of various
foreclosed real properties with book value of P1,126.8 million (see Note 13.1.1), for a total
consideration of P1,384.7 million; of which P395.5 million and P989.2 million were in the
form of cash and note receivable (the Note), respectively. The Note has a term of ten years
with maturity date of June 9, 2027. On the date of sale, the present value of the Note
amounted to P742.4 million, hence, the total fair value of consideration amounted to
P1,137.9 million. Accordingly, the Bank recognized a gain on sale amounting to

P11.1 million and is presented as part of Gain on sale of assets under Other Operating
Income in the 2017 statement of profit or loss. There is no similar transaction in 2016.

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Bank provided a total of P28.9 million
impairment loss on the Note. The carrying value of the Note amounted to P761.4 million
and is recognized as part of Accounts receivable.

Loans and receivables bear average effective interest rates of 4.50% to 57.60% per annum in
2017 and 7.00% to 57.60% per annum in 2016.

The concentration of credit of the Bank’s loans and discounts as to industry follows:

2017 2016

Consumer P 36,122,342,535 P 31,163,649,969
Real estate 28,011,251,994 26,289,857,489
Other community, social and

personal activities 3,987,546,723 4.278,570,518
Transportation and communication 3,511,573,583 2,313,217,281
Wholesale and retail trade 3,467,996,036 2,466,798,572
Financial intermediaries 1,838,213,503 1,510,712,087
Construction 1,569,915,410 1,352,288,158
Manufacturing 414,565,172 364,134,656
Utilities 332,089,612 582,014,584
Agriculture, fishing and forestry 203,989,291 204,380,337
Miscellaneous business activities 2,231,644,513 1,990,547,351

P 81,691,128,372 P 72,516,171,002

Loans and discounts under miscellaneous business activities mainly pertain to loans to
private households. Included also under miscellaneous business activities are back-to-back
loans which are secured by hold-out deposits.

The breakdown of total loans and discounts as to secured and unsecured follows:

2017 2016
Secured:
Real estate P 42,161,971,349 P 37,667,554,308
Chattel 36,258,111,284 31,360,835,625
Hold out on deposit 347,009,897 454,273,330
78,767,092,530 69,482,663,263
Unsecured 2,924,035,842 3,033,507,739

P 81,691,128,372 P 72,516,171,002
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The maturity profile of the total loans and discounts follows:

2017 2016
Within one year P 17,220,690,845 P 19,907,364,221
Beyond one year 64,470,437,527 52,608,806,781

P 81,691,128,372 P 72,516,171,002

All of the Bank’s loans and receivables have been reviewed for indications of impairment.
Certain loans and receivables were found to be impaired; accordingly, adequate amounts of
allowance for impairment have been recognized.

A reconciliation of the amount of allowance for impairment on loans and receivables at the
beginning and end of 2017 and 2016 is shown below.

2017 2016
Balance at beginning of year P 2,192,903,610 P  1,861,507,762
Impairment losses 505,755,640 665,000,000
Write-offs/reversal ( 78,161,076) ( 333,604,152)
Balance at end of year P 2,620,498,174 P 2,192,903,610

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

This account is composed of the Bank’s interest in the shares of stock of special purpose
companies (SPCs) as shown below and in the next page.

The registered office of Niyog Property Holdings, Inc. or Niyog (which is 51.89% owned by
the Bank), which is also its principal place of business, is located at 12* Floor, Yuchengco
Tower, RCBC Plaza, 6819 Ayala Avenue cor. Sen Gil Puyat Avenue, Makati City. The
registered office of Cajel Realty Corporation or Cajel (wholly owned by the Bank), which is
also its principal place of business, is located at Unit 1803, Philippine Stock Exchange
Centre, West Tower, Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City. On the other hand, the
registered office and principal place of business of the other SPCs is the same registered
business address of the Bank as a result of the amendment of the SPCs’ Articles of
Incorporation and as approved by the SEC in various dates in 2014.

The changes in the Bank’s investments in subsidiaries in 2017 and 2016 consist of the
following:

Niyog Cajel Total

December 31, 2017
Acquisition cost P 223,410,225 P 49,833,277 P 273,243,502
Accumulated equity in
net earnings (losses):
Balance at beginning of

the year ( 121,302,927) 3,199,780 ( 118,103,147)
Share in net income 72,627,001 ( 502,728) 72,124,273
Cash dividend ( 21,652,651) - ( 21,652,651)

—

Balance at end of year

70,328,577) 2,697,052 ( 67,631,525)

P 153,081,648 P 52,530,329 P 205,611,977
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Niyog Cajel Total
December 31, 2016
Acquisition cost P 223,410,225 P 49,833 277 P 273,243,502
Accumulated equity in
net earnings (losses):
Balance at beginning of
the year ( 56,474,165) 3,830,271 ( 52,643,894)
Share in net income 7,957,137  ( 630,491) 7,326,646
Cash dividend ( 72,175,500) - ( 72,175,500)
Others ( 610,399) - ( 610,399)
Balance at end of year ( 121,302,927) 3,199,780 ( 118,103,147)
P 102,107,298 P 53,033,057 P 155,140,355

The total cost of investments in subsidiaries pertains to the carrying amount of the Bank’s
interest in the shares of stock of the SPCs previously classified as part of Investment
Properties account until 2009 which were transferred to the Bank from certain borrowers
for the settlement of their indebtedness with the Bank through dacion of certain real
properties but effected through the creation of SPCs. The Bank obtained approval from the
BSP, dated March 2009, to reclassify such portion of Investment Properties account to
Investments in Subsidiaries account subject to the following conditions: (i) the Bank should
immediately dissolve the SPCs once the underlying dacioned real property assets are sold or
disposed of; and, (ii) the equity investments in the SPCs shall be disposed of within a
reasonable period.

In partial compliance with the requirement of the BSP, the management of the Bank
resolved that the SPCs be disposed of through the conversion of the SPCs’ existing
common shares of stock into redeemable preferred shares and subsequently redeeming and
retiring the same. Accordingly, at their special meeting held on September 30, 2013, the
BOD and the stockholders of the SPCs approved that a portion of the common shares shall
be convertible to redeemable preferred shares and that for such purpose, the Articles of
Incorporation of the following SPCs have been amended and subsequently approved by the
SEC on November 28, 2013:

(a) Goldpath Properties Development Corporation (Goldpath)

(b) Eight Hills Property and Development Corporation (Eight Hills)
(c) Crescent Park Property and Development Corporation (Crescent)
(d) Niceview Property and Development Corporation (Niceview)

(e) Lifeway Property and Development Corporation(Lifeway)

(f) Gold Place Properties Development Corporation (Gold Place)
() Princeway Properties Development Corporation (Princeway)

(h) Greatwings Properties Development Corporation (Greatwings)
(i) Top Place Properties Development Corporation (Top Place)

() Crestview Properties Development Corporation (Crestview)

(k) Best Value Property and Development Corporation (Best Value)

On December 23, 2013, the SPCs” BOD approved the redemption of the SPC’s respective
preferred shares for a total consideration of P1,554.6 million.
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In relation to the SPC disposal plan and to fully comply with the requirements of the BSP,
the BOD of the Bank has approved in its meeting held on May 30, 2014 the shortening of
the corporate life of these SPCs until December 31, 2016 which was approved by the SEC in
various dates during the last quarter of 2014. As the Bank is committed and is in the process
of liquidating the operations of those SPCs which is expected to be completed within 2018,
the carrying amounts of the Bank’s equity investments in SPCs subject for liquidation are
accounted for under PFRS 5, Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinned Operations,
hence, classified as Assets Held-for-sale and Disposal Group account in the statements of
financial position (see Note 13.1).

BANK PREMISES, FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT

A reconciliation of the gross carrying amounts and the accumulated depreciation and
amortization of bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment at the beginning and end
of 2017 and 2016 follows:

Furniture, Leasehold
Transportation Fixtures and Rights and
Land Buildings Equipment Other Equipment Improvement Total
December 31, 2017
Cost P 363,268,068 P 289,878,457 P 94,212,501 P 1,325,313,439 P 474,172,791 P 2,546,845,256
Accumulated depreciation and
amortization - ( 215,744.253) (. 45,359.257) (. 974,081,337) (. 254,140,545) (___1,489,325.392)
Net carrying amount P 363,268,068 P 74,134,204 P 48,853,244 P 351,232,102 P 220,032,246 P__1,057,519,864
December 31, 2016
Cost P 363,268,068 P 275,049,703 P 87,585,127 P 1,245,225,336 P 414,008,192 P 2,385,136,426
Accumulated depreciation and
amortization - ( 208,138,718) (. 42,082,186) (. 858,858,170) (_ 161,225364) (___1.270,304.438)
Net carrying amount P 363,268,068 P 66,910,985 P 45,502,941 P 386,367,166 P 252,782,828 P 1,114,831,988
January 1, 2016
Cost P 363,268,068 P 266,828,294 P 83,154,264 P 1,182,833,521 P 305,306,621 P 2,201,390,768
Accumulated depreciation and
amortization - ( 196,848,490) ( 39,111,498) ( 737,576,883) (. 71,539,699) (___1,045,076,570)
Net carrying amount P 363,268,068 P 69,979,804 P 44,042,766 P 445256,638 P 233,766,922 P 1,156,314,198

A reconciliation of the carrying amounts of bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment
at the beginning and end of 2017 and 2016 is shown below.

Furniture, Leasehold
Transportation Fixtures and Rights and
Land Buildi Equipment Other Equipment Improvement Total
Balance at January 1, 2017,
net of accumulated depreciation
and amortization P 363,268,068 P 66,910,985 P 45,502,941 P 386,367,166 P 252,782,828 P 1,114,831,988
Additions - 14,761,624 32,337,671 135,699,960 62,798,296 245,597,641
Disposal - - ( 14,359,734) ( 28,888,634) ( 2,534,318) ( 45,782,686)
Adjustments - 59,642 - 487,739 - 547,381
Depreciation and amortization
charges for the year - ( 7.598,047) ( 14,627,724) ( 142,434,129) ( 93,014.560) ( 257,674.460)

Balance at December 31, 2017,
net of accumulated depreciation

and amortization P 363,268,068 P 74,134,204 P 48,853,244 P 351,232,102 P 220,032,246 P 1,057,519,864
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Furniture, Leaschold
Transportation Fixtures and Rights and
Land Building: Equipment Other Equipment Improvement Total
Balance at January 1, 2016,
net of accumulated depreciation
and amortization P 363,268,068 P 69,979,804 P 44,042,766 P 445,256,638 P 233,766,922 P 1,156,314,198
Additions - 8,221,409 22,068,404 81,302,158 112.083,077 223,675,048
Disposal - - ( 6,376,629) ( 1,627,519) ( 3,381,506) ( 11,385,654)
Adjustments - - - ( 94,258) - ( 94,258)
Depreciation and amortization
charges for the year - ( 11,290,228) ( 14,231,600) (_ 138,469,853) ( 89,685,665) ( 253,677,346)
Balance at December 31, 2016,
net of accumulated depreciation
and amortization P 363,268,068 P 66,910,985 P 45,502,941 P 386,367,166 P 252,782,828 P 1,114,831,988

Depreciation and amortization expenses on the Bank’s premises, furniture, fixtures, and
equipment amounting to P257.7 million in 2017 and P253.7 million in 2016 are shown as
part of the Depreciation and Amortization account in the statements of profit or loss.

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the gross carrying amount of the Bank’s
tully-depreciated assets that are still in use in operations is P94.0 million and P54.0 million,
respectively.

BSP requires that investments in fixed assets do not exceed 50% of the Bank’s unimpaired
capital. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Bank has satisfactorily complied with this
BSP requirement.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties consist of various parcels of land and buildings acquired through
foreclosure or dacion as payment of outstanding loans by the borrowers.

A reconciliation of the gross carrying amounts and the accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses of investment properties at the beginning and end of 2017 and 2016,
follows:

Land Building Total

December 31, 2017

Cost P 797,571,661 P 925,951,859 P 1,723,523,520

Accumulated impairment ( 60,708,630)  ( 40,083,927) ( 101,392,557)

Accumulated depreciation - 268,824,903) ( 268,824,903)

Net carrying amount P 736,863,031 P 616,443,029 P 1,353,306,060
December 31, 2016

Cost P 619,556,356 P 962,633,510 P 1,582,189,866

Accumulated impairment ( 196,167,367) ( 29,842,546) ( 226,009,913)

Accumulated depreciation - 232.111.216) ( 232.111.216)

Net carrying amount P 423,388,989 P 700,679,748 P 1,124,068,737
January 1, 2016

Cost P 674,552,371 P 775,072,789 P 1,449,625,160

Accumulated impairment ( 23,621,783)  ( 39,804,146)  ( 63,485,929)

Accumulated depreciation - ( 191,849914) ( 191,849.914)

Net carrying amount P 650,930,588 P 543,358,729 P 1,194,289,31
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A reconciliation of the carrying amounts of investment properties at the beginning and end
of 2017 and 2016 is shown below.

Land Building Total

Balance at January 1, 2017,
net of accumulated

depreciation and impairment P 423,388,989 P 700,679,748 P 1,124,068,737

Additions 1,373,493,549 1,153,181,779 2,526,675,328

Disposals ( 886,361,986) ( 816,744,818) ( 1,703,106,804)
Reclassification (see Note 13.1) ( 68,142,275) ( 42,500,924) ( 110,643,199)
Impairment losses ( 105,515,246) ( 177,281,182)  ( 282,796,428)
Depreciation charges for the year - ( 200,891,574)  ( 200,891,574)

Balance at December 31, 2017,
net of accumulated

depreciation and impairment P 736,863,031 P 616,443,029 P 1,353,306,060

Balance at January 1, 2016,
net of accumulated

depreciation and impairment P 650,930,588 P 543,358,729 P 1,194,289,317

Additions 266,901,036 808,340,013 1,075,241,049
Disposals ( 295,494,243) ( 252,513,120) ( 548,007,363)
Reclassification (see Note 13.1) ( 111,229,574)  ( 173,139,723)  ( 284,369,297)
Impairment losses ( 87,718,818) ( 55,000,000)  ( 142,718,818)
Depreciation charges for the year - ( 170,366,151)  ( 170,366,151)
Balance at December 31, 2016,

net of accumulated

depreciation and impairment P 423,388,989 P 700,679,748 P 1,124,068,737

A reconciliation of the aggregate amount of the accumulated depreciation and impairment at
the beginning and end of 2017 and 2016 is shown below.

Note 2017 2016

Balance at beginning of year P 458,121,129 P 255,335,843
Depreciation during the year 200,891,574 170,366,151
Impairment losses 282,796,428 142,718,818
Reclassification to (from)

assets held-for-sale 13.1 72,813,240 ( 89,653,784)
Reversal due to disposals ( 644,404,911) ( 20,645,899)
Balance at end of year P 370,217,460 P 458121,129

Depreciation charges are presented as part of Depreciation and Amortization account in the
statements of profit or loss. Real property taxes incurred on these investment properties
amounted to P4.4 million and P2.4 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively, and are presented
as part of Taxes and Licenses account in the statements of profit or loss. The Bank
recognized a gain on disposal of investment properties totalling to P32.8 million and

P85.5 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively, and is presented as part of Gain on Sale of
Assets in the statements of profit or loss.

The information about the fair values of the Bank’s investment properties are presented in
Note 6.4.

As of December 31, 2017 and 2010, there is no restriction on the realizability of investment
properties or the remittance of income and proceeds of disposal therefrom. In addition, the
Bank has not entered into a significant commitment to purchase, construct or develop any
investment property in the near future.
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13. ASSETS HELD-FOR-SALE AND DISPOSAL GROUP AND OTHER
RESOURCES

13.1 Assets Held-for-Sale and Disposal Group

This account consists of:

Note 2017 2016
Foreclosed automobiles 1312 P 490,509,066 P 392,580,352
Equity investments
in subsidiaries 13.1.3 291,334,509 281,163,366
Foreclosed real properties 13.1.1 - 1,800,071,359
781,843,575 2,473,815,077
Allowance for impairment ( 118,959,389) ( 191,772,629)
Accumulated depreciation - ( 4006,479,892)

P 662,884,186 P 1,875,562,556

13.1.1 Foreclosed Real Properties

This account consists of real estate properties, located in different provinces of the
Philippines, which are repossessed through foreclosure or dacion arrangement in lieu
of payment of outstanding loan receivables and the corresponding interest from
vatious borrowers.

In 2015, management classified such properties as held-for-sale since the carrying
amount of those properties will be recovered principally through a sale transaction.
The properties are readily available for immediate sale in its present condition and
that management believes that the sale is highly probable at the time of
reclassification. In June 2017, the sale of such properties to a third party has been
completed (see Note 9).

13.1.2 Foreclosed Automobiles

This account consists of transportation equipment repossessed through foreclosure
or dacion arrangement in lieu of payment of outstanding loan receivables and the
corresponding interest from various borrowers. The Bank expects to sell these assets
within one year from date of classification and it remains committed to dispose the
assets through an active marketing program.

The Bank recognized a gain on disposal of foreclosed automobile amounting to
P42.2 million and P34.7 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively, and presented as part
of Gain on Sale of Assets in the statements of profit or loss.



-59.-

13.1.3 Equity Investments in Subsidiaries

This account pertains to the total carrying amount of the Bank’s interest in the shares
of stock of the following SPCs which is currently being liquidated by the Bank and
the process is expected to be completed in 2018 (see Note 10):

2017 2016
Niceview P 94,592,655 P 90,424,945
Crescent Park 65,193,971 60,723,382
Eight Hills 59,745,643 59,738,257
Stockton 21,428,381 20,985,431
Happyville 17,654,502 16,967,896
Gold Place 7,757,020 7,721,455
Greatwings 7,578,763 7,471,640
Landview 7,245,548 7,129,802
Fairplace 6,906,031 6,768,564
Princeway 1,706,243 1,706,243
Top Place 1,361,864 1,361,864
Best Value 163,888 163,887
291,334,509 281,163,366
Allowance for impairment ( 6,230,675) ( 6,230.675)
P 285,103,834 P 274,932,691
13.2 Other Resources
This account consists of:
Note 2017 2016
Goodwill — net 13.21 P 268,655,069 P 268,655,069
Computer software — net 13.2.2 154,987,556 105,046,405
Prepaid expenses 13.2.4 150,806,400 143,429,563
Security deposits 13.2.3 96,822,108 92,715,315
Electronic documentary
stamp 43,973,239 40,547,191
Miscellaneous 13.2.5 107,989,960 82,548,126
823,234,332 732,941,669
Allowance for impairment ( 31,106,536) ( 31,106,536)
P 792,127,796 P 701,835,133

13.2.1 Goodwill
The carrying amount of Goodwill as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 is shown below.

Cost P
Allowance for impairment (

338,461,579
09,806,510)

P 268,655,069
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The Bank recognized goodwill arising from its acquisition of the net assets of another
bank from which the Bank had expected future economic benefits and synergies that

will result from combining the operations of the acquired bank with that of the Bank.
Goodwill is subject to annual impairment testing and whenever there is an indication

of impairment.

In 2017 and 2016, the Bank engaged a third party consultant to perform an
independent impairment testing of goodwill. The third party consultant’s
methodology is in accordance with PAS 306, Impairment of Assets. The assessment of
impairment of goodwill is based on fair value less cost to sell (FVLCTS) of the CGU
(the Bank itself inclusive of all the acquired assets and liabilities from the
acquiree-bank) to which the goodwill is attributed. In determining the FVLCTS of the
CGU, discounted cash flows method was used. Some of the key assumptions that
have been considered which have significant impact on the results of the
determination of FVLCTS are as follows:

e the Bank will continue as a going concern entity and will have sufficient financial
resources to finance its working capital requirements to achieve its projected
forecast and to support its business needs;

e the Bank’s performance forecasts for the next five years from the end of each
reporting period;

e in estimating the terminal value of the CGU, long-term growth rates at 7.00% and
6.00% (based on forecasted gross domestic product growth rate) as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, were used; and,

e in discounting the projected free cash flows, weighted average cost of capital of
10.48% and 11.80% was used in 2017 and 2016, respectively, and an estimated cost
of disposal of 3.00%.

On the basis of the report of the third party consultant dated January 28, 2018 and
January 30, 2017, with valuation date as of the end of 2017 and 2016, respectively, the
CGU’s FVLCTS amounted to P60,411.3 million and P61,038.7 million, respectively.
The Bank has assessed that the recoverable amount of the goodwill exceeds its
carrying amount as of December 31, 2017 and 2016. Accordingly, no additional
impairment loss is required to be recognized in 2017 and 2016.

13.2.2 Computer Software

Computer software pertains to the cost of system software and other expenditures
related to software upgrade which is amortized by the Bank over a period of ten and
five years in 2017 and 2016, respectively. The carrying amount of Computer software
as of December 31 is shown below.

2017 2016
Cost P 413,684,708 P 339,695,710
Accumulated amortization ( 258,697,152) ( 234,649,305)

)i 154,987,556 P 105,046,405
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A reconciliation of the carrying amounts of computer software at the beginning and
end of 2017 and 2016 is shown below.

2017 2016

Balance at the beginning of year P 105,046,405 P 143,467,746

Additions 73,988,998 21,402,714
Adjustments 467,578 94,258
Amortization charges

for the year ( 24,515,425) ( 59,918,313)
Balance at end of year )i 154,987,556 P 105,046,405

Amortization of computer software is presented as part of Information technology
under Other Operating Expenses account in the statements of profit or loss
(see Note 19.2).

13.2.3 Security Deposits

Security deposits include refundable deposits and advance rentals for the lease of
various Bank branches from several parties, including deposits with utility companies.

13.2.4 Prepaid Expense

Prepaid expense includes unexpired portion of property and other non-life insurance
and prepaid system maintenance.

13.2.5 Miscellaneous

Miscellaneous include advance rentals, rejected check and other clearing items and
creditable withholding tax.

The expected recovery period of the Bank’s asset held-for-sale and disposal group and other
resources is as follows:

2017 2016
Within one year P 856,746,346 P  1,131,327,691
Beyond one year 598,265,636 1,446,069,998

P 1455,011,982 P 2,577,397,689

14. DEPOSIT LIABILITIES

This account consists of the following deposits:

2017 2016

Time P 64,362,101,552 P 61,805,014,906
Savings 25,460,792,049 23,395,238,936
Demand 11,861,664,973 9.560,462,555

P 101,684,558,574 P__ 94,760,715,397
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The maturity profile of the Bank’s deposit liabilities is as follows (see also Note 23.4):

2017 2016
Within one yeatr P 17,533,229,667 P 15,772,191,941
Beyond one year 84,151,328,906 78,988,523,456

P 101,684,558,574 P__ 94,760,715,397

Deposit liabilities are in the form of savings, demand and time deposits with annual interest
rates of 1.38% to 4.75% both in 2017 and 2016.

Under existing BSP regulations, non-FCDU deposit liabilities are subject to required
reserves for deposits of 8.00%. The Bank is in compliance with these regulations.

On April 6, 2012, the BSP issued an amendment to the existing provisions as to the
eligibility of cash and deposit accounts with BSP as forms of reserve requirements. As
indicated in the recent amendment, cash and other cash items are no longer considered as
eligible reserves. Available reserves as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to
P8,334.3 million and P7,916.0 million, respectively, and included as part of Due from BSP in
the statements of statements of financial position (see Note 7).

BILLS PAYABLE

This account pertains to the Bank’s borrowed funds and other borrowings from RCBC,
RCBC Capital Corporation, a related party under common ownership (see Note 23.3), and
the BSP. In 2017 and 2016, the Bank obtained various bills payable with total principal
amount of P820.0 million and P67,981.0 million, respectively, which were subsequently
repaid in full. Bills payable has a maturity of one to five days in 2017 and 2016. The Bank
has no outstanding bills payable as of December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Interbank bills payable, which are overnight borrowings, are charged with annual interest
rate of 2.53% to 2.56% in 2017 and 2016. Interest expense on bills payable amounted to
P1.6 million and P20.9 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively, as presented in the statements
of profit or loss.

None of the Bank’s assets pledged as security for these borrowings.

MANAGER’S CHECK PAYABLE

This account pertains to the aggregate amount of outstanding checks drawn by the Bank
upon itself as of the end of each reporting period. This payable is expected to be settled
within one year from the end of each reporting date.
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17. ACCRUED INTEREST, TAXES AND OTHER EXPENSES

This account consists of accruals for:

Interests

Litigation costs

PDIC fees

Utilities and rent
Income and other taxes
Repairs and maintenance
Advertising costs

Other expenses

2017 2016
P 278,207,101 P 219,863,090
209,768,411 291,590,452
96,823,714 84,595,827
91,072,470 171,858,491
81,637,524 138,316,432
16,032,455 13,071,137
5,949,279 30,099,373
91,510,426 89,964,890
P 871,001,380 P 1,039.359,692

Other expenses pertain to accrual for professional fees, utilities, security, janitorial services

and other expenses.

The expected settlement period of the Bank’s accrued interest, taxes and other expenses is as

follows:
2017 2016
Within one year P 871,001,380 P 988,100,626
Beyond one year - 51,259,066

P 871,001,380 P 1,039,359,692

18. OTHER LIABILITIES

This account consists of:

Note 2017 2016

Accounts payable P 2,332,254,071 P 1,720,692,830
Post-employment defined

benefit obligation 21.2 61,954,425 177,996,491

Sundry credits 29,811,582 5,069,656

Payment orders 11,959,156 23,551,995

Miscellaneous 159,472,686 126,711,407

P 2595451920 P 2,054,022,379

Accounts payable is mainly comprised of outstanding short-term payables to various third
party vendors for purchases of goods and services used in operations including payable to
contractors for the Bank’s on-going construction works for its premises.

Miscellaneous liabilities mainly pertain to dormant manager’s check payables and other
deferred credits.
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2017 2016
Within one year P 2,512,590,809 P 1,924,049,400
Beyond one year 82,861,111 129,972,979
P 2595451920 P 2,054,022 379

19. OTHER INCOME AND MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES
Presented below are the details of these accounts:
Other Income

Notes 2017 2016
Income from trust business 24 P 53,037,321 P 51,740,452
Trading gains — net 8.1 16,686,419 13,881,058
Miscellaneous 17,432,916 4.265.074
P 87,156,656 P (69,886,584

19.2

Miscellaneous includes rentals received on safety deposit boxes and leasing bank

properties.
Miscellaneous Expenses
Notes 2017 2016

Professional and

management fees P 128,223,412 P 92,573,940
Information and technology — 13.2.2 107,544,127 114,756,064
Rent on equipment 102,395,868 108,247,254
Communication 96,458,322 129,949,945
Fuel and lubricant 85,756,502 92,547,021
Advertisement 76,565,480 54,532,912
Corporate activities 52,856,012 88,825,236
Stationary and supplies 51,453,074 38,206,648
Sundry credits 49,414,881 28,663,659
Supervision and examination 42,884,365 45,988,185
Repairs and maintenance 30,360,729 29,315,249
Entertainment, amusement

and recreation 19,168,094 24,293,450
Commission 14,649,940 18,094,698
Foreign currency losses — net 2,046,105 4,463,819
Miscellaneous 21.2 75,993,839 7,172,985

P 935,770,750 P 877,631,065

Miscellaneous includes fines, penalties and other charges.
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EQUITY AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

20.1 Capital Stock

Capital stock as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 consists of:

Shares Amount
Common stock — P100 par value
Authorized — 50,000,000 shares
Issued and outstanding ___ 30,872,163 P__ 3,087,216,300

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Bank has only one stockholder owning 100 or more
shares of the Bank’s capital stock.

20.2 Surplus

While unappropriated surplus available for dividend declaration exceeded its paid-in-capital as
of December 31, 2017, such excess is appropriate as the Bank is required to comply and
maintain certain minimum capital adequacy requirements as prescribed by the BSP.

There is no dividend declaration for both 2017 and 2016.
20.3 Revaluation Reserves

Revaluation reserves pertain only to the accumulated remeasurements of post-employment
defined benefit plan (see Note 21.2).

20.4 Capital Management
(a) Regulatory Capital
The Bank’s lead regulator, the BSP, sets and monitors capital requirements of the Bank.

In implementing current capital requirements, the BSP requires the Bank to maintain a
prescribed ratio of qualifying regulatory capital to total risk-weighted assets including
market risk and operational risk computed based on BSP-prescribed formula provided
under its circulars.

On January 15, 2013, the BSP issued Circular No. 781, Base/ I1I Inmplementing Guidelines on
Minimum Capital Requirements, which provides the implementing guidelines on the revised
risk-based capital adequacy framework particularly on the minimum capital and
disclosure requirements for universal banks and commercial banks, as well as their
subsidiary bank and quasi-banks, in accordance with the Basel 111 standards.

BSP Circular No. 781 is effective on January 1, 2014.

The BSP has adopted the Basel 111 risk-based capital adequacy framework effective
January 1, 2014, which requires the Bank to maintain at all times the following:

- Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) of at least 6.0% of risk-weighted assets;

- Tier 1 Capital of at least 7.5% of risk-weighted assets;

- Qualifying Capital (Tier 1 plus Tier 2 Capital) of at least 10.0% of risk-weighted
assets; and,
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Capital Conservation Buffer of 2.5% of risk weighted assets, comprised of
CET1 Capital.

In computing for the capital adequacy ratio (CAR), the regulatory qualifying capital is
analyzed into two tiers which are: (1) Tier 1 Capital comprised of Common Equity Tier 1

(CET1) and Additional Tier 1 (AT1) capital, and, (i) Tier 2 Capital, defined as follows,
subject to deductions as defined in relevant regulations:

(/) Common Equity Tier 1 Capital includes the following:

(%)

(i)

paid-up common stock;

common stock dividends distributable;

additional paid-in capital;

deposit for common stock subscription;

retained earnings;

undivided profits;

other comprehensive income from net unrealized gains/losses on financial
assets at FVOCI and cumulative foreign currency translation; and,

minority interest in subsidiary banks which are less than wholly-owned, subject
to regulatory conditions.

AT1 Capital includes:

instruments that do not qualify as CET1, but meet the criteria set out in
Annex B of BSP Circular 781;

financial liabilities meeting loss absorbency requirements set out in Annex E of
BSP Circular 781;

financial liabilities bearing loss absorbency features at point of non-viability as
set out in Annex F of BSP Circular 781;

additional paid-in capital resulting from issuance of AT1 capital;

deposit for subscription to AT1 instruments; and,

minority interest in subsidiary banks which are less than wholly-owned, subject
to regulatory conditions.

Tier 2 Capital includes:

instruments issued that are not qualified as Tier 1 capital but meet the criteria
set forth in Annex C of BSP Circular 781;

financial liabilities bearing loss absorbency features at point of non-viability as
set out in Annex F of BSP Circular 781;

deposit for subscription of Tier 2 capital;

appraisal increment reserve on bank premises, as authorized by the Monetary
Board;

general loan loss provisions; and,

minority interest in subsidiary banks that are less than wholly-owned, subject to
regulatory conditions.

Risk assets consist of total assets after exclusion of cash on hand, due from BSP, loans
covered by hold-out on or assignment of deposits, loans, or acceptances under letters of

credit to the extent covered by margin deposits, and other non-risk items as determined
by the Monetary Board of the BSP.
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The Bank’s regulatory capital position as of December 31 is presented as follows:

2017 2016
Tier 1 Capital P 10,152,965,697 P  8981,737,602
Tier 2 Capital 599,885,716 529,885,716

Total Regulatory Qualifying Capital P 10,752,851,413 P 9,511,623,318

Total Risk-Weighted Assets P 76,631,205,359 P 70,746,637.959

Capital ratios:

Total regulatory capital expressed
as percentage of total
risk-weighted assets 14.03% 13.44%

Total Tier 1 expressed as percentage
of total risk-weighted assets 13.25% 12.70%

The above capital ratios comply with the related BSP prescribed ratios.

Capital Allocation

The allocation of capital between specific operations and activities is, to a large extent,
driven by optimization of the return achieved on the capital allocated. The amount of
capital allocated to each operation or activity is based primarily upon the regulatory
capital, but in some cases the regulatory requirements do not reflect fully the varying
degrees of risk associated with difference activities. In such cases, the capital
requirements may be flexed to reflect differing risk profiles subject to the overall level of
capital to support a particular operation or activity not falling below the minimum
requirement for regulatory purposes.

The process of allocation of capital to specific operations and activities is undertaken
independently of those responsible of the operation, and is subject to review by the
Bank’s RMC. Although maximization of the return on risk-adjusted capital is the
principal basis used in determining how capital is allocated within the Bank to particular
operations or activities, it is not the sole basis used for decision making. Account
profitability is also taken, and synergies with other operations and activities, the
availability of management and other resources, and the fit of the activity with the
Bank’s longer term strategic goals and objectives. The Bank’s policies in respect of
capital management and allocation are reviewed regularly by the BOD.

Minimum Capital Requirement

Under existing BSP regulation, thrift banks with head office in the National Capital
Region are required to comply with the minimum capital requirement of P2.0 billion.

The Bank has complied with the above minimum capital requirement at the end of each
reporting period.
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EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

21.1 Salaries and Employee Benefits

Expenses recognized for employee salaries and other employee benefits are presented below.

2017 2016
Short-term employee benefits P 1,209,962,043 P 1,117,172,979
Post-employment defined benefit plan 61,389,619 64,664,291

r 1271,351,662 P 1,181,837,270

21.2 Post-employment Defined Benefit Plan

(a)

@

Characteristics of the Defined Benefit Plan

The Bank maintains a funded, tax-qualified, non-contributory post-employment benefit
plan that is being administered by the Bank’s Trust Department covering all regular
full-time employees. The Trust Department manages the fund in coordination with the
Bank’s RMD who acts in the best interest of the plan assets and is responsible for setting
the investment policies.

The normal retitement age is 60 with a minimum of 5 years of credited service. The
plan also provides for an early retirement at age 55 with a minimum of 20 years of
credited service and late retirement after age 60, both subject to the approval of the
BOD. Normal retitement benefit is an amount equivalent to 150% of the final monthly
covered compensation (average monthly basic salary during the last 12 months of
credited service) for every year of credited service.

Explanation of Amounts Presented in the Financial Statements

Actuarial valuations are made annually to update the post-employment benefit costs and
the amount of contributions. All amounts presented below are based on the actuarial
valuation report obtained from an independent actuary in 2017 and 2016.

The post-employment defined benefit obligation as of December 31, 2017 and 2016,
reported as part of Other Liabilities in the statements of financial position (see Note 18),
is determined as follows:

2017 2016
Present value of obligation P 671,412,959 P 696,592,344
Fair value of plan assets ( 609,458,534) ( 518,595,853)

P 61,954,425 P 177,996,491
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The movements in present value of the post-employment defined benefit obligation
recognized in the financial statements are as follows:

2017 2016

Balance at beginning of year P 696,592,344 P 676,303,972
Current service cost 61,389,619 64,664,291
Interest expense 37,476,668 34,153,351
Remeasurement — actuarial gains

arising from:

Changes in financial assumptions ( 90,201,433) ( 9,574,095)

Experience adjustments ( 7,032,857) ( 22,355,918)
Benefits paid ( 26,811,382) ( 46,599,257)
Balance at end of year P 671,412,959 P 696,592,344

The movements in the fair value of plan assets are presented below.

2017 2016

Balance at beginning of year P 518,595,853 P 540,977,544
Contributions to the plan 100,000,000 -
Interest income 29,869,231 26,142,735
Return on plan assets (excluding

amounts included in net interest) ( 12,195,168) ( 1,925,169)
Benefits paid ( 26,811,382) ( 46,599,257)
Balance at end of year P 609,458,534 P 518,595,853

Actual returns on plan assets were P17.7 million in 2017 and P24.2 million in 2016.
The composition of the fair value of plan assets at the end of each reporting period by
category and risk characteristics is shown below.

2017 2016
Cash and cash equivalents ) id 69,722,056 P 44,443,665
Loans and other receivables 17,369,569 14,935,560
Equity securities - retail
and manufacturing 150,719,095 132,812,398
Mutual funds/Unit Investment
Trust Fund (UITF) 21,574,832 18,306,434
Debt securities:
Corporate bonds 292,661,988 236,116,692
Philippine government bonds 57,410,994 71,981,104
350,072,982 308,097,796

) id 609,458,534 P 518,595,853
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The fair values of the above equity securities and government and corporate bonds are
determined based on quoted market prices in active market (classified as Level 1 of the
fair value hierarchy), while the fair value of mutual funds (classified as Level 2 of the fair
value hierarchy) are generally measured based on the net asset value of the investment
comprising the fund. The fair value of real estate properties do not have quoted prices
and have been determined based on professional appraisals that is classified as Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy.

Plan assets, except for cash and cash equivalents maintained with the Bank
(see Note 23.5), do not comprise any of the Company’s nor its related parties’ financial
instruments, or any assets occupied and/or used in its operations.

The components of amounts recognized in profit or loss and in other comprehensive
income in respect of the defined benefit post-employment plan are as follows:

2017 2016
Reported in profit or loss:
Current service cost P 61,389,619 P 64,664,291
Net interest expense 7,607,437 8,010,616
P 68,997,056 P 72,674,907
Reported in other comprebensive income:
Actuarial gains arising from:
Changes in financial assumptions P 90,201,433 P 9,574,095
Experience adjustments 7,032,857 22,355,918
Return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net
interest expense) ( 12,195,168) ( 1,925,169)
P 85,039,122 P 30,004,844

The net interest expense is included as part of Miscellaneous account under Other
Operating Expenses in the statements of profit or loss (see Note 19.2).

Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income were included within item that will
not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.

In determining the amounts of post-employment defined benefit obligation, the
following significant actuarial assumptions were used:

2017 2016
Discount rates 5.73% 5.38%
Expected rate of salary increases 4.00% 5.00%

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and mortality
tables. The average life expectancy of an individual after retiring at the Bank’s normal
retiring age of 60 is based on the 1994 Group Annuity Mortality table, set back six years
for females. These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of
an independent actuary. Discount factors are determined close to the end of each
reporting period by reference to the interest rates of a zero coupon government bonds
with terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the post-employment obligation.
Other assumptions are based on current actuarial benchmarks and management’s
historical experience.
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Risks Associated with the Retirement Plan

The plan exposes the Bank to actuarial risks such as investment risk, interest rate risk,
longevity risk and salary risk.

(1)  Investment and Interest Rate Risks

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated using a discount rate
determined by reference to market yields of government bonds. Generally, a decrease in
the interest rate of a reference government bonds will increase the plan obligation.
However, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan’s
investments in loans and receivables and debt securities, and if the return on plan asset
falls below this rate, it will create a deficit in the plan.

Currently, the plan assets are significantly invested in cash and cash equivalents, debt
securities, equity securities, and mutual and UITF. Due to the long-term nature of the
plan obligation, a level of continuing investments in debt and equity securities is an
appropriate element of the Bank’s long-term strategy to manage the plan efficiently.

(i7) Longevity and Salary Risks

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated by reference to the best
estimate of the mortality of the plan participants during their employment, and to their
future salaries. Consequently, increases in the life expectancy and salary of the plan
participants will result in an increase in the plan obligation.

Other Information

The information on the sensitivity analysis for certain significant actuarial assumptions,
the Bank’s asset-liability matching strategy, and the timing and uncertainty of future cash
flows related to the retirement plan are described below and in the succeeding page.

(1)  Sensitivity Analysis

The following table summarizes the effects of changes in the significant actuarial
assumptions used in the determination of the defined benefit obligation as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016:

Impact on Post-employment Defined
Benefit Obligation
Change in Increase in Decrease in

Assumption Assumption Assumption

December 31, 2017
Discount rate +/-1% P 69,798,980 ( P 55,587,820)
Salary growth rate +/-1% 63,510,871 ( 59,790,408)

December 31, 2016

Discount rate +/-1% P 30,092,497 (P 27,058,528)
Salary growth rate +/-1% 23434063 (  21,327,195)
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The sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant. This analysis may not be representative of the actual change in
the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would
occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.
Furthermore, in presenting sensitivity analysis in the preceding page, the present value of
the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method
at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the
defined benefit obligation recognized in the statements of financial position.

(i) Asset-liability Matching Strategies

To efficiently manage the retirement plan, the Bank ensures that the investment
positions are managed in accordance with its asset-liability matching strategy to ensure
that long-term investments are in line with the obligations under the retirement scheme.
This strategy aims to match the plan assets to the retirement obligations by investing in
debt and equity instruments with sound fundamentals that are readily convertible to cash
that match the benefit payments as they fall due and in the appropriate currency.

The Bank actively monitors how the duration and the expected yield of the investments
are matching the expected cash outflows arising from the retirement obligations. In
view of this, investments are made in reasonably diversified portfolio, such that the
failure of any single investment would not have a material impact on the overall level of
assets.

A larger portion of the plan assets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 consists of cash
and cash equivalents, debt securities and equity securities. The Bank believes that equity
securities offer the best returns over the long term with an acceptable level of risk.
Equity securities are invested in reputable listed corporations in the Philippines.

While no significant change in asset allocation are expected in the next reporting period,
the trustee may make changes anytime to respond to environmental changes to ensure
keeping alignment to the Bank’s retirement plan strategies.

(ii)  Funding Arrangements and Expected Contributions

The plan is currently underfunded by P62.0 million based on the latest actuarial
valuation. While there are no minimum funding requirements in the country, the size of
the underfunding may pose a cash flow risk in about five to ten years’ time when a
significant number of employees is expected to retire.

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the maturity profile of undiscounted expected
benefit payments from the plan follows:

2017 2016
Less than one year P 26,347,987 P 17,211,854
More than one year to five years 215,771,174 86,729,271
More than five years to ten years 364,782,612 218,104,497

)i 606,901,773 P 322,045,622

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period is 9.7 years.

The Bank expects to contribute P100.0 million to the retirement plan in 2018.
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TAXES
22.1 Current and Deferred Taxes

Under Philippine tax laws, the Bank is subject to percentage and other taxes (presented as
Taxes and Licenses in the statements of profit or loss), as well as income taxes. Percentage and
other taxes paid consist principally of the gross receipts tax (GRT) and documentary stamp tax
(DST). The Bank’s liability for GRT and DST is based on the related regulations issued by the
authorities.

Tax expense account presented in the statements of profit or loss include the corporate income
tax discussed in the succeeding sections, and final tax paid at the applicable rates of 20.0% and
7.5%, which represent the final withholding tax on gross interest income from government
securities and other deposit substitutes.

Under current tax regulations, the regular corporate income tax (RCIT) rate applicable is
30%. Interest allowed as a deductible expense is reduced by an amount equivalent to certain
percentage of interest income subjected to final tax. Minimum corporate income tax (MCIT)
of 2% on modified gross income is computed and compared with the RCIT. Any excess of
the MCIT over the RCIT is deferred and can be used as a tax credit against future regular
income tax liability for the next three consecutive years. In addition, any net operating loss
carry over (NOLCO) is allowed as a deduction from taxable income in the next three years.

Effective May 2004, under RA No. 9294, the income derived by the FCDU from foreign
currency transactions with nonresidents, offshore banking units (OBUs), local commercial
banks including branches of foreign banks is tax-exempt, while interest income on foreign
currency loans from residents other than OBUs or other depository banks under the

expanded system is subject to 10% gross income tax. Interest income on deposits with
other FCDUs and OBUs is subject to 7.5% final tax.

The components of current tax expense reported in the statements of profit or loss for the
years ended December 31 are as follows:

2017 2016

Current tax expense:
Excess MCIT at 2% over

RCIT at 30% — RBU P 50,010,503 P -

Final tax at 20%, 10% and 7.5% 48,541,750 9,161,714)
RCIT at 30% — RBU 17,794,756 130,148,362
RCIT at 30% — FCDU 221,803 282,286
116,568,812 121,268,934
Deferred tax income relating to
origination of temporary differences 85,150,968) ( 91,768,1306)
31,417,844 29,500,798
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The reconciliation of tax on pretax profit computed at the applicable statutory rates to tax
expense reported in profit or loss is as follows:

2017 2016
Tax on pretax profit at 30% P 414,496,849 P 310,392,422
Adjustment for income subjected to
lower income tax rates ( 45,944,308) ( 60,992,382)
Tax effects of:
Non-taxable income ( 365,167,951) ( 309,260,683)
Non-deductible interest expense 31,207,435 17,322,116
Other non-deductible expenses 14,596,481 63,118,310
Unrecognized deferred tax assets ( 12,180,972) 96,843,701
Income from FCDU ( 10,836,377) ( 18,720,272)
Recognition of previously
unrecognized deferred tax assets 5,246,687 ( 69,202.414)
P 31,417,844 P 29,500,798

In 2017 and 2016, the Bank recognized deferred tax assets on its allowances for impairment
losses as management believes and estimates that future taxable profits will be available to
allow such deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Statements of Financial Position Profit or Loss
2017 2016 2017 2016

Allowance for impairment:

Loans and other receivables P 700,293,600 P 620,769,305 (P  79,524,295) P  92,058,616)

Investment properties 30,417,767 67,802,974 37,385,207 ( 48,757,195)

Assets held-for-sale and disposal group 33,818,614 55,662,586 21,843,972 49,047,675
MCIT 50,010,503 - ( 50,010,503 ) -
Unamortized past service cost 14,845,349 - ( 14,845,349) -
Deferred Tax Asset P 829,385,833 D 744,234,865
Deferred Tax Income (P__85,150,968) (P__ 91,768,136)

For other temporary differences, the Bank did not recognize their corresponding deferred
tax assets since management believes that the Bank may not be able to generate sufficient
taxable profit in the future against which the tax benefits arising from these temporary
differences can be utilized.

Shown below are the temporary differences as of December 31 for which no deferred tax
assets were recognized.

2017 2016
Tax Base Tax Effect Tax Base Tax Effect

Allowance for impairment:

Loans and other receivables P 290,969,441 P 87,290,832 P 123,672,595 P 37,101,778

Other resources 100,913,048 30,273,914 100,913,046 30,273,914

Assets held-for-sale and disposal group 6,230,677 1,869,203 6,230,677 1,869,202

Trading and investment securities - - 60,097,191 18,029,157
Provisions for lawsuits 209,768,411 62,930,523 291,590,452 87,477,136
Post-employment defined obligation 61,954,425 18,586,328 177,996,491 53,398,947
Unamortized past service cost - - 17,488,955 5,246,687

P 669,836,002 P 200,950,800 P 777,989,407 P 233,396,821

In 2017 and 2016, the Bank claimed itemized deductions in computing for its income tax
due.
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22.2 Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations (RR)
No. 15-2010 and RR No. 19-2011

The BIR issued RR No. 15-2010 1869and RR No. 19-2011 which requires certain
information on taxes to be disclosed as part of the notes to financial statements. Such
supplementary information is, however, not a required disclosure as part of the basic
financial statements prepared in accordance with PFRS; it is neither a requird disclosure
under the SEC rules and regulations covering the form and content of financial statements
under the Securities Regulation Code Rule 68.

The Bank, however, decided to present the required tax information require by the BIR as a
supplemental schedule filed separately from the basic financial statements.

23.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Bank’s related parties include PMMIC, its Parent Bank, its subsidiaries and entities
under common ownership by RCBC, key management personnel and others as described

below.

A summary of the Bank’s transactions and outstanding balances of such transactions with its
related parties as of and for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 is presented below

and in the next page.

2017 2016
Related Party Amount of Outstanding Amount of Outstanding
Category Notes Transaction Balance Transaction Balance
Parent Bank
Due from other banks 23.2 P 978,455,390 P 1,053,043,503 P 751,578,310 P  1,402,802,276
Bills payable 233 - - 51,845,254,039 -
Deposit liabilities 23.4 ( 30,301,574) 131,273,707 ( 304,899) 161,316,326
Income —
Interest on due from
other banks 23.2 2,564,881 - 1,378,429 -
Expenses:
Interest on deposit
liabilities 23.4 258,956 - 290,454 -
Interest on bills payable 23.3 ( 7,832,589) - 7,832,589 -
Management fees and
audit fees 23.6 - - 730,000 -
Occupancy expense 23.6 139,892,056 - 134,604,887 -
Related Party Under
Common Ownership
Bills payable 23.3 470,000,000 - 12,455,000,000 -
Deposit liabilities 23.4 5,555,047 32,829,713 ( 2,723,659) 33,774,952
Expenses:
Interest on deposit
liabilities 23.4 51,969 - 51,122 -
Interest on bills payable 23.3 165,235 - 1,718,699 -
Subsidiaries
Deposit liabilities 23.4 30,732,214 168,214,882 13,767,527 137,356,794
Expenses —
Interest on deposit
liabilities 23.4 485,874 - 407,930 -
Retirement Fund
Plan assets 23.5 100,000,000 609,458,534 - 518,595,853
Other Related Parties
Deposit liabilities 23.4 ( 4,195,528) 33,703,655 9,500,210 51,810,984
Expenses —
Interest on deposit
liabilities 23.4 119,178 - 296,153 -
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2017 2016
Related Party Amount of Outstanding Amount of Outstanding
Category Notes Transaction Balance Transaction Balance
Key Management Personnel

Compensation 23.7 P 102,033,433 P 13,968,421 P 104,845,607 P 14,713,000
Loans receivable 23.1 929,389 4,352,234 1,651,651 3,031,144
Deposit liabilities 234 ( 195,169) 4,501,958 113,444 6,632,898
Income —

Interest on loans 23.1 391,701 - 272,803 -
Expense —

Interest on deposit liabilities 23.4 21,524 - 33,290 -

None of the Bank’s outstanding balances with related parties has indications of impairment;
hence, no impairment losses were recognized in both years.

23.1 Directors, Officers, Shareholders and Related Interest (DOSRI)

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank has loans and other transactions with certain
DOSRI, the Bank’s key management and RCBC as shown below. Under existing policies of
the Bank, these loans and other transactions are made substantially on the same terms as
with other individuals and businesses of comparable risks.

Under existing BSP regulations, the amount of individual loans to a DOSRI, 70% of which
must be secured, should not exceed the individual’s deposit and the investment book value
in the Bank. In aggregate, loans to DOSRI, generally, should not exceed the total equity or
15% of the loan portfolio of the Bank.

The following table shows information relating to the loans, other credit accommodations
and guarantees classified as DOSRI accounts and new DOSRI loans, other credit
accommodations and guarantees granted as of December 31, 2016 (nil for 2017):

Total outstanding DOSRI loans (all secured) P 2,286,021
Interest costs 233,623
Percentage of DOSRI to total loans 0.005%
Percentage of unsecured DOSRI to

total DOSRI loans -

The remaining outstanding balance as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounting to
P4.4 million and P0.7 million includes outstanding loans under fringe benefit program
granted to the Bank’s officers.

There are no past due and non-accruing DOSRI loans outstanding as of December 31, 2017
and 2016; as such, no impairment loss has been recognized in 2017 and 2016.

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Bank is in compliance with the existing BSP
regulations on DOSRI.

23.2 Bank Deposits and Short-term Placements

The Bank has deposit accounts and short-term placements with RCBC which are presented
as part of Due from Other Banks account in the statements of financial position

(see Note 7.3). These bank accounts are interest-bearing and subject to normal banking
terms and conditions applied by RCBC to ordinary depositors.
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23.3 Bills Payable and Interbank Loans to Related Parties

The Bank, in the normal course of business, transacts with RCBC and certain related parties

under common ownership composed partly of receivables and payables which are presented
as part of Loans and Receivable and Bills Payable accounts, respectively, in the statements of
financial position (see Notes 9 and 15).

Bills payable pertains to overnight borrowings which are charged with interest rates same as
the prevailing range of interests for borrowed funds from other local banks (see Note 15).

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, there were no outstanding balances of interbank loans
receivables from related parties. Also, the Bank has no outstanding bills payable as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016.

23.4 Deposit Liabilities

Certain related parties maintain deposit accounts and placements with the Bank, which are
included as part of Deposit Liabilities account in the statements of financial position

(see Note 14). Such accounts are interest-bearing and subject to normal banking terms and
conditions applied by the Bank to ordinary depositors.

23.5 Transactions with the Retirement Fund

The Bank’s retirement fund for its defined benefit post-employment plan maintained for
qualified employees, is administered and managed by the Bank’s Trust Department under a
trust agreement. The carrying amount and the composition of the plan assets as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016, as well as the amounts contributed by the Bank, are shown in
Note 21.2.

The total deposits of the retirement fund to the Bank amount to P69.7 million and

P44.4 million as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The related interest expenses
recognized by the Bank from these deposits amounted to P2.1 million in 2017 and

P1.7 million in 2016.

The retirement fund neither provides any guarantee or surety for any obligation of the Bank
nor its investments covered by any restriction or liens.

23.6 Expenses Paid to RCBC

The Bank pays to RCBC for its share of the management and professional fees which was
initially paid by the latter. Also, the Bank is charged of occupancy expense for its share in
the expenses incurred for services and operations performed by RCBC for its subsidiaries.
Billing is made on a monthly basis and is paid by the Bank through issuance of manager’s
check.

In October 2013, RCBC and the Bank entered into a lease agreement covering certain office
and parking spaces of RSB Corporate Center at a monthly rental fee of P6.4 million. The
monthly rental payments are subject to an escalation rate of 5% annually effective in

2014 up to the 5th year of the lease term. The lease is for a period for five years which shall
end in October 2018 (see Note 26.1).
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23.7 Key Management Compensation

Compensation provided to the Bank’s key management personnel follows:

2017 2016
Short-term employee benefits P 88,065,012 P 90,132,607
Post-employment defined benefits 13,968,421 14,713,000

P 102,033,433 P 104,845,607

TRUST OPERATIONS

Securities and other properties (other than deposits) held by the Bank in fiduciary or agency
capacity for clients and beneficiaries are not reflected in the statements of financial position
since these are not resources of the Bank. The total resources held by the Bank’s Trust
Department amounted to P27.2 billion and P23.5 billion as of December 31, 2017 and 2016
respectively (see Note 26.2).

b

In connection with the trust operations of the Bank, government securities are regularly
purchased by the Bank with a total face value of P310.0 million and P249.0 million as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and are deposited with the BSP. These
government securities deposits with BSP are presented as part of Due from BSP in the
statements of financial position (see Note 7.2).

Income from trust operations amounted to P53.0 million and P51.7 million for the years
ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and is shown as part of Other Operating
Income in the statements of profit or loss (see Note 19.1). In compliance with existing BSP
regulations, 10% of the Bank’s profit from trust business is appropriated to surplus reserve.
This yearly appropriation is required until the surplus reserve from trust business equals
20% of the Bank’s regulatory capital. The appropriation is shown as Reserve for Trust
Business in the statements of changes in equity.

SELECTED FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The following basic indicators and ratios measure the financial performance of the Bank:

2017 2016
Return on average equity:
Net profit 12.00% 10.02%
Average total equity accounts
Return on average resources:
Net profit 1.19% 1.00%

Average total resources
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2017 2016
Net interest margin:
Net interest income 5.00% 5.30%
Average interest earning resources
Debt-to-equity ratio:
Total liabilities 8.84:1.00 9.33:1.00

Total equity

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
The following are the significant commitments and contingencies involving the Bank:
26.1 Lease Commitments — Bank as a Lessee

The Bank leases the premises of its Head Office (see Note 23.6) and branches from one to
20 years terms, renewable under certain terms and conditions. Rental under these lease
contracts amounting to P276.4 million in 2017 and P262.7 million in 2016, is included as
part of Occupancy account in the statements of profit or loss.

As of December 31, future minimum rentals payable under these non-cancellable operating
leases follow:

2017 2016
Within one year P 230,067,225 P 248,498,713
More than one year but
not more than five years 247,237,373 353,652,740
More than five years 36,149,471 35,240,016

P 513,454,069 P 637,391,469

26.2 Others

In the normal course of business, the Bank makes various commitments and incurs certain
contingent liabilities that are not reflected in the financial statements. Management believes
that losses, if any, that may arise from these commitments and contingencies will not have
any material effect on the financial statements.

The following is a summary of various contingencies and commitments arising from
off-statement of financial position items of the Bank:

Note 2017 2016
Trust department accounts 24 P 27,190,429,739 P 23,543,804,631
Spot exchange contracts sold 109,846,000 149,160,000
Late deposits/payments received 132,696,208 121,445,833
Performance standby letters of credit 64,593,422 58,625,500
Outward bills for collection 354,543 2,122,051
Items held as collateral 76,066 71,296

Items held for safekeeping 6,632 8,499



